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In time of great uncertainty were more certain

than ever In time when confidence is tested were

more confident than ever Confident in our vision

Confident in our values Confident that our talented

team members know how to satisfy all our customers

financial needs and help them succeed financially

Now more than ever we recommit to what has made us

one of the strongest financial services companies in the

world with the highest credit rating currently given

to any U.S bank Were confident that well continue

to do whats best for our team members customers

communities and shareholders Together well go far
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This performance is all the more remarkable because our

talented team achieved it during the sharpest most volatile

painful economic downturn our country has experienced in

more than quarter century We made some mistakes but kept

our credit discipline

We took several actions to further strengthen our balance

sheet as we completed the merger of Wells Fargo and Wachovia

to lay the foundation for the future growth of our combined

company One was to take charge against earnings in the

fourth quarter to add $5.6 billion to our credit reserves

money we set aside to cover future estimated loan losses This

includes $3.9 billion provision to conform reserving policies

to the most conservative practices of both companies This

is in addition to building our reserves earlier in 2008 by $2.5

billion for possible future credit losses We ended the year with

an allowance for credit losses of $21.7 billion or $3.20 for every

dollar of our loans that were not accruing interest

We further strengthened our balance sheet by taking

$37.2 billion write-down on $93.9 billion of higher-risk loans

from Wachovia We also reduced the risk of future charges to

earnings from Wachovias securities portfolio by $9.6 billion

These write-downs of loans and securities and other actions

related to the Wachovia acquisition reduced our reported Tier

capital by about 230 basis points Tier capital is core

regulatory measure of banks financial strength the ratio

of banks core equity capital to its total risk-weighted assets

At year end our Tier ratio was 7.84 percent Thats well above

regulatory minimums for well-capitalized bank

Emerging even stronger

We believe the true test of financial services companyits

vision business model culture and people is not when times

are good Its when times are not so good When the tide goes

out We emerged from 2008 even stronger ready for even more

market share growth Thats because we stayed faithful to our

vision of satisfying all our credit-worthy customers financial

needs and helping them succeed financially vision weve

been making steady progress toward for more than 20 years

through virtually every economic cycle This vision does not

require any complex mathematical models All we do is try to

create the best customer experience and then keep count How

many financial products do our customers have with us and

how can we earn all their business

Combining Wells Fargo and Wachovia

Firmly grounded in our vision we earned even more business

from our more than 40 millioncustomers in 2008 Because

of our financial performance capital strength liquidity

credit discipline and earnings we also were able to seize an

unprecedented opportunity to satisfy all the financial needs

of at least 30 million more customers Our merger with

Wachovia Corporation completed December 31 2008 has

created the United States premier coast-to-coast community

banking presence the most extensive distribution system of

any financial services company across North Americali000

stores 12300 ATMs wellsfargo.com and Wells Fargo Phone

At ia/al/os our allowance for credit laooeo excluded $12.0 billion of Wachoviao allowance

for credit-impaired bane and nanaccraal bane excluded $20.0 billion chat Wachaoia had

reported ao nonaccruaL

Bank Our combined company is in mortgage lending

agricultural lending small business lending middle market

commercial banking asset-based lending commercial real

estate lending commercial real estate brokerage and bank-

owned insurance brokerage Were in deposits mortgage

servicing and debit card

We believed this merger was compelling value the day

we announced the agreement We like it even more now The

integration is on schedule and proceeding as planned In late

2008 loan officers from both Wells Fargo and Wachovia again

carefully reexamined Wachovias entire loan portfolio Were

comfortable overall with the credit assumptions we made

when we agreed to acquire Wachovia October 2008 without

government assistance Were confident we can reduce the

combined companys expenses by 10 percent or $5 billion

by the end of 2010 and achieve an internal rate of return of

20 percent

Building our house

We did not however merge with Wachovia just to get bigger

Size alone means nothing to us You may have noticed

Nowhere above do mention how big our combined company

is in assets Where we rank in asset size alone is meaningless

to us Thats because we did this merger to get better In fact

to our customers bigness can be barrier Ive yet to hear of

customer walking into one of our banks and saying want

to bank here because youre so .. big Safe secure and stable

yes Friendly hometown and approachable yes Smart savvy

ethical yes But not just because were big As we like to say

You dont get better by getting bigger you get bigger by

getting better

So were approaching this merger not as if were building

an empire but as if were building home into which we can

welcome our customers so we can have conversations they

find of value about their hopes and dreams and financial goals

It took only 90 days from definitive agreement to official merger

at the end of 2008 It will take much more time to fully blend

the cultures of our two companies combine businesses and

products and systems and name-change where needed

Just as we did with the very successful Norwest-Wells Fargo

merger decade ago were taking our time to do it right Were

putting our customers first not the calendar Were beginning

every discussion with whats best for our customers and our

team members focusing first not on the bottom line but the

top line This may sound odd to some people but we dont

believe our first job is to make lot of money Our first job is

to understand our customers financial objectives their true

financial needs then offer them products and services to

help satisfy those needs so they can be financially successful

If we do that right then all sorts of good things happen for

all our stakeholders and well be able to produce industry-

leading returns for our shareholders Based on this vision the

Wells Fargo-Wachovia team is building something together

that we couldnt have built separately Were building what we

believe can become the premier financial services company not

just in America but in the world Were building not just for the

next quarter but for generations to come



Our performance

in millions except per share amounts 2008 2007 Change

FOR THE YEAR

Net income 2655 8057 67%

Net income applicable to common stock 2369 8057 71

Diluted earnings per common share 0.70 2.38 71

Profitability ratios

Net income to average total assets ROA 0.44% 1.55% 72
Net income applicable to common stock to average common

stockholders equity ROE 4.79 17.12 72

Efficiency ratio 54.1 57.9

Total revenue 41897 39390

Pre-tax pre-provision profit3 19236 16566 16

Dividends declared per common share 1.30 1.18 10

Average common shares outstanding 3378.1 3348.5

Diluted average common shares outstanding 3391.3 3382.8

Average loans 398460 344775 16

Average assets 604396 520752 16

Average core deposits 325212 303091

Average retail core deposits 234130 221076

Net interest margin 4.83% 4.74%

AT YEAR END

Securities available for sale 151569 72951 108

Loans 864830 382195 126

Allowance for loan losses 21013 5307 296

Goodwill 22627 13106 73

Assets 1309639 575442 128

Core deposits 745482 311731 139

Common stockholders equity 68272 47628 43

Stockholders equity 99084 47628 108

Tier capital 86397 36674 136

Total capital 180318 51638 152

Capital ratios

Common stockholders equity to assets 5.21% 8.28% 37

Risk-based capital6

Tier capital 7.84 7.59

Total capital 11.83 10.68 11

Tier leverage 14.52 6.83 113

Book value per common share 16.15 14.45 12

Team members active full-time equivalent 281000 159800 76

On 12/31/08 Wells Fa9o Company acquired Wachovia Corporation Wochovia Because the acquisition was completed at th end of 2008 Wachovlas

results are not Included In the Income statement average
balances or related metrics for 2008 Wachovias assets and liabilities are Included in the consolidated

balance sheet at 12/31/08 at their respective acquisition date fair values

Nonlnterest expense divided by total revenue net interest income and nonlnterest Income

Total revenue less noninterest expense

Noninterest-bearing deposits Interest-bearing checking savings certificates market rate and other savings and certain foreign deposits Eurodollar sweep balances

Total core deposits excluding Wholesale Banking core deposits and retail mortgage escrow deposits To reflect the realignment of our corporate trust business from

Communiiy Banking into Wholesale Banking In 2008 the balance for 2007 has been revised

Due to the Wachovla acquisition closing on 12/31/08 the ncr leverage ratio which considers period-end Tier capital and quarterly average assets In the

computation of the ratio does not reflect average assets of Wachovia for the full period

Includes Wachovia team members at 12/31/08



Keeping talent

In this merger as always in our company people come first

major test of our success in this merger is how much talent

we can keep because the talent of our people is our product

Were service company and our team members are the

biggest influence on our customers Enthusiastic loyal satisfied

team members create enthusiastic loyal satisfied customers

who want to stay with us for lifetime That is why we call them

team members an asset in which to invest not employees

an expense to be managed

Many people think they have to change companies or careers

every five years to be successful Were contrarians we value

loyalty We believe that the longer talented team members

stay with us the more they can use their skill knowledge and

experience to benefit our customers In mergerthis big and

complex it makes us one of Americas top 10-largest private

employers with 281000 team members some positions have

to be eliminated because theyre duplicated or because they

no longer fit the new structure as we combine businesses and

functions Inevitably this causes disruption and uncertainty for

those team members whose positions are eliminated due

to the merger

Just because position is eliminated however doesnt

necessarily mean the team member in that position has to leave

the company To keep as much talent as possible weve paused

in most of our external recruiting and external hiring so we can

help give team members displaced by the merger the chance

to search for other exciting opportunities in our company

Were growth company We have thousands of open jobs in

our company Were adding them every day in our banks our

mortgage company in investments and insurance and many of

our other businesses

More alike than different

The past several months Ive had the privilege of meeting

and getting to know many thousands of Wachovia team

members in my visits to Charlotte Winston-Salem Columbia

South Carolina Richmond Atlanta Miami Jacksonville

Birmingham Houston Dallas Summit New Jersey

Washington D.C Philadelphia Boston New York City

St Louis Los Angeles and the San Francisco Bay Area Ive

found them to be just like our Wells Fargo team members

friendly caring sincere very much committed to their

customers and communities Weve had different systems

processes
and ways of doing things but from the customer

point of view believe were much more alike than were

different This is one of our great advantages as we integrate

our two companies Each company began at opposite ends of

the countryWells Fargo tracing its legacy to 1852 Wachovia

to 1781but in the last few months weve discovered how much

we have in common and how much we can learn from each

other We both believe community banking is noble calling

the opportunity to help people be financially successful be

catalyst for economic growth in our communities and still

earn fair profit By instinct and habit we both begin every

discussion with whats best for our customers and communities

We both want every customer to say Wow didnt know

Were approaching the merger

of Wells Fargo and Wachovia

not as if were building an

empire but as if were building

home into which we can

welcome our customers so we

can have conversations they

find of value about their hopes

and dreams and financial goals

could get service like that She made difference He solved my

problem and helped me understand how can achieve my goals

learned something new about my financial health

Were very proud of the communities in which we live and

work and we want our companies to be known as leaders in

making them even better places to live and work In our Annual

Report this year beginning on page 10 we introduce you to

13 team members from Wells Fargo and 13 team members

from Wachovia each working in the same business or similar

geography to satisfy all our customers financial needs and help

them succeed financially These great team members are living

proof Were much more alike than were different

Our national scope

Our name remains Wells Fargo our vision and values

remain unchanged our corporate headquarters remains in

San Francisco but the talent and resources of our company

are more broadly dispersed across North America than ever

before Several metro areas across the country have significant

concentrations of businesses functions and employment

for our company Des Moines is national headquarters for

Wells Fargo Home Mortgage and global headquarters for

Wells Fargo Financial Our credit card business has significant

concentrations in Des Moines Concord California Beaverton

Oregon and Sioux Falls South Dakota Minneapolis-St Paul

is headquarters for 18 national businesses including Wells Fargo

Insurance consumer Institutional Trust Equipment Finance

Municipal Finance and SBA Lending Chicago is our national

headquarters for Wells Fargo Insurance Services commercial

Los Angeles is headquarters for 15 national businesses

including U.S Corporate Banking Commercial Real Estate

Lending Community Real Estate Lending International

Financial Services Wells Capital Management and Foothill

Capital Three important centers of employment and expertise

from Wachovia now join this national group of hubquarters

for Wells Fargo Charlotte North Carolina Wachovias former

corporate headquarters is now Wells Fargos headquarters

for Eastern Community Banking Its also home to more than

dozen of our companys senior business heads in Wealth



Management and Retirement Services Commercial Banking

Investment Banking Mortgage Card Services and Technology

and Operations St Louis is headquarters for Wachovia

Securities retail broker Boston is headquarters for Wachovias

Evergreen Investments asset management

Our 2008 performance

In addition to the achievements mentioned at the beginning

we also built the foundation for future growth of our combined

company with these achievements in 2008

Our revenue grew percent and our expenses declined

one percentthe best such revenue/expense ratio among

our large peers and the one we consider the best long-term

measure of companys efficiency

Our return on equity after-tax profit for every shareholder

dollar was 4.79 cents for every dollar of our shareholders

equity best among our large peers

To help finance the Wachovia acquisition we issued

422.7 million shares of common stock valued at $12.5 billion

at year-end Excluding initial public offerings this was the

largest single issue of common stock in U.S history The

enthusiastic response to this offering in very difficult

market again showed broad investor confidence in our

long-term growth potential time-tested vision and

diversified business model

Our average Retail Banking household had record

5.73 products with us s.s in 2007 3.8 in 2001 and one

of every four has eight or more products with us

We added 6.2 percent net new checking accounts core

product that if our customers have with us makes them

much more inclined to come to us for their next financial

services product

More than half our new Business Banking checking

customers bought package of products from us when they

opened their accounts such as business debit card credit

card or business loan or line of credit

Our average Wholesale Banking customer had record

6.4 products per relationship with us record 7.8 products

per Commercial Banking customer relationship

Average core deposits from our Wealth Management

customers rose $7 billion up 40 percent Private Banking

average core deposits rose 38 percent

We originated $230 billion in mortgages and our

owned-mortgage servicing portfolio was $2.1 trillion

including Wachovia up 39 percent from last year

Our most-used channel wellsfargo.com had blockbuster

yearproduct solutions sold up 29 percent total active

online customers surpassed ii million up 15 percent active

consumer Bill Pay customers up 16 percent to two million

and we introduced the vSofe personal online safe for

protecting and storing important documents

Besides Wachovia we acquired the banking operations

of United Bancorporation of Wyoming Flatiron Credit

Company insurance premium finance Farmers State

Bank Morgan Colorado Century Bancshares Dallas-Fort

Worth Texarkana Texas and Arkansas and EMAR Group

commercial insurance

Our team members as whole are happier in their work

than ever before In Community Banking home to about

one of every three of them the ratio of engaged to actively

disengaged team members was 8.7 to 2.5 to five years

ago versus national average of 1.5 to Our most senior

bankers market presidents district managers and

regional presidents are more engaged than about nine

of every 10 work groups Gallup surveys

The $25 billion investment by the U.S Treasury in

Wells Fargo preferred stock in fourth quarter 2008 gives our

company more resources and greater confidence to make

more loans to credit-worthy customers Our new lending

in the fourth quarter 2008 alone was almost three times

the government investment In February 2009 we paid

quarterly dividend of $371.5 millionto the U.S Treasury

on its Wells Fargo investment

Lending discipline

Weve said it for years and well say it again because its

never been more important Our financial goal is to have

conservative financial structure as measured by asset quality

capital levels diversity of revenue sources and dispersing risk

by geography loan size and industry

True to that and unlike many of our competitors we actually

built capital and shrunk our balance sheet in 2005 and 2006

well before credit markets began to contract in 2008 We

understood our customers financial needs As result our

company is one of the worlds strongest financial institutions

Even as credit markets contracted in 2008 we still led the

Were not satisfied with just being in deposit market share

We want to be known as the best in every product in every market

in which we do business in retail banking business banking

investments and mortgage and be the first provider our

customers think of when they need their next financial product



Alaska

Nevada

Utah

industry in lending to credit-worthy customers We made more

loans at better price spreads while many of our competitors had

to cut back In 2008 we provided $41 billion in new lending to

businesses and individuals Our average loans rose i6 percent

Our average commercial and commercial real estate loans rose

25 percent

Wells Fargo Wachovia growth opportunities

Building on our strength and performance this merger presents

us with significant growth opportunities in each of our major

business groups Heres just sample

Community Banking beyond deposits

In addition to our 24 Wells Fargo Community Banking states

in the Midwest the Southwest the Rockies and the West

Wachovia introduces us to 15 more states Alabama Connecticut

Delaware Florida Georgia Kansas Maryland Mississippi

New Jersey New York North Carolina Pennsylvania South

Carolina Tennessee Virginia and Washington D.C Our 2008

acquisition of Century Bancshares established our Community

Banking presence in Arkansas At year-end 2008 our combined

company was in deposit market share in iS of our 39

Community Banking states and the District of Columbia

Ninety-three percent of our deposits were in states in which

we rank or We ranked in 10 of the nations 20 largest

metro areas in deposit market share excluding deposits

$50 million in single banking store

Theres more to financial services however than just

deposits Theres significant potential for more growth in all

these states because banking deposits are an important but

relatively small portion of average household assets In fact our

share of total household assets in any of these states is probably

no more than percent We want to go beyond deposits and

satisfy all the financial needs of Wachovias retail banking and

brokerage households not just deposits loans and lines of

credit but their credit cards debit cards insurance brokerage

401ks mortgage home equity and on and on

Take quick inventory of all your own households financial

products Youll probably come up with about 16 which you

bought from several providers We believe you can save more

time and money if you have all your products with one trusted

provider that can offer you and deliver on compelling

value proposition The same goes for our business banking

customers We want to satisfy all their financial needs not

just their deposits loans and lines of credit but their private

banking mortgage treasury management payroll processing

merchant processing insurance and on and on Were not

satisfied with just being in deposit market share We want

to be known as the best in every product in every market in

which we do business in retail banking business banking

investments and mortgage and be the first provider our

customers think of when they need their next financial product

Both our companies are learning from each other Wachovia will

help Wells Fargo make the customer experience in our banking

stores even better Wells Fargo will help further strengthen

the Wachovia sales process For example only one of every

10 Wachovia banking customers has Wachovia credit card

four of every 10 Wells Fargo customers have Wells Fargo

credit card

Wells Fargos Deposit Leadership

Market Share Rank

44%

26

24

Arizona 24

Colorado 22

California 20

Minnesota 20

Idaho 20

Wyoming 20

Florida 19

Virginia 19

North Carolina 19

New Mexico 18

South Carolina 16

South Dakota 16

Georgia 15

D.C 15

New Jersey 14

Oregon 14

Texas 13

Delaware 13

Alabama 11

Montana 11

Pennsylvania 10

Iowa

Conneoticut

Nebraska

North Dakota

Washington

Maryland

Wisconsin

Kansas

Indiana 14

New York 11

Michigan 26

Illinois 25

Tennessee 25

Mississippi n.m

Arkansas n.m

Ohio n.m

Source ENS Financial Deposit data 6/30/05 Pro forma far acquisitions
Exclude deposits

greater than $soo million in single banking stare

n.m not meaningful

The mortgage arid banking opportunity huge

With checking investments and insurance mortgage is one

of our four core products one that our customers value so

much that if they have it with us then theyre more likely to

buy more products from us This makes it an indispensable

part of satisfying all their financial needs Weve had

significant retail mortgage presence in the Eastern U.S for

long time we now have significant Community Banking

presence there as well This is one of the biggest cross-sell

opportunities of the Wachovia merger the opportunity in

15 more states to earn all the banking business of our mortgage

customers and all the mortgage business of Wachovias banking

households This opportunity alone could generate millions of

dollars of added revenue because we have about three million

Wells Fargo Home Mortgage customers in the 15 states we enter

with Community Banking through the Wachovia merger



Despite the pain of 2008 we continue to believe in the spirit

ingenuity work ethic creativity and adaptability of American

workers Were capitalists and proud of it We believe in free

enterpriseWere Americans first bankers second Were

long-term optimists We believe in the economic potential

of every one of our communities

How we lend responsibly

Irrational lenders come and go mostly they go We will

stay as we have for 157 years through virtually every

economic cycle-by lending responsibly making high-quality

loans to good customers helping them succeed financially

Thats why weve avoided most of the recent problems of the

mortgage industry Its why 93 of every 100 of our mortgage

customers were current with their payments at year-end 2008

performance consistently better than the industry average

We still make mortgage loans the old-fashioned way We do

not underwrite mortgage loan unless we believe the borrower

can repay it according to its terms The loan must have clear

benefit for the customer such as reducing the interest rate or

monthly payment on debt obtaining significant new money

paying off delinquent real estate-secured debt converting an

adjustable rate to fixed rate or buying home We want to

give customers all the information they need so they know

what theyre buying what it will cost and that its right for them

If our customers have trouble making payments we try to

contact them early and often so we can help them make their

payments on time Wells Fargo-Wachovia has 8000 team

members double more than year ago working just to help

these customers keep their homes In 2008 we helped more than

half millionof our mortgage customers with loan solutions

We were able to contact of every 100 of our mortgage

customers who were two payments late We helped more

than half of those 94 avoid foreclosure through refinancing

reducing payments agreeing to new repayment plans short

sales the proceeds are less than what the owner still owes on

the mortgage term extensions up to 40 years reduced interest

rates no interest charge on part of the principal for some period

of time and in some markets reduced principal and making

sure these modified loans are right for investors

To help sustain neighborhoods were selling vacant and

foreclosed properties at significant discounts to new owners

including first-time homebuyers by working closely with real

estate agents housing nonprofits and city officials Weve made

$33 million in grants to nonprofit housing organizations the last

two years

The past several years Wachovia offered Pick-a-Payment

mortgage loan that allowed customers to choose from among

four payment options including monthly payment that

may not cover interest charges perhaps causing the unpaid

principal to increase Wells Fargo did not offer so-called

negative amortizing loans Were managing the Pick-a-Payment

portfolio as separate business unit distinct from the rest of

Wells Fargo Home Mortgage At the end of 2008 as part of the

accounting for the merger we charged off $22.2 billion on this

portfolio In January and February 2009 we gave an extension

to Wachovia mortgage customers being referred to or in

foreclosure to give them time to contact us so we could work

with them to help them keep their homes

Wealth Management just the beginning

The Wells Fargo-Wachovia merger combines extraordinary

talent and resources in wealth management We now have

16000 financial advisors managing $1 trillion in client assets

through bank private client and independent channels That

includes our coast-to-coast wealth management organization

with $150 billion in client assets We provide private banking

trust and family office services to affluent investors from those

just beginning to accumulate wealth to those who have many

financial services needs Were one of the nations top-seven

retirement record keepers for 3.6 millionparticipants Were

also one of the nations largest retirement administrators and

leading distributor of IRA and annuity products Impressive but

its just start We want all our wealth management brokerage

and retirement services customers to bank with Wells Fargo

We want all our banking customers to think of us first for all

their wealth management needs Our goal is to be the most

respected provider of wealth brokerage and retirement services

in the United States number one second to none

Wholesale Banking the full relationship

The Wells Fargo-Wachovia merger creates what we believe

is the most comprehensive offering of products and services

for commercial and corporate customers in the United

States Nationwide were now the lender to middle market

companies $25 millionto $500 millionin annual revenue

commercial real estate lender commercial real estate

broker and the bank-owned insurance broker Despite

the economic downturn many of our best corporate and

commercial customers are receiving loans that are well

structured with pricing appropriate for the risk Lending is just

one part of full-service relationship Its not uncommon for

many of our commercial customers to have dozens of products



with us covering the full range of lending and operating

services such as Treasury Management the Commercial

Electronic Office and Desktop Deposit

Our Asset Management group now has $500 billion in

assets under management In the last five years our mutual

funds have grown from the 27th-largest fund complex in 2003

$78 billion to the 14th-largest in 2008 $172 billion Combined

with Wachovias Evergreen Investments our mutual fund assets

under management had balance of $250 billion among the 15

largest in our industry

We welcome to our Board

With the merger four members of the Wachovia Board have

joined the Wells Fargo Board and were benefiting from

their experience and knowledge of Wachovias markets and

customers We welcome

John Baker president and CEO of Patriot Transportation

Holding Inc Jacksonville Florida Wachovia Board member

since 2001

Don James chairman and CEO of Vulcan Materials

Company Birmingham Alabama Wachovia Board member

since 2004

Mackey McDonald retired chairman and CEO of

VF Corporation an apparel manufacturer in Greensboro

North Carolina Wachovia Board member since 1997

Bob Steel former president and CEO of Wachovia

Corporation Wachovia Board member since 2008

We also thank

Dick Kovacevich who at the Boards invitation agreed

to continue as chairman for an interim period to help us

successfully integrate Wachovia into Wells Fargo His

experience and counsel are needed now more than ever

because he shaped our companys vision and values and

led what is known as the most successful merger of two

large financial services companies in U.S historythe

Norwest-Wells Fargo merger 10 years ago

Phil Quigley who our Board elected to the new position

of lead director to work with Dick and me to approve

Board meeting agendas chair meetings of independent

directors call executive sessions of the Board help ensure

coordinated coverage of Board responsibilities and facilitate

communication between the Board and senior management

Mike Wright retired chairman and CEO of

SUPERVALU INC who will retire from the Board in April

2009 after 18 years of service to our company Mike joined

our Board in 1991 and has served on the Credit Human

Resources and Governance and Nominating Committees

We thank him for his outstanding contributions to the

governance of our company

The year ahead we believe in America

If youre pessimist theres lot for you to like about 2009

It will be rough year for our economy and our industry

Consumer loans will continue under stress with falling home

prices nine-month inventory of unsold homes nationally

higher unemployment less disposable income and discretionary

spending more bankruptcies Credit quality will not improve

until the housing market stabilizes Charge-offs uncollectible

debt probably will continue to rise Loan losses in consumer

credit businesses including home equity will continue higher

than normal until home values stop falling

Regardless of what the economy and the markets do in

2009 we focus on our vision and on doing whats right for our

customers Now more than ever before in our lifetimes people

need safe trustworthy capable financial advisor who can

partner with them to help plan and achieve their financial goals

for home education building business and retirement

Despite the pain of 2008 we continue to believe in the spirit

ingenuity work ethic creativity and adaptability of American

workers Were capitalists and proud of it We believe in free

enterprise Were Americans first bankers second Were

long-term optimists We believe in the economic potential of

every one of our communities from Atlanta to Anchorage

from Galveston to Great Falls We believe in the United States

of America as beacon for freedom liberty and economic

opportunity worldwide We believe our country can learn from

its mistakes and survive downturns in business cycles better

than any country in the world Its still the global leader in

technology manufacturing and services still the global leader

by far in gross domestic product still the leader in global

buying power still the best place in the world in which to invest

and do business

Our country and our ancestors have faced far more difficult

challenges than those we face today Just ask your grandparents

or read about their lives My parents were children of the Great

Depression They raised ii children on family farm in central

Minnesota worked hard and sacrificed and taught us what is

really important in life see no reason why with discipline and

determination our great country cannot persevere and prosper

through these times as well Now more than ever before our

company wants to stand by our customers and do whats right

for them just as Wells Fargo has done for almost 16 decades and

seven generations

We thank all our 281000 team members from Wells Fargo

and Wachovia for working together with our customers to earn

more of their business and for collaborating to help ensure

smooth merger integration We thank our customers for

entrusting us with more of their business and for returning

to us for their next financial services product We thank our

communities for allowing us to serve them And we thank you

our owners for your confidence in Wells Fargo as we begin

our i8th year

Together well go far

John Stumpt President and Chief Executive Officer



Together well go far

T1.ie merger of Wells Fdrgo and Wachovia has created

cOJ..flJafl.y 93lQf tealm inprOberS across Nori.h America
rr

nev carrie irrom cnrrerenL companies cimerent businesses

crIeenr ccmmannes ditmreot neighborhocdc ry07

citerent nesponsicilities tities heyre diverse

in .281000 ways There spread out across continent of

biU ions of acres Very tew get chaiice to meet each other

in person W1.iat binds them togebhei WiTiat aives them

common cause What rnaires them think and act as one team

when they yet up in the morning One word The customer

Understanding tho customers financial needs Damp whots

richt for ihe customer Satisfina all the customers financial

neens ieipn rue custcmer succees tinanclaisy nat wnat

brings us all together
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Rashidah Lopez Morgan
Wach via tears member since 2007

Card Semices Consumer Lending

Maurice Benson

We is Fargo teen mcmber 2002

Card Services Consumer Le ding

Rashidah and Maurice come from diffeient

companies different parts of the countiy

But both instnctively same customers

the same way They re not just selling

credit cards or any other product They

rst want to hnd out what each customer

really needs to be ftnancially successful

We call this needs-hased seiling They

want to make sure the customer has all

the information needed to use the card

responsibly Credit cards often are part

of our Wells Fargo Packages checking

account and at least three other products

purchased by three of every four of our

new checking count customers

11



Joe Ohayon

Wclls Fargo team member nce 2006

Mortgaje

Anita SmithDixon

Wa hovia team mercoer sin 1985

Mor gage

Joe Anita and aJi our 30000 mortgage

team members help customers achieve

the dream of home ownership That dream

has to be built on solid underwriting

Can fre customer repay
the ba tinder

its terms Doeb the mortgage offer

the customer clear beneht Does the

customer know the complete cost of the

mortgage Joe and Anita help answer

these questions Because they do 93 of

every 100 of our mortgage customers

were on time l1h theii paymerts in 2008

performance consistently better than

the industry average

12



In down economy small business

owners have lot that keeps then up

at nightworries about cash flow

revenues wise use of capital staffing

and credit No wonder our Wells Fargo/

Gallup Small Business Index showed

their optimism at five-year low in late

2008 And yet Only one of every five

surveyed said they thought credit was

hard to obtain Our business bankers

such as Rick and Jackie are there to

help them through all economic cycles

Were the nations largest loader to

small businesses with tis mIllion

relationships coast to coast

Rick Lam

Wells Fargo team members no 199

Business Banking

Jackie Sanchez

Wachavia team meinbcr since 198k

Bnsiness Banking

13



Were the nations largest bank-owned

insurance broker The worlds fifth-largest

insurance agency But guess what Only

about one of every Ia of our banking

customers buy insurance brough us

Maybe thats because insurance shopping

is the last thing most of our customers

want to do Team members such as

Marcia and Al help customers get the

right insurance the right way through

Wells Fargos Personalized Insurance

Planning and Commercial Brokerage It

includes competitive quotes side-by-side

comparisons straightforward advice and

clear explanations of
coverage you dont

have to be an actuary to understand

Marcia Allen Jackson

Wachovia team member since 1998

Ir an

Al Diagotto

Is Fsrgo tram member sinre 938

neui i1

14



Community Banking is the heart of our

companyright down to the neighborhood

Prov ding personal hometown service

bet than any other national competitor

but more convenience and products than

any other local competitor We call it

out local he tionals and outnatjonal

the locals Pc onal bankers such as Liz

me mong thousands of team

seivi customers through

banking tores in 39 states and

of Columbia It works Were

osit market share in i8 of those

Ithe Dit ic of Col hi in

tio 20 la go eUo as

Liz Delgado

Wells Fargo team m.ember since 1984

Regional Banking

Adam Sollie

Wachovia team member since 2004

Regional Banking



Ikuko Yamazaki left

\el Fargo tean member Sin 2003

Regona Bantii

Shanan Hill

Waciovia team member snce 1990

Regi ra Banking

Our retail banking customers have

an average of 73 products with us

Impressive yes but consider The

average American household has about

16 financial products That means many

of our customers give twmthirds of their

business to our competitors Thats why

we say our biggest opportunity to earn

more business is right in front of us our

own customers Ikuko and Shanan and

our 115000 Community Banking team

members look for better ways every day

to satisfy aJ our customers financial

needs and help them succeed financially

One customer at time



The Vvells FargmWachovia merger

makes us the nations largest lender to

middle market companies $25 million

$250 million in revenue We don

measure that leadership just in dollar

volume better measure How much

business do we earn from each customer

Not just their Lending needs but treasury

management international services

correspondent banking and more

Our average commercial customer

has 7.8 produots with us our average

large corporate customer 7.6 our

companys highest average products

perrelationship

Rebecca Fabisch Miller

Wells Farg team member sincc 999

Commercial Banking

Ty Williams

Wacfovia team member since 1982

Commercial Banking

17



Mary Cascaes

Wells Fargo team member since 1995

Assct Managcmeot

Trust and integrity are more important

than evor for investors today But who

to trust Backed by our 157-year

heritage team members such as Diana

and Mary bring disciplined approach

to administering funds we manage for

clients Our investment managers and

sub-advisors seek consistent long-term

results for investors with discipline

and integrity Our funds span all asset

categories and investment styles

Wells Fm go Advantage Funds and

Wachovias Evergreen Funds together

have $250 billion in assets under

management among the top 15 largest

U.S fund companies

Diana Urichich

Wacbovia team member since 1999

Asset Management

18



For roost sven eratron weve

nelped amilis build inags preserve

nd transf wraith Whether you re just

beginning to ocr inulate wealth or your

needs are more ornpic we to

plar all ed to your ni ods Were ready

to serve you wke ar ho you want to

be served through her risc Irnanci ii

lvrsois ir our banking stores our raith

managers in yor eon munrty or The

Private Bank rrwesmcnt rsanagcmont

financial pie ining or trust and Il tote

services Profesicriils ud al Irm an

onnre wart to sure vs get the

same high quai ty rvre in any liannel

you ehoocc

Tim Studlack

Wells irgo te ira er rher sin

We rlth Mn no at Cr sup

3onme Koenig

Wachvis team in ib ence 1991

Welt Mdndyti Pro ip
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Bob Truedak Ic Id

Wa to end inca 996

TechncI

Kuarigkuo Liu

Wit cia go to mm no ince 1998

lechno

Fvery tina you bank with is online in oui

stori on the phone or at an AyM team

ma inhet cur Ii as Rob and Ku mgkuo am

there behind tho PC screen to make sure

thi tiansaction is safe so ura accurate

and on time We manage aight billion

transactions year Our oinput era we

atm ago capa ity 300 tnes greatci than

the Lbxarv of Congier more data

capac ity than all US cadcnnc rosoatch

hbrarie combined



Kimberly and Eric are just two of our

i6ooo financial advisors across the

country who help our customers invest for

the future Befoo

advice they ask

are your short an

goals When do

much annual incc

retirement Do you plan to

childrens education Then they help you

rank your goals test them with what ifs

and reach them

Kimberly Ta

Wschovia team member ic 2000

Brokerage

Eric Netjes

Wells Fargo team member since 2003

Brokerage

21



Commercial real estate is Just another

name ror where people live and work

Off ces Shopping centers Aparments

and condos These buildings are easily

taken for granted because we see them

every daT but without the right financing

they wouldnt exist Thats where

come in Were the largest commercial

real estate lender and commercial real

estate droker in the United States

Together in 2008 Wells Forgo and

Wachovia thanks to team members

such as Pam and Yorick originated

$i63 billior in loans for commercial

end multkfamily buildings

Pain Little

abovia team ffembcr si 1990

Coo mer Cal Real Estate

Yorick Starr

Wells Farge teen merffer since 2002

Commsrja Real Estate

22



Alma Magallon

We is cc go team membei nce 1a93

Beg coal Bar king

Dalilah Scott Webber

WaGovia rienhec sir cc 199

Regiocal Banking

Our customers are our friends We

want to treat them that way iu our

banking stores at our ATMs on the

phone or online Team members such

as Alma and Dahlah know we re only

as good as our hrst impression and

last connection We want to make our

customels feel at home Show them we

care about them Make them feel special

Give them the right advice Give them

value Keep our promises Help them

when they really need it Reach out

to them Know them When we make

mistake make things even better

Thank them If we do all this we can

corn ci their business for lifetime

23



culture of caring for our communities

At Wells Farao community involvement is not just

nice thing to do Nor is it s.omething we do because

were expected to do it do it because its central to

our vision We do it because its the way we do business

We cannot satisfy all our customers financial needs and

help them succeed financiallyif we ignore the iongterm

economic weiibeing of the communities in which our

customers and team members live We believe the merger

of Wells Fargo and Wachovia will make us twice as involved

in our communities Both companies have strong legacies

of investing in their communities legacies built by

generations of our team membersincluding the hve

that follow Imso proud said one of our team members
to work for company that has culture of caring

24



The San Francisco Food Bankand

nearly dozen other San Franciscoarea

food shelves could not keep up with

demand this fall as the economy worsened

Wells Fargo team members were

monitoring the situation and as result

the company stepped in and doubled its

support $100000 to 16 local food banks

part of $1.2 million that Wells Fargo

gave to food programs nationwide The

struggle to meet our communitys most

basic needs has been huge challenge

said team member Lesley Eckstein

active on the San Francisco Food Bank

board Our company recognized the

need locally and responded it makes me

proud to work at Wells Fargo

25



Junior Achievement inspired Magen

Hughes to open her first savings account

in grade school Now she coordinates

the companys relationship with the local

Junior Achievement chapter and heads

the Birmingham abama hapter of

WachoviaVolunteers She volunteered

90 hours with Junior Achievoment

in 2008 and was named its Volunteer

of the Year Wells Fargo gave si million

in grants through the Wachovia and

Wells Fargo foundations last year to

Junior Achievement Supporting public

schools is very important to me Hughes

said hope my work helps students better

understand how budgeting and saving

can he them and our communities

become financially successful

26



Almost 40 years ago Wells Fargo helped

start the Greater Metropolitan Housing

Corporation GMHC in Minneapolis/

St Paul Paul Schmidt pictured and

Dick Miller represent Wells Fargo on

the board continuing the companys

legacy of helping people of all income

levels hod place to live GMHC

redevelops properties and consults with

thousands of clients at five neighborhood

housing resource centers Team member

David Wiese has also worked with

Wells Fargos Community Development

Corporation to provide $2.4 million in

low-interest capital to the organization

the past 10 yearn The money helped build

affordable housing and buy foreclosed

homes or land for future housing projects

Now more than ever with foreclosures

harming neighborhoods across the nation

its important for companies such as ours

to stay active in redeveloping properties

and championing affordable housing

projects Schmidt said Wells Fargos

long-standing commitment to the GMHC
shows its dedication to our communities

lIlt
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Deb Gaustad team member in Pinetop

Arizona earned $10000 Wells Fargo

grant for Beads of Courage nonprofit

that helps young cancer patients and

their families cope with treatment It

was one of 161 grants in 2008 totaling

$300000 made through our Volunteer

Service Award Program Each year

dozens of team members apply for grants

for nonprofits for which they volunteer

Gaustads sister an oncology nurse

started the program at Phoenix Childrens

Hospital and its now standard in more

than 40 hospitals across the country

Patients like Kellie MinerDurkit right

benefit from the program Its been

amazing to play small role in the

large impact tl inization has had

on thousands Gaustad

said These pr pire me to be

courageous as what each day

life brings irs Wells Fargo

made Volunteer Service

utions to hundreds

of team members

28



passion

ce he was six years old

ith Wells Fargos suppo the

lorida team member om

dt ust

is as

and coac rs call

ing the three month

ing for advice and support

thats the most fulfilling part of my work

If can be trusted source of stability

and support for these young men then

my volunteer hours have been well spent

In 2007 and 2008 Byrom volunteered

more than 500 hours with the youth

program The company made $1000

donation to the team the Yellow Jackets

in Byroms honor as Volunteer of the

Year Award winner in 2006

29



$1.96 million every week

$279660 every day

$11652 every hour

Education 32%

Human Services 30%

Community Development 22%

Arts and Culture 10%

Civic 5%

Environmental 1%

$2.38 million every week

$339000 every day

$14000 every hour

Our community involvement goes
far beyond just writing

checks We aspire to the highest level of community

involvement in four areas

Social capital applying our best

thinking as leaders in making

communities better places to live

and work

Team membervolunteerism

encouraging and celebrating the

good work our team members do in

their communities

Financial contributions giving

with purpose and focus

Compliance conducting business

ethically and responsibly according

to legal requirements and our

own standards

Average value of volunteer hour is $19.51 $27.3 million

in time contributed

$4 billion in environmental financing since 2006 surpassed

$1 billion goal two years ahead of schedule

One of the first companies pre-certifled for Leadership in

Energy and Environmental Design LEED new construction

by he U.S Green Building Council

New banking stores will use about 20 percent less energy

and 40 percent less water than conventional buildings of the

same type

Includes affordable housing community service and economic

deveiopment loans

$14.4 million in matched educational donations from team

members up 20 percent from 2007

Wachovia spent $2.5 billion and $52 million respectively

Wells Fargo became the first lender in the country to

complete transaction through the new National Community

Stabilization Trust helping move bank-owned properties

to nonprofits and municipalities in quicker cost-effective

way Four nonprofits and the Office of the Comptoller of the

Currency 0CCorganized the Trust which has pilots in

New York City Minneapolis-St Paul Memphis and

Rochester New York and is planning 40 more

30
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This Annual Repart including the Financial Review and the Financial Statements and related Nates has farward-loaking statements

which may include farecasts af our financial results and canditian expectatians far aur operatians and business and aur assumptians

far those forecasts and expectations Do not unduly rely on forward-looking statements Actual results may differ significantly from our

forecasts and expectations due to several factors Please refer to the Risk Factors section of this Report for discussion of some of the

factors that may cause results to differ

Financial Review

Overview

Wells Fargo Company is $1.3 trillion diversified financial

services company providing banking insurance investments

mortgage banking investment banking retail banking

brokerage and consumer finance through banking stores

the internet and other distribution channels to consumers

businesses and institutions in all 50 states and in other

countries We ranked fourth in assets and first in market

value of our common stock among our peers at December 31

2008 When we refer to the Company we our or us
in this Report we mean Wells Fargo Company and

Subsidiaries consolidated When we refer to the Parent

we mean Wells Fargo Company

We reported diluted earnings per common share of $0.70

for 2008 compared with $2.38 for 2007 Net income was

$2.66 billion for 2008 compared with $8.06 billion for 2007

Net income for 2008 included an $8.14 billion pre tax credit

reserve build $2.01 billion pre tax of other-than-temporary

impairment and $124 million pre tax of merger-related expenses

On December 31 2008 Wells Fargo acquired Wachavia

Corporation Wachavia Because the acquisition was com

pleted at the end of 2008 Wachovias results are not included

in the income statement average balances or related metrics

for 2008 Wachovias assets and liabilities are included in the

consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2008 at their

respective acquisition date fair values

Our vision is to satisfy all our customers financial needs

help them succeed financially be recognized as the premier

financial services company in our markets and be one of

Americas great companies Our primary strategy to achieve

this vision is to increase the number of products our cus

tomers buy from us and to give them all of the financial prod

ucts that fulfill their needs Our cross-sell strategy and diver

sified business model facilitate growth in strong and weak

economic cycles as we can grow by expanding the number of

products our current customers have with us We continued

to earn more of our customers business in 2008 in both our

retail and commercial banking businesses

Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit mar

kets we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers We
made $106 billion in new loan commitments during 2008 to

consumer small business and commercial customers and

originated $230 billion of residential mortgages The funda

mentals of our time-tested business model are as sound as

ever During fourth quarter 2008 our average core deposits

grew an impressive 31% annualized over the prior quarter

Our cross-sell set records for the ioth consecutive yearour

average retail banking household now has 5.73 products one

of every four has eight or mare products 6.4 products for

Wholesale Banking customers and our average middle-mar

ket commercial banking customer has almost eight products

Business banking cross-sell reached 3.61 products Our goal

is eight products per customer which is currently half of our

estimate of potential demand We were able to increase our

lending to creditworthy customers because we were building

capital and shrinking our balance sheet in 2005 and 2006

when credit spreads were unrealistically low and were not

priced for their underlying risk We did make some mistakes

but for the most part we maintained our credit discipline We
understand our customers financial needs As result our

company at year-end 2008 was one of the worlds strongest

financial institutions At February 23 2009 Wells Fargo

Bank N.A has the highest credit rating currently given to

U.S banks by Moodys Investors Service Aai and Standard

Poors Ratings Services AA
WACHOVIA MERGER On December 31 2008 Wachovia

merged into Wells Fargo Company with Wells Fargo

surviving the merger Wachovia based in Charlotte North

Carolina was one of the nations largest diversified financial

services companies providing broad range of retail banking

and brokerage asset and wealth management and corporate

and investment banking products and services to customers

through 3300 financial centers in 21 states from Connecticut

to Florida and west to Texas and California and nationwide

retail brokerage mortgage lending and auto finance businesses

In the merger Wells Fargo exchanged 0.1991 shares of its

common stock for each outstanding share of Wachovia

common stock issuing total of 422.7 million shares of

Wells Fargo common stock with December 31 2008 value

of $12.5 billion to Wachovia shareholders Shares of each out

standing series of Wachovia preferred stock were converted

into shares or fractional shares of corresponding series of

Wells Fargo preferred stock having substantially the same

rights and preferences Wachovias assets and liabilities are

included in the consolidated balance sheet at their respective

acquisition date fair values Wachovias year-end assets at

fair value totaled $707 billion Because the acquisition was

completed at the end of 2008 Wachovias results of opera

tions are not included in our income statement Based on the

purchase price of $23.1 billion and the fair value of net assets

acquired of $14.3 billion the transaction resulted in goodwill

of $8.8 billion which will change as acquisition date fair values
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are refined over period of up to one year following the

acquisition Because the transaction closed on the last day of

the annual reporting period certain fair value purchase

accounting adjustments were based on data as of an interim

period with estimates through year end Accordingly we will

be re-validating and where necessary refining our purchase

accounting adjustments We expect that the refinements will

focus largely on loans with evidence of credit deterioration

The impact of any changes will he recorded as an adjustment

to goodwill

The more significant fair value adjustments in our pur

chase accounting for the Wachovia acquisition were to loans

Certain of the loans acquired from Wachovia have evidence

of credit deterioration since origination and it is probable

that we will not collect all contractually required principal

and interest payments Such loans are accounted for under

American Institute of Certified public Accountants AICPA
Statement of Position 03-3 Accounting for Certain Loans or

Debt Securities Acquired in Transfer SOP 03-3 SOP 03-3

requires that acquired credit-impaired loans be recorded at

fair value and prohibits carryover of the related allowance for

loan losses

Loans within the scope of SOP 03-3 are initially recorded

at fair value The application of the SOP and accordingly the

process of estimating fair value involves estimating the prin

cipal and interest cash flows expected to be collected on the

credit-impaired loans and discounting those cash flows at

market rate of interest

Under SOP 03-3 the excess of cash flows expected at

acquisition over the estimated fair value is referred to as the

accretable yield and is recognized in interest income over the

remaining life of the loan or pool of loans in situations

where there is reasonable expectation about the timing and

amount of cash flows expected to be collected The difference

between contractually required payments at acquisition and

the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition consid

ering the impact of prepayments is referred to as the nonacc

retable difference Subsequent decreases to the expected cash

flows will generally result in charge to the provision for

credit losses resulting in an increase to the allowance for loan

losses Subsequent increases in cash flows result in reversal

of any nonaccretable difference or allowance for loan losses

to the extent any has been recorded with positive impact

on interest income Disposals of loans which may include

sales of loans receipt of payments in full by the borrower

foreclosure or troubled debt restructurings TDRs result in

removal of the loan from the SOP 03-3 portfolio at its carry

ing amount

Of the $446.1 billion of loans acquired in the Wachovia

merger $93.9 billion were determined to be credit-impaired and

therefore subject to SOP 03-3 Generally loans on nonaccrual

status were considered to be credit-impaired for purposes of

applying the SOP The fair value of these loans was $58.8 billion

at December 31 2008 Wachovias allowance for loan losses

related to the loans was $12.0 billion and such allowance was

not carried forward to the Wells Fargo allowance rather it

was reversed with an offset to goodwill The allowance for

loan losses of $7.5 billion excluding the impact of conform

ing adjustments associated with loans not within the scope

of SOP 03-3 was carried over and is included in the consoli

dated allowance for loan losses

Loans subject to SOP 03-3 are written down to an amount

estimated to be collectible Accordingly such loans are no

longer classified as nonaccrual even though they may be con

tractually past due We expect to fully collect the new carry

ing values of such loans that is the new cost basis arising

out of our purchase accounting Of Wachovias pre-acquisi

tion nonaccrual loans $20.0 billion are no longer considered

to be nonaccrual because of the application of SOP 03-3 and

$97 million continue to be reported as nonaccrual because they

are outside the scope of the SOP Loans subject to SOP 03-3

are also excluded from the disclosure of loans 90 days or more

past due and still accruing interest even though substantially

all of them are 90 days or more contractually past due and they

are considered to be accruing because the interest income on

these loans relates to the establishment of an accretable yield

in accordance with SOP 03-3

As result of the application of SOP 03-3 to Wachovias

loans certain ratios of the combined company cannot be used

to compare portfolio that includes acquired credit-impaired

loans accounted for under SOP 03-3 against one that does

not for example in comparing peer companies and cannot

be used to compare ratios across years such as comparing

2008 ratios which include the Wachovia acquisition against

prior periods which do not The ratios particularly affected

by the accounting under SOP 03-3 include the allowance for

loan losses as percentage of loans nonaccrual loans and

nonperforming assets and nonaccrual loans and nonperform

ing assets as percentage of total loans

Loans not subject to SOP 03-3 are recorded net of an adjust

ment to reflect market interest rates The allowance for loan

losses related to these loans of $7.5 billion was carried over and

included in the consolidated allowance for loan losses

SUMMARY RESULTS Revenue the sum of net interest income

and noninterest income grew 6% to record $41.9 billion in

2008 from $39.4 billion in 2007 The breadth and depth of our

business model resulted in very strong and balanced growth

in loans deposits and fee-based products We achieved positive

operating leverage revenue growth of 6% expense decline of

1% the best among large bank peers Net income for 2008 of

$2.66 billion included an $8.14 billion pre tax credit reserve

build $2.01 billion pre tax of other-than-temporary impair

ment and $124 million pre tax of merger-related expenses

Diluted earnings per share of $0.70 included credit reserve

build $1.51 per share and other-than-temporary impairment

$0.37 per share Industry-leading annual results included

the highest growth in pre-tax pre-provision earnings up

16% highest net interest margin 4.83% return on average

common stockholders equity ROE return on average total

assets ROA and highest total shareholder return among

large bank peers up 2%
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We are among the banking industrys leaders in increas

ing loans and assets and remained open for business in pro

viding credit to consumers small businesses and commercial

customers Average earning assets primarily loans and secu

rities were up $119 billion or 28% since the start of the credit

crisis in mid-2007 We have made $187 billion of new loan

commitments to consumer and commercial customers since

mid-2007 We have originated $354 billion of residential real

estate loans since mid-2007 including $50 billion in fourth

quarter 2008 We have continued to help homeowners remain

in their homes We delivered over 498000 solutions to customers

in 2008 including 143000 in the fourth quarter alone through

repayment plans modifications and other loss mitigation

options and are working with government agencies HOPE

NOW and others Wells Fargo has led the industry in devel

opment of programs for at-risk customers to avoid foreclosure

Among the many products and services that grew in 2008

we achieved the following results

Average loans grew 16%

Average core deposits grew 7% and

Assets under management were up 45% including

$510 billion from Wachovia

We have significantly strengthened the balance sheet and

future earnings stream of the new Wells Fargo This included

the following actions

$37.2 billion of credit write-downs taken at December 31 2008

through purchase accounting adjustments on $93.9 billion

of high-risk loans in Wachovias loan portfolio

Reduced the cost basis of the Wachovia securities portfolio

by $9.6 billion reflecting $2.4 billion of recognized losses

in the fourth quarter and write-off of $7.2 billion of unreal

ized losses previously reflected in negative cumulative

other comprehensive income

Additional net $2.9 billion of Wachovia negative cumulative

other comprehensive income written off primarily related

to pension obligations

Wachovia period-end loans securities trading assets and

loans held for sale reduced by $115.2 billion or 17% from

June 30 2008

$8.1 billion credit reserve build including $3.9 billion of

provision to conform to the most conservative methodology

from each company within Federal Financial Institutions

Examination Council FFIEC guidelines

$2.7 billion for Wells Fargos consumer portfolios

$1.2 billion for Wachovias commercial and Pick-a-Pay

portfolios

Wells Fargo securities portfolio written down by

$2.0 billion for other-than-temporary impairment

Our combined allowance for credit losses was $21.7 billion

at December 31 2008 which represents 3.2 times coverage

of nonaccrual loans At December 31 2008 our combined

allowance covered 12 months of estimated losses for all con

sumer portfolios and at least 24 months for all commercial and

commercial real estate portfolios As described on page 35 our

nonaccrual loans excluded $20.0 billion of SOP 03-3 loans

that were previously reflected as nonaccrual by Wachovia

With the acquisition of Wachovia we have leading market

positions in deposits in many communities in our expanded

banking footprint including market share in 18 of our 39

combined community banking states and the District of

Columbia In addition we are the lender in the following

markets middle-market companies commercial real estate

small business and agriculture and the commercial real

estate broker and bank-owned insurance broker

We have stated in the past that to consistently grow over

the long term successful companies must invest in their core

businesses and maintain strong balance sheets In addition to

the Wachovia acquisition we continued to make investments

in 2008 by opening 58 regional banking stores and convert

ing 32 stores acquired from Greater Bay Bancorp Farmers

State Bank and United Bancorporation of Wyoming Inc to

our network

We believe it is important to maintain well-controlled

environment as we continue to grow our businesses We

manage our credit risk by setting what we believe are sound

credit policies for underwriting new business while monitor

ing and reviewing the performance of our loan portfolio We

manage the interest rate and market risks inherent in our

asset and liability balances within prudent ranges while

ensuring adequate liquidity and funding We maintain strong

capital levels to provide for future growth

At December 31 2008 consolidated Tier regulatory capi

tal was $86.4 billion after the impact of purchase accounting

for credit impairments of loans and write-down of negative

cumulative other comprehensive income at Wachovia which

in the aggregate reduced the Tier capital ratio by approxi

mately 230 basis points to 7.8% at year end well above

regulatory minimums for well-capitalized bank

The Board of Directors declared common stock dividend

of $0.34 per share for first quarter 2009

Our financial results included the following

Net income in 2008 was $2.66 billion $0.70 per share

compared with $8.06 billion $2.38 per share in 2007 Results

for 2008 included the impact of our $8.1 billion pre tax credit

reserve build which included $3.9 billion pre tax provi

sion to conform both Wells Fargos and Wachovias credit

reserve practices to the more conservative of each company

Results for 2007 included the impact of our $1.4 billion pre

tax credit reserve build $0.27 per share and $203 million

of Visa litigation expenses $0.04 per share Despite the

challenging environment in 2008 we achieved both top line

revenue growth and positive operating leverage revenue

growth of 6% expense decline of 1% ROA was 0.44% and

ROE was 4.79% in 2008 compared with 1.55% and 17.12%

respectively in 2007 Both ROA and ROE were at or near

the top of our large bank peers

Net interest income on taxable-equivalent basis was

$25.4 billion in 2008 up from $21.1 billion year ago reflect

ing strong loan growth disciplined deposit pricing and lower

market funding costs Average earning assets grew 17% from

2007 Our net interest margin was 4.83% for 2008 up from

4.74% in 2007 primarily due to the benefit of lower funding

costs as market rates declined
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Noninterest income decreased 9% to $16.8 billion in 2008

from $18.4 billion in 2007 Card fees were up 9% from year ago

due to continued growth in new accounts and higher credit

and debit card transaction volume Insurance revenue was up

20% due to customer growth higher crop insurance revenue

and the fourth quarter 2007 acquisition of ABD Insurance

However trust and investment fees decreased 7% and other

fees decreased 9% due to depressed market conditions

Operating lease income decreased 39% from year ago due

to continued softening in the auto market reflecting tightened

credit standards Noninterest income included $300 million in

net gains on debt and equity securities including $2.01 billion

of other-than-temporary impairment write-downs

During 2008 noninterest income was affected by changes

in interest rates widening credit spreads and other credit

and housing market conditions including

$2.01 billion of other-than-temporary impairment

$847 million in write-downs of loans in the mortgage

warehouse due to changes in liquidity and other spreads

and additions to the mortgage repurchase reserve

$242 millionmortgage servicing rights MSRs mark to

market net of hedge gain

$228 millionof other changes in the mortgage

pipeline/warehouse value including decline in servicing

value net of pipeline/warehouse hedge results

Noninterest expense was $22.7 billion in 2008 down 1%

from $22.8 billion in 2007 We continued to invest in new

stores and additional sales and service-related team members

In 2008 net charge-offs were $7.84 billion 1.97% of aver

age
total loans up $4.3 billion from $3.54 billion 1.03% in

2007 Commercial and commercial real estate net charge-offs

increased $1.25 billion in 2008 from 2007 of which $379 million

Table Six-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data

was from loans originated through our Business Direct chan

nel Business Direct consists primarily of unsecured lines of

credit to small firms and sole proprietors that tend to perform

in manner similar to credit cards Total wholesale net

charge-offs excluding Business Direct were $967 million

0.11% of average loans The remaining balance of commercial

and commercial real estate loans other real estate mortgage

real estate construction and lease financing experienced

some deterioration from 2007 with loss levels increasing

reflecting the credit environment in 2008

Home Equity net charge-offs were $2.21 billion 2.59%

of average Home Equity loans in 2008 compared with

$595 million 0.73% in 2007 Since our loss experience

through third party channels was significantly worse than

other retail channels in 2007 we segregated these indirect

loans into liquidating portfolio While the $10.3 billion of

loans in this liquidating portfolio represented about 1% of

total loans outstanding at December 31 2008 these loans

represent some of the highest risk in our $129.5 billion Home

Equity portfolios The loans in the liquidating portfolio were

primarily sourced through wholesale channels brokers and

correspondents Additionally they are largely concentrated

in geographic markets that have experienced the most abrupt

and steepest declines in housing prices We continue to

provide home equity financing directly to our customers

but have stopped originating or acquiring new home equity

loans through indirect channels unless they are behind

Wells Fargo first mortgage and have combined loan-to-

value ratio lower than 85% We also experienced increased

net charge-offs in our unsecured consumer portfolios such

as credit cards and lines of credit in part due to growth and

in part due to increased economic stress in households

in millions except

per share amounts

2003 Change Five-year

2008/ compound

2007 growth rate

2008 2007 2006

19951

15740

35691

2204

20837

8420

2.50

2.47

20974

18416

39390

4939

22824

8057

2.41

2.38

2005

18504

14445

32949

2383

19018

7671

2.27

2.25

2004

17150

12909

30059

1717

17573

7014

2.07

2.05

16007

12382

28389

1722

17190

6202

1.84

20%

224

67
71

9%

56

16
18

1.18 1.08 1.00 0.93

INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income 25143

Noninterest income 16754

Revenue 41897

Provision for credit losses 15979

Noninterest expense 22661

Net income 2655

Earnings per common share 0.70

Diluted earnings

per common share 0.70

Dividends declared

percommonshare 1.30 12

BALANCE SHEET

at year end
Securitiesavailableforsale 151569 72951 42629 41834 33717 32953 108 36

Loans 864830 382195 319116 310837 287586 253073 126 28

Allowance for loan losses 21013 5307 3764 3871 3762 3891 296 40

Goodwill 22627 13106 11275 10787 10681 10371 73 17

Assets 1309639 575442 481996 481741 427849 387798 128 28

Core deposits 745432 311731 288068 253341 229703 211271 139 29

Long-term debt 267158 99393 87145 79668 73580 63642 169 33

Common stockholders equity 68272 47628 45814 40660 37866 34469 43 15

Stockholders equity 99084 47628 45814 40660 37866 34469 108 24

1.83

0.75

71 17

10

Core deposits are noninterest-bearing deposits interest-bearing checking savings certificates market rate and other savings and certain foreign deposits Eurodollar

sweep balances 37



Auto portfolio net charge-offs for 2008 were $1.23 billion

4.50% of average auto loans compared with $1.02 billion

3.45% in 2007 While we have continued to reduce the size

of this portfolio and limited additional growth the economic

environment has adversely affected portfolio results We

have remained focused on our loss mitigation strategies

however credit performance has deteriorated as result of

increased unemployment and depressed used car values

resulting in higher than expected losses for the year

The provision for credit losses was $15.98 billion in 2008

an increase of $11.04 billion from $4.94 billion in 2007 due to

higher net charge-offs and the 2008 credit reserve build of

$8.14 billion including $3.9 billion to conform estimated loss

emergence coverage periods to the most conservative of each

company within FFIEC guidelines $2.7 billion for Wells Fargo

consumer loans and $1.2 billion for Wachovia commercial

and Pick-a-Pay loans The balance of the reserve build was

attributed to higher projected loss rates across the majority

of the consumer credit business and some credit deterioration

and growth in the wholesale portfolios The allowance for credit

losses which consists of the allowance for loan losses and the

reserve for unfunded credit commitments was $21.7 billion

2.51% of total loans at December 31 2008 compared with

$5.52 billion 1.44% at December 31 2007

At December 31 2008 total nonaccrual loans were

$6.80 billion 0.79% of total loans up from $2.68 billion

0.70% at December 31 2007 Total nonaccrual loans at

December 31 2008 excluded $20.0 billion of sop 03-3 loans

that were previously reflected as nonaccrual by Wachovia

The majority of the $4.1 billion increase in nonaccrual loans

was in the real estate 1-4 family first mortgage portfolio

including $742 million in Wells Fargo Financial real estate

and $424 million in Wells Fargo Home Mortgage and was due

to the national rise in mortgage default rates Total nonper

forming assets NPAs were $9.01 billion 1.04% of total loans

at December 31 2008 compared with $3.87 billion 1.01% at

December 31 2007 Total NPAs at December 31 2008 excluded

$20.0 billion of SOP 03-3 loans that were previously reflected

as nonperforming by Wachovia Foreclosed assets were

$2.19 billion at December 31 2008 including $885 million

from Wachovia compared with $1.18 billion at December 31

2007 Foreclosed assets component of total NPAs included

$1.53 billion and $649 million in residential property and auto

loans and $667 million and $535 million of foreclosed real

estate securing Government National Mortgage Association

GNMA loans at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

consistent with regulatory reporting requirements The fore

closed real estate securing GNMA loans of $667 million rep

resented eight basis points of the ratio of NPAs to loans at

December 31 2008 Both principal and interest for the GNMA
loans secured by the foreclosed real estate are collectible

because the GNMA loans are insured by the Federal Housing

Administration FHA or guaranteed by the Department of

Veterans Affairs

The Company and each of its subsidiary banks remained

well capitalized under applicable regulatory capital adequacy

guidelines The ratio of common stockholders equity to total

assets was 5.21% at December 31 2008 compared with 8.28%

at December 31 2007 Our total risk-based capital RBC ratio

at December 31 2008 was 11.83% and our Tier RBC ratio was

7.84% exceeding the minimum regulatory guidelines of 8% and

4% respectively for bank holding companies Our RBC ratios

at December 31 2007 were 10.68% and 7.59% respectively Our

Tier leverage ratios were 14.52% and 6.83% at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively exceeding the minimum regula

tory guideline of 3% for bank holding companies

Year ended December31

2008 2007 2006

Current Accounting Developments

On January 2008 we adopted the following new account

ing pronouncements

FSP FIN 39-1 Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Staff Position on Interpretation No 39

Amendment of FASB Interpretation No 39
EITF 06-4 Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue

No 06-4 Accounting for Deferred Compensation and

Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar

Life Insurance Arrangements

EITF 06-b EITF Issue No 06-to Accounting for

Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance

Arrangements and

SAB 109 Staff Accounting Bulletin No 109 Written Loan

Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings

Table Ratios and Per Common Share Data

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Net income to average total assets ROA 0.44% 1.55% 1.73%

Net income applicable to common stock

to average common stockholders

equity ROE 4.79 17.12 19.52

EFFICIENCY RATIO 54.1 57.9 58.4

CAPITAL RATIOS

At year end

Common stockholdersequityto assets 5.21 8.28 g.si

Risk-based capital

Tier capital 7.84 7.59 8.93

Total capital 11.83 10.68 12.49

Tier leverage 23 14.52 6.83 7.88

Average balances

Common stockholders equity to assets 8.18 9.04 8.88

PER COMMON SHARE DATA

Dividend payout

Book value

Market price

High

Low

Year end

185.7 49.0

$16.15 $14.45

$44.68 $37gg

19.89 29.29

29.48 30.19

43.2

$13.57

$36.99

30.31

35.56

1The efficiency ratio is noninterest expense divided by total revenue net interest

income and noninterest income

See Note 26 Regulatory and Agency Capital Requirements to Financial

Statements for additional information

Due to the Wachovia acquisition closing on December 312008 the Tier

leverage ratio which considers period-end Tier capital and quarterly averages

in the computation of the ratio does not reflect average assets of Wachovia for

the full period

Dividends declared per common share as percentage of earnings per

common share

Based on daily prices reported on the New York Stock tschange Composite

Transaction Reporting System
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On July 2008 we adopted the following new accounting

pronouncement

FSP FAS 157-3 FASE Staff Position No FAS 157-3

Determining the Fair Value of Financial Asset When the

Market for That Asset Is Not Active

We adopted the following new accounting pronounce

ments which were effective for year-end 2008 reporting

FSP FAS 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 FASE Staff Position

No 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 Disclosures by Public Entities

Enterprises about Transfers of Financial Assets and

Interests in Variable Interest Entities

FSP FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 FASB Staff Position No 133-1

and FIN 45-4 Disclosures about Credit Derivatives and

Certain Guarantees An Amendment of FASB Statement

No.133 and FASE Interpretation No 45 and Clarihcation

of the Effective Date of FASE Statement No 161 and

FSP EITF 99-20-1 FASB Staff Position No EITF 99-20-1

Amendments to the Impairment Guidance of EITF Issue

No 99-20

On April p0 2007 the FASB issued FSP FIN 39-1 which

amends Int4pretation No 39 to permit reporting entity to

offset the ridht to reclaim cash collateral receivable or the

obligation to return cash collateral payable against deriv

ative instruments executed with the same counterparty under

the same master netting arrangement The provisions of this

FSP are effective for the year beginning on January 2008

with early adoption permitted We adopted FSP FIN 39-1 on

January 2008 and it did not have material effect on our

consolidated financial statements

On September 20 2006 the FASB ratified the consensus

reached by the EITF at its September 2006 meeting with

respect to EITF 06-4 On March 28 2007 the FASE ratified

the consensus reached by the EITF at its March 15 2007

meeting with respect to EITF 06-10 These pronouncements

require that for endorsement split-dollar life insurance

arrangements and collateral split-dollar life insurance

arrangements where the employee is provided benefits in

postretirement periods the employer should recognize the

cost of providing that insurance over the employees service

period by accruing liability for the benefit obligation

Additionally for collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance

arrangements an employer is required to recognize and

measure an asset based upon the nature and substance of the

agreement EITF 06-4 and EITF 06-10 are effective for the year

beginning on January 2008 with early adoption permitted

We adopted EITF 06-4 and EITF 06-10 on January 2008

and reduced beginning retained earnings for 2008 by $20 mil

lion after tax primarily related to split-dollar life insurance

arrangements from the acquisition of Greater Bay Bancorp

On November 2007 the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC issued SAB 109 which provides the staffs

views on the accounting for written loan commitments

recorded at fair value under U.S generally accepted account

ing principles GAAP To make the staffs views consistent

with current authoritative accounting guidance SAB 109

revises and rescinds portions of SAB 105 Application of

Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments Specifically SAB

109 states that the expected net future cash flows associated

with the servicing of loan should be included in the mea

surement of all written loan commitments that are accounted

for at fair value through earnings The provisions of SAB 109

which we adopted on January 2008 are applicable to writ

ten loan commitments recorded at fair value that are entered

into beginning on or after January 2008 The implementa

tion of SAB 109 did not have material impact on our first

quarter 2008 results or the valuation of our loan commitments

On October 10 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3

which clarifies the application of FAS 157 Fair Value

Measurements in an inactive market and illustrates how an

entity would determine fair value when the market for

financial asset is not active The FSP states that an entity

should not automatically conclude that particular transac

tion price is determinative of fair value In dislocated mar

ket judgment is required to evaluate whether individual

transactions are forced liquidations or distressed sales When

relevant observable market information is not available

valuation approach that incorporates managements judg

ments about the assumptions that market participants would

use in pricing the asset in current sale transaction is accept

able The FSP also indicates that quotes from brokers or pric

ing services may be relevant inputs when measuring fair

value but are not necessarily determinative in the absence of

an active market for the asset In weighing broker quote as

an input to fair value measurement an entity should place

less reliance on quotes that do not reflect the result of market

transactions Further the nature of the quote for example

whether the quote is an indicative price or binding offer

should be considered when weighing the available evidence

The FSP was effective immediately and applied to prior peri

ods for which financial statements have not been issued

including interim or annual periods ending on or before

September 30 2008 We adopted the FSP prospectively

beginning July 2008 The adoption of the FSP did not have

material impact on our consolidated financial results or fair

value determinations

On December 11 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 140-4

and FIN 46R-8 This FSP is intended to improve disclosures

about transfers of financial assets and continuing involve

ment with both qualifying special purpose entities QSPEs
and variable interest entities VIEs The FSP requires quali

tative and quantitative disclosures surrounding the nature of

companys continuing involvement with QSPEs and VIEs

the carrying amount and classification of related assets and

liabilities including the nature of any restrictions on those

assets and liabilities contractual or nan-contractual support

provided to either QSPEs or VIEs and companys maximum

exposure to loss related to these activities This FSP amends

FAS 140 Accounting far Transfers and Servicing of Financial

Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities replacement of

FASE Statement No.125 and FIN 46R Consolidation of

Variable Interest Entities revised December2003 an inter

pretation of ARE No 51 The FSP is effective for reporting

periods annual or interim ending after December 15 2008
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Because the FSP amends only the disclosure requirements

the adoption of the FSP did not affect our consolidated finan

cial results For additional information see Note

Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities

On September 12 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 133-1

and FIN 45-4 This FSP is intended to improve disclosures

about credit derivatives by requiring more information about

the potential adverse effects of changes in credit risk on the

financial position financial performance and cash flows of

the sellers of credit derivatives It amends FAS 133

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

to require disclosures by sellers of credit derivatives includ

ing credit derivatives embedded in hybrid instruments The

FSP also amends FIN 45 Guarantors Accounting and

Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees Including Indirect

Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others an interpretation of

FASB Statements No.5 and 107 and rescission of FASB

Interpretation No 34 to require an additional disclosure

about the current status of the payment/performance risk of

guarantee The provisions of the FSP that amend FAS 133

and FIN 45 are effective for reporting periods annual or

interim ending after November 15 2008 Because the FSP

amends only the disclosure requirements for credit deriva

tives and certain guarantees the adoption of the FSP did not

affect our consolidated financial results

On October 14 2008 the SECs Office of the Chief

Accountant OCA clarified its views on the application

of other-than-temporary impairment guidance in FAS 115

Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity

Securities to certain perpetual preferred securities The OCA

concluded that it would not object to registrant applying an

other-than-temporary impairment model to investments in

perpetual preferred securities that possess significant debt-like

characteristics that is similar to the impairment model applied

to debt securities provided there has been no evidence of

deterioration in credit of the issuer An entity is permitted to

apply the OCAs views in its financial statements included in

filings subsequent to the date of the letter Accordingly in third

quarter 2008 we began applying this OCA guidance and have

subsequently recorded other-than-temporary impairment on

certain investment grade perpetual preferred securities where

we believe credit events of the issuers have occurred

On January 12 2009 the FASB issued FSP EITF 99-20-1

which amends EITF 99-20 Recognition of Interest Income and

Impairment on Purchased Beneficial Interests and Beneficial

Interests That Continue to Be Held by Transferor in

Securitized Financial Assets EITF 99-20 to achieve more

consistent determinations of whether other-than-temporary

impairments of available-for-sale or held-to-maturity debt

securities have occurred The provisions of the FSP are to be

applied prospectively and are considered effective for report

ing periods annual or interim ending after December 15

2008 Beginning with our fourth quarter 2008 results based

on this FSP guidance we recorded no other-than-temporary

impairment for certain EITF 99-20 securities that otherwise

may have been considered impaired

On December 2007 the FASB issued FAS 141 revised

2007 Business Combinations FAS 1418 This statement

requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired includ

ing loan receivables the liabilities assumed and any non-

controlling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date to

be measured at their fair values as of that date with limited

exceptions The acquirer is not permitted to recognize sepa

rate valuation allowance as of the acquisition date for loans

and other assets acquired in business combination The

revised statement requires acquisition-related costs to be

expensed separately from the acquisition It also requires

restructuring costs that the acquirer expected but was not

obligated to incur to be expensed separately from the busi

ness combination FAS 141R is applicable prospectively to

business combinations completed on or after January 2009

Early adoption is not permitted

In December 2008 the FASB issued FAS iSo Noncontrolling

Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment

of ARB No.51 FAS i6o FAS 160 requires that noncontrolling

interests referred to as minority interests be reported as

component of stockholders equity in the balance sheet Prior

to adoption of FAS iSo they are classified in liabilities or

between liabilities and stockholders equity This new standard

also changes the way minority interest is presented in the

income statement such that parents consolidated income

statement includes amounts attributable to both the parents

interest and the noncontrolling interest FAS 160 requires

that parent recognize gain or loss when subsidiary is

deconsolidated The remaining interest is initially recorded

at fair value Other changes in ownership interest where the

parent continues to have majority ownership interest in the

subsidiary are accounted for as capital transactions

FAS 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods

within fiscal years beginning on or after December 15 2008

Early adoption is not permitted Adoption is applied prospec

tively to all noncontrolling interests including those that

arose prior to the adoption of FAS 160 with retrospective

adoption required for disclosure of noncontrolling interests

held as of the adoption date

We hold controlling interest in joint venture with

Prudential Financial Inc Prudential as described in more

detail on page 57 Prudentials noncontrolling interest of

23% is included in other liabilities in the balance sheet and

amounted to $824 million at December 31 2008 Under the

terms of the original agreement under which the joint ven

ture was established between Wachovia and Prudential each

party has certain rights such that changes in our ownership

interest can occur Prudential has stated its intention to exer

cise its option to put its noncontrolling interest to us at date

in the future

As result of the issuance of FAS 160 and related inter

pretive guidance along with this stated intention in the first

quarter of 2009 the carrying value of Prudentials noncon

trolling interest in the joint venture will be increased from its

December 31 2008 carrying value to the estimated maximum

redemption amount with the offset recorded to additional

paid-in capital

40



On February 20 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS No 140-3

Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and

Extinguishments of Liabilities FSP FAS 140-3 FSP FAS 140-3

requires that if an entity transfers loan to and then subse

quently executes repurchase financing with the transferor

collateralized by that loan then the transferor would not be

permitted to treat the initial transfer as sale unless certain

criteria are met including that the transferred asset must be

readily obtainable in the marketplace The provisions of this

FSP are effective beginning January 2009 and shall be

applied prospectively to initial transfers and repurchase

financings for which the initial transfer is executed on or

after this date Early application is not permitted FSP FAS

140-3 is not expected to have material effect on our consoli

dated financial results

Critical Accounting Policies

On March 19 2008 the FASB issued FAS 161 Disclosures

about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an

amendment of FASB Statement No.133 FAS 161 FAS 161

changes the disclosure requirements for derivative instru

ments and hedging activities It requires enhanced disclo

sures about how and why an entity uses derivatives how

derivatives and related hedged items are accounted for and

how derivatives and hedged items affect an entitys financial

position performance and cash flows The provisions of FAS

161 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal

years and interim periods beginning after November 15

2008 with early adoption encouraged Because FAS 161

amends only the disclosure requirements for derivative

instruments and hedged items the adoption of FAS 161 will

not affect our consolidated financial results

Our significant accounting policies see Note Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies to Financial Statements are

fundamental to understanding our results of operations and

financial condition because they require that we use esti

mates and assumptions that may affect the value of our

assets or liabilities and financial results Six of these policies

are critical because they require management to make diffi

cult subjective and complex judgments about matters that

are inherently uncertain and because it is likely that materially

different amounts would be reported under different condi

tions or using different assumptions These policies govern

the allowance for credit losses

acquired loans accounted for under SOP 03-3

the valuation of residential mortgage servicing rights

MSRs
the fair valuation of financial instruments

pension accounting and

income taxes

Management has reviewed and approved these critical

accounting policies and has discussed these policies with the

Audit and Examination Committee of the Companys Board

of Directors

Allowance for credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses which consists of the

allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded credit

commitments is managements estimate of credit losses

inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date We

have an established process using several analytical tools

and benchmarks to calculate range of possible outcomes

and determine the adequacy of the allowance The allowance

carried over from Wachovia was generally subject to the

same methodology described above No single statistic or

measurement determines the adequacy of the allowance

Loan recoveries and the provision for credit losses increase

the allowance while loan charge-offs decrease the allowance

PROCESS TO DETERMINE THE ADEQUACY OF THE ALLOWANCE

FOR CREDIT LOSSES While we attribute portions of the

allowance to specific loan categories as part of our analytical

process the entire allowance is used to absorb credit losses

inherent in the total loan portfolio

At December 31 2008 the portion of the allowance for

credit losses estimated at pooled level far consumer loans

and some segments of commercial small business loans was

$16.4 billion For purposes of determining the allowance for

credit losses we pool certain loans in our portfolio by product

type primarily for the auto credit card and real estate mortgage

portfolios To achieve greater accuracy we further segment

selected portfolios As appropriate the business groups may

attempt to achieve greater accuracy through segmentation by

sub-product origination channel vintage loss type geography

and other predictive characteristics For example credit cards

are segmented by origination channel and the Home Equity

portfolios are further segmented between liquidating and

nonliquidating In the case of residential mortgages we

segment the liquidating Pick-a-Pay portfolio and further

segment this portfolio based on origination channel

To measure losses inherent in consumer loans and some

commercial small business loans we use loss models and

other quantitative mathematical techniques to forecast losses

Each business group forecasts losses for loans as of the bal

ance sheet date over the estimated loss emergence period

Each business group determines the model type and/or

segmentation method that fits the loss characteristics of its

portfolios and provides the greatest level of forecasting accu

racy We use both internally developed and vendor supplied

roll rate/net cash flow models Roll rate/net cash flow models

vintage base-models and behavior score models are often

used for near-term loss projections as well as time series/

statistical trend models for longer term projections Models

are independently validated and are reviewed by corporate

credit personnel to ensure that the theory assumptions data
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computational processes reporting and end-user controls of Assumptions for improvement in loan credit quality were

the models are appropriate and well documented In addition

regulatory examiners review and perform detailed tests of

our allowance processes

Forecasted losses are compared with actual losses and this

information is used by management in order to develop an

allowance that management believes adequate to cover losses

inherent in the loan portfolio as of the reporting date

The portion of the allowance for commercial loans com
mercial real estate loans and lease financing was billion

at December 31 2008 We initially estimate this portion of the

allowance by applying historical loss factors statistically

derived from tracking losses associated with actual portfolio

movements over specified period of time for each specific

loan grade Based on this process we assign loss factors to

each pool of graded loans and loan equivalent amount for

unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit These esti

mates are then adjusted or supplemented where necessary

from additional analysis of long-term average loss experi

ence external loss data or other risks identified from current

conditions and trends in selected portfolios including man

agements judgment for imprecision and uncertainty

We also assess and account for certain nonaccrual com
mercial and commercial real estate loans that are over $5 mil

lion and certain consumer commercial and commercial real

estate loans whose terms have been modified in troubled

debt restructuring as impaired We include the impairment

on these nonperforming loans in the allowance unless it has

already been recognized as loss At December 31 2008 we

included $816 million in the allowance related to impaired loans

Reflected in the portions of the allowance previously

described is an amount for imprecision or uncertainty that incor

porates the range of probable outcomes inherent in estimates

used for the allowance which may change from period to period

This amount is the result of our judgment of risks inherent in the

portfolios economic uncertainties historical loss experience and

other subjective factors including industry trends calculated to

better reflect our view of risk in each loan portfolio

In addition the allowance for credit losses included

reserve for unfunded credit commitments of $698 million at

December 31 2008

The total allowance reflects managements estimate of

credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet

date To estimate the possible range of allowance required at

December 31 2008 and the related change in provision expense

we assumed the following scenarios of reasonably possible

deterioration or improvement in loan credit quality

Assumptions for deterioration in loan credit quality were

for consumer loans ss basis point increase in estimated

loss rates from actual 2008 loss levels prolonged residen

tial real estate value deterioration continued increase in

unemployment levels and higher bankruptcy levels and

for wholesale loans 17 basis point increase in estimated

loss rates from actual 2008 loss levels an increase in cor

porate bankruptcies and continued deterioration in the

homebuilder environment

for consumer loans 24 basis point decrease in estimated

loss rates from actual 2008 loss levels adjusting for resi

dential real estate value stabilization and real estate sales

market improvement and

for wholesale loans 14 basis point decrease in estimated

loss rates large unexpected losses not realized and an

improved home builder environment

Under these assumptions for deterioration in loan credit

quality another $3.2 billion in expected losses could occur

and under the assumptions for improvement $1.6 billion

reduction in expected losses could occur

Changes in the estimate of the allowance for credit losses

and the related provision expense can materially affect net

income The example above is only one of number of rea

sonably possible scenarios Determining the allowance for

credit losses requires us to make forecasts of losses that are

highly uncertain and require high degree of judgment The

increase in the allowance for credit losses in excess of net

charge-offs in 2008 was primarily due to adjustments to con

form to the most conservative methodology from Wells Fargo

and Wachovia general deterioration in most of our portfolios

given the current economic environment especially in the

Home Equity portfolios stemming from the steeper than

anticipated decline in national home prices and lengthen

ing in the loss emergence timing for consumer credit portfo

lios See Note Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses to

Financial Statements and Risk Management Credit Risk

Management Process for further discussion of our allowance

for credit losses

Acquired Loans Accounted for under SOP 03-3

Loans purchased with evidence of credit deterioration since

origination and for which it is probable that all contractually

required payments will not be collected are considered to be

credit impaired Evidence of credit quality deterioration as of

the purchase date may include statistics such as past due and

nonaccrual status recent borrower credit scores and recent

loan to value percentages Purchased credit-impaired loans

are accounted for under SOP 03-3 and initially measured at

fair value which includes estimated future credit losses

expected to be incurred over the life of the loan Accordingly

an allowance for credit losses related to these loans is not

carried over and recorded at the acquisition date We esti

mate the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition

using our internal credit risk interest rate risk and prepay

ment risk models which incorporate our best estimate of cur

rent key assumptions such as default rates loss severity and

prepayment speeds

Under SOP 03-3 the excess of cash flows expected at

acquisition over the estimated fair value is referred to as the

accretable yield and is recognized in interest income over the

remaining life of the loan or pool of loans in situations

where there is reasonable expectation about the timing and

amount of cash flows expected to be collected The difference

between the contractually required payments at acquisition

and the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition
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considering the impact of prepayments is referred to as the

nonaccretable difference Subsequent decreases to the

expected cash flows will generally result in charge to the

provision for credit losses resulting in an increase to the

allowance for loan losses Subsequent increases in cash flows

result in reversal of any nonaccretable difference or allowance

for loan losses to the extent any has been recorded with

positive impact on interest income Disposals of loans which

may include sales of loans receipt of payments in full by the

borrower foreclosure or TDRs result in removal of the loan

from the SOP 03-3 portfolio at its carrying amount

In connection with the Wachovia acquisition we acquired

certain loans that were deemed to be credit impaired under

SOP 03-3 Sop 03-3 allows purchasers to aggregate credit-

impaired loans acquired in the same fiscal quarter into one or

more pools provided that the loans have common risk char

acteristics pool is then accounted for as single asset with

single composite interest rate and an aggregate expectation

of cash flows With respect to the Wachovia acquisition we

aggregated all of the consumer loans and wholesale loans

with balances of $3 million or less into pools with common

risk characteristics We accounted for wholesale loans with

balances in excess of $3 millionindividually

To estimate the possible impact on the accounting for the

SOP 03-3 loans as of December 31 2008 we assumed the fol

lowing scenarios of reasonable possible improvement or

deterioration in loan credit quality

Assumptions for deterioration in loan credit quality for

SOP 03-3 loans were

for Pick-a-Pay loans 10% increase in expected life of loan

loss rates from December 31 2008 purchase accounting

estimates based on increased loss severity due to pro

longed residential real estate value deterioration contin

ued increase in unemployment levels and higher bank

ruptcy levels and

for commercial real estate loans 10% increase in expect

ed life of loan loss rates from December 31 2008 purchase

accounting estimates due to continued deterioration in the

homebuilder and income property sectors

Assumptions for improvement in loan credit quality for

SOP 03-3 were

for Pick-a-Pay loans 10% decrease in expected life of

loan loss rates from December 31 2008 purchase account

ing estimates based on decreased loss severity due to res

idential real estate value stabilization and

for commercial real estate loans 10% decrease in expect

ed life of loan loss rates from December 31 2008 purchase

accounting estimates due to an improvement in the home-

builder and income property sectors

Had the expected life of loan loss rates we used to deter

mine the nonaccretable difference at December 31 2008 for

these two portfolios reflected the 10% increase or decrease in

life of loan loss rates as described above the nonaccretable

difference would have changed by approximately $2.4 billion

for Pick-a-Pay loans and $68o million for commercial

real estate

In accordance with SOP 03-3 loans that were classified as

nonperforming loans by Wachovia are no longer classified as

nonperforming because at acquisition we believe we will

fully collect the new carrying value of these loans It is impor

tant to note that judgment is required in reclassifying loans

subject to SOP 03-3 to performing status and is dependent

on having reasonable expectation about the timing and

amount of cash flows expected to be collected even if the

loan is contractually past due

Valuation of Residential Mortgage Servicing Rights

We recognize as assets the rights to service mortgage loans

for others or mortgage servicing rights MSRs whether we

purchase the servicing rights or the servicing rights result

from the sale or securitixation of loans we originate asset

transfers We also acquire MSRs under co-issuer agreements

that provide for us to service loans that are originated and

securitized by third-party correspondents We initially mea

sure and carry our MSRs related to residential mortgage

loans residential MSRs using the fair value measurement

method under which purchased MSRs and MSRs from asset

transfers are capitalized and carried at fair value

At the end of each quarter we determine the fair value of

MSRs using valuation model that calculates the present

value of estimated future net servicing income The model

incorporates assumptions that market participants use in

estimating future net servicing income including estimates

of prepayment speeds including housing price volatility

discount rate default rates cost to service including delin

quency and foreclosure costs escrow account earnings con

tractual servicing fee income ancillary income and late fees

The valuation of MSRs is discussed further in this section

and in Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities Note

Mortgage Banking Activities and Note 17 Fair Values of

Assets and Liabilities to Financial Statements

To reduce the sensitivity of earnings to interest rate and

market value fluctuations we may use securities available for

sale and free-standing derivatives economic hedges to

hedge the risk of changes in the fair value of MSRs with the

resulting gains or losses reflected in income Changes in the

fair value of the MSRs from changing mortgage interest rates

are generally offset by gains or losses in the fair value of the

derivatives depending on the amount of MSRs we hedge and

the particular instruments used to hedge the MSRs We may

choose not to fully hedge MSRs partly because origination

volume tends to act as natural hedge For example as

interest rates decline servicing values generally decrease

and fees from origination volume tend to increase

Conversely as interest rates increase the fair value of the

MSRs generally increases while fees from origination volume

tend to decline See Mortgage Banking Interest Rate and

Market Risk for discussion of the timing of the effect of

changes in mortgage interest rates
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Net servicing income component of mortgage banking

noninterest income includes the changes from period to

period in fair value of both our residential MSRs and the

free-standing derivatives economic hedges used to hedge

our residential MSRs Changes in the fair value of residential

MSRs from period to period result from changes in the

valuation model inputs or assumptions rincipally reflecting

changes in discount rates and prepayment speed assump

tions mostly due to changes in interest rates and other

changes representing changes due to collection/realization

of expected cash flows

We use dynamic and sophisticated model to estimate

the value of our MSRs The model is validated by an indepen

dent internal model validation group operating in accordance

with Company policies Senior management reviews all sig

nificant assumptions quarterly Mortgage loan prepayment

speeda key assumption in the modelis the annual rate at

which borrowers are forecasted to repay their mortgage loan

principal The discount rate used to determine the present

value of estimated future net servicing incomeanother key

assumption in the modelis the required rate of return

investors in the market would expect for an asset with similar

risk To determine the discount rate we consider the risk pre

mium for uncertainties from servicing operations e.g possi

ble changes in future servicing costs ancillary income and

earnings on escrow accounts Both assumptions can and

generally will change quarterly as market conditions and

interest rates change For example an increase in either the

prepayment speed or discount rate assumption results in

decrease in the fair value of the MSRs while decrease in

either assumption would result in an increase in the fair value

of the MSRs In recent years there have been significant mar

ket-driven fluctuations in loan prepayment speeds and the

discount rate These fluctuations can be rapid and may be

significant in the future Therefore estimating prepayment

speeds within range that market participants would use in

determining the fair value of MSRs requires significant man

agement judgment

These key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of

the fair value of MSRs to an immediate adverse change in

those assumptions are shown in Note Securitizations and

Variable Interest Entities to Financial Statements

Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments

We use fair value measurements to record fair value adjust

ments to certain financial instruments and to determine fair

value disclosures Trading assets securities available for

sale derivatives prime residential mortgages held for sale

MHFS certain commercial loans held for sale LHFS prin

cipal investments and securities sold but not yet purchased

short sale liabilities are recorded at fair value on recurring

basis Additionally from time to time we may be required to

record at fair value other assets on nonrecurring basis such

as nonprime residential and commercial MHFS certain LHFS

loans held for investment and certain other assets These

nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve applica

tion of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of

individual assets Further we include in Notes to Financial

Statements information about the extent to which fair value

is used to measure assets and liabilities the valuation

methodologies used and its impact to earnings Additionally

for financial instruments not recorded at fair value we dis

close the estimate of their fair value

FAS 157 Foir Volue Meosurements FAS 157 defines

fair value as the price that would be received to sell the

financial asset or paid to transfer the financial liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date

FAS 157 establishes three-level hierarchy for disclosure

of assets and liabilities recorded at fair value The classifica

tion of assets and liabilities within the hierarchy is based on

whether the inputs to the valuation methodology used for

measurement are observable or unobservable Observable

inputs reflect market-derived or market-based information

obtained from independent sources while unobservable

inputs reflect our estimates about market data

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical

instruments traded in active markets Level instruments

include securities traded on active exchange markets such

as the New York Stock Exchange as well as U.S Treasury

and other U.S government securities that are traded by

dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar

instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical

or similar instruments in markets that are not active and

model-based valuation techniques such as matrix pricing

for which all significant assumptions are observable in the

market Level instruments include securities traded in

less active dealer or broker markets and MHFS that are

valued based on prices for other mortgage whole loans

with similar characteristics

Level Valuation is generated from model-based tech

niques that use significant assumptions not observable in

the market These unobservable assumptions reflect our

own estimates of assumptions market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability Valuation techniques

include use of option pricing models discounted cash flow

models and similar techniques

In accordance with FAS 157 it is our policy to maximize

the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unob

servable inputs when developing fair value measurements

When available we use quoted market prices to measure fair

value If market prices are not available fair value measure

ment is based upon models that use primarily market-based

or independently-sourced market parameters including inter

est rate yield curves prepayment speeds option volatilities

and currency rates Most of our financial instruments use

either of the foregoing methodologies collectively Level and

Level measurements to determine fair value adjustments

recorded to our financial statements However in certain cases

when market observable inputs for model-based valuation

techniques may not be readily available we are required to

make judgments about assumptions market participants would

use in estimating the fair value of the financial instrument
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The degree of management judgment involved in deter

mining the fair value of financial instrument is dependent

upon the availability of quoted market prices or observable

market parameters For financial instruments that trade

actively and have quoted market prices or observable market

parameters there is minimal subjectivity involved in measur

ing fair value When observable market prices and parame

ters are not fully available management judgment is neces

saw to estimate fair value In addition changes in the market

conditions may reduce the availability of quoted prices or

observable data For example reduced liquidity in the capital

markets or changes in secondary market activities could

result in observable market inputs becoming unavailable

When significant adjustments are required to available

observable inputs it may be appropriate to utilize an esti

mate based primarily on unobservable inputs When an

active market for security does not exist the use of manage
ment estimates that incorporate current market participant

expectations of future cash flows and include appropriate

risk premiums is acceptable

Approximately 19% of total assets $247.5 billion at

December 31 2008 and 22% of total assets $123.8 billion at

December 31 2007 consisted of financial instruments record

ed at fair value on recurring basis Assets for which fair val

ues were measured using significant Level inputs repre

sented approximately 19% of these financial instruments 4%
of total assets at December 31 2008 and approximately 18%

4% of total assets at December 31 2007 The fair value of the

remaining assets were measured using valuation methodolo

gies involving market-based or market-derived information

collectively Level and measurements

Our financial assets valued using Level measurements

consisted of certain asset-backed securities including those

collateralized by auto leases and cash reserves private collat

eralized mortgage obligations CMOs collateralized debt

obligations CDOs collateralized loan obligations CLO5
auction-rate securities certain derivative contracts such as

credit default swaps related to CMO CDO and CLO expo

sures and certain MHFS and MSRs While MSR valuations

generally require use of significant unobservable inputs and

therefore are classified as Level significant judgment may
be required to determine whether certain other assets mea
sured at fair value are included in Level or Level For

example we closely monitor market conditions involving

assets that have become less actively traded such as MHFS

private CMOs and certain other debt securities including

CDOs and CLOs See Note Securitizations and Variable

Interest Entities to Financial Statements for detailed dis

cussion of the key assumptions used to determine the fair

value of our MSRs and the related sensitivity analysis If fair

value measurement is based upon recent observable market

activity of such assets or comparable assets other than

forced or distressed transactions that occur in sufficient vol

ume and do not require significant adjustment using unob

servable inputs those assets are classified as Level if not

they are classified as Level Making this assessment

requires significant judgment In 2008 $4.3 billion of fair

value option MHFS and $1.9 billion of debt securities avail

able for sale were transferred from Level to Level because

significant inputs to the valuation became unobservable

largely due to reduced levels of market liquidity

We use prices from independent pricing services and to

lesser extent indicative non-binding quotes from indepen

dent brokers to measure fair value of our investment securi

ties See Note 17 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities to

Financial Statements for the amount and fair value hierarchy

classification of those securities measured at fair value using

an independent pricing service and those measured at fair

value using broker quotes We utilize multiple independent

pricing services and brokers to obtain fair values however

we generally obtain one price/quote for each individual secu

rity For securities priced by independent pricing services we

determine the most appropriate and relevant pricing service

for each security class and have that vendor provide the price

for each security in the class We record the unadjusted value

provided by the independent pricing service/broker in our

financial statements subject to our internal price verification

procedures We validate prices received from pricing services

or brokers using variety of methods including but not lim

ited to comparison to secondary pricing services corrobora

tion of pricing by reference to other independent market data

such as secondary broker quotes and relevant benchmark

indices and review of pricing by Company personnel familiar

with market liquidity and other market-related conditions

Based upon our internal price verification procedures and

review of fair value methodology documentation provided by

independent pricing services we have concluded that the fair

values for our investment securities at year end were consis

tent with the guidance in FAS 157

Approximately 2% of total liabilities $18.8 billion at

December 31 2008 and 0.5% $2.6 billion at December 31

2007 consisted of financial instruments recorded at fair value

on recurring basis Liabilities valued using Level measure

ments were $638 million and $280 million at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively

See Note 17 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities to

Financial Statements for complete discussion on our use of

fair valuation of financial instruments our related measurement

techniques and its impact to our financial statements

Pension Accounting

We account for our defined benefit pension plans using an

actuarial model required by FAS 87 EmployersAccounting for

Pensions as amended by FAS i8 EmployersAccounting for

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans on

amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88106 and 132R
FAS 158 was issued on September 29 2006 and became

effective for us on December 31 2006 FAS 158 requires us to

recognize the funded status of our pension and postretire

ment benefit plans in our balance sheet Additionally FAS

158 required us to use year-end measurement date begin

ning in 2008 The adoption of FAS 158 did not change the

amount of net periodic benefit expense recognized in our

income statement
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We use four key variables to calculate our annual pension

cost size and characteristics of the employee population

actuarial assumptions expected long-term rate of return on

plan assets and discount rate We describe below the effect

of each of these variables on our pension expense

SIZE AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE EMPLOYEE POPULATION

Pension expense is directly related to the number of employ

ees covered by the plans and other factors including salary

age and years of employment

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS To estimate the projected benefit

obligation actuarial assumptions are required about factors

such as the rates of mortality turnover retirement disability

and compensation increases for our participant population

These demographic assumptions are reviewed periodically

In general the range of assumptions is narrow

EXPECTED LONG-TERM RATE OF RETURN ON PLAN ASSETS We

determine the expected return on plan assets each year based

on the composition of assets and the expected long-term rate

of return on that portfolio The expected long-term rate of

return assumption is long-term assumption and is not

anticipated to change significantly from year to year

To determine if the expected rate of return is reasonable

we consider such factors as long-term historical return

experience for major asset class categories for example

large cap and small cap domestic equities international

equities and domestic fixed income and forward-looking

return expectations for these major asset classes Our expected

rate of return for 2009 is 8.75% the same rate used for 2008

and 2007 Differences in each year if any between expected

and actual returns are included in our net actuarial gain or

loss amount which is recognized in other comprehensive

income We generally amortize any net actuarial gain or loss

in excess of 5% corridor as defined in FAS 87 in net peri

odic pension expense calculations over the next five years

Due to the dramatic downturn in market conditions during

2008 our actual rate of return for 2008 was negative and was

therefore significantly less than our long-term expected rate

of return of 8.75% This difference will increase our 2009 pen
sion expense by approximately $600 million due to higher

actuarial loss amortization combined with lower rate of

return component of pension expense as compared to our

2008 pension expense Although our plan assets experienced

negative return in 2008 our plan assets have earned an

average annualized rate of return of about 9% over the last

25 years Our average remaining service period is approxi

mately 10 years See Note 20 Employee Benefits and Other

Expenses to Financial Statements for information on funding

changes in the pension benefit obligation and plan assets

including the investment categories asset allocation and

the fair value

If we were to assume 1% increase/decrease in the expected

long-term rate of return holding the discount rate and other

actuarial assumptions constant 2009 pension expense would

decrease/increase by approximately $74 million

DISCOUNT RATE We use discount rate to determine the pre

sent value of our future benefit obligations The discount rate

reflects the current rates available on long-term high-quality

fixed-income debt instruments and is reset annually on the

measurement date To determine the discount rate we

review with our independent actuary spot interest rate yield

curves based upon yields from broad population of high-

quality bonds adjusted to match the timing and amounts of

the Cash Balance Plans expected benefit payments We used

discount rate of 6.75% in 2008 and 6.25% in 2007

If we were to assume 1% increase in the discount rate

and keep the expected long-term rate of return and other

actuarial assumptions constant pension expense would

decrease by approximately $72 million If we were to assume

1% decrease in the discount rate and keep other assump

tions constant 2009 pension expense would increase by

approximately $70 million The decrease in pension expense

due to 1% increase in discount rate differs slightly from the

increase in pension expense due to 1% decrease in discount

rate due to the impact of the 5% gain/loss corridor

Income Taxes

We are subject to the income tax laws of the U.S its states

and municipalities and those of the foreign jurisdictions in

which we operate We account for income taxes in accor

dance with FAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes as inter

preted by FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertoinly in Income Taxes

Our income tax expense consists of two components current

and deferred Current income tax expense approximates

taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period and

includes income tax expense related to our uncertain tax

positions We determine deferred income taxes using the bal

ance sheet method Under this method the net deferred tax

asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences

between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities and

recognized enacted changes in tax rates and laws in the peri

od in which they occur Deferred income tax expense results

from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between

periods Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to man

agements judgment that realization is more likely than not

Uncertain tax positions that meet the more likely than not

recognition threshold are measured to determine the amount

of benefit to recognize An uncertain tax position is measured

at the largest amount of benefit that management believes is

greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement

Foreign taxes paid are generally applied as credits to reduce

federal income taxes payable We account for interest and

penalties as component of income tax expense

The income tax laws of the jurisdictions in which we oper

ate are complex and subject to different interpretations by

the taxpayer and the relevant government taxing authorities

In establishing provision for income tax expense we must

make judgments and interpretations about the application of

these inherently complex tax laws We must also make esti

mates about when in the future certain items will affect tax

able income in the various tax jurisdictions by the govern-
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ment taxing authorities both domestic and foreign Our

interpretations may be subjected to review during examina

tion by taxing authorities and disputes may arise over the

respective tax positions We attempt to resolve these dis

putes during the tax examination and audit process and ulti

mately through the court systems when applicable

We monitor relevant tax authorities and revise our esti

mate of accrued income taxes due to changes in income tax

laws and their interpretation by the courts and regulatory

Earnings Performance

authorities on quarterly basis Revisions of our estimate of

accrued income taxes also may result from our own income

tax planning and from the resolution of income tax contro

versies Such revisions in our estimates may be material to

our operating results for any given quarter

See Note 21 Income Taxes to Financial Statements for

further description of our provision for income taxes and

related income tax assets and liabilities

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the interest earned on debt securities

loans including yield-related loan fees and other interest-

earning assets minus the interest paid for deposits and long-

term and short-term debt The net interest margin is the aver

age yield on earning assets minus the average interest rate

paid for deposits and our other sources of funding Net inter

est income and the net interest margin are presented on

taxable-equivalent basis to consistently reflect income from

taxable and tax-exempt loans and securities based on 35%

federal statutory tax rate

Net interest income on taxable-equivalent basis was

$25.4 billion in 2008 up 20% from $21.1 billion in 2007 Our

net interest margin increased to 4.83% for 2008 from 4.74%

for 2007 Both the increase in net interest income and the

increase in the net interest margin were largely driven by

disciplined deposit pricing and lower market funding costs

Average earning assets increased $77.6 billion to

$523.5 billion in 2008 from $445.9 billion in 2007 Average

loans increased to $398.5 billion in 2008 from $344.8 billion

in 2007 Average mortgages held for sale decreased to

$25.7 billion in 2008 from $33.1 billion in 2007 Average debt

securities available for sale increased to $86.3 billion in 2008

from $57.0 billion in 2007

The purchase accounting adjustments that we recorded on

Wachovias interest-earning assets and interest-bearing lia

bilities to reflect market rates of interest for each instrument

or pool of instruments will affect net interest income begin

ning in first quarter 2009 The more significant of these

adjustments include an $8.2 billion net increase to loans

where amortization will decrease net interest income $4.4

billion net increase to deposits specifically certificates of

deposit and $190 million increase to long-term debt where

amortization for both will increase net interest income

Core deposits are an important contributor to growth in

net interest income and the net interest margin and are

low-cost source of funding Core deposits are noninterest

bearing deposits interest-bearing checking savings certifi

cates market rate and other savings and certain foreign

deposits Eurodollar sweep balances We have one of the

largest bases of core deposits among large U.S banks

Average core deposits grew 7% to $325.2 billion in 2008 from

$303.1 billion in 2007 and funded 82% and 88% of average

total loans in 2008 and 2007 respectively Total average

retail core deposits which exclude Wholesale Banking core

deposits and retail mortgage escrow deposits for 2008 grew

$13.1 billion 6% from 2007 Average mortgage escrow

deposits decreased to $21.0 billion in 2008 from $21.5 billion

in 2007 Average savings certificates of deposit decreased to

$39.5 billion in 2008 from $40.5 billion in 2007 and average

noninterest-bearing checking accounts and other core

deposit categories interest-bearing checking and market

rate and other savings increased to $260.2 billion in 2008

from $241.9 billion in 2007 Total average interest-bearing

deposits increased to $266.1 billion in 2008 from $239.2 bil

lion in 2007 predominantly due to growth in market rate and

other savings along with growth in foreign deposits offset by

decline in other time deposits

Table presents the individual components of net interest

income and the net interest margin
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Table Average Balances Yields and Rates Paid Taxable-Equivalent Basis
123

in millions 2008 2007

Average Yields Interest Average Yields Interest

balance rates income balance rates income

expense expense

EARNING ASSETS

Federal funds sold securities purchased under

resale agreements and other short-term investments 5293 1.71% 90 4468 4.99% 223

Trading assets 4971 3.80 189 4291 4.37 188

Debt securities available for sale

Securities of U.S.Treasury and federal agencies 1083 3.84 41 848 4.26 36

Securities of U.S states and political subdivisions 6918 6.83 501 4740 7.37 342

Mortgage-backed securities

Federal agencies 44777 5.97 2623 38592 6.10 2328

Private collateralized mortgage obligations 20749 6.04 1412 6548 6.12 399

Total mortgage-backed securities 65526 5.99 4035 45140 6.10 2727

Other debt securities 12818 7.17 1000 6295 7.52 477

Total debt securities available for sale 86345 6.22 5577 57023 6.34 3582

Mortgages held for sale 25656 6.13 1573 33066 6.50 2150

Loans held for sale 837 5.69 48 896 7.76 70

Loans

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial 98620 6.12 6034 77965 8.17 6367

Other real estate mortgage 41659 5.80 2416 32722 7.38 2414

Real estate construction 19453 5.08 988 16934 7.80 1321

Lease financing 7.141 5.62 401 5921 5.84 346

Total commercial and commercial real estate 166873 5.90 9839 133542 7.82 10448
Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 75116 6.67 5008 61527 7.25 4463

Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage 75375 6.55 4934 72075 8.12 5851

Credit card 19601 12.13 2378 15874 13.58 2155

Other revolving credit and installment 54368 8.72 4744 54436 9.71 5285

Total consumer 224460 7.60 17064 203912 8.71 17754

Foreign 7127 10.50 748 7321 11.68 855

Total loans 398460 6.94 27651 344775 8.43 29057
Other 1920 4.73 91 1402 5.07 71

Total earning assets $523482 6.69 35219 $445921 7.93 35341

FUNDING SOURCES

Deposits

Interest-bearing checking 5650 1.12 64 5057 3.16 160

Market rate and other savings 166691 1.32 2195 147939 2.78 4105

Savings certificates 39481 3.08 1215 40484 4.38 1773

Othertimedeposits 6656 2.83 187 8937 4.87 435

Deposits in foreign offices 47578 1.81 860 36761 4.57 1679

Total interest-bearing deposits 266056 1.70 4521 239178 3.41 8152

Short-term borrowings 65826 2.25 1478 25854 4.81 1245

Long-term debt 102283 3.70 3789 93193 5.18 4824

Total interest-bearing liabilities 434165 2.25 9788 358225 3.97 14221

Portion of noninterest-bearing funding sources 89.317 87696

Total funding sources $523482 1.86 9.788 $445921 3.19 14221

Net interest margin and net interest income on

taxable-equivalent basis 4.83% $25431 4.74% $21120

NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS

Cashandduefrombanks 11175 11806

Goodwill 13353 11957

Other 56.386 51068

Total noninterest-earning assets 80914 74831

NONINTEREST-BEARING FUNDING SOURCES

Deposits 87820 88907
Other liabilities 28939 26557

Preferred stockholders equity 4051

Common stockholders equity 49421 47063

Noninterest-bearing funding sources used to

fund earning assets 89.317 87.696

Net noninterest-bearing funding sources 80914 74831

TOTAL ASSETS $604396 $520752

Because the Wachovia acquisition was completed at the end of 2008 Wachovias assets and liabilities are not included in average balances and Wachovias

results are not reflected in interest income/expense

Our average prime rate was 5.09% 8.05% 7.96% 6.19% and 4.34% for 20082007 20062005 and 2004 respectively.The average three-month London nterbank

Offered Rate LIBOR was 2.93% 5.30% 5.20% 3.56% and 1.62% for the same years respectively

Interest rates and amounts include the effects of hedge and risk management activities associated with the respective asset and liability categories
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Average Yields Interest Average Yields Interest Average Yields Interest

balance rates income balance rates income balance rates income

expense expense expense

5515 4.80% 265 5448 3.01% 164 4254 1.49% 64

4958 4.95 245 5411 3.52 190 5286 215 145

875 4.36 39 997 3.81 38 1161 4.05 46

3192 7.98 245 3395 8.27 266 3501 8.00 267

36691 6.04 2206 19768 6.02 1162 21404 6.03 1248

6640 6.57 430 5.128 5.60 283 3604 5.16 180

43331 6.12 2636 24896 5.94 1445 25008 5.91 1428

6204 7.10 439 3.846 7.10 266 3.395 7.72 236

53602 6.31 3359 33134 6.24 2015 33065 6.24 1977

42855 6.41 2746 38986 5.67 2213 32263 5.38 1737
630 7.40 47 2857 5.10 146 8201 3.56 292

65720 8.13 5340 58434 6.76 3951 49365 5.77 2848

29344 7.32 2148 29098 6.31 1836 28708 5.35 1535

14810 7.94 1175 11086 6.67 740 8724 5.30 463

5437 5.72 311 5226 5.91 309 5068 6.23 316

115311 7.78 8974 103844 6.58 6836 91865 5.62 5162

57509 7.27 4182 78170 6.42 5016 87700 5.44 4772

64255 7.98 5126 55616 6.61 3679 44415 5.18 2300

12571 13.29 1670 10663 12.33 1315 8878 11.80 1048

50922 9.60 4889 43102 8.80 3794 33528 9.01 3022

185257 8.57 15867 187551 7.36 13804 174521 6.38 11142

6343 12.39 786 4711 13.49 636 3184 15.30 487

306911 8.35 25627 296106 7.19 21276 269570 6.23 16791

1357 4.97 68 1581 4.34 68 1709 3.81 65

$415828 7.79 32357 $383523 6.81 26072 $354348 5.97 21071

4302 2.86 123 3607 1.43 51 3059 0.44 13

134248 2.40 3225 129291 1.45 1874 122129 0.69 838

32355 3.91 1266 22638 2.90 656 18850 2.26 425

32168 4.99 1607 27676 3.29 910 29750 1.43 427

20724 4.60 953 11432 3.12 357 8843 1.40 124

223797 3.21 7174 194644 1.98 3848 182631 1.00 1827

21471 4.62 992 24074 3.09 744 26130 1.35 353

84035 4.91 4124 79.137 3.62 2866 67898 2.41 1637

329303 3.73 12290 297855 2.50 7458 276659 1.38 3817

86525 85668 77689

$41 5828 2.96 12.290 $383523 1.95 7458 $354348 1.08 3817

4.83% $20067 4.86% $18614 4.89% $17254

12466 13173 13055

11114 10705 10418

46615 38.389 32.758

70195 62267 56231

89117 87218 79321
24467 21559 18764

43136 39158 35835

86525 85668 77689

70195 62267 56231

$486023 $445790 $410579

Yields are based on amortized cost balances computed on settlement date basis

Includes certain preferred securities

Nonaccrual loans and related income are included in their respective loan categories

Includes taxable-equivalent adjustments primarily related to tax-exempt income on certain loans and securities.The federal statutory tax rate was 35% for all

years presented
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Table allocates the changes in net interest income on

taxable-equivalent basis to changes in either average bal

ances or average rates for both interest-earning assets and

interest-bearing liabilities Because of the numerous simulta

neous volume and rate changes during any period it is not

Table Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income

possible to precisely allocate such changes between volume

and rate For this table changes that are not solely due to

either volume or rate are allocated to these categories in pro

portion to the percentage changes in average volume and

average rate

in millions

2008 over 2007

Volume Rate Total

Year ended December31

2007 over 2006

Volume Rate Total

Increase decrease in net interest income

on taxable-equivalent basis S1.012 S4.311 1.815 51262 1.053

Noninterest Income

We earn trust investment and IRA fees from managing and

administering assets including mutual funds corporate trust

personal trust employee benefit trust and agency assets At

December 31 2008 these assets totaled $1.62 trillion includ

ing $510 billion from the Wachovia acquisition up 45% from

$1.12 trillion at December 31 2007 Trust investment and IRA

fees are primarily based on tiered scale relative to the mar

ket value of the assets under management or administration

The fees declined 6% in 2008 from year ago while the SP
500 declined 35% over the same period

We also receive commissions and other fees for providing

services to full-service and discount brokerage customers

Generally these fees include transactional commissions

which are based on the number of transactions executed at

the customers direction or asset-based fees which are based

on the market value of the customers assets At December 31

2008 brokerage balances totaled $970 billion including

$859 billion from the Wachovia acquisition up from

$131 billion at December 31 2007

Card fees increased 9% to $2336 million in 2008 from

$2136 million in 2007 due to continued growth in new

accounts and higher credit and debit card transaction vol

ume Purchase volume on these cards increased 8% from

year ago and average card balances were up 25%

Mortgage banking noninterest income was $2525 million

in 2008 compared with $3133 million in 2007 In addition to

servicing fees net servicing income includes both changes in

the fair value of MSRs during the period as well as changes in

Increase decrease in interest income

Federal funds sold securities purchased under resale

agreements and other short-term investments 35 168 133 52 10 42
Trading assets 26 25 30 27 57
Debt securities available for sale

Securities of U.S.Treasury and federal agencies

Securities of U.S states and political subdivisions 181 22 159 17 20 97

Mortgage-backed securities

Federal agencies 349 54 295 102 20 122

Private collateralized mortgage obligations 1017 1013 26 31
Other debt securities 543 20 523 30 38

Mortgages held for sale 460 117 577 634 38 596

Loans held for sale 18 22 21 23

Loans

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial 1471 1804 333 1001 26 1027

Other real estate mortgage 581 579 248 18 266

Real estate construction 176 509 333 167 21 146

Lease financing 69 14 55 28 35

Consumer

Real estate 1-4familyfirst mortgage 924 379 545 292 11 281

Real estate 1-4family junior lien mortgage 258 1175 917 634 gi 725

Credit card 470 247 223 448 37 485

Other revolving credit and installment 534 541 339 57 3%

Foreign 22 85 107 116 47 69

Other 25 20

Total increase decrease in interest income fi4j 5763 122 2800 184 2g84

Increase decrease in interest expense

Deposits

Interest-bearing checking 17 113 96 23 14 37

Market rate and other savings 469 2379 1910 345 535 880

Savings certificates 43 515 558 343 164 507

Othertimedeposits 94 154 248 1134 38 1172
Deposits in foreign offices 396 1215 819 732 726

Short-term borrowings 1158 925 233 211 42 253

Long-term debt 1474 1035 465 235 700

Total increase decrease in interest expense 2342 6775 4433 985 946 1931
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Table Noninterest Income Mortgage could continue to have increased loss severity

in millions Year ended December 31 Change

2008 2007 2006 2008/ 2007/

2007 2006

Service charges on

deposit accounts

Trust and investment fees

Trust investment and IRA fees

Commissions and all other fees

Total trust and

investment fees

NM Not meaningful

737 734 738 NM
850 936 812 15

$16754 $18416 $15740 17

the value of derivatives economic hedges used to hedge the

MSRs Net servicing income for 2008 included $242 million

net MSRs valuation loss that was recorded to earnings

$3.34 billion fair value loss offsetting by $3.10 billion eco

nomic hedging gain and for 2007 included $583 million net

MSRs valuation gain $s7i million fair value loss offsetting

$1.15 billion economic hedging gain Our portfolio of loans

serviced for others was $1.86 trillion including $379 billion

acquired from Wachovia at December 31 2008 up 30% from

$1.43 trillion at December 31 2007 At December 31 2008 the

ratio of M5Rs to related loans serviced for others was 0.87%

Net gains on mortgage loan origination/sales activities

were $1183 million in 2008 down from $1289 million in 2007

Residential real estate originations totaled $230 billion in

2008 compared with $272 billion in 2007 For additional

detail see Asset/Liability and Market Risk Management

Mortgage Banking Interest Rate and Market Risk and Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Note

Mortgage Banking Activities and Note 17 Fair Values of

Assets and Liabilities to Financial Statements

Mortgage loans are repurchased based on standard repre

sentations and warranties and early payment default clauses

in mortgage sale contracts The $234 million increase in the

repurchase reserve in 2008 included $208 million related to

standard representations and warranties as the housing mar

ket deteriorated and loss seventies on repurchases increased

An additional $26 million related to an increase in projected

early payment defaults due to the overall deterioration in the

on repurchases causing future increases in the repurchase

reserve In addition there was $29 million in warehouse valua

tion adjustments in 2008 due to increasing losses associated

with repurchase risk The write-down of the mortgage ware

house/pipeline in 2008 was $584 million including losses of

$320 million due to spread widening primarily on the prime

mortgage warehouse caused by changes in liquidity The

remaining $264 million of losses were primarily losses on unsal

lease contracts

Insurance revenue was up 20% from 2007 due to customer

growth higher crop insurance revenue and the fourth quarter

2007 acquisition of ABD Insurance

Income from trading activities was $275 million in 2008 and

$544 million in 2007 Income from trading activities and all

other income collectively included $106 million charge in

2008 related to unsecured counterparty exposure on derivative

contracts with Lehman Brothers Net investment gains debt

and equity totaled $300 million for 2008 and included other-

than-temporary impairment charges of $646 million for Fannie

Mae Freddie Mac and Lehman Brothers an additional $1364

million of other-than-temporary write-downs and $1710 million

of net realized investment gains Net gains on debt securities

available for sale were $1037 million for 2008 and $209 million

for 2007 Net gains losses from equity investments were

$737 million in 2008 compared with $734 million in 2007 For

additional detail see Balance Sheet Analysis Securities

Available for Sale in this Report

Noninterest Expense

We continued to build our business with investments in addi

tional team members largely sales and service professionals

and new banking stores in 2008 Noninterest expense in 2008

decreased 1% from the prior year In 2008 we opened 58 regional

banking stores and converted 32 stores acquired from Greater

Bay Bancorp Farmers State Bank and United Bancorporation of

Wyoming Inc to our network Noninterest expense for 2008

included $124 million of merger integration and severance costs

Operating lease expense decreased 31% to $389 million in

2008 from $561 million in 2007 as we stopped originating new

indirect auto leases in third quarter 2008

Insurance expense increased to $725 million in 2008 from

$416 million in 2007 due to the fourth quarter 2007 acquisition

of ABD Insurance additional insurance reserves at our captive

mortgage reinsurance operation as well as higher commissions

on increased sales volume

3190 3050 2690

2161 2305 2033

763 844 704

5%

10

13%

13

20

2924 3149 2737

2336 2136 1747

188

1037

872 _______ _______

2097

Card fees

Other fees

Cash network fees

Charges and fees on loans

All other fees

Total other fees

Mortgage banking

Servicing income net

Net gains on mortgage loan

origination/sales activities

All other

Total mortgage banking

Operating leases

Insurance

Net gains from trading activities

Net gains lossesl on debt

securities available for sale

Net gains losses from

equity investments

All other

Total

15 able loans Due to the deterioration in the overall credit market

22 and related secondary market liquidity challenges these losses

193 184
have been significant Similar losses on unsalable loans could be

1011 976 possible in the future if the housing market does not recover

1088 897 20 21 The 1-4 family first mortgage unclosed pipeline was $71 bil

2292 2057 11

lion including $5 billion from Wachovia at December 31 2008

979 1511 893 35 69 and $43 billion at December 31 2007

Operating lease income decreased 39% from year ago due

to continued softening in the auto market reflecting tightened

credit standards In third quarter 2008 we stopped originating

new indirect auto leases but will continue to service existing

1183

363

2525

427

1830

275

1289 1116

333 302

3133 2311

703 783

1530 1340

544 544

16

10

19 36

39 10
20 14
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1037 209 19 396 NM

market To the extent the market does not recover Home
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Operating losses in 2008 included sisi million reversal

of Visa litigation expenses related to the Visa initial public

offering Operating losses for 2007 included $203 million for

2007 of litigation expenses associated with indemnification

obligations arising from our ownership interest in Visa

Income Tax Expense

Our effective tax rate for 2008 was 18.5% compared with

30.7% for 2007 The decrease in the effective tax rate was

primarily due to lower level of pre-tax income and higher

amounts of tax credits and tax-exempt income

Operating Segment Results

We have three lines of business for our 2008 management

reporting results Community Banking Wholesale Banking

and Wells Fargo Financial For more complete description

of our operating segments including additional financial

information and the underlying management accounting

process see Note 24 Operating Segments to Financial

Statements To reflect the realignment of our corporate trust

business from Community Banking into Wholesale Banking

in first quarter 2008 results for prior periods have been

revised

Community Bankings net income decreased 43% to $2.93 bil

lion in 2008 from $5.11 billion in 2007 Double-digit revenue

growth was driven by strong balance sheet growth combined

with disciplined expense management and was offset by

higher credit costs including $4.7 billion pre tax credit

reserve build Revenue increased 11% to $27.76 billion from

$24.93 billion in 2007 Net interest income increased 24% to

$16.19 billion in 2008 from $13.10 billion in 2007 Net interest

margin increased 36 basis points to 5.02% due to earning

assets growth of $41.4 billion or 15% offsetting lower invest-

Wholesale Bankings net income decreased 48% to $1.29 bil

lion in 2008 from $2.47 billion in 2007 largely due to the

$t.12 billion pre tax provision for credit losses which

included $586 million gre tax credit reserve build

Revenue decreased 5% to $8.54 billion from $8.95 billion in

2007 Net interest income increased 23% to $4.47 billion for

2008 from $3.65 billion for 2007 driven by strong loan and

deposit growth Average loans increased 31% to $112.1 billion

in 2008 from $85.6 billion in 2007 with double-digit increases

across nearly all wholesale lending businesses Average core

deposits grew 16% to $70.6 billion from year ago primarily

from large corporate middle market and correspondent bank

ing customers The increase in provision for credit losses to

$1.12 billion in 2008 from $69 million in 2007 was due to higher

net charge-offs and additional provision taken to build

reserves for the wholesale portfolio Noninterest income

decreased 23% to $4.07 billion in 2008 primarily due to

impairment charges and other losses in our capital markets

areas as well as lower commercial real estate brokerage and

trust and investment fees Noninterest expense increased 9%

to $5.55 billion in 2008 from $5.08 billion in 2007 due to the

acquisition of ABD Insurance as well as higher agent com

missions in the crop insurance business stemming from higher

commodity prices and the liability recorded for capital

support agreement for structured investment vehicle

Wells Fargo Financial reported net loss of $764 million in

2008 compared with net income of $481 million in 2007

reflecting higher credit costs including $1.7 billion credit

reserve build due to continued softening in the real estate

auto and credit card markets Revenue was up 2% to $5.59 bil

lion in 2008 from $5.51 billion in 2007 Net interest income

increased 6% to $4.48 billion from $4.23 billion in 2007 due to

growth in average loans which increased 4% to $67.6 billion

in 2008 from $65.2 billion in 2007 The provision for credit

losses increased $2.38 billion in 2008 from 2007 primarily

due to the $1.7 billion credit reserve build and an increase in

net charge-offs in the credit card and auto portfolios due to

continued softening in these markets Noninterest income

decreased $171 million in 2008 from 2007 Noninterest

expense decreased 9% to $2.76 billion in 2008 from 2007 pri

marily due to lower expenses from the run off of the auto

lease portfolio and reduction in team members

Table Noninterest Expense

in millions

Salaries

Commission and

incentive compensation

Employee benefits

Equipment

Net occupancy

Operating leases

Outside professional services

Insurance

Outside data processing

Travel and entertainment

Contract services

Advertising and promotion

Postage

Telecommunications

Stationery and supplies

Core deposit and other

customer relationship

intangibles

Security

Operating losses

All other

Total

Year ended December 31 Chanoe
ment yields The growth in earning assets was primarily

2008 2007 2006 2008/ 2007/

2007 2006 driven by loan and investment growth Average loans were

up 13% to $218.8 billion in 2008 from $194.0 billion in 2007
8260 7762 7007 6/ 11/

Average core deposits were up 5% to $254.6 billion in 2008

from $242.2 billion year ago Noninterest income decreased

2% to $11.57 billion in 2008 from $11.83 billion in 2007

primarily due to lower mortgage banking income and trust

and investment fees The provision for credit losses for

2008 increased to $9.56 billion from $3.19 billion in 2007

Noninterest expense decreased 2% to $14.35 billion in 2008

from $14.70 billion in 2007

2676

2004

1357

1619

389

847

725

480

447

407

378

338

321

218

3284

2322

12g4

1545

561

899

416

482

474

448

412

345

321

220

2885

2035

1252

1405

630

g42

257

437

542

579

456

312

279

223

19 14

14 14

10

31 11
61 51

74 62

10

13
23

181 10
11

15

11

186

178

142

1689

$22661

158

176

437

1268

$22824

177

179

275

965

$20837

18

68
33

111

59

31

10
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Balance Sheet Analysis

Securities Available for Sale

Our securities available for sale consist of both debt and

marketable equity securities We hold debt securities available

for sale primarily for liquidity interest rate risk management

and long-term yield enhancement Accordingly this portfolio

primarily includes liquid high-quality federal agency debt

as well as privately issued mortgage-backed securities At

December 31 2008 we held $145.4 billion of debt securities

available for sale including $63.7 billion acquired from Wachovia

with net unrealized losses of $9.8 billion compared with

$70.2 billion at December 31 2007 with net unrealized gaina

of $775 million We also held $6.i billion of marketable equity

securities available for sale at December 31 2008 including

$3.7 billion acquired from Wachovia and $2.8 billion at

December 31 2007 with net unrealized losses of $160 million

and $95 million for the same perioda respectively The net

unrealized loss in cumulative other comprehensive income at

December 31 2008 related entirely to the legacy Wells Fargo

portfolio The net unrealized loss related to the legacy

Wachovia portfolio was written off in purchase accounting

The significant increase in net unrealized losses on debt

securities available for sale to $9.8 billion at December 31

2008 from net unrealized gains of $775 million at December

31 2007 was primarily due to extraordinarily wide asset

spreads for residential mortgage commercial mortgage and

commercial loan asset-backed securities resulting from an

extremely illiquid market causing these assets to be valued

at significant discounts from their cost We conduct other-

than-temporary impairment analysis on quarterly basis or

more often if potential loss-triggering event occurs We rec

ognize an other-than-temporary impairment when it is proba

ble that we will be unable to collect all amounts due accord

ing to the contractual terms of the security and the fair value

of the investment security is less than its amortized cost The

initial indication of other-than-temporary impairment for

both debt and equity securities is decline in the market

value below the amount recorded for an investment and the

severity and duration of the decline In determining whether

an impairment is other than temporary we consider the

length of time and the extent to which the market value has

been below cost recent events specific to the issuer includ

ing investment downgrades by rating agencies and economic

conditions of its industry and our ability and intent to hold

the investment for period of time including maturity suffi

cient to allow for any anticipated recovery in the fair value of

the security For marketable equity securities we also consider

the issuers financial condition capital strength and near-term

prospects For debt securities and for perpetual preferred

securities which are treated as debt securities for the pur

pose of other-than-temporary analysis we also consider the

cause of the price decline general level of interest rates and

industry- and issuer-specific factors the issuers financial

condition near-term prospects and current ability to make

future payments in timely manner the issuers ability to

service debt any change in agencies ratings at evaluation

date from acquisition date and any likely imminent action

and for asset-backed securities the credit performance of the

underlying collateral including delinquency rates cumulative

losses to date and the remaining credit enhancement com

pared to expected credit losses of the security

We have approximately $7 billion of investments in secu

rities primarily municipal bonds that are guaranteed against

loss by bond insurers These securities are almost exclusively

investment grade and were generally underwritten in accor

dance with our own investment standards prior to the deter

mination to purchase without relying on the bond insurers

guarantee in making the investment decision These securi

ties will continue to be monitored as part of our on-going

impairment analysis of our securities available for sale but

are expected to perform even if the rating agencies reduce

the credit rating of the bond insurers

The weighted-average expected maturity of debt securi

ties available for sale was 5.3 years at December 31 2008

Since 69% of this portfolio is mortgage-backed securities the

expected remaining maturity may differ from contractual

maturity because borrowers generally have the right to pre

pay obligations before the underlying mortgages mature The

estimated effect of 200 basis point increase or decrease in

interest rates on the fair value and the expected remaining

maturity of the mortgage-backed securities available for sale

is shown in Table

Table Mortgage-Backed Securities

in billions Fair Net Remaining

value unrealized maturity

gain loss

At December 312008 99.7 6.8 2.9yrs

At December31 2008

assuming 200 basis point

Increase in interest rates 90.9 15.6 4.3 yrs

Decrease in interest rates 104.0 2.5 1.8 yrs

See Note Securities Available for Sale to Financial

Statements for securities available for sale by security type
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Loan Portfolio

discussion of average loan balances is included in

Earnings Performance Net Interest Income on page 47

and comparative schedule of average
loan balances is

included in Table year-end balances are in Note Loans

and Allowance for Credit Losses to Financial Statements

Total loans at December 31 2008 were $864.8 billion

up $482.6 billion from $382.2 billion at December 31 2007

including $446.1 billion net of $30.5 billion of purchase

accounting net write-downs acquired from Wachovia

Consumer loans were $474.9 billion at December 31 2008

up $253.0 billion from $221.9 billion year ago including

$246.8 billion net of $21.0 billion of purchase accounting net

write-downs acquired from Wachovia Commercial and com
mercial real estate loans of $356.1 billion at December 31

2008 increased $203.3 billion from year ago including

$171.4 billion net of $7.9 billion of purchase accounting net

write-downs acquired from Wachovia Mortgages held for

sale decreased to $20.1 billion at December 31 2008 from

$26.8 billion year ago including $1.4 billion acquired from

Wachovia

summary of the major categories of loans outstanding

showing those subject to SOP 03-3 is presented in the follow

ing table For further detail on SOP 03-3 loans see Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Loans and

Note Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial

Other real estate mortgage
Real estate construction

Lease financing

Total commercial and commercial real estate

Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage
Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage
Credit card

Other revolving credit and installment

Total consumer

Foreign

2008 2007

sop 03-3 All Total

loans other

loans

4580 $197889 $202469 90468

7762 95346 103108 36747

4503 30173 34676 18854

15.829 15829

16845 339237 356082 152841

39214 208680 247894 71415

728 109436 110164 75565

23555 23555 18762

151 93102 93.253 56171

40093 434773 474866 221913

1.859 32023 441

$58797 $806.033 $864830 $382.1 95

Table shows contractual loan maturities and interest

rate sensitivities for selected loan categories

Table Maturities for Selected Loan Categories

un millionsi

Selected loan maturities

Commercial

Other real estate

mortgage
Real estate construction

Foreign

Total selected loans

Within After

one one year

year through

five years

Oecember 312008

After

five

years

Total

Sensitivity
of loans due after

one year to changes in

interest rates

Loans at fixed interest rates

Loans at floating/variable

interest rates

Total selected loans

24766 $23628

151793 _47947

$176559 $71575

Table Loan Portfolios

un millionsi Deremher 31

Total loans

59246 $109764 $33459 $202469

23880 45565 33663 103108

19270 13942 1464 34676

23605 7288 999 33882

$126001 $176559 $71575 $374135
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Table 10 DepositsDeposits

Year-end deposit balances totaling $781.4 billion which

included $426.2 billion from Wachovia reflecting an increase

of $4.4 billion of interest rate related purchase accounting

adjustments are shown in Table 10 comparative detail of

average deposit balances is included in Table Average core

deposits which did not include Wachovia deposits increased

$22.1 billion to $325.2 billion in 2008 from $303.1 billion in

2007 Average core deposits funded 53.8% and 58.2% of aver

age total assets in 2008 and 2007 respectively Total average

interest-bearing deposits increased to $266.1 billion in 2008 from

$239.2 billion in 2007 predominantly due to growth in market

rate and other savings along with growth in foreign deposits

offset by decline in other time deposits Total average non-

interest-bearing deposits declined to $87.8 billion in 2008

from $88.9 billion in 2007 Savings certificates decreased on

average to $39.5 billion in 2008 from $40.5 billion in 2007

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

in millions December31

2008 2007

Noninterest-bearing

Interest-bearing checking

Market rate and

other savings

Savings certificates

Foreign deposits

Core deposits

Other time deposits

Other foreign deposits

Total deposits

In the ordinary course of business we engage in financial

transactions that are not recorded in the balance sheet or may

be recorded in the balance sheet in amounts that are different

from the full contract or notional amount of the transaction

These transactions are designed to meet the financial needs

of customers manage our credit market or liquidity risks

diversify our funding sources and/or optimize capital

These are described below as off-balance sheet transactions

with unconsolidated entities and guarantees and certain

contingent arrangements

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions with Unconsolidated Entities

In the normal course of business we enter into various types

of on- and off-balance sheet transactions with special purpose

entities SPEs SPEs are corporations trusts or partnerships

that are established for limited purpose The majority of SPEs

are formed in connection with securitization transactions In

securitization transaction assets from our balance sheet are

transferred to an SPE which then issues to investors various

forms of interests in those assets and may also enter into

derivative transactions In securitization transaction we

typically receive cash and/or other interests in an SPE as pro

ceeds for the assets we transfer Also in certain transactions

we may retain the right to service the transferred receivables

and to repurchase those receivables from the SPE if the out

standing balance of the receivables fall to level where the

cost exceeds the benefits of servicing such receivables

In connection with our securitization activities we have

various forms of ongoing involvement with SPEs which may
include

underwriting securities issued by SPEs and subsequently

making markets in those securities

providing liquidity facilities to support short-term

obligations of SPEs issued to third party investors

providing credit enhancement to securities issued by SPEs

or market value guarantees of assets held by SPEs through

the use of letters of credit financial guarantees credit

default swaps and total return swaps

entering into other derivative contracts with SPEs

holding senior or subordinated interests in SPEs

acting as servicer or investment manager for SPEs and

providing administrative or trustee services to SPEs

The SPEs we use are primarily either qualifying SPEs

QSPEs or variable interest entities VIEs QSPE repre

sents specific type of SPE QSPE is passive entity that

has significant limitations on the types of assets and deriva

tive instruments it may own and the extent of activities and

decision making in which it may engage For example

QSPEs activities are generally limited to purchasing assets

passing along the cash flows of those assets to its investors

servicing its assets and in certain transactions issuing liabil

ities Among other restrictions on QSPEs activities QSPE

may not actively manage its assets through discretionary

sales or modifications QSPE is exempt from consolidation

VIE is an entity that has either total equity investment

that is insufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities

without additional subordinated financial support or whose

equity investors lack the characteristics of controlling

financial interest VIE is consolidated by its primary benefi

ciary which is the entity that through its variable interests

absorbs the majority of VIEs variability variable interest

is contractual ownership or other interest that changes

with changes in the fair value of the VIEs net assets

Change

$150837 84348 79%

72828 5277 NM

306255 53924 gg

182043 42708 326

33.469 25474 31

745432 311731 139

28498 3654 680

7.472 2go75 74

$781402 $344460 127

NM Not neaningful

111 Reflects turodollar sweep balances included in core deposits
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Our significant continuing involvement with QSPEs and

unconsolidated VIEs as of December 31 2008 and 2007 is

presented below

in millions 31 2008

Total Carrying Maximum

entity value exposure

assets to loss

QSPEs

Residential mortgage
loan securitizations $1144775 $29939 $31438

Commercial mortgage
securitizations 355267 3060 6376

Student loan securitizations 2765 133 133

Auto loan securitizations 4133 115 115

Other 11.877 71 1576

Total QSPEs $1518817 $33318 $3g638

Total unconsolidated VIEs

Ill Asses-backed commerical paper

We have excluded from the table SPEs and unconsolidated

VIEs where our only involvement is in the form of invest

ments in trading securities investments in securities or loans

underwritten by third parties and administrative or trustee

services We have also excluded investments accounted for

in accordance with the AICPA Investment Company Audit

Guide investments accounted for under the cost method and

investments accounted for under the equity method

Table 12 Guarantees and Certain Contingent Arrangements

For more information on securitizations including sales

proceeds and cash flows from securitizations see Note

Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities to Financial

Statements

We also have significant involvement with voting interest

SPEs Wells Fargo Home Mortgage Home Mortgage in the

ordinary course of business originates portion of its mort

gage loans through unconsolidated joint ventures in which

we own an interest of 50% or less Loans made by these joint

ventures are funded by Wells Fargo Bank NA through an

established line of credit and are subject to specified under

writing criteria At December 31 2008 the total assets of

these mortgage origination joint ventures were approximate

ly $46 million We provide liquidity to these joint ventures in

the form of outstanding lines of credit and at December 31

2008 these liquidity commitments totaled $135 million

We also hold interests in other unconsolidated joint ven

tures formed with unrelated third parties to provide efficien

the exchange of information between financial services orga

nizations to detect and prevent fraud At December 31 2008

total assets of our real estate lending joint ventures and fraud

prevention services partnership were approximately $132 million

Guarantees and Certain Contingent Arrangements

Guarantees are contracts that contingently require us to

make payments to guaranteed party based on an event

or change in an underlying asset liability rate or index

Guarantees are generally in the form of securities lending

indemnifications standby letters of credit liquidity agree

ments recourse obligations residual value guarantees writ

ten put options and contingent consideration The following

table presents the carrying amount maximum risk of loss of

our guarantees and for December 31 2008 the amount with

higher payment risk

Table 11 Qualifying Special Purpose Entities and Unconsolidated

Variable Interest Entities

Unconsolidated VIEs

COOs

Wachovia administered

ABCP conduit

Asset-based lending structures

Tax credit structures

CLOs

Investment funds

Credit-linked note structures

Money market funds

Other

10767

11614

22882

23339

105808

12993

31843

1832

26g88o

48802 $15133 $20443
cies from economies of scale third party manages our real

estate lending services joint ventures and provides customers

with title escrow appraisal and other real estate related ser

vices Our fraud prevention services partnership facilitates
90g6

3850

3326

3543

1522

60

$40336

15824

g482

4926

3881

3690

2303

101

469g

$65349

in millions fleremher

2008 2007

Carrying Maximum Higher Carrying Maximum

amount risk of payment amount risk of

loss risk loss

Standby letters of credit 130 47191 $17293 $12530
Securities and other lending indemnifications 30120 1907

Liquidity agreements 30 7602

Written put options 1376 10182 5314 48 2569

Loans sold with recourse 53 6126 2038
Residual value guarantees 1121

Contingent consideration 11 187 67 246

Other guarantees il
Total guarantees $ig0 $112567 $26552 $j33 $15406

For more information on guarantees and certain contingent arrangements see Note 15 Guarantees and Legal Actions

to Financial Statements
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Contractual Obligations

In addition to the contractual commitments and arrange

ments previously described which depending on the nature

of the obligation may or may not require use of our

resources we enter into other contractual obligations in the

ordinary course of business including debt issuances for the

funding of operations and leases for premises and equipment

We are subject to the income tax laws of the U.S its states

and municipalities and those of the foreign jurisdictions in

which we operate We have various unrecognized tax obliga

tions related to these operations which may require future

cash tax payments to various taxing authorities Because of

their uncertain nature the expected timing and amounts of

these payments generally are not reasonably estimable or

determinable We attempt to estimate the amount payable in

the next 12 months based on the status of our tax examina

tions and settlement discussions See Note 21 Income Taxes

to Financial Statements for more information

We enter into derivatives which create contractual obliga

tions as part of our interest rate risk management process

for our customers or for other trading activities See Asset/

Liability and Market Risk Management in this Report and Note

Derivatives to Financial Statements for more information

PRUDENTIAL JOINT VENTURE Our financial statements include

Prudential Financial Inc.s Prudential minority interest in

Wachovia Securities Financial Holdings LLC WSFH As

result of Wachovias contribution to WSFH on January

2008 of the retail securitiea buainess of AG Edwards Inc

AG Edwards which Wachovia acquired on October 2007

Prudentials percentage interest in WSFH was diluted as of

that date based on the value of the contributed business

relative to the value of WSFH Although the adjustment in

Prudentials interest will be effective on retroactive basis

as of the January 2008 contribution date the valuations

necessary to calculate the precise reduction in that percentage

interest have not been finalized Based on currently available

information Wells Fargo estimates that Prudentials percentage

interest has been diluted from its pro-contribution percentage

interest of 38% to approximately 23% as result of the AG
Edwards contribution This percentage interest may be

adjusted higher or lower in subsequent quarter retroactive

Table 13 summarizes those contractual obligations at

December 31 2008 except obligations for short-term borrow

ing arrangements and pension and postretirement benefit

plans More information on those obligations is in Note 13

Short-Term Borrowings and Note 20 Employee Benefits

and Other Expenses to Financial Statements

to January 2008 if the final valuations differ from

Wells Fargos current estimate

In connection with Wachovias contribution of AG
Edwards to the joint venture Prudential elected to exercise

its lookback option which permits Prudential to delay until

January 2010 its decision to make or not make an addition

al capital contribution to the joint venture or other payments

to avoid or limit dilution of its ownership interest in the joint

venture During this lookback period Prudentials share in

the joint ventures earnings and one-time costs associated

with the combination will be based on Prudentials diluted

ownership level following the AG Edwards combination

At the end of the lookback period Prudential may elect to

make an additional capital contribution or other payment

based on the appraised value as defined in the joint venture

agreements of the existing joint venture and the AG
Edwards business as of January 2008 to avoid or limit

dilution Alternatively at the end of the lookback period

Prudential may put its joint venture interests to Wells Fargo

based on the appraised value of the joint venture excluding

the AG Edwards business as of January 2008 Prudential

has announced its intention to exercise but has not yet for

mally exercised this lookback put option Prudential has

until September 30 2009 to exercise the lookback put option

If Prudential exercises the lookback put option the closing

would occur on or about January 2010 Prudential also

has discretionary right to put its joint venture interests

to Wells Fargo including the AG Edwards business at any

time after July 2008 If Prudential exercises this discre

tionary put option the closing would occur approximately

one year from the date of exercise and the appraised value

would be determined at that time Wells Fargo may pay the

purchase price for either the lookback or discretionary put

option in cash shares of Wells Fargo common stock or

combination thereof

Table 13 Contractual Obligations

in millions Notes to Less than 1-3 3-5 More than Indeterminate Total

Financial year years years years maturity
ii

Statements

Contractual payments by period

Deposits 12 $201250 27084 $19928 3213 $529927 781402

Long-term debt 714 53893 81063 38850 93352 267158

Dperating leases 1408 3170 1723 3995 10296

Unrecognized tax obligations 21 2311 2952 5263

Purchase obligations .5iQ 878 192 41 1621

Total contractual obligations $259372 $1 1215 560.693 $100601 $532879 $1065740

111 Includes interest-bearing and noninteress-bearing checking and market rate and other savings accounts

121 Includes obligations under capital leases of $103 million

131 Represents agreements to purchase goods or services
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Transactions with Related Parties

FAS 57 Related Party Disclosures requires disclosure of mate

rial related party transactions other than compensation

arrangements expense allowances and other similar items in

Risk Management

the ordinary course of business We had no related party

transactions required to be reported under FAS 57 for the

years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Credit Risk Management Process

Our credit risk management process provides for decentral

ized management and accountability by our lines of business

Our overall credit process includes comprehensive credit

policies judgmental or statistical credit underwriting fre

quent and detailed risk measurement and modeling exten

sive credit training programs and continual loan review and

audit process In addition regulatory examiners review and

perform detailed tests of our credit underwriting loan admin

istration and allowance processes We continually evaluate

and modify our credit policies to address unacceptable levels

of risk as they are identified

Managing credit risk is company-wide process We have

credit policies for all banking and nonbanking operations

incurring credit risk with customers or counterparties that

provide prudent approach to credit risk management We

use detailed tracking and analysis to measure credit perfor

mance and exception rates and we routinely review and mod

ify
credit policies as appropriate We have corporate data

integrity standards to ensure accurate and complete credit

performance reporting for the consolidated company We

strive to identify problem loans early and have dedicated

specialized collection and work-out units

The Chief Credit and Risk Officer provides company-wide

credit oversight Each business unit with direct credit risks

has senior credit officer who has the primary responsibility

for managing its own credit risk The Chief Credit and Risk

Officer delegates authority limits and other requirements to

the business units These delegations are routinely reviewed

and amended if there are significant changes in personnel

credit performance or business requirements The Chief

Credit and Risk Officer is member of the Companys

Management Committee and reports to the Chief Executive

Officer The Chief Credit and Risk Officer provides quarterly

credit review to the Credit Committee of the Board of

Directors and meets with them periodically

Our business units and the office of the Chief Credit and

Risk Officer periodically review all credit risk portfolios to

ensure that the risk identification processes are functioning

properly and that credit standards are followed Business

units conduct quality assurance reviews to ensure that loans

meet portfolio or investor credit standards Our loan examin

ers in risk asset review and internal audit independently

review portfolios with credit risk monitor performance sam

ple credits review and test adherence to credit policy and

recommend/require corrective actions as necessary

Our primary business focus on middle-market commer

cial commercial real estate residential real estate auto cred

it card and small consumer lending results in portfolio diver

sification We assess loan portfolios for geographic industry

or other concentrations and use mitigation strategies which

may include loan sales syndications or third party insurance

to minimize these concentrations as we deem appropriate

In our commercial loan commercial real estate loan and

lease financing portfolios larger or more complex loans are

individually underwritten and judgmentally risk rated They

are periodically monitored and prompt corrective actions are

taken on deteriorating loans Smaller more homogeneous

commercial small business loans are approved and moni

tored using statistical techniques

Retail loans are typically underwritten with statistical

decision-making tools and are managed throughout their life

cycle on portfolio basis The Chief Credit and Risk Officer

establishes corporate standards for model development and

validation to ensure sound credit decisions and regulatory

compliance and approves new model implementation and

periodic validation

Residential real estate mortgages are one of our core prod

ucts We offer broad spectrum of first mortgage and junior

lien loans that we consider mostly prime or near prime These

loans are almost entirely secured by primary residence for

the purpose of purchase money refinance debt consolidation

or home improvements We now hold option adjustable rate

mortgages option ARMs in the Pick-a-Pay portfolio

acquired from Wachovia This portfolio will be managed as

liquidating portfolio See page 61 of this Report for additional

information on the Pick-a-Pay portfolio It has not been our

practice nor do we intend to originate negative amortizing

option ARMs or variable-rate mortgage products with fixed

payment amounts We have manageable ARM reset risk

across our Wells Fargo originated and owned mortgage loan

portfolios

We originate mortgage loans through variety of sources

including our retail sales force and licensed real estate bro

kers We apply consistent credit policies borrower documen

tation standards Federal Oeposit Insurance Corporation

Improvement Act of 1991 FDICIA compliant appraisal

requirements and sound underwriting regardless of applica

tion source We perform quality control reviews for third

party originated loans and actively manage or terminate

sources that do not meet our credit standards For example

during 2007 we stopped originating first and junior lien resi
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dential mortgages where credit performance had deteriorated

beyond our expectations specifically high combined loan-to-

value home equity loans sourced through third party chan

nels not behind Wells Fargo first mortgage

We believe our underwriting process is well controlled

and appropriate for the needs of our customers as well as

investors who purchase the loans or securities collateralized

by the loans We only approve applications and make loans if

we believe the customer has the ability to repay the loan or

line of credit according to all its terms We have significantly

tightened our bank-selected reduced documentation require

ments as precautionary measure and substantially reduced

third party originations due to the negative loss trends expe

rienced in these channels Appraisals or automated valuation

models are used to support property values

In the mortgage industry it has been common for consumers

lenders and servicers to purchase mortgage insurance which

can enhance the credit quality of the loan for investors and

serves generally to expand the market for home ownership

In our servicing portfolio certain of the loans we service

carry mortgage insurance based largely on the requirements

of investors who bear the ultimate credit risk Within our

$1.8 trillion owned residential servicing portfolio at December 31

2008 we service approximately $128 billion of loans that

carry approximately $31 billion of mortgage insurance cover

age purchased from group of mortgage insurance compa
nies that are rated AA or higher by one or more of the major

rating agencies Should any of these companies experience

downgrade by one or more of the rating agencies investors

may be exposed to higher level of credit risk In this event

as servicer we would work with the investors to determine if

it is necessary to obtain replacement coverage with another

insurer Our mortgage servicing portfolio consists of over

85% prime loans and we continue to be among the highest

rated loan servicers for residential real estate mortgage loans

based on various servicing criteria The foreclosure rate in

our mortgage servicing portfolio was 1.4% at year-end 2008

Similarly for certain loans that we held for investment or

for sale at December 31 2008 we obtained approximately

$3 billion of mortgage insurance coverage In the event

mortgage insurer is unable to meet its obligations on defaulted

loans in accordance with the insurance contract we might be

exposed to higher credit losses if replacement coverage on

those loans cannot be obtained However approximately

one-fourth of the coverage related to the debt consolidation

nonprime real estate 1-4 family mortgage loans held by

Wells Fargo Financial which have had low level of credit

losses 0.99% loss rate in 2008 for the entire debt consolidation

portfolio The remaining coverage primarily related to prime

real estate 1-4 family mortgage loans primarily high quality

ARMs for our retail and wealth management customers

which also have had low loss rates

Each business unit regularly completes asset quality fore

casts to quantify its intermediate-term outlook for loan losses

and recoveries nonperforming loans and market trends To

make sure our overall loss estimates and the allowance for

credit losses are adequate we conduct periodic stress tests

This includes portfolio loss simulation model that simulates

range of possible losses for various sub-portfolios assuming

various trends in loan quality stemming from economic con

ditions or borrower performance

We routinely review and evaluate risks that are not bor

rower specific but that may influence the behavior of partic

ular credit group of credits or entire sub-portfolios We also

assess risk for particular industries geographic locations

such as states or Metropolitan Statistical Areas MSAs and

specific macroeconomic trends

Loan Portfolio Concentrations

Loan concentrations may exist when there are borrowers engaged

in similar activities or types of loans extended to diverse group

of borrowers that could cause those borrowers or portfolios to be

similarly impacted by economic or other conditions

Less than 1%

December 12008

Total real of

estate 1-4 total

family loans

mortgage

Ill Consists of 46 states no state had loans in excess of $704 million

121 Consists of 40 states no state had loans in excess of $8127 million Includes

$7880 million in GNMA early pool buyouts

REAL ESTATE 1-4 FAMILY FIRST MORTGAGE LOANS As part of the

Wachovia acquisition we have acquired residential first and

home equity loans that are very similar to the Wells Fargo

originated portfolio for these loan types Additionally we

acquired the Pick-a-Pay option ARM first mortgage portfolio

The nature of this product creates an potential opportunity

for negative amortization As part of our purchase accounting

activities the option ARM loans with the highest probability

of default were marked down to fair value The concentra

tions of real estate 1-4 family mortgage loans by state are

Table 14 Real Estste 1-4 Family Mortgage Loans by State

Real estate Real estate

1-4family 1-4family

first junior lien

mortgage mortgage

in millions

SOP 03-3 loans

California

Florida

New Jersey

Arizona

Other

26196

4012

1175

971

6.860

300

142

54

15

217

26496

4154

1229

g86

7077

Total SOP

03-3 loans 39214 728 3gg42

All other loans

California

Florida

New Jersey

Virginia

NewYork

Pennsylvania

North Carolina

Texas

Georgia

Arizona

Other 121

59921

22234

10470

6864

7607

7094

7365

7688

5528

5287

68622

32209

9334

6810

5171

4142

4335

3978

1g44

382g

3582

34102

3%

11

13

37

41%

92130

31568

17280

12035

11749

11429

11343

9632

g357

8869

102724

Total all

other loans 208.680

Total $2478g4

109.436 318.116

$110164 $358058
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presented in the following table Our real estate 1-4 family

mortgage loans to borrowers in the state of California repre

sented approximately 14% of total loans at December 31 2008

compared with 13% at the end of 2007 Of this amount 3% of

total loans were credit-impaired loans acquired from Wachovia

These loans are mostly within the larger metropolitan areas

in California with no single area consisting of more than 2%

of total loans Changes in real estate values and underlying

economic or market conditions for these areas are monitored

continuously within the credit risk management process

Beginning in 2007 the residential real estate markets experi

enced significant declines in property values and several mar

kets in California specifically the Central Valley and several

Southern California MSAs experienced more severe declines

lable 15 Home Equity Portfolios

Some of our real estate 1-4 family mortgage loans includ

ing first mortgage and home equity products include an

interest-only feature as part of the loan terms At December 31

2008 these loans were approximately 11% of total loans com

pared with 20% at the end of 2007 Most of these loans are

considered to be prime or near prime We have manageable

ARM reset risk across our Wells Fargo originated and owned

mortgage loan portfolios

Total liquidating and core portfolios

SOP 03-3 portfolio

Total home equity portfolios

Outstanding

balances

December 31

2008 2007

128668 _44230

821 ______

$129489 $84230

of loans

two payments

or more past due

December 31

2008 2007

2.48 1.66 2.10 1.42

Consists of real estate 1-4 family junior
lien mortgages and lines of credit secured by real estate from all groups including the National Home Equity Group Wachovia

Wells Fargo Financial and Wealth Management
12 Loss rate for 2007 data is based on the annualized loss rate for month of December 2007

Loss rates for the core portfolio in the table above reflect 2008 results for Wachovia not included in the Wells
Fargo reported results and Wells Fargo For the Wells Fargo

core portfolio on stand-alone basisoutstanding balances and related loss rates were $29399 million 2.9O% for California S2677 million 5.04/L for Florida $1925 million

.33/r for New Jersey $1827 million 1114% for Virginia $1073 million 0.92% for Pennsylvania $38934 million 1.34% for all other states and $75835 million 2.05%
in total at December 312008

Consists of $728 million real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgages and $93 million of real estate 1-4 family first mortgages

in millions

Liquidating portfolio

California

Florida

Arizona

Texas

Minnesota

Other

Total

Core portfolio

California

Florida

New Jersey

Virginia

Pennsylvania

Other

Total

Loss rate

December 31

2008 2007

4008 4387 6.69% 2.94% 9.26% 7.34%

513 582 8.41 4.98 11.24 7.08

244 274 7.40 2.67 8.58 5.84

191 221 1.27 0.83 1.56 0.78

127 141 3.79 3.18 5.74 4.09

6296 3.28 2.00 3.40 2.94

10309 11901 4.93 2.50 6.18 4.80

31544 25991 2.95 1.63 2.93 1.27

11781 2614 3.36 2.92 2.79 2.57

7888 1795 1.41 1.63 0.66 0.42

5688 1780 1.50 1.14 1.08 0.66

5043 1002 1.10 1.17 0.38 0.32

56415 39J4 1.97 1.38 1.14 0.52

L1.2 ...7.329 2.27 1.52 1.70 0.86
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The deterioration in specific segments of the Home Equity

portfolios required targeted approach to managing these

assets liquidating portfolio consisting of home equity

loans generated through the wholesale channel not behind

Wells Fargo first mortgage and home equity loans acquired

through correspondents was identified While the $10.3 billion

of loans in this liquidating portfolio represented about 1% of

total loans outstanding at December 31 2008 these loans

represented some of the highest risk in the $129.5 billion

Home Equity portfolios with loss rate of 6.18% compared

with 1.70% for the core portfolio The loans in the liquidating

portfolio are largely concentrated in geographic markets that

have experienced the most abrupt and steepest declines

in housing prices The core portfolio was $118.4 billion at

December 31 2008 of which 98% was originated through

the retail channel and approximately 15% of the outstanding

balance was in first lien position Table 15 includes the

credit attributes of these two portfolios

PICK-A-PAY PORTFOLIO Our Pick-a-Pay loan portfolio which

we acquired in the Wachovia merger had an outstanding bal

ance of $119.6 billion and carrying value of $95.3 billion at

December 31 2008 The carrying value is net of $22.2 billion

of purchase accounting net write-downs to reflect SOP 03-3

loans at fair value and $249 million increase to reflect all

other loans at market rate of interest Pick-a-Pay loans are

home mortgages on which the customer has the option each

month to select from among four payment options

minimum payment as described below an interest-only

payment fully amortizing is-year payment or fully

amortizing 30-year payment Approximately 80% of the Pick-

a-Pay portfolio has payment options calculated using monthly

adjustable interest rate the rest of the portfolio is fixed rate

Approximately 85% of the December 31 2008 Pick-a-Pay

loan portfolio was originated under Wachovias Quick Qualifier

program where the level of documentation obtained from

prospective customer relative to income and assets was

determined based in part on data provided by the customer

in their loan application The remaining 15% was originated

with full documentation verified assets and verified income
The minimum monthly payment for substantially all of

our Pick-a-Pay loans is reset annually The new minimum

monthly payment amount generally cannot exceed the prior

years minimum payment amount by more than 7.5% The

minimum payment may not be sufficient to pay the monthly

interest due and in those situations loan on which the cus

tomer has made minimum payment is subject to negative

amortization where unpaid interest is added to the principal

balance of the loan The amount of interest that has been

added to loan balance is referred to as deferred interest

Our Pick-a-Pay customers have been fairly constant in their

utilization of the minimum payment option Of our Pick-a-

Pay customers approximately 66% at December 31 2008

based on number of loans had elected this option At

December 31 2008 approximately 51% of Pick-a-Pay cus

tomers had elected the minimum payment option in each

of the past six months

Deferral of interest on Pick-a-Pay loan may continue as

long as the loan balance remains below pre-defined princi

pal cap which is based on the percentage that the current

loan balance represents to the original loan balance Loans

with an original loan-to-value LTV ratio equal to or below

85% have cap of 125% of the original loan balance and these

loans represent substantially all of the Pick-a-Pay portfolio

Loans with an original LTV ratio above 85% have cap of

110% of the original loan balance Pick-a-Pay loans on which

there is deferred interest balance re-amortize the monthly

payment amount is reset or recast on the earlier of the

date when the loan balance reaches its principal cap or the

10-year anniversary of the loan After recast the customers

new payment terms are reset to the amount necessary to

repay the balance over the remainder of the original loan

term Based on assumptions of flat rate environment if all

eligible customers elect the minimum payment option 100%

of the time and no balances prepay we would expect the

following balance of loans to recast based on reaching the cap

$5 million in 2009 $15 million in 2010 $16 million in 2011 and

$45 million in 2012 In addition we would expect the following

balance of ARM loans having payment change based on the

contractual terms of the loan to recast $27 million in 2009

$59 million in 2010 $92 million in 2011 and $163 million in

2012

Included in the Pick-a-Pay portfolio are loans accounted

for under SOP 03-3 with total outstanding balance of

$61.9 billion and carrying value of $37.6 billion Loans that

we acquired from Wachovia with evidence of credit quality

deterioration since origination and for which it was probable

at the date of the Wachovia acquisition that we will be unable

to collect all contractually required payments are accounted

for under SOP 03-3 which requires that acquired credit-

impaired loans be recorded at fair value and prohibits carry

ing over of the related allowance in the initial accounting

In stressed housing markets with declining home prices

and increasing delinquencies the LTV ratio is key metric

in predicting future loan performance including charge-offs

Because SOP 03-3 loans are carried at fair value the LIV ratio

is not necessarily predictor of future loan performance For

informational purposes we have also included the ratio of the

carrying amount to the current value of the loans

To maximizereturn and allow flexibility for customers

to avoid foreclosure we have in place several loss mitigation

strategies for our Pick-a-Pay loan portfolio We contact

customers who are experiencing difficulty and may in certain

cases modify the terms of loan based on customers

documented income and other circumstances
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We also have in place proactive steps to work with

customers to refinance or restructure their Pick-a-Pay

loans into other loan products For customers at-risk we

will offer combinations of term extensions of up to 40 years

interest rate reductions charge no interest on portion

of the principal for some period of time and in geographies

with substantial property value declines we will even use

permanent principal reductions

Table 16 Pick-a-Pay Portfolio

We expect to continually reassess our loss mitigation

strategies and may adopt additional strategies in the future

To the extent that these strategies involve making an economic

concession to customer experiencing financial difficulty

they will be accounted for and reported as TDRs

in millions

Outstanding Current

balance ratio

SOP 03-3 loans

Carrying Ratio of

amount carrying

amount

to current

value

December31 2008

All other loans

Outstanding Current

balance LTV ratio

California $42650 133% $25472 85% $28107 86%

Florida 5992 19 3439 76 6099 89

New Jersey 1809 94 1246 60 3545 74

Texas 562 72 385 49 2231 61

Arizona 1552 133 895 85 1449 95

Other states 9381 92 178 61 16269 75

Total Pick-a-Pay loans $61946 $37615 $57700

11 Outstanding balances exclude purchase accounting nonaccretable difference of $24.3 billion include accretable yield

Current LTV ratio is based on collateral values and is updated quarterly by an independent vendor ratio includes outstanding balance on equity lines of credit

included in Table 15 that share common collateral and are junior to the above Pick-a-Pay loans
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WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL Wells Fsrgo Financial originates real COMMERCIAL AND COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE For purposes of

estate secured debt consolidation loans and both prime and

non-prime auto secured loans unsecured loans and credit cards

Wells Fargo Financial had $29.1 billion in real estate

secured loans as of December 31 2008 Of this portfolio

$1.8 billion is considered prime based on secondary market

standards and has been priced to the customer accordingly

The remaining portfolio is non-prime but has been originated

with standards that effectively mitigate credit risk It has

been originated through our retail channel with documented

income LTV limits based on credit quality and property

characteristics and risk-based pricing In addition the loans

were originated without teaser rates interest-only or negative

amortization features Credit losses in the portfolio have

increased in the current economic environment compared

with historical levels but performance remained similar to

prime portfolios in the industry with overall credit losses

in 2008 of 1.08% on the entire portfolio Of the portfolio

$9.7 billion was originated with customer FICO scores below

620 but these loans have further restrictions on LTV and

debt-to-income ratios to limit the credit risk

Wells Fargo Financial also had $23.6 billion in auto

secured loans and leases as of December 31 2008 of which

$6.3 billion was originated with customer FICO scores below

620 Net charge-offs in this portfolio for 2008 were 4.05% for

FICO scores of 620 and above and 6.27% for FICO scores

below 620 These loans were priced based on relative risk Of

this portfolio $18.2 billion represented loans and leases origi

nated through its indirect auto business which Wells Fargo

Financial ceased originating near the end of 2008

Wells Fargo Financial had $8.4 billion in unsecured loans

and credit card receivables as of December 31 2008 of which

$1.3 billion was originated with customer FICO scores below

620 Net charge offs in this portfolio for 2008 were 9.22% for

FICO scores of 620 and above and 12.82% for FICO scores

below 620 These receivables were priced based on relative

risk Wells Fargo Financial has been actively tightening cred

it policies and managing credit lines to reduce exposure

given current economic conditions

portfolio risk management we aggregate commercial loans

and lease financing according to market segmentation and

standard industry codes Commercial loans and lease financ

ing are presented by industry in Table 17 These groupings

contain highly diverse mix of customer relationships

throughout our target markets Loan types and product

offerings are carefully underwritten and monitored Credit

policies incorporate specific industry risks

Total all other loans

Total

Less than 1%
No other single category had loans in esress of $170 million and $632g million

for SOP 03-3 and all other loans respertively

Table 17 Commercial Loans and Lease Financing by Industry

in millions December 312008

Commercial of

loans and lease total

financing loans

SOP 03-3 loans

Real estate investment trust

Investors

Media

Residential construction

Leisure

Other

704

436

428

360

294

2358

Total SOP 03-3 loans 4.580

All other loans

Financial institutions

Oil and gas

Cyclical retailers

Utilities

Industrial equipment

Food and beverage

Healthcare

Business services

Public administration

Hotel/restaurant

Other

12275

11828

11433

10821

9566

9483

9137

8614

7176

6339

117046

213718

$218298

14

24

25
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Other real estate mortgages and real estate construction

loans that are diversified in terms of both the state where the

property is located and by the type of property securing the loans

are presented in Table 18 The composition of these portfolios

was stable throughout 2008 and the distribution is consistent

with our target markets and focus on customer relationships

Table 18 Commercial Real Estate Loans by State and Property Type

Approximately $63.9 billion of other real estate and con

struction loans are loans to owner-occupants where more

than 50% of the property is used in the conduct of their busi

ness Of this amount 11% represented SOP 03-3 loans

in millions

By state

December 312008

Other real Real Total of

estate estate commercial total

mortgage construction real estate loans

SOP 03-3 loans

Florida 1355 1159 2514

California 1589 233 1822

Georgia 515 545 1060

North Carolina 459 586 1045

Virginia
549 334 883

Other 3295 1646

Total SOP 03-3 loans 21 7762 4503 12.265

All other loans

California 20068 6066 26134

Florida 11345 2752 14097

Texas 6323 2606 8929

North Carolina 5996 1620 7616

Georgia 4797 974 5771

Virginia 3559 1634 5193

Arizona 3060 1431 4491

New Jersey 3430 824 4254

New York 2652 1390 4042

Pennsylvania 3005 487 3492

Other 3L111 10389 ..4iQQ

Total all other loans 141 95346 30173 125519 15

Total $103.1 08 $34676 $137784 16%

By property type

SOP 03-3 loans

Apartments 1317 1292 2609 5%

Office buildings 2022 221 2243

1-4 family land 851 1361 2212

1-4 family structure 257 1040 1297

Land unimproved 732 247 979

Other 2583 ..342

Total SOP 03-3 loans 4S93 2J5

All other loans

Office buildings 25246 3159 28405

Agricultural 16284 1889 18173

Real estate other 14247 1478 5725

Retail 11659 1167 12826

Apartments 7178 4471 11649

Industrial 3359 6591 9950

Land unimproved 5362 2683 8045

Shopping center 4802 1314 6116

1-4 family structure 1383 3491 4874

Hotel/motel 806 3585 4391

Other 5020 345

Total all other loans 95346 125519

Total $103108 $34676 $137784 16%

Less than 1%

Consists of 45 states no state had loans in excess of $747 million

Includes owner-occupied real estate and construction loans of $7.0 billion

Consists of 40 states no state had loans in excess of $3266 million

41 Includes owner-occupied real estate and construction loans of $56.9 billion
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NONACCRUAL LOANS AND OTHER ASSETS Table 19 shows the

five-year trend for nonaccrual loans and other assets We

generally place loans on nonaccrual status when

the full and timely collection of interest or principal

becomes uncertain

they are 90 days 120 days with respect to real estate 1-4

family first and junior lien mortgages and auto loans past

due for interest or principal unless both well-secured and

in the process of collection or

part of the principal balance has been charged ofL

Table 19 Nonaccrual Loans and Other Assets

The combined companys nonaccrual loans include

$97 million from Wachovia related largely to lease financing

Prior to the application of SOP 03-3 Wachovias nonaccrual

loans totaled $20.1 billion including $14.0 billion of consumer

loans $11.6 billion of Pick-a-Pay and $6.1 billion of commer

cial and commercial real estate loans

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to

Financial Statements describes our accounting policy for

nonaccrual loans

Nonaccrual loans increased $4.1 billion to $6.8 billion at

December 31 2008 from $2.7 billion year ago reflecting the

deterioration in economic conditions primarily in portfolios

affected by the residential real estate environment and the

associated impact on the consumer small portion of the

increase in nonaccrual loans from
year ago continues to be

related to our active loss mitigation strategies at Home

Equity Home Mortgage and Wells Fargo Financial as we are

aggressively working with customers to keep them in their

homes or find alternative solutions to their financial chal

lenges Home builders mortgage service providers contrac

tors suppliers and others in the residential real estate-related

segments continued to be stressed during this credit cycle

Additionally as consumers cut back on discretionary spend

ing we are seeing some of the commercial loan portfolios

dependent on their spending weaken The $2.1 billion

increase in nonaccrual consumer loans from year ago was

primarily due to an increase of $742 million in Wells Fargo

Financial real estate and an increase of $424 million in Home

Mortgage Nonaccrual real estate 1-4 family loans included

approximately $3.4 billion of loans at December 31 2008 that

have been modified Our policy requires six consecutive

months of payments on modified loans before they are

returned to accrual status Other foreclosed assets increased

$877 million including $885 million acquired from

Wachovia to $1.5 billion at December 31 2008 Until condi

tions improve in the residential real estate and liquidity mar

kets we will continue to hold more nonperforming assets on

our balance sheet as it is currently the most economic option

available Increases in commercial nonperforming assets

were also primarily direct result of the conditions in the res

idential real estate markets and general consumer economy

fleremher

Foreign

in millions

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Nonaccrual loans

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial $1253 432 331 286 345

Other real estate mortgage 594 128 105 165 229

Real estate construction 989 293 78 31 57

Lease financing

Total commercial and commercial real estate 2928 898 543 527 699
Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 2648 1272 688 471 386

Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage 894 280 212 144 92

Other revolving credit and installment 273 184 180 171 160

Total consumer 3815 1736 1080 786 638

57 45 43 25 21

Total nonaccrual loans 6800 2679 1666 1338 1358
As percentage of total loans 0.79% 0.70% 0.52% 0.43% 0.47%

Foreclosed assets

GNMA loans 667 535 322

Other 1526 649 423 191 212

Real estate and other nonaccrual investments 16

Total nonaccrual loans and other assets $9â99 $.3845 $24.Th $J.5.3J

As percentage of total loans 1.01% 0.76% 0.49% 035%

111 The allowance for credit losses does not include any amounts related to loans acquired from Wachovia that are accounted for under SOP 03-3 IWachovias allowance

related to these loans was $12.0 billionl and nonaccrual loans esclude $20.0 billion of SOP 03-3 loans that were previously reflected as nonaccrual by Wachovia

21 Includes nonaccrual mortgages held for sale

131 Includes impaired loans of $3640 million $469 million $230 million $igo million and $30 million at December 312008200720062005 and 2004 respectively.See

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note Loans and Allowance for Credit Lossesi to Financial Statements for further discussion of impaired loans

41 Due to change in regulatory reporting requirements effective January 12006 foreclosed real estate securing GNMA loans has been classified as nonperforming Both

principal and interest for GNMA loans secured by the foreclosed real estate are collectible because the GNMA loans are insured by the FHA or guaranteed by the

Department of Veterans Affairs

SI Includes real estate investments contingent interest loans accounted for as investmentsl that would be classified as nonaccrual if these assets were recorded as loans
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We expect that the amount of nonaccrual loans will

change due to portfolio growth economic growth portfolio

seasoning routine problem loan recognition and resolution

through collections sales or charge-offs See Financial

Review Allowance for Credit Losses for additional discus

sion The performance of any one loan can be affected by

external factors such as economic or market conditions or

factors affecting particular borrower

If interest due on the book balances of all nonaccrual

loans including loans that were but are no longer on nonac

crual at year end had been accrued under the original terms

approximately $310 million of interest would have been

recorded in 2008 compared with payments of $33 million

recorded as interest income

At year-end 2008 substantially all of our foreclosed assets

of $2.2 billion have been in the portfolio one year or less

including $885 million acquired from Wachovia

LOANS 90 DAYS OR MORE PAST DUE AND STILL ACCRUING

Loans included in this category are 90 days or more past due

as to interest or principal and still accruing because they are

well-secured and in the process
of collection or real

estate 1-4 family first mortgage loans or consumer loans

exempt under regulatory rules from being classified as

nonaccrual Loans acquired from Wachovia that are subject

to Sop 03-3 are excluded from the disclosure of loans 90 days

or more past due and still accruing interest even though sub

stantially all of them are 90 days or more contractually past

due and they are considered to be accruing because the inter

est income on these loans relates to the establishment of an

accretable yield in purchase accounting under the SOP and

not to contractual interest payments

Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing totaled

$12645 million Wells Fargo and Wachovia combined

$6393 million $5073 million $3606 million and $2578 mil

lion at December 31 2008 2007 2006 2005 and 2004 respec

tively The total included $8184 million $4834 million

$3913 million $2923 million and $1820 million for the same

periods respectively in advances pursuant to our servicing

agreements to GNMA mortgage pools and similar loans

whose repayments are insured by the FHA or guaranteed by

the Department of Veterans Affairs Table 20 reflects loans

90 days or more past due and still accruing excluding the

insured/guaranteed GNMA advances

Table 20 Loans 90 Days or More Past Due and Still Accruing

Excluding Insured/Guaranteed GNMA and Similar Loans

December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

in millions

Commercial and

commercial real estate

Commercial 18 26

Other real estate

mortgage

Real estate construction

Total commercial

and commercial

real estate 538 66 21 40 38

Consumer

Real estate

1-4 family

first mortgage 1565 286 154 103 148

Real estate

1-4 family junior

lien mortgage 590 201 63 50 40

Credit card 687 402 262 159 150

Other revolving credit

and installment JAQ4J 552 616 290 306

Total consumer 3889 1441 1095 602 644

Foreign .il4 44 il
Total $4Z45.1 $152 5L149 5693 $238

Ill Includes mortgage loans held for sale go days or more past
due and still accruing

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES The allowance for credit loss

es which consists of the allowance for loan losses and the

reserve for unfunded credit commitments ts managements

estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the

balance sheet date We assume that our allowance for credit

losses aa percentage of charge-offs and nonaccrual loans

will change at different points in time based on credit perfor

mance loan mix and collateral values Any loan with past due

principal or interest that is not both well-secured and in the

process of collection generally is charged off to the extent

that it exceeds the fair value of any related collateral based

on loan category after defined period of time Also loan is

charged off when classified as loss by either internal loan

examiners or regulatory examiners The detail of the changes

in the allowance for credit losses including charge-offs and

recoveries by loan category is in Note Loans and

Allowance for Credit Losses to Financial Statements

At December 31 2008 the allowance for loan losses

totaled $21.0 billion Wells Fargo and Wachovia 2.43% of

total loans compared with $5.3 billion Wells Fargo only

1.39% at December 31 2007 The allowance for credit losses

was $21.7 billion 2.51% of total loans at December 31 2008

and $5.52 billion 1.44% at December 31 2007 The allowance

for loan losses and the allowance for credit losses do not include

any amounts related to loans acquired from Wachovia that

are accounted for under SOP 03-3 Wachovias allowance

related to these loans was $12.0 billion and loans acquired

from Wachovia are included in total loans net of related

purchase accounting net write-downs These ratios fluctuate

from period to period and the increase in the ratios of the

allowance for loan losses and the allowance for credit losses to

total loans in 2008 was primarily due to the $8.1 billion credit

reserve build in 2008 that included $3.9 billion to conform

218 32 15

88

232

10

24

13
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estimated loss emergence ceverage periods to the most

conservative of each company within FFIEC guidelines as

described below The reserve for unfunded credit commit

ments was $698 million at December 31 2008 and $211 million

at December 31 2007

The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to total nonac

crual loans was 319% and 206% at December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively The increase in this ratio reflects the addi

tion of $9.3 billion including $1.5 billion of conforming and

purchase accounting adjustments of Wachovia allowance for

credit losses but excludes $20.0 billion of SOP 03-3 loans that

were previously reflected as nonaccrual by Wachovia This

ratio may fluctuate significantly from period to period due to

such factors as the mix of loan types in the portfolio borrow

er credit strength and the value and marketability of collater

al Over half of nonaccrual loans were home mortgages auto

and other consumer loans at December 31 2008 Nonaccrual

loans are generally written down to fair value less cost to sell

at the time they are placed on nonaccrual and accounted for

on cost recovery basis

The ratio of the allowance for loan losses to annual net

charge-offs was 268% 150% and 175% at December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively The increase in this ratio pri

marily relates to the addition of $8.7 billion including $1.2

billion of conforming adjustments from Wachovia while net

charge-offs do not include any amounts from Wachovia as

the acquisition closed at year end This ratio may fluctuate

significantly from period to period due to many factors

including general economic conditions customer credit

strength and the marketability of collateral While we consid

er the ratio of the allowance for loan losses to annual net

charge-offs such trends are not determinative in and of

themselves as we use several analytical tools in determining

the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses The allowance

for loan losses reflects managements estimate of credit losses

inherent in the loan portfolio based on loss emergence peri

ods of the respective loans underlying economic and market

conditions among other factors See Critical Accounting

Policies Allowance for Credit Losses for additional infor

mation The allowance for loan losses at December 31 2008

also includes the allowance acquired from the Wachovia

acquisition while 2008 net charge-offs do not include activity

related to Wachovia

The provision for credit losses totaled $16.0 billion in 2008

$4.9 billion in 2007 and $2.2 billion in 2006 In 2008 the pro

vision included credit reserve build of $8.1 billion in excess

of net charge-offs which included $3.9 billion to conform loss

emergence coverage periods to the most conservative of each

company within FFIEC guidelines Of the $3.9 billion $2.7 bil

lion related to Wells Fargo consumer loans to extend the loss

emergence period to 12 months of estimated incurred losses

for all consumer portfolios period which is FFIEC compliant

and which best fits the projected loss emergence period of the

combined companys consumer loan portfolio and is consis

tent with Wells Fargo consumer loan portfolio loss emer

gence trends reflecting our increased loss mitigation efforts

The remaining $1.2 billion conforming adjustment was

related to an increase in the allowance for loan losses for

legacy Wachovia commercial and Pick-a-Pay portfolios to

align with the respective Wells Fargo methodology The

remainder of the reserve build was attributable to higher pro

jected loss rates across the majority of the consumer credit

businesses and some credit deterioration and growth in the

wholesale portfolios In 2007 the provision included $1.4 bil

lion in excess of net charge-offs which was our estimate of

the increase in incurred losses in our loan portfolio at year-

end 2007 primarily related to the Home Equity portfolio

Net charge-offs in 2008 were 1.97% of average total loans

compared with 1.03% in 2007 and 0.73% in 2006 Home Equity

net charge-offs totaled $2.2 billion 2.59% of average Home

Equity loans in 2008 $1.6 billion increase from $595 mil

lion 0.73% in 2007 The increase was primarily due to loans

in geographic markets that have experienced the most abrupt

and steepest declines in housing prices coupled with deteri

orating economic environment impacting our customers

Since our loss experience through third party channels pro

duced unexpectedly high results we segregated these loans

into liquidating portfolio As previously disclosed while the

$10.3 billion of loans in this liquidating portfolio represented

about 1% of total loans outstanding at December 31 2008

these loans represent some of the highest risk in our

$129.5 billion Home Equity portfolios The loans in the liqui

dating portfolio were primarily sourced through wholesale

brokers and correspondents Our real estate 1-4 family first

mortgage portfolio began to experience credit deterioration

in 2008 given the continued decline in housing prices and the

economic environment with net charge-offs of $503 million

0.67% of average loans for 2008 up from $87 million 0.14%

for 2007

Although credit quality in Wells Fargo Financials real

estate-secured lending business has deteriorated we have not

experienced the level of credit degradation that many non-

prime lenders have because of our disciplined underwriting

practices Wells Fargo Financial has continued its long-stand

ing practice not to use brokers or correspondents in its U.S

debt consolidation business

Auto portfolio net charge-offs for 2008 were $1.23 billion

4.50% of average auto loans compared with $1.02 billion

3.45% in 2007 While we have continued to reduce the size

of this portfolio and limited additional growth the economic

environment has adversely affected portfolio results We
have remained focused on our loss mitigation strategies

however credit performance has deteriorated as result of

increased unemployment and depressed used car values

resulting in higher than expected losses for the year

Consumer credit card net charge-offs for 2008 were

$1.42 billion 7.22% of average credit card loans compared

with $712 million 4.49% in 2007 The increase in credit card

net charge-offs was due to an overall weakening in the economy

and its impact to our customers

Credit performance in the commercial and commercial real

estate portfolio showed signs of deterioration given the current

economic environment with net charge-offs of $1.79 billion
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1.07% of average loans compared with $536 million 0.40%

in 2007 major portion of these charge-offs came from loans

originated through our Business Direct channel Business

Direct consists primarily of unsecured lines of credit to small

firms and sole proprietors that tend to perform in manner

similar to credit cards Similarly we have not made market in

subprime securities Leveraged-buyout-related outstandings

are diversified by business and borrower and totaled less

than 4% of total loans

The following table presents the allocation of the

allowance for credit losses by type of loans The $16.2 billion

increase in the allowance for credit losses from year-end 2007

to year-end 2008 included an $8.1 billion credit reserve build

including $3.9 billion to conform credit reserve practices of

Wells Fargo and Wachovia and the addition of $7.8 billion

Table 21 Allocation of the Allowance for Credit Losses ACL

from Wachovia The $1.55 billion increase in the allowance

for credit losses from year-end 2006 to year-end 2007 was

due to actions taken in 2007 primarily related to the Home

Equity portfolio and approximately $100 million acquired

from bank acquisitions Changes in the allowance reflect

changes in statistically derived loss estimates historical loss

experience current trends in borrower risk and/or general

economic activity on portfolio performance and manage

ments estimate for imprecision and uncertainty Effective

December 31 2006 the entire allowance was assigned to indi

vidual portfolio types to better reflect our view of risk in

these portfolios The allowance for credit losses includes

combination of baseline loss estimates and range of impre

cision or uncertainty specific to each portfolio segment previ

ously categorized as unallocated in prior years

We believe the allowance for credit losses of $21.7 billion

was adequate to cover credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio

including unfunded credit commitments at December 31 2008

The process for determining the adequacy of the allowance

for credit losses is critical to our financial results It requires

difficult subjective and complex judgments as result of the

need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are

uncertain See Financial Review Critical Accounting Policies

Allowance for Credit Losses Therefore we cannot provide

assurance that in any particular period we will not have

sizeable credit losses in relation to the amount reserved

We may need to significantly adjust the allowance for credit

losses considering current factors at the time including eco

nomic or market conditions and ongoing internal and exter

nal examination processes Our process for determining the

adequacy of the allowance for credit losses is discussed in

Financial Review Critical Accounting Policies Allowance

for Credit Losses and Note Loans and Allowance for

Credit Losses to Financial Statements

Asset/Liability and Market Risk Management

Asset/liability management involves the evaluation monitor

ing and management of interest rate risk market risk liquidity

and funding The Corporate Asset/Liability Management

Committee Corporate ALCOwhich oversees these risks

and reports periodically to the Finance Committee of the

Board of Directorsconsists of senior financial and business

executives Each of our principal business groups has its own

asset/liability management committee and process linked to

the Corporate ALCO process

INTEREST RATE RISK Interest rate risk which potentially can

have significant earnings impact is an integral part of being

financial intermediary We are subject to interest rate risk because

assets and liabilities may mature or reprice at different

times for example if assets reprice faster than liabilities

and interest rates are generally falling earnings will

initially decline

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

ACL Loans ACL Loans ACL Loans ACL Loans ACL Loans

as% as% as% as% as%

of total of total of total of total of total

loans loans loans loans loans

December31
in millions

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial

other real estate mortgage

Real estate construction

Lease financing

Total commercial and commercial real estate

Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage
Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage

Credit card

Other revolving credit and installment

Total consumer

Foreign

Total allocated

Unallocated component of allowance

Total

23%

12

41

28

13

11

55

100%

4129

1011

1023

135

6298

4938

4496

2463

3251

15148

265

21711

$21.711

24%

40

ig

20

14

58

100%

$1137

288

156

51

1632

415

1329

834

JAM
3742

144

5518

$5 .5 18

22%

38

17

21

17

60

100%

$1051

225

log

40

1425

186

168

606

JAM
2394

145

3964

9M

20%

35

25

19

15

63

100%

926

253

115

51

1345

229

118

508

1915

149

3409

648

19%

11

35

31

18

11

64

100%

940

298

46

30

1314

150

104

466

889

1609

139

3062

888
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assets and liabilities may reprice at the same time but by

different amounts for example when the general level of

interest rates is falling we may reduce rates paid on

checking and savings deposit accounts by an amount that

is less than the general decline in market interest rates

short-term and long-term market interest rates may

change by different amounts for example the shape of

the yield curve may affect new loan yields and funding

costs differently or

the remaining maturity of various assets or liabilities may
shorten or lengthen as interest rates change for example

if long-term mortgage interest rates decline sharply

mortgage-backed securities held in the securities avail

able-for-sale portfolio may prepay significantly earlier

than anticipated which could reduce portfolio income

Interest rates may also have direct or indirect effect on

loan demand credit losses mortgage origination volume the

fair value of MSRs and other financial instruments the value

of the pension liability and other items affecting earnings

We assess interest rate risk by comparing our most likely

earnings plan with various earnings simulations using many

interest rate scenarios that differ in the direction of interest

rate changes the degree of change over time the speed of

change and the projected shape of the yield curve For exam

ple as of December 31 2008 our most recent simulation indi

cated estimated earnings at risk of less than 1% of our most

likely earnings plan over the next 12 months using scenario

in which the federal funds rate rises to 4% and the 10-year

Constant Maturity Treasury bond yield rises to 6%

Simulation estimates depend on and will change with the

size and mix of our actual and projected balance sheet at the

time of each simulation Due to timing differences between

the quarterly valuation of MSRs and the eventual impact of

interest rates on mortgage banking volumes earnings at risk

in any particular quarter could be higher than the average

earnings at risk over the 12-month simulation period depend

ing on the path of interest rates and on our hedging strate

gies for MSRs See Mortgage Banking Interest Rate and

Market Risk

We use exchange-traded and over-the-counter interest

rate derivatives to hedge our interest rate exposures The

notional or contractual amount credit risk amount and esti

mated net fair value of these derivatives as of December 31

2008 and 2007 are presented in Note 16 Derivatives to

Financial Statements We use derivatives for asset/liability

management in three main ways

to convert major portion of our long-term fixed-rate

debt which we issue to finance the Company from fixed-

rate payments to floating-rate payments by entering into

receive-fixed swaps

to convert the cash flows from selected asset and/or liabil

ity instruments/portfolios from fixed-rate payments to

floating-rate payments or vice versa and

to hedge our mortgage origination pipeline funded mort

gage
loans and MSRs using interest rate swaps swaptions

futures forwards and options

MORTGAGE BANKING INTEREST RATE AND MARKET RISK We

originate fund and service mortgage loans which subjects us

to various risks including credit liquidity and interest rate

risks Based on market conditions and other factors we

reduce unwanted credit and liquidity risks by selling or secu

ritizing some or all of the long-term fixed-rate mortgage

loans and ARMs we originate On the other hand we may

hold originated ARMs and fixed-rate mortgage loans in our

loan portfolio as an investment for our growing base of core

deposits We determine whether the loans will be held for

investment or held for sale at the time of commitment We

may subsequently change our intent to hold loans for invest

ment and sell some or all of our ARMs or fixed-rate mortgage

loans as part of our corporate asset/liability management

We may also acquire and add to our securities available for

sale portion of the securities issued at the time we securi

tize mortgages held for sale

2008 was another challenging year for the financial ser

vices industry with the continued deterioration in the capital

markets widening credit spreads and significant increases in

market volatility in addition to changes in interest rates dis

cussed in the following sections Notwithstanding the contin

ued downturn in the housing sector and the continued lack

of liquidity in the nonconforming secondary markets our

mortgage banking revenue continued to be positive reflect

ing the complementary origination and servicing strengths of

the business The secondary market for agency-conforming

mortgages functioned well for most of the year The mort

gage warehouse and pipeline which predominantly consists

of prime mortgage loans was written down by $584 million in

2008 to reflect the unusual widening in nonconforming and

conforming agency market spreads In addition to the write-

down associated with the mortgage warehouse and pipeline

we further reduced mortgage origination gains by $234 mil

lion in 2008 primarily to reflect an increase to the repurchase

reserve for higher projected losses due to the continuing

deterioration in the housing market

Interest rate and market risk can be substantial in the

mortgage business Changes in interest rates may potentially

impact total origination and servicing fees the value of our

residential MSRs measured at fair value the value of MHFS

and the associated income and loss reflected in mortgage

banking noninterest income the income and expense associ

ated with instruments economic hedges used to hedge

changes in the fair value of MSRs and MHFS and the value of

derivative loan commitments interest rate locks extended

to mortgage applicants

Interest rates impact the amount and timing of origination

and servicing fees because consumer demand for new mort

gages and the level of refinancing activity are sensitive to

changes in mortgage interest rates Typically decline in

mortgage interest rates will lead to an increase in mortgage

originations and fees and may also lead to an increase in ser

vicing fee income depending on the level of new loans added

to the servicing portfolio and prepayments Given the time it

takes for consumer behavior to fully react to interest rate

changes as well as the time required for processing new
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application providing the commitment and securitizing and

selling the loan interest rate changes will impact origination

and servicing fees with lag The amount and timing of the

impact on origination and servicing fees will depend on the

magnitude speed and duration of the change in interest rates

Under FAS 159 The Foir Volue Option for Finonciol Assets

ond Finonciol Liobilities including on omendment of FASE

Stotement No 115 which we adopted January 2007 we

olected to measure MHFS at fair value prospectively for new

prime MHFS originations for which an active secondary mar

ket and readily available market prices existed to reliably

support fair value pricing models used for these loans At

December 31 2008 we elected to measure at fair value simi

lar MHFS acquired from Wachovia Loan origination fees on

these loans are recorded when earned and related direct loan

origination costs and fees are recognized when incurred We

also elected to measure at fair value certain of our other

interests held related to residential loan sales and securitiza

tions We believe that the election for new prime MHFS and

other interests held which are now hedged with free-stand

ing derivatives economic hedges along with our MSRs
reduces certain timing differences and better matches

changes in the value of these assets with changes in the value

of derivatives used as economic hedges for these assets

During 2008 in response to continued secondary market

illiquidity we continued to originate certain prime non-

agency loans to be held for investment for the foreseeable

future rather than to be held for sale

Under FAS i56 Accounting for Servicing of Finonciol

Assets on omendment of FASB Stotement No 140 we elected

to use the fair value measurement method to initially mea

sure and carry our residential MSRs which represent sub

stantially all of our MSRs Under this method the MSRs are

recorded at fair value at the time we sell or securitize the

related mortgage loans The carrying value of MSRs reflects

changes in fair value at the end of each quarter and changes

are included in net servicing income component of mort

gage banking noninterest income If the fair value of the

MSRs increases income is recognized if the fair value of the

MSRs decreases loss is recognized We use dynamic and

sophisticated model to estimate the fair value of our MSRs

and periodically benchmark our estimates to independent

appraisals While the valuation of MSRs can be highly subjec

tive and involve complex judgments by management about

matters that are inherently unpredictable changes in interest

rates influence variety of significant assumptions included

in the periodic valuation of MSRs Assumptions affected

include prepayment speed expected returns and potential

risks on the servicing asset portfolio the value of escrow bal

ances and other servicing valuation elements impacted by

interest rates

decline in interest rates generally increases the propen

sity for refinancing reduces the expected duration of the ser

vicing portfolio and therefore reduces the estimated fair

value of MSRs This reduction in fair value causes charge to

income net of any gains on free-standing derivatives eco
nomic hedges used to hedge MSRs We may choose not to

fully hedge all of the potential decline in the value of our

MSRs resulting from decline in interest rates because the

potential increase in origination/servicing fees in that sce

nario provides partial natural business hedge An increase

in interest rates generally reduces the propensity for refi

nancing increases the expected duration of the servicing

portfolio and therefore increases the estimated fair value of

the MSRs However an increase in interest rates can also

reduce mortgage loan demand and therefore reduce origina

tion income In 2008 $3341 million decrease in the fair

value of our MSRs and $3099 million of gains on free-stand

ing derivatives used to hedge the MSRs resulted in net loss

of $242 million

Hedging the various sources of interest rate risk in mort

gage banking is complex process that requires sophisticated

modeling and constant monitoring While we attempt to bal

ance these various aspects of the mortgage business there

are several potential risks to earnings

MSRs valuation changes associated with interest rate

changes are recorded in earnings immediately within the

accounting period in which those interest rate changes

occur whereas the impact of those same changes in inter

est rates on origination and servicing fees occur with lag

and over time Thus the mortgage business could be pro

tected from adverse changes in interest rates over period

of time on cumulative basis but still display large varia

tions in income from one accounting period to the next

The degree to which the natural business hedge offsets

changes in MSRs valuations is imperfect varies at differ

ent points in the interest rate cycle and depends not just

on the direction of interest rates but on the pattern of

quarterly interest rate changes

Origination volumes the valuation of MSRs and hedging

results and associated costs are also impacted by many

factors Such factors include the mix of new business

between ARMs and fixed-rated mortgages the relation

ship between short-term and long-term interest rates the

degree of volatility in interest rates the relationship

between mortgage interest rates and other interest rate

markets and other interest rate factors Many of these fac

tors are hard to predict and we may not be able to directly

or perfectly hedge their effect

While our hedging activities are designed to balance our

mortgage banking interest rate risks the financial instru

ments we use may not perfectly correlate with the values

and income being hedged For example the change in the

value of ARMs production held for sale from changes in

mortgage interest rates may or may not be fully offset by

Treasury and LIBOR index-based financial instruments

used as economic hedges for such ARMs

The total carrying value of our residential and commercial

MSRs was $16.2 billion at December 31 2008 and $17.2 billion

at December 31 2007 The weighted-average note rate on the

owned servicing portfolio was 5.92% at December 31 2008

and 6.01% at December 31 2007 Our total MSRs were 0.87%

of mortgage loans serviced for others at December 31 2008

compared with 1.20% at December 31 2007
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As part of our mortgage banking activities we enter into

commitments to fund residential mortgage loans at specified

times in the future mortgage loan commitment is an inter

est rate lock that binds us to lend funds to potential borrower

at specified interest rate and within specified period of

time generally up to 60 days after inception of the rate lock

These loan commitments are derivative loan commitments if

the loans that will result from the exercise of the commit

ments will be held for sale These derivative loan commit

ments are recognized at fair value in the balance sheet with

changes in their fair values recorded as part of mortgage

banking noninterest income For interest rate lock commit

ments issued prior to January 2008 we recorded zero fair

value for the derivative loan commitment at inception consis

tent with SAB 105 Effective January 2008 we were

required by SAB 109 to include at inception and during the

life of the loan commitment the expected net future cash

flows related to the associated servicing of the loan as part of

the fair value measurement of derivative loan commitments

The implementation of SAB 109 did not have material

impact on our results or the valuation of our loan commit

ments Changes subsequent to inception are based on

changes in fair value of the underlying loan resulting from

the exercise of the commitment and changes in the probabili

ty that the loan will not fund within the terms of the commit

ment referred to as fall-out factor The value of the under

lying loan is affected primarily by changes in interest rates

and the passage of time

Outstanding derivative loan commitments expose us to

the riak that the price of the mortgage loans underlying the

commitments might decline due to increases in mortgage

interest rates from inception of the rate lock to the funding

of the loan To minimize this risk we utilize forwards and

options Eurodollar futures Eurodollar options and Treasury

futures forwards and options contracts as economic hedges

against the potential decreases in the values of the loans We

expect that these derivative financial instruments will experi

ence changes in fair value that will either fully or partially

offset the changes in fair value of the derivative loan commit

ments However changes in investor demand such as con

cerns about credit risk can also cause changes in the spread

relationshipa between underlying loan value and the deriva

tive financial instruments that cannot be hedged

MARKET RISK TRADING ACTIVITIES From market risk per

spective our net income is exposed to changes in interest

rates credit spreads foreign exchange rates equity and com

modity prices and their implied volatilities The primary pur

pose of our trading businesses is to accommodate customers

in the management of their market price risks Also we take

positions based on market expectations or to benefit from

price differences between financial instruments and markets

subject to risk limits established and monitored by Corporate

ALCO All securities foreign exchange transactions com

modity transactions and derivatives used in our trading

businesses are carried at fair value The Institutional Risk

Committee establishes and monitors counterparty risk limits

The notional or contractual amount credit risk amount and

estimated net fair value of all customer accommodation

derivatives at December 31 2008 and 2007 are included in

Note i6 Derivatives to Financial Statements Open at risk

positions for all trading businesses are monitored by

Corporate ALCO

The standardized approach for monitoring and reporting

market risk for the trading activities is the value-at-risk

VAR metrics complemented with factor analysis and stress

testing VAR measures the worst expected loss over given

time interval and within given confidence interval We mea

sure and report daily VAR at 99% confidence interval based

on actual changes in rates and prices over the past 250 trad

ing days The analysis captures all financial instruments that

are considered trading positions The average one-day VAR

throughout 2008 was $19 million with lower bound of

$10 million and an upper bound of $52 million We acquired

from Wachovia capital markets business Generally these

activities have more significant VAR exposure

MARKET RISK EQUITY MARKETS We are directly and indirect

ly affected by changes in the equity markets We make and

manage direct equity investments in start-up businesses

emerging growth companies management buy-outs acquisi

tions and corporate recapitalizations We also invest in non-

affiliated funds that make similar private equity investments

These private equity investments are made within capital

allocations approved by management and the Board of

Directors the Board The Boards policy is to review busi

ness developments key risks and historical returns for the

private equity investment portfolio at least annually

Management reviews the valuations of these investments at

least quarterly and assesses them for possible other-than-

temporary impairment For nonmarketable investments the

analysis is based on facts and circumstances of each individ

ual investment and the expectations for that investments

cash flows and capital needs the viability of its business

model and our exit strategy Nonmarketable investments

included private equity investments of $2.71 billion at

December 31 2008 and $2.02 billion at December 31 2007

and principal investments of $1.28 billion at December 31

2008 Private equity investments are carried at cost subject to

other-than-temporary impairment Principal investments are

carried at fair value with net unrealized gains and losses

reported in noninterest income

We also have marketable equity securities in the securi

ties available-for-sale portfolio including securities relating

to our venture capital activities We manage these invest

ments within capital risk limits approved by management

and the Board and monitored by Corporate ALCO Gains and

losses on these securities are recognized in net income when

realized and periodically include other-than-temporary

impairment charges which are recorded when determined

The fair value of marketable equity securities was $6.14 billion

and cost was $6.30 billion at December 31 2008 and $2.78 billion

and $2.88 billion respectively at December 31 2007
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Changes in equity market prices may also indirectly affect

our net income by affecting the value of third party assets

under management and hence fee income particular bor

rowers whose ability to repay principal and/or interest may

be affected by the stock market or brokerage activity

related commission income and other business activities

Each business line monitors and manages these indirect risks

LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING The objective of effective liquidity

management is to ensure that we can meet customer loan

requests customer deposit maturities/withdrawals and other

cash commitments efficiently under both normal operating

conditions and under unpredictable circumstances of industry

or market stress To achieve this objective Corporate ALCO

establishes and monitors liquidity guidelines that require

sufficient asset-based liquidity to cover potential funding

requirements and to avoid over-dependence on volatile less

reliable funding markets We set these guidelines for both the

consolidated balance sheet and for the Parent to ensure that

the Parent is source of strength for its regulated deposit-

taking banking subsidiaries

Debt securities in the securities available-for-sale portfolio

provide asset liquidity in addition to the immediately liquid

resources of cash and due from banks and federal funds sold

securities purchased under resale agreements and other

short-term investments The weighted-average expected

remaining maturity of the debt securities within this portfolio

was 5.2 years at December 31 2008 Of the $155.2 billion cost

basis of debt securities in this portfolio at December 31 2008

$49.9 billion 32% is expected to mature or be prepaid in 2009

and an additional $21.7 billion 14% in 2010 Asset liquidity is

further enhanced by our ability to sell or securitize loans in

secondary markets and to pledge loans to access secured bor

rowing facilities through the Federal Home Loan Banks the

Federal Reserve Board or the U.S Treasury In 2008 we sold

mortgage loans of $218 billion The amount of mortgage loans

Table 22 Credit Ratings

and other consumer loans available to be sold securitized or

pledged was approximately $230 billion at December 31 2008

Core customer deposits have historically provided size-

able source of relatively stable and low-cost funds Average

core deposits funded 53.8% and 58.2% of
average

total assets

in 2008 and 2007 respectively

The remaining assets were funded by long-term debt

including trust preferred securities certain other deposits

and short-term borrowings federal funds purchased securi

ties sold under repurchase agreements commercial paper

and other short-term borrowings Long-term debt averaged

$102.3 billion in 2008 and $93.2 billion in 2007 Short-term

borrowings averaged $65.8 billion in 2008 and $25.9 billion in

2007 an increase of $39.9 billion due to business funding needs

We anticipate making capital expenditures of approximately

$2.8 billion in 2009 for our stores relocation and remodeling

of our facilities and routine replacement of furniture equipment

and servers We fund expenditures from various sources

including cash flows from operations and borrowings

Liquidity is also available through our ability to raise

funds in variety of domestic and international money and

capital markets We access capital markets for long-term

funding through issuances of registered debt securities pri

vate placements and asset-backed secured funding Rating

agencies base their ratings on many quantitative and qualita

tive factors including capital adequacy liquidity asset quality

business mix and level and quality of earnings Material

changes in these factors could result in different debt rat

ing however change in debt rating would not cause us to

violate any of our debt covenants At February 23 2009

Wells Fargo Bank N.A has the highest credit rating currently

given to U.S banks by Moodys Investors Service Aai and

Standard Poors Rating Services AA
Table 22 provides the credit ratings of the Company

Wells Fargo Bank N.A and Wachovia Bank N.A as of

February 23 2009

Wells Fargo Company

Senior Subord- Commer

debt mated cial

debt paper

Aa3 Al P-l

AA AA- A-l

AA AA- Fl
AA AA R-l

Wells Fargo Bank N.A

Long- Short-

term term

deposits borrow

ings

Wachovia Bank N.A

Long- Short-

term term

deposits borrow

ings

low middle high

Wells Fargo is participating in the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporations FDIC Temporary Liquidity

Guarantee Program TLGP The TLGP has two components

the Debt Guarantee Program which provides temporary

guarantee of newly issued senior unsecured debt issued by

eligible entities and the Transaction Account Guarantee

Program which provides temporary unlimited guarantee of

funds in noninterest bearing transaction accounts at FDIC

insured institutions Under the Debt Guarantee Program we

have $91.7 billion of remaining capacity to issue guaranteed

debt as of December 31 2008 Eligible entities will be assessed

fees payable to the FDIC for coverage under the program This

assessment will be in addition to risk-based deposit insurance

assessments currently imposed under FDIC rules and regulations

Moodys

SP
Fitch Inc

DBRS

Aal P-l Aal P-l

AA A-l AA A-l

AA F1 AA Fl
AA R-l AA Rl
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Parent Under SEC rules the Parent is classified as well-

known seasoned issuer which allows it to file registration

statement that does not have limit on issuance capacity

Well-known seasoned issuers generally include those com

panies with public float of common equity of at least

$700 million or those companies that have issued at least

$1 billion in aggregate principal amount of non-convertible

securities other than common equity in the last three years

In June 2006 the Parents registration statement with the

SEC for issuance of senior and subordinated notes preferred

stock and other securities became effective The Parents abil

ity to issue debt and other securities under this registration

statement is limited by the debt issuance authority granted

by the Board The Parent is currently authorized by the Board

to issue $60 billion in outstanding short-term debt and

$170 billion in outstanding long-term debt subject to total

outstanding debt limit of $230 billion At December 31 2008

the Parent had outstanding debt under these authorities of

$31.9 billion $133.1 billion and $165.8 billion respectively

During 2008 the Parent issued total of $12.8 billion in regis

tered senior notes The Parent also issued capital securities in

the form of $6.5 billion in junior subordinated debt to statutory

business trusts formed by the Parent which in turn issued

trust preferred and perpetual preferred purchase securities

We used the proceeds from securities issued in 2008 for gen
eral corporate purposes and expect that the proceeds from

securities issued in the future will also be used for general

corporate purposes On May 2008 the Parent remarketed

$2.9 billion aggregate original principal amount of its

Floating Rate Convertible Senior Debentures the

Debentures due 2033 Following the remarketing the

Debentures are no longer convertible and the principal

amount of the Debentures will accrete at rate of 3.55175%

per annum commencing May 2008 Net proceeds of the

remarketing will be paid to holders of the Debentures that

elected to participate in the remarketing The Parent also

issues commercial paper from time to time subject to its

short-term debt limit

Capital Management

Wells Fargo Bank N.A Wells Fargo Bank N.A is authorized

by its board of directors to issue $100 billion in outstanding

short-term debt and $50 billion in outstanding long-term

debt In December 2007 Wells Fargo Bank N.A established

$100 billion bank note program under which subject to any

other debt outstanding under the limits described above it

may issue $50 billion in outstanding short-term senior notes

and $50 billion in long-term senior or subordinated notes At

December 31 2008 Wells Fargo Bank N.A had remaining

issuance capacity on the bank note program of $49.0 billion

and $48.4 billion respectively Securities are issued under

this program as private placements in accordance with Office

of the Comptroller of the Currency 0CC regulations

During 2008 Wells Fargo Bank N.A issued $43.1 billion

in short-term and long-term senior notes

Wachovia Bank N.A Wachovia Bank N.A had $49.0 billion

available for issuance under global note program at

December 31 2008 Wachovia Bank N.A also has $25 billion

Euro medium-term note program EMTN under which it

may issue senior and subordinated debt securities These

securities are not registered with the SEC and may not be

offered in the U.S without applicable exemptions from regis

tration Under the EMTN Wachovia Bank N.A had up to

$22.4 billion available for issuance at December 31 2008 In

addition Wachovia Bank N.A has an A$io billion Australian

medium-term note program AMTN under which it may

issue senior and subordinated debt securities These securities

are not registered with the SEC and may not be offered in the

U.S without applicable exemptions from registration Up to

A$8.5 billion was available for issuance at December 31 2008

Wells Fargo Financial In February 2008 Wells Fargo

Financial Canada Corporation WFFCC an indirect wholly-

owned Canadian subsidiary of the Parent qualified with the

Canadian provincial securities commissions CAD$7.o billion

in medium-term notes for distribution from time to time in

Canada In 2008 WFFCC issued CAD$oo million in medi

um-term notes leaving CAD$6.5 billion available for future

issuance All medium-term notes issued by WFFCC are

unconditionally guaranteed by the Parent

We have an active program for managing stockholder capital

We use capital to fund organic growth acquire banks and

other financial services companies pay dividends and repur

chase our shares Our objective is to produce above-market

long-term returns by opportunistically using capital when

returns are perceived to be high and issuing/accumulating

capital when the costs of doing so are perceived to be low

From time to time the Board of Directors authorizes the

Company to repurchase shares of our common stock

Although we announce when the Board authorizes share

repurchases we typically do not give any public notice before

we repurchase our shares Various factors determine the

amount and timing of our share repurchases including our

capital requirements the number of shares we expect to issue

for acquisitions and employee benefit plans market condi

tions including the trading price of our stock and legal con

siderations These factors can change at any time and there

can be no assurance as to the number of shares we will repur

chase or when we will repurchase them

In 2007 the Board authorized the repurchase of up to 200

million additional shares of our outstanding common stock

During 2008 we repurchased 52 million shares of our com

mon stock all from our employee benefit plans At December

31 2008 the total remaining common stock repurchase

authority was approximately 15 million shares
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Historically our policy has been to repurchase shares

under the safe harbor conditions of Rule iob-i8 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 including limitation on the

daily volume of repurchases Rule iob-i8 imposes an addi

tional daily volume limitation on share repurchases during

pending merger or acquisition in which shares of our stock

will constitute some or all of the consideration Our manage

ment may determine that during pending stock merger or

acquisition when the safe harbor would otherwise be avail

able it is in our best interest to repurchase shares in excess

of this additional daily volume limitation In such cases we

intend to repurchase shares in compliance with the other

conditions of the safe harbor including the standing daily

volume limitation that applies whether or not there is pend

ing stock merger or acquisition

Our potential sources of capital include retained earnings

and issuances of common and preferred stock In 2008

retained earnings decreased $2.4 billion predominantly as

result of net income of $2.7 billion less common and preferred

dividends and accretion of $4.6 billion In 2008 we issued

468.5 million shares in common stock offering to the public

valued at $12.3 billion We also issued approximately 86 mil

lion shares of common stock valued at $2.3 billion under vari

ous employee benefit and director plans including shares

issued for our ESOP plan and under our dividend reinvest

ment and direct stock purchase programs and we issued

approximately 429 million shares of common stock valued

at $14.6 billion for acquisitions including $14.4 billion as of

the announcement date of the acquisition for the Wachovia

acquisition Wachevia shareholders received 0.1991 shares

of Wells Fargo common stock in exchange for each share

of Wachovia common stock they owned for total of

422.7 million shares of Wells Fargo common stock Shares of

each outstanding series of Wachovia preferred stock were

converted into shares or fractional shares of correspond

ing series Wells Fargo preferred stock having substantially

the same rights and preferences

On October 28 2008 at the request of the United States

Department of the Treasury Treasury Department and pur

suant to Letter Agreement and related Securities Purchase

Agreement dated October 26 2008 the Securities Purchase

Comparison of 2007 with 2006

Agreements we issued 25000 shares of Wells Fargos Fixed

Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series without

par value having liquidation amount per share equal to

$1000000 for total price of $25 billion We pay cumulative

dividends on the preferred securities at rate of 5% per year

for the first five years and thereafter at rate of 9% per year

Unless permitted under the provisions of the American

Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 we may not redeem

the preferred securities during the first three years except

with the proceeds from qualifying equity offering After

three years we may at our option redeem the preferred secu

rities at par value plus accrued and unpaid dividends The

preferred securities are generally non-voting Prior to

October 28 2011 unless we have redeemed the preferred

securities or the Treasury Department has transferred the

preferred securities to third party the consent of the

Treasury Department will be required for us to increase our

common stock dividend or repurchase our common stock or

other equity or capital securities other than in connection

with benefit plans consistent with past practice and certain

other circumstances specified in the Securities Purchase

Agreements The terms of the Treasury Departments pur

chase of the preferred securities include certain restrictions

on certain forms of executive compensation and limits en the

tax deductibility of compensation we pay to executive man

agement As part of its purchase of the preferred securities

the Treasury Department also received warrants to purchase

110261688 shares of our common stock at an initial per share

exercise price of $34.01 subject to customary anti-dilution

previsions The warrants expire ten years from the issuance

date Both the preferred securities and warrants will be

accounted for as components of Tier capital

The Company and each of our subsidiary banks are sub

ject to various regulatory capital adequacy requirements

administered by the Federal Reserve Beard and the 0CC
Risk-based capital guidelines establish risk-adjusted ratio

relating capital to different categories of assets and off-bal

ance sheet exposures At December 31 2008 the Company

and each of our subsidiary banks were well capitalized

under applicable regulatory capital adequacy guidelines See

Note 26 Regulatory and Agency Capital Requirements to

Financial Statements for additional information

Our financial results included the following

Net income in 2007 was $8.06 billion $2.38 per share

compared with $8.42 billion $2.47 per share in 2006 Results

for 2007 included the impact of $1.4 billion @re tax credit

reserve build $0.27 per share and $203 million of Visa litiga

tion expenses $0.04 per share and for 2006 included $95

million $0.02 per share of Visa litigation expenses Despite

the challenging environment in 2007 we had solid year and

achieved both double-digit top line revenue growth and posi

tive operating leverage revenue growth of 10.4% exceeding

expense growth of 9.5%

The financial services industry faced unprecedented chal

lenges in 2007 Home values declined abruptly and sharply

adversely impacting the consumer lending business of many

financial service providers credit spreads widened as the capital

markets repriced in many asset classes price volatility increased

and market liquidity decreased in several sectors of the capital

markets and late in the year economic growth declined sharply

We were not immune to these unprecedented external

factors Our provision for credit losses was $2.7 billion higher

in 2007 than in 2006 reflecting $1.3 billion in additional

provisions for actual charge-offs that occurred in 2007 and

$1.4 billion provision to further build reserves for loan losses
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While the $2.7 billion in additional proviaiona reduced

consolidated net income after tax by 18% consolidated full-

year earnings per share declined only 4% to $2.38 per share

strong overall result given the external environment and

higher credit costs

Our results were as strong as they were because we largely

avoided or had negligible exposure to many of the problem

areas that resulted in significant costs and write-downs at

other large financial institutions and because we continued to

build our diversified franchise throughout 2007 once again

achieving growth rates operating margins and returns at or

near the top of the financial services industry while at the same

time maintaining strong capital levels and strong liquidity

We continued to make investments in 2007 by opening 87

regional banking stores and converting 42 stores acquired

from Placer Sierra Bancshares and National City Bank to our

network We grew our sales and service force by adding 1755

team members full-time equivalents in 2007 including 578

retail platform bankers In fourth quarter 2007 we completed

the acquisition of Greater Bay Bancorp with $7.4 billion in

assets adding to our community banking commercial insur

ance brokerage specialty finance and trust businesses

Revenue the sum of net interest income and noninterest

income grew 10.4% to record $39.4 billion in 2007 from

$35.7 billion in 2006 The breadth and depth of our business

model resulted in very strong and balanced growth in loans

deposits and fee-based products Many of our businesses con

tinued to post double-digit year-over-year revenue growth

including business direct wealth management credit and

debit card global remittance services personal credit man

agement home mortgage asset-based lending asset manage

ment specialized financial services and international

Among the many products and services that grew in 2007

we achieved the following results

average loans grew 12%

average core deposits grew 13%

assets under management were up 14%

mortgage servicing fees were up 14%

insurance premiums were up 14% and

total noninterest income rose 17% reflecting the breadth

of our cross-sell efforts

ROA was 1.55% and ROE was 17.12% in 2007 compared

with 1.73% and 19.52% respectively in 2006 Both ROA and

ROE were once again at or near the top of our large bank

peers

Net interest income on taxable-equivalent basis was

$21.1 billion in 2007 up from $20.1 billion year ago reflect

ing strong growth in earning assets Average earning assets

grew 7% from 2006 Our net interest margin was 4.74% for

2007 compared with 4.83% in 2006 primarily due to earning

assets increasing at slightly faster rate than core deposits

Noninterest income increased 17% to $18.4 billion in 2007

from $15.7 billion in 2006 The increase was across our busi

nesses with double-digit increases in debit and credit card

fees up 22% deposit service charges up 13% trust and

investment fees up 15% and insurance revenue up 14%

Capital markets and equity investment results were also

strong Mortgage banking noninterest income increased $822

million 36% from 2006 because net servicing fee income

increased due to growth in loans serviced for others

During 2007 noninterest income was affected by changes

in interest rates widening credit spreads and other credit

and housing market conditions including

$803 million $479 million write-down of the mortgage

warehouse/pipeline and $324 million write-down primari

ly due to mortgage loans repurchased and an increase in

the repurchase reserve for projected early payment

defaults

$583 million Increase in mortgage servicing income

reflecting $571 million reduction in the value of MSRs

due to the decline in mortgage rates during the year off

set by $1.15 billion gain on the financial instruments

hedging the MSRs The ratio of MSRs to related loans ser

viced for others at December 31 2007 was 1.20% the low

est ratio in 10 quarters

Noninterest expense was $22.8 billion in 2007 up 9.5%

from $20.8 billion in 2006 primarily due to continued invest

ments in new stores and additional sales and service-related

team members We grew our sales and service force by

adding 1755 team members full-time equivalents including

578 retail platform bankers The acquisition of Greater Bay

Bancorp added $87 million of expenses in 2007 Despite these

investments and the acquisition of Greater Bay Bancorp and

related integration expense our efficiency ratio improved to

57.9% in 2007 from 58.4% in 2006 We obtained concurrence

from the staff of the SEC regarding our accounting for certain

transactions related to the restructuring of Visa and recorded

litigation liability and corresponding expense included in

operating losses of $203 million for 2007 and $95 million for

2006 In addition expenses in 2007 included $433 million in

origination costs that prior to the adoption of FAS 159 would

have been deferred and recognized as reduction of net

gains on mortgage loan origination/sales activities at the

time of sale

During 2007 net charge-offs were $3.54 billion 1.03% of

average total loans up $1.3 billion from $2.25 billion 0.73%

during 2006 Commercial and commercial real estate net

charge-offs increased $239 million in 2007 from 2006 of

which $162 million was from loans originated through our

Business Direct channel Business Direct consists primarily

of unsecured lines of credit to small firms and sole propri

etors that tend to perform in manner similar to credit cards

Total wholesale net charge-offs excluding business direct

were $103 million 0.08% of average loans The remaining

balance of commercial and commercial real estate other real

estate mortgage real estate construction and lease financing

continued to have low net charge-off rates in 2007

National Home Equity Group portfolio net charge-offs

totaled $595 million 0.73% of average loans in 2007 com

pared with $110 million 0.14% in 2006 Because the majority

of the Home Equity net charge-offs were concentrated in the

indirect or third party origination channels which have

higher percentage of 90% or greater combined loan-to-value

portfolios we have discontinued third party activities not
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behind Wells Fargo first mortgage and segregated these

indirect loans into liquidating portfolio As previously dis

closed while the $11.9 billion of loans in this liquidating port

folio represented about 3% of total loans outstanding at

December 31 2007 these loans represented the highest risk

in our $84.2 billion Home Equity portfolio The loans in the

liquidating portfolio were primarily sourced through whole

sale brokers and correspondents Additionally they are

largely concentrated in geographic markets that have experi

enced the most abrupt and steepest declines in housing

prices We continued to provide home equity financing

directly to our customers but stopped originating or acquir

ing new home equity loans through indirect channels unless

they are behind Wells Fargo first mortgage and have com
bined loan-to-value ratio lower than 90% We also experi

enced increased net charge-offs in our unsecured consumer

portfolios such as credit cards and lines of credit in part due

to growth and in part due to increased economic stress in

households

Full year 2007 auto portfolio net charge-offs were $1.02 bil

lion 3.45% of average loans compared with $857 million

3.15% in 2006 These results were consistent with our expec

tations and reflected planned lower growth in originations and

an improvement in collection activities within this business

The provision for credit losses was $4.94 billion in 2007

an increase of $2.74 billion from $2.20 billion in 2006 due to

higher net charge-offs and the 2007 credit reserve build of

$1.4 billion primarily for higher net loss content that we esti

mated in the Home Equity portfolio The allowance for credit

losses which consists of the allowance for loan losses and the

reserve for unfunded credit commitments was $5.52 billion

1.44% of total loans at December 31 2007 compared with

$3.96 billion 1.24% at December 31 2006

Risk Factors

At December 31 2007 total nonaccrual loans were

$2.68 billion 0.70% of total loans up from $1.67 billion 0.52%

at December 31 2006 The majority of the increase in nonac

crual loans was concentrated in the first mortgage portfolio

$209 million in Wells Fargo Home Mortgage and $343 million

in Wells Fargo Financial and was due to the national rise in

mortgage default rates Total NPAs were $3.87 billion 1.01% of

total loans at December 31 2007 compared with $2.42 billion

0.76% at December 31 2006 Due to illiquid market conditions

we are now holding more foreclosed properties than we have

historically Foreclosed assets were $1.18 billion at December 31

2007 compared with $745 million at December 31 2006

Foreclosed assets component of total NPAs included

$649 million and $423 million in residential property and auto

loans and $535 million and $322 million of foreclosed real

estate securing GNMA loans at December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively consistent with regulatory reporting require

ments The foreclosed real estate securing GNMA loans of

$535 million represented 14 basis points of the ratio of NPAs

to loans at December 31 2007 Both principal and interest

for the GNMA loans secured by the foreclosed real estate are

collectible because the GNMA loans are insured by the FHA

or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs

The Company and each of its subsidiary banks remained

well capitalized under applicable regulatory capital adequa

cy guidelines The ratio of common stockholders equity to

total assets was 8.28% at December 31 2007 compared with

9.51% at December 31 2006 Our total RBC ratio at December

31 2007 was 10.68% and our Tier RBC ratio was 7.59%

exceeding the minimum regulatory guidelines of 8% and 4%

respectively for bank holding companies Our RBC ratios at

December 31 2006 were 12.49% and 8.93% respectively Our

Tier leverage ratios were 6.83% and 7.88% at December 31

2007 and 2006 respectively exceeding the minimum regula

tory guideline of 3% for bank holding companies

An investment in the Company involves risk including the

possibility that the value of the investment could fall substan

tially and that dividends or other distributions on the invest

ment could be reduced or eliminated We discuss below and

elsewhere in this Report as well as in other documents we

file with the SEC risk factors that could adversely affect our

financial results and condition and the value of and return

on an investment in the Company We refer you to the

Financial Review section and Financial Statements and
related Notes in this Report for more information about

credit interest rate market and litigation risks and to the

Regulation and Supervision section of our 2008 Form io-K

for more information about legislative and regulatory risks

Any factor described below or elsewhere in this Report or in

our 2008 Form in-IC could by itself or together with other fac

tors adversely affect our financial results and condition

Refer to our quarterly reports on Form io-Q filed with the

SEC in 2009 for material changes to the discussion of risk

factors There are factors not discussed below or elsewhere in

this Report that could adversely affect our financial results

and condition

In accordance with the Private Securities Litigation Reform

Act of 1995 we caution you that one or more of these same

risk factors could cause actual results to differ significantly

from projections or forecasts of our financial results and con

dition and expectations for our operations and business that

we make or express in forward-looking statements in this

Report and in presentations and other Company communica

tions We make forward-looking statements when we use

words such as believe expect anticipate estimate

project forecast will may can and similar expres

sions Do not unduly rely on forward-looking statements as

actual results could differ significantly Forward-looking

statements speak only as of the date made and we do not
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undertake to update them to reflect changes or events that

occur after that date that may affect whether those forecasts

and expectations continue to reflect managements beliefs or

the likelihood that the forecasts and expectations will be realized

In this Report we make forward-looking statements that

because loans subject to sop 03-3 have been written down

to the amount estimated to be collectible we expect to

fully collect the new carrying value of the loans

our 2009 pension expense will increase by about $600 million

securities guaranteed against loss by bond insurers are

expected to perform even if the rating agencies reduce the

credit rating of the bond insurers

until conditions improve in the residential real estate and

liquidity markets we will continue to hold more nonper

forming assets on our balance sheet as it is currently the

most economic option available

we expect that the amount of nonaccrual loans will change

due to portfolio growth economic growth portfolio sea

soning routine problem loan recognition and resolution

through collections sales or charge-offs

to the extent the housing market does not recover Home

Mortgage could continue to have increased loss severity

on repurchases causing future increases in the repurchase

reserve

we believe that the election to measure at fair value new

prime mortgages held for sale and other interests held will

reduce certain timing differences and better match changes

in the value of these assets with changes in the value of

derivatives used as economic hedges for these assets

we expect changes in the fair value of derivative financial

instruments used to hedge outstanding derivative loan

commitments will fully or partially offset the changes in

fair value of the derivative loan commitments

we anticipate making capital expenditures of approxi

mately $2.8 billion in 2009 for our stores relocation and

remodeling of our facilities and routine replacement of

furniture equipment and servers

we expect that the proceeds from securities issued in the

future will be used for general corporate purposes

we believe the principal and interest on debt securities

held in the securities-available-for-sale portfolio are fully

collectible

management believes that the outcome of pending and

threatened legal actions will not have material adverse

effect on our results of operations or stockholders equity and

we will not be required to make contribution in 2009 for

the Cash Balance Plan

In addition to the above forward-looking statements this

Report states our beliefs and expectations about the adequacy

of our allowance or reserve for credit losses at December 31

2008 There is no assurance that this allowance or reserve

will be adequate to cover future credit losses especially if

credit markets and unemployment do not stabilize As

described below and elsewhere in this Report and in our 2008

Form io-K increases in loan charge-offs or in the allowance

for credit losses and related provision expense
could materi

ally adversely affect our financial results and condition

RISKS RELATING TO CURRENT ECONOMIC AND MARKET CONDITIONS

Our financial results and condition will be adversely affected if

home prices continue to fall and unemployment continues to

increase Significant declines in home prices over the last year

and recent increases in unemployment have resulted in higher

loan charge-offs and increases in our allowance for credit losses

and related provision expense The economic environment and

related conditions will directly affect credit performance For

example if home prices continue to fall or unemployment contin

ues to rise we will likely incur higher than normal charge-offs

and provision expense from increases in our allowance for credit

losses These conditions are adversely affecting not only con

sumer loan performance but also commercial loans especially

those business borrowers that rely on the health of industries

that are experiencing high levels of contraction

Current financial and credit market conditions may persist or

worsen making it more difficult to access capital markets on

favorable terms Over the last year financial and credit markets

have experienced unprecedented disruption and volatility These

conditions may continue or even worsen affecting our ability to

access capital markets on favorable terms We may raise additional

capital through the issuance of common stock which could dilute

existing stockholders or reduce or eliminate our common stock

dividend to preserve capital or in order to raise additional capital

Participation in the Treasury Departments Capital Purchase

Program restricts our ability to raise the common stock dividend

and may result in dilution of common stockholders The U.S

government has taken action to restore liquidity and stability to

financial and credit markets including the enactment of the

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA and the

Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP As part of TARP the

Treasury Department implemented the Capital Purchase

Program CPP to purchase senior preferred stock from qualify

ing financial institutions including Wells Fargo On October 28

2008 we issued preferred securities and common stock pur

chase warrant to the Treasury Department under the CPP Prior

to October 28 2011 unless we have redeemed the preferred secu

rities or the Treasury Department has transferred the securities to

third party the Treasury Departments consent will be required

for us to increase our common stock dividend or repurchase our

common stock other than in connection with benefit plans con

sistent with past practice Under the anti-dilution provisions

included in the terms of the departments CPP investment the

per share exercise price of the warrant and the number of shares

of our common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrant will

be adjusted upon certain issuances of our common stock at or

below specified price relative to the initial exercise price The

exercise of the common stock purchase warrant could result in

material dilution to existing common stockholders

Financial institutions that have received additional Treasury

Department investments through the CPP have been subject to

additional conditions including the elimination of their common

stock dividend or reduction to nominal amount Although we

do not anticipate need at this time there is no assurance that

we may not raise additional capital through the CPP This could

result in the issuance to the Treasury Department of additional

preferred securities at dividend rates higher than the preferred

stock issued in October 2008 the issuance of additional common

stock purchase warrants and even the issuance of shares of common
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stock which could result in dilution to existing stockholders

As condition to an additional CPP investment we could be

required to eliminate our common stock dividend

As participant in the CPP our business activities snd corpo

rate governance may be subject to additional restrictions snd

requirements including requirements for lending activities and

restrictions on compensation some possibly with retroactive

application adopted by Congress the Tressury Depsrtment or

government agencies See for example the discussion below of

the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 200g

For more informstion refer to Capital Management in the

Financial Review section of this Report and to the Regulation

and Supervision section in our 2008 Form 10-K

The recent economic stimulus legislation imposes new compen

sation restrictions that could adversely affect our ability to

recruit and retain key employees The American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009 includes extensive new restrictions on

our ability to pay retention awards bonuses and other incentive

compensation during the period in which we have sny outstand

ing obligation arising from financial assistance provided to us

under the TARP Many of the restrictions are not limited to our

senior executives and cover other employees whose contribu

tions to revenue and performance can be significant The limita

tions may adversely affect our ability to recruit and retain these

key employees especially if we are competing for management

talent against U.S and non-U.S institutions that are not subject

to the same restrictions For more information refer to the

Regulation and Supervision section in our 2008 Form io-K

Bankruptcy laws may be changed to allow mortgage cram

downs or court-ordered modifications to our mortgage loans

including the reduction of principal balances Under current

bankruptcy laws courts cannot force modification of mortgage

and home equity loans secured by primary residences In

response to the current financial crisis legislation has been

proposed to allow mortgage loan cram-downs which would

empower courts to modify the terms of mortgage and home equi

ty loans including to reduce the principal amount to reflect lower

underlying property values This could result in our writing down

the value of our mortgage and home equity loans to reflect their

lower loan values There ia also risk that home equity loans in

second lien position i.e behind mortgage could experience

significantly higher losses to the extent they become unsecured

as result of cram-down The availability of principal reduc

tions or other mortgage loan modifications could make bankruptcy

more attractive option for troubled borrowers leading to

increased bankruptcy filings and accelerated defaults

RISKS RELATING TO THE WACHOVIA MERGER

Our financial results and condition could be adversely affected if

we fail to realize the expected benefits of the Wachovia merger or

it takes longer than expected to realize those benefits The

merger with Wachovia Corporation will require the integration

of the businesses of Wachovia and Wells Fargo The integration

process may result in the loss of key employees the disruption of

ongoing businesses and the loss of customers and their business

and deposits It may also divert management attention and

resources from other operations and limit the Companys ability

to pursue other acquisitions There is no assurance that we will

realize the cost savings and other financial benefits of the merger

when and in the amounts expected

We may incur losses on loans securities and other acquired

assets of Wachovia that are materially greater than reflected in

our preliminary fair value adjustments We accounted for the

Wachovia merger under the purchase method of accounting

recording the acquired assets and liabilities of Wachovia at fair

value based on preliminary purchase accounting adjustments

Under purchase accounting we have until one year after the

merger to finalize the fair value adjustments meaning we could

materially adjust until then the preliminary fair value estimates

of Wachovias assets and liabilities based on new or updated

information

Under SOP 03-3 we recorded at fair value all credit-impaired

loans acquired in the merger based on the present value of their

expected cash flows We estimated cash flows using internal

credit interest rate and prepayment risk models using assump

tions about matters that are inherently uncertain We may not

realize the estimated cash flows or fair value of these loans In

addition although the difference between the pre-merger carry

ing value of the credit-impaired loans and their expected cash

flowsthe nonaccretable differenceis available to absorb

future charge-offs we may be required to increase our allowance

for credit losses and related provision expense because of subse

quent additional credit deterioration in these loans

For more information refer to Overview and Critical

Accounting Policies Acquired Loans Accounted for Under SOP

03-3 in this Report

GENERAL RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

Higher charge-offs and worsening credit conditions could

require us to increase our allowance for credit losses through

charge to earnings When we loan money or commit to loan

money we incur credit risk or the risk of losses if our borrowers

do not repay their loans We reserve for credit losses by estab

lishing an allowance through charge to earnings The amount

of this allowance is based on our assessment of credit losses

inherent in our loan portfolio including unfunded credit com

mitments The process for determining the amount of the

allowance is critical to our financial results and condition It

requires difficult subjective and complex judgments about the

future including forecasts of economic or market conditions that

might impair the ability of our borrowers to repay their loans

We might underestimate the credit losses inherent in our loan

portfolio and have credit losses in excess of the amount reserved

We might increase the allowance because of changing economic

conditions including falling home prices and higher unemploy

ment or other factors such as changes in borrower behavior As

an example we are finding that borrowers are increasingly less

likely to continue making payments on their real estate-secured

loans if the value of the real estate is less than what they owe

even if they are still financially able to make the payments

While we believe that our allowance for credit losses was ade

quate at December 31 2008 there is no assurance that it will be

sufficient to cover future credit losses especially if housing and

employment conditions worsen We may be required to build

reserves in 2009 thus reducing earnings
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For more information refer to Critical Accounting Policies

Allowance for Credit Losses and Risk Management Credit

Risk Management Process in the Financial Review section of

this Report

We may have more credit risk and higher credit losses to the

extent our loans are concentrated by loan type industry segment

borrower type or location of the borrower or collateral Our

credit risk and credit losses can increase if our loans are concen

trated to borrowers engaged in the same or similar activities or

to borrowers who as group may be uniquely or disproportion

ately affected by economic or market conditions We experienced

the effect of concentration risk in 2007 and 2008 when we

incurred greater than expected losses in our Home Equity loan

portfolio due to housing slowdown and greater than expected

deterioration in residential real estate values in many markets

including the Central Valley California market and several

Southern California metropolitan statistical areas

As California is our largest banking state in terms of loans and

deposits continued deterioration in real estate values and under

lying economic conditions in those markets or elsewhere in

California could result in materially higher credit losses As

result of the Wachovia merger we have increased our exposure

to California as well as to Arizona and Florida two states that

have also recently suffered significant declines in home values

Continued deterioration in housing conditions and real estate

values in these states and generally across the country could

result in materially higher credit losses

For more information refer to Risk Management Credit Risk

Management Process Loan Portfolio Concentrations in the

Financial Review section of this Report and Note Loans and

Allowance for Credit Losses to Financial Statements in this Report

Loss of customer deposits and market illiquidity could increase

our funding costs We rely on bank deposits to be low cost and

stable source of funding for the loans we make We compete with

banks and other financial services companies for deposits If our

competitors raise the rates they pay on deposits our funding

costs may increase either because we raise our rates to avoid los

ing deposits or because we lose deposits and must rely on more

expensive sources of funding Higher funding costs reduce our

net interest margin and net interest income As discussed above

the integration of Wells Fargo and Wachovia may result in the

loss of customer deposits

We sell most of the mortgage loans we originate in order to

reduce our credit risk and provide funding for additional loans

We rely on Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to purchase loans that

meet their conforming loan requirements and on other capital

markets investors to purchase loans that do not meet those

requirementsreferred to as nonconforming loans Since 2007

investor demand for nonconforming loans has fallen sharply

increasing credit spreads and reducing the liquidity for those

loans In response to the reduced liquidity in the capital markets

we may retain more nonconforming loans When we retain loan

not only do we keep the credit risk of the loan but we also do not

receive any sale proceeds that could be used to generate new

loans Continued lack of liquidity could limit our ability to fund

and thus originatenew mortgage loans reducing the fees we

earn from originating and servicing loans In addition we cannot

assure that Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac will not materially limit

their purchases of conforming loans due to capital constraints or

changes in criteria for conforming loans e.g maximum loan

amount or borrower eligibility

Changes in interest rates could reduce our net interest income

and earnings Our net interest income is the interest we earn on

loans debt securities and other assets we hold less the interest

we pay on our deposits long-term and short-term debt and other

liabilities Net interest income is measure of both our net interest

marginthe difference between the yield we earn on our assets

and the interest rate we pay for deposits and our other sources of

fundingand the amount of earning assets we hold Changes in

either our net interest margin or the amount of earning assets we

hold could affect our net interest income and our earnings

Changes in interest rates can affect our net interest margin

Although the yield we earn on our assets and our funding costs

tend to move in the same direction in response to changes in

interest rates one can rise or fall faster than the other causing

our net interest margin to expand or contract Our liabilities tend

to be shorter in duration than our assets so they may adjust

faster in response to changes in interest rates When interest

rates rise our funding costs may rise faster than the yield we

earn on our assets causing our net interest margin to contract

until the yield catches up

Changes in the slope of the yield curveor the spread

between short-term and long-term interest ratescould also

reduce our net interest margin Normally the yield curve is

upward sloping meaning short-term rates are lower than long-

term rates Because our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration

than our assets when the yield curve flattens or even inverts we

could experience pressure on our net interest margin as our cost

of funds increases relative to the yield we can earn on our assets

The interest we earn on our loans may be tied to U.S-denomi

nated interest rates such as the federal funds rate while the inter

est we pay on our debt may be based on international rates such

as LIBOR If the federal funds rate were to fall without corre

sponding decrease in LIBOR we might earn less on our loans

without any offsetting decrease in our funding costs This could

lower our net interest margin and our net interest income

We assess our interest rate risk by estimating the effect on

our earnings under various scenarios that differ based on

assumptions about the direction magnitude and speed of inter

est rate changes and the slope of the yield curve We hedge some

of that interest rate risk with interest rate derivatives We also

rely on the natural hedge that our mortgage loan originations

and servicing rights can provide

We do not hedge all of our interest rate risk There is always

the risk that changes in interest rates could reduce our net inter

est income and our earnings in material amounts especially if

actual conditions turn out to be materially different than what we

assumed For example if interest rates rise or fall faster than we

assumed or the slope of the yield curve changes we may incur

significant losses on debt securities we hold as investments To

reduce our interest rate risk we may rebalance our investment

and loan portfolios refinance our debt and take other strategic

actions We may incur losses when we take such actions

For more information refer to Risk Management Asset/

Liability and Market Risk Management Interest Rate Risk in

the Financial Review section of this Report
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Changes in interest rates could also reduce the value of our

mortgage servicing rights and mortgages held for sale reducing

our earnings We have sizeable portfolio of mortgage servicing

rights mortgage servicing right MSR is the right to service

mortgage loancollect principal interest and escrow amounts

for fee We acquire MSRs when we keep the servicing rights

after we sell or securitize the loans we have originated or when

we purchase the servicing rights to mortgage loans originated by

other lenders We
initially measure and carry our residential

MSRs using the fair value measurement method Fair value is the

present value of estimated future net servicing income calculst

ed based on number of variables including assumptions about

the likelihood of prepayment by borrowers

Changes in interest rates can affect prepayment assumptions

and thus fair value When interest rates fall borrowers are more

likely to prepay their mortgage loans by refinancing them at

lower rate As the likelihood of prepayment increases the fair

value of our MSRs can decrease Each quarter we evaluate the

fair value of our MSRs and any decrease in fair value reduces

earnings in the period in which the decrease occurs

We measure at fair value new prime mortgages held for sale

MHFS for which an active secondary market and readily avail

able market prices exist We also measure at fair value certain

other interests we hold related to residential loan sales and secu

ritizations Similar to other interest-bearing securities the value

of these MHFS and other interests may be negatively affected by

changes in interest rates For example if market interest rates

increase relative to the yield on these MHFS and other interests

their fair value may fall We may not hedge this risk and even if

we do hedge the risk with derivatives and other instruments we

may still incur significant losses from changes in the value of

these MHFS and other interests or from changes in the value of

the hedging instruments

For more information refer to Critical Accounting Policies

and Risk Management Asset/Liability and Market Risk

Management Mortgage Banking Interest Rate and Market Risk

in the Financial Review section of this Report

Our mortgage banking revenue can be volatile from quarter to

quarter We earn revenue from fees we receive for originating

mortgage loans and for servicing mortgage loans When rates

rise the demand for mortgage loans tends to fall reducing the

revenue we receive from loan originations At the same time rev

enue from our MSRs can increase through increases in fair value

When rates fall mortgage originations tend to increase and the

value of our MSRs tends to decline also with some offsetting rev

enue effect Even though they can act as natural hedge the

hedge is not perfect either in amount or timing For example the

negative effect on revenue from decrease in the fair value of

residential MSRs is immediate but any offsetting revenue benefit

from more originations and the MSRs relating to the new loans

would accrue over time It is also possible that because of the

recession and deteriorating housing market even if interest rates

were to fall mortgage originations may also fall or any increase

in mortgage originations may not be enough to offset the

decrease in the MSRs value caused by the lower rates

We typically use derivatives and other instruments to hedge

our mortgage banking interest rate risk We generally do not

hedge all of our risk and the fact that we attempt to hedge any of

the risk does not mean we will be successful Hedging is com

plex process requiring sophisticated models and constant moni

toring and is not perfect science We may use hedging instru

ments tied to U.S Treasury rates LIBOR or Eurodollars that may

not perfectly correlate with the value or income being hedged

We could incur significant losses from our hedging activities

There may be periods where we elect not to use derivatives and

other instruments to hedge mortgage banking interest rate risk

For more information refer to Risk Management

Asset/Liability and Market Risk Management Mortgage

Banking Interest Rate and Market Risk in the Financial Review

section of this Report

We could recognize other-than-temporary impairment on secu

rities held in our available-for-sale portfolio including perpetual

preferred stock if economic and market conditions do not

improve Our securities-available-for-sale portfolio had gross

unrealized losses of $12.2 billion at December 31 2008 We ana

lyze securities held in our available-for-sale portfolio for other-

than-temporary impairment on quarterly basis The process for

determining whether impairment is other than temporary requires

difficult subjective judgments about the future financial perfor

mance of the issuer and any collateral underlying the security in

order to assess the probability of receiving all contractual principal

and interest payments on the security Because of changing eco

nomic and market conditions affecting issuers and the perfor

mance of the underlying collateral we may be required to recog

nize other-than-temporary impairment in future periods thus

reducing earnings

For more information refer to Overview Current Accounting

Developments Balance Sheet Analysis Securities Available

for Sale and Note Securities Available for Sale to Financial

Statements in this Report

Financial difficulties or credit downgrades of mortgage and bond

insurers may negatively affect our servicing and investment

portfolios Our servicing portfolio includes certain mortgage loans

that carry some level of insurance from one or more mortgage

insurance companies To the extent that any of these companies

experience financial difficulties or credit downgrades we may be

required as servicer of the insured loan on behalf of the investor

to obtain replacement coverage with another provider possibly

at higher cost than current coverage We may be responsible

for some or all of the incremental cost of the new coverage for

certain loans depending on the terms of our servicing agreement

with the investor and other circumstances Similarly some of the

mortgage loans we hold for investment or for sale carry mortgage

insurance If mortgage insurer is unable to meet its credit

obligations with respect to an insured loan we might incur higher

credit losses if replacement coverage is not obtained We also have

investments in municipal bonds that are guaranteed against loss

by bond insurers The value of these bonds and the payment of

principal and interest on them may be negatively affected by

financial difficulties or credit downgrades experienced by the

bond insurers

For more information refer to Earnings Performance

Balance Sheet Analysis Securities Available for Sale and Risk

Management Credit Risk Management Process in the

Financial Review section of this Report

Our ability to grow revenue and earnings will suffer if we are

unable to sell more products to customers Selling more prod

ucts to our customerscross-sellingis the cornerstone of our

business model and key to our ability to grow revenue and earn-
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ings Many of our competitnra alac focua on cross-aching eapo

cially in retail banking and mortgage lending Thia can limit our

ability to aell more producta to our cuatomera or put preaaure on

ua to sell our products at lower prices reducing our net interest

income and revenue from our fee-based products It could also

affect our ability to keep existing customers New technologies

could require us to spend more to modify or adapt our products

to attract and retain customers Increasing our cross-sell ratio

or the average number of products sold to existing customers

may become more challenging especially given that our cross-

sell ratio is already high and we might not attain our goal of

selling an average of eight products to each customer

The economic recession could reduce demand for our products

and services and lead to lower revenue and lower earnings We

earn revenue from the interest and fees we charge on the loans

and other products and services we sell As the economy worsens

and consumer and business spending decreases and unemploy

ment rises the demand for those products and services can fall

reducing our interest and fee income and our earnings These

same conditions can also hurt the ability of our borrowers to

repay their loans causing us to incur higher credit losses

Changes in stock market prices could reduce fee income from

our brokerage and asset management businesses We earn fee

income from managing assets for others and providing brokerage

services Because investment management fees are often based

on the value of assets under management fall in the market

prices of those assets could reduce our fee income Changes in

stock market prices could affect the trading activity of investors

reducing commissions and other fees we earn from our brokerage

business As result of the Wachovia merger greater percentage

of our revenue will depend on our brokerage services business

For more information refer to Risk Management

Asset/Liability and Market Risk Management Market Risk

Equity Markets in the Financial Review section of this Report

We may elect to provide capital support to our mutual funds

relating to investments in structured credit products Our

money market mutual funds are allowed to hold investments

in structured investment vehicles SIVs in accordance with

approved investment parameters for the respective funds and

therefore we may have indirect exposure to collateralized debt

obligations CDOa Although we generally are not responsible

for investment losses incurred by our mutual funds we may from

time to time elect to provide support to fund even though we

are not contractually obligated to do so For example in February

2008 to maintain an investment rating of AAA for certain non-

government money market mutual funds we elected to enter into

capital support agreement for up to $130 million related to one

SIV held by those funds

For more information refer to Note Securitizations and

Variable Interest Entities to Financial Statements in this Report

Our bank customers could take their money out of the bank and

put it in alternative investments causing us to lose lower cost

source of funding Checking and savings account balances and

other forms of customer deposits can decrease when customers

perceive alternative investments such as the stock market as

providing better risk/return tradeoff When customers move

money out of bank deposits and into other investments we can

lose relatively low cost source of funds increasing our funding

costs and reducing our net interest income

Our venture capital business can also be volatile from quarter to

quarter Certain of our venture capital businesses are carried

under the cost or equity method and others e.g principal

investments are carried at fair value wth unrealized gains and

losses reflected in earnings Our venture capital investments

tend to be in technology and other volatile industries so the

value of our public and private equity portfolios can fluctuate

widely Earnings from our venture capital investments can be

volatile and hard to predict and can have significant effect on

our earnings from period to period When and if we recognize

gains can depend on number of factors including general eco

nomic conditions the prospects of the companies in which we

invest when these companies go public the size of our position

relative to the public float and whether we are subject to any

resale restrictions

Our venture capital investments could result in significant

losses either other-than-temporary impairment losses for those

investments carried under the cost or equity method or mark-to-

market losses for principal investments Our assessment for

other-than-temporary impairment is based on number of fac

tors including the then current market value of each investment

compared to its carrying value If we determine there is other-

than-temporary impairment for an investment we will write-

down the carrying value of the investment resulting in charge

to earnings The amount of this charge could be significant

Further our principal investing portfolio could incur significant

mark-to-market losses especially if these investments have been

written up because of higher market prices

For more information refer to Risk Management

Asset/Liability and Market Risk Management Market Risk

Equity Markets in the Financial Review section of this Report

We rely on dividends from our subsidiaries for revenue and

federal and state law can limit those dividends Wells Fargo

Company the parent holding company is separate and distinct

legal entity from its subsidiaries It receives significant portion

of its revenue from dividends from its subsidiaries We use these

dividends to pay dividends on our common and preferred stock

and interest and principal on cur debt Federal and state laws limit

the amount of dividends that our bank and some of our ncnbank

subsidiaries may pay to us Also our right to participate in

distribution of assets upon subsidiarys liquidation or renrgani

zation is subject to the prior claims of the subsidiarys creditors

For more information refer to Regulation and Supervision

Dividend Restrictions and Holding Company Structure in our

2008 Fomi 10-K and to Notes Cash Loan and Dividend Restrictions

and 26 Regulatory and Agency Capital Requirements to

Financial Statements in this Report

Changes in accounting policies or accounting standards and

changes in how accounting standards are interpreted or applied

could materially affect how we report our financial results and

condition Our accounting policies are fundamental to determin

ing and understanding our financial results and condition Some

of these policies require use of estimates and assumptions that

may affect the value of our assets or liabilities and financial

results Six of our accounting policies are critical because they

require management to make difficult subjective and complex

judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain and

because it is likely that materially different amounts would be

reported under different conditions or using different assump

tions For description of these policies refer to Critical
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Accounting Policies in the Financial Review section of this

Report

From time to time the FASB and the SEC change the financial

accounting and reporting standards that govern the preparation

of our external financial statements In addition accounting stan

dard setters and those who interpret the accounting standards

such as the FASB SEC banking regulators and our outside

auditors may change or even reverse their previous interpreta

tions or positions on how these standards should be applied

Changes in financial accounting and reporting standards and

changes in current interpretations may be beyond our control

can be hard to predict and could materially impact how we report

our financial results and condition We could be required to

apply new or revised standard retroactively or apply an exist

ing standard differently also retroactively in each case resulting

in our potentially restating prior period financial statements in

material amounts

Acquisitions could reduce our stock price upon announcement

and reduce our earnings if we overpay or have difficulty inte

grating them We regularly explore opportunities to acquire

companies in the financial services industry We cannot predict

the frequency size or timing of our acquisitions and we typically

do not comment publicly on possible acquisition until we have

signed definitive agreement When we do announce an acquisi

tion our stock price may fall depending on the size of the acqui

sition the purchase price and the potential dilution to existing

stockholders It is also possible that an acquisition could dilute

earnings per share

We generally must receive federal regulatory approval before

we can acquire bank or bank holding company In deciding

whether to approve proposed bank acquisition federal bank

regulators will consider among other factors the effect of the

acquisition on competition financial condition and future

prospects including current and projected capital ratios and lev

els the competence experience and integrity of management

and record of compliance with laws and regulations the conve

nience and needs of the communities to be served including the

acquiring institutions record of compliance under the

Community Reinvestment Act and the effectiveness of the

acquiring institution in combating money laundering Also we

cannot be certain when or if or on what terms and conditions

any required regulatory approvals will be granted We might be

required to sell banks branches and/or business units as condi

tion to receiving regulatory approval

Difficulty in integrating an acquired company may cause us

not to realize expected revenue increases cost savings increases

in geographic or product presence and other projected benefits

from the acquisition The integration could result in higher than

expected deposit attrition run-off loss of key employees dis

ruption of our business or the business of the acquired company

or otherwise harm our ability to retain customers and employees

or achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisition Time and

resources spent on integration may also impair our ability to

grow our existing businesses Also the negative effect of any

diveatitures required by regulatory authorities in acquisitions or

business combinations may be greater than expected

Federal and state regulations can restrict our business and non

compliance could result in penalties litigation and damage to

our reputation Our parent company our subsidiary banks and

many of our nonbank subsidiaries are heavily regulated at the

federal and/or state levels This regulation is to protect depositors

federal deposit insurance funds consumers and the banking system

as whole not our stockholders Federal and state regulations

can significantly restrict our businesses and we could be fined or

otherwise penalized if we are found to be out of compliance

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Sarbanes-Oxley limits the

types of non-audit services our outside auditors may provide to

us in order to preserve their independence from us If our audi

tors were found not to be independent of us under SEC rules

we could be required to engage new auditors and file new finan

cial statements and audit reports with the SEC We could be out

of compliance with SEC rules until new financial statements and

audit reports were filed limiting our ability to raise capital and

resulting in other adverse consequences

Sarbanes-Oxley also requires our management to evaluate the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures and its internal

control over financial reporting and requires our auditors to

issue report on our internal control over financial reporting

We are required to disclose in our annual report on Form to-K

filed with the SEC the existence of any material weaknesses in

our internal control We cannot assure that we will not find one

or more material weaknesses as of the end of any given year nor

can we predict the effect on our stock price of disclosure of

material weakness

The Patriot Act which was enacted in the wake of the

September 2001 terrorist attacks requires us to implement new

or revised policies and procedures relating to anti money laun

dering compliance suspicious activities and currency transac

tion reporting and due diligence on customers The Patriot Act

also requires federal bank regulators to evaluate the effective

ness of an applicant in combating money laundering in deter

mining whether to approve proposed bank acquisition

number of states have recently challenged the position of

the 0CC as the sole regulator of national banks and their sub

sidiaries If these challenges are successful or if Congress acts to

give greater effect to state regulation the impact on us could be

significant not only because of the potential additional restric

tions on our businesses but also from having to comply with

potentially 50 different sets of regulations

From time to time Congress considers legislation that could

significantly change our regulatory environment potentially

increasing our cost of doing business limiting the activities we

may pursue or affecting the competitive balance among banks

savings associations credit unions and other financial institu

tions As an example our business model depends on sharing

information among the family of Wells Fargo businesses to bet

ter satisfy our customers needs Laws that restrict the ability of

our companies to share information about customers could limit

our ability to cross-sell products and services reducing our rev

enue and earnings Federal financial regulators have issued regu

lations under the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act

which have the effect of increasing the length of the waiting period

after privacy disclosures are provided to new customers before

information can be shared among Wells Fargo companies for the

purpose of cross-selling Wells Fargos products and services

This may result in certain cross-sell programs being less effec

tive than they have been in the past
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For moro information rafor to Regulation and Supervision

in our 2008 Form ia-K and to Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm in this Report

We may incur fines penalties and other negative consequences

from regulatory violations possibly even inadvertent or unin

tentional violations We maintain systems and procodures

designed to ensure that we comply with applicable laws and reg

ulations However some legal/regulatory frameworks provide for

the imposition of fines or penalties for noncompliance even

though the noncompliance was inadvertent or unintentional and

even though there was in place at the time systems and proce

dures designed to ensure compliance For example we are sub

ject to regulations issued by the Office of Foreign Assets Control

OFAC that prohibit financial institutions from psrticipsting in

the transfer of property belonging to the governments of certain

foreign countries and designated nationals of those countries

OFAC may impose penalties for inadvertent or unintentional vio

lations even if reasonable processes are in place to prevent the

violations Therefore the establishment and maintenance of sys

tems and procedures reasonably designed to ensure compliance

cannot guarantee that we will be able to avoid fine or penalty

for noncompliance For example in April 2003 and January 2005

OFAC reported settlements with Wells Fargo Bank N.A These

settlements related to transactions involving inadvertent acts or

human error alleged to have violated OFAC regulations There

may be uther negative consequences resulting from finding of

noncompliance including restrictions on certain activities Such

finding may also damage our reputation see below and could

restrict the ability of institutional investment managers to invest

in our securities

Negative publicity could damage our reputation Reputation

risk or the risk to our earnings and capital from negative public

opinion is inherent in our business Negative public opinion

could adversely affect our ability to keep and attract customers

and expose us to adverse legal and regulatory consequences

Negative public opinion could result from our actual or alleged

conduct in any number of activities including lending practices

corporate governance regulatory compliance mergers and

acquisitions and disclosure sharing or inadequate protection of

customer information and from actions taken by government

regulators and community organizations in response to that con

duct Because we conduct moat of our businesses under the

Wells Fargo brand negative public opinion about one business

could affect our other businesses

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information

about customers and counterparties In deciding whether to

extend credit or enter into other transactions we rely on the

accuracy and completeness of information about our customers

including financial statements and other financial information

and reports of independent auditors For example in deciding

whether to extend credit we may assume that customers audited

financial statements conform with U.S GAAP and present fairly

in all material respects the financial condition results of opera

tions and cash flows of the customer We also may rely on the

audit report covering those financial statements If that informa

tion is incorrect or incomplete we may incur credit losses or

other charges to earnings

We rely on others to help us with our operations We rely on

outside vendors to provide key components of our business

operations such as internet connections and network access

Disruptions in communication services provided by vendor or

any failure of vendor to handle current or higher volumes of

use could hurt our ability to deliver products and services to our

customers and otherwise to conduct our business Financial or

operational difficulties of an outside vendor could also hurt our

operations if those difficulties interfere with the vendors ability

to serve us

Federal Reserve Board policies can significantly impact business

and economic conditions and our financial results and condition

The Federal Reserve Board FRB regulates the supply of money

and credit in the United States Its policies determine in large

part our coat of funds for lending and investing and the return

we earn on those loans and investments both of which affect our

net interest margin They also can materially affect the value of

financial instruments we hold such as debt securities and MSRa

Its policies also can affect our borrowers potentially increasing

the risk that they may fail to repay their loans Changes in FRB

policies are beyond our control and can be hard to predict

Risks Relating to Legal Proceedings Wells Fargo and some of its

subsidiaries are involved in judicial regulatory and arbitration

proceedings concerning matters arising from our business activi

ties Although we believe we have meritorious defense in all

significant litigation pending against us there can be no assur

ance as to the ultimate outcome We establish reserves for legal

claims when payments associated with the claims become proba

ble and the costs can be reasonably estimated We may still incur

legal costa for matter even if we have not established reserve

In addition the actual coat of resolving legal claim may be sub

stantially higher than any amounts reserved for that matter The

ultimate resolution of pending legal proceeding depending on

the remedy sought and granted could materially adversely affect

our results of operations and financial condition For more infor

mation refer to Note is Guarantees and Legal Actions to

Financial Statements in this Report

Risks Affecting Our Stock Price Our stock price can fluctuate

widely in response to variety of factors in addition to those

described above including

general business and economic conditions

recommendations by securities analysts

new technology used or services offered by our competitors

operating and stock price performance of other companies

that investors deem comparable to us

news reports relating to trends concerns and other issues in

the financial services industry

changes in government regulations

natural disasters and

geopolitical conditions such as acts or threats of terrorism or

military conflicts
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controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by SEC rules the Companys management evaluated the effectiveness as ef December 31 2008 of the

Companys disclosure controls and procedures The Companys chief executive officer and chief financial officer

participated in the evaluation Based on this evaluation the Companys chief executive officer and chief financial

officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31 2008

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15f promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as process designed by or under the supervision of the Companys principal executive and principal financial

officers and effected by the Companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and includes those policies

and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with GAAP and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate No change occurred during any quarter in 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting Managements report on internal control

over financial reporting is set forth below and should be read with these limitations in mind

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting for the Company Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO in Iriternol Control Integroted Framework Based on this assessment management

concluded that as of December 31 2008 the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective

KPMG LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Companys financial statements

included in this Annual Report issued an audit report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

KPMGs audit report appears on the following page
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Repoit oF indcetident Registered Public /-1sccouirtin Fr in

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Wells Fargo Company

We have audited Wells Fargo Company and Subsidiaries the Company internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Interrrol Control Integroted Fromework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness

of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control

over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over fnancial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness

exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internol Control Integroted Frnmework issued by COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related

consolidated statements of income changes in stockholders equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for

each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 and our report dated February 23 2009 expressed

an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements

KPrc
San Francisco California

February 23 2009

85



Financial Statements

Wells Fargo Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income

in millions except per share amounts Yearp_d_December31

2008 2007 2006

INTEREST INCOME

Trading assets 177 173 225

Securities available for sale 5287 3451 3278

Mortgages held for sale 1573 2150 2746
Loans held for sale 48 70 47

Loans 27632 29040 25611
Other interest income 181 293 332

Total interest income 34898 j77 32239

INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits 4521 8152 7174
Short-term borrowings 1478 1245 992

Long-term debt 3756 4806 4122
Total interest expense 9755 _14Q 12288

NET INTEREST INCOME 25143 20974 19951
Provision for credit losses 15979 4.99 2204
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 9164 17747

NONINTEREST INCOME

Service charges on deposit accounts 3190 3050 2690
Trust and investment fees 2924 3149 2737
Card fees 2336 2136 1747
Other fees 2097 2292 2057

Mortgage banking 2525 3133 231
Operating leases 427 703 783

Insurance 1830 1530 1340
Net gains losses on debt securities available for sale 1037 209 19
Net gains losses from equity investments 737 734 738

Other 1125 1480
Total noninterest income 16754 18416 15740

NONINTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries 8260 7762 7007
Commission and incentive compensation 2676 3284 2885

Employee benehts 2004 2322 2035

Equipment 1357 1294 1252
Net occupancy 1619 1545 1405

Operating leases 389 561 630

Other 6356 5623
Total noninterest expense 22661 22.824 2037

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 3257 11627 12650
Income tax expense 602 L2Q

NET INCOME 2.655 8057 $8A20

NET INCOME APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCK 2369 8057 8420

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE 0.70 2.41 2.50

DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE 0.70 2.38 2.47

DIVIDENDSDECLAREDPERCOMMONSHARE 1.30 1.18 1.08

Average common shares outstanding 3378.1 3348.5 3368.3

Diluted average common shares outstanding 3391.3 3382.8 3410.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Wells Fargo Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance SheetW

in millions except shares December 31

2008 2007

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks 23763 14757

Federal funds sold securities purchased under

resale agreements and other short-term investments 49433 2754

Trading assets 54884 7727

Securities available for sale 151569 72951

Mortgages held for sale includes $18754 and $24998 carried at fair value 20088 26815

Loans held for sale includes $398 carried at fair value at December 312008 6228 948

Loans 864830 382195

Allowance for loan losses 21013 J7
Net loans 843817 376888

Mortgage servicing rights

Measured at fair value residential MSR5 14714 16763

Amortized 1446 466

Premises and equipment net 11269 5122

Goodwill 22627 13106

Other assets 109801 37145

Total assets $1309639 $575442

LIABILITIES

Noninterest-bearing deposits 150837 84348

Interest-bearing deposits 630565 260112

Total deposits 781402 344460

Short-term borrowings 108074 53255

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 53921 30706

Long-term debt 267158 993

Total liabilities 1210555 527814

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred stock 31332 450

Common stock $1 2/3 par value authorized 6000000000 shares

issued 4363921429 shares and 3472762050 shares 7273 5788

Additional paid-in capital
36026 8212

Retained earnings 36543 38970

Cumulative other comprehensive income loss 6869 725

Treasury stock 135290540 shares and 175659842 shares 4666 6035
Unearned ESOP shares 555 482

Total stockholders equity 99084 47628

Total liabilities and stockholdersequity $1309639 $575442

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

Effective December 312008 Wells Fargo Company acquired Wachovia Corporation Wachovia Wachovias assets and liabilities are included in the consolidated

balance sheet at their respective acquisition date fair values
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Wells Fargo Company and Subsidiaries

onsolidated Statenient of Changes in Stockholdes Equity and Comprehensive Income

in millions except shares Preferred stock Common stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount

BALANCEDECEMBER312005 325463 _325 3355166064 75
Cumulative effect of adoption of FAS 156

BALANCE JANUARY 12006 325463 325 3355166064 88
Comprehensive income

Net income
Other comprehensive income net of tax

Net unrealized losses on securities available for sale

Net unrealized gains on derivatives and hedging activities

Total comprehensive income

Common stock issued 70063930
Common stock repurchased 58534072
Preferred stock issued to ESOP 414000 414
Preferred stock released to ESOP

Preferred stock converted to common shares 3556591 355 10453939
Common stock dividends

Tax benefit upon exercise of stock options

Stock option compensation expense
Net change in deferred compensation and related plans

Reclassification of share-based plans

Adoption of FAS 158
_________

Net change 58341 59

BALANCE DECEMBER 312006 383804 384 3377149861 i88
Cumulative effect of adoption of FSP 32
BALANCE JANUARY 12007 383804 384 3377149861 _2
Comprehensive income

Net income

Other comprehensive income net of tax

Translation adjustments

Net unrealized losses on securities available for sale

Net unrealized gains on derivatives and hedging activities

Unamortized gains under defined benefit plans

net of amortization

Total comprehensive income

Common stock issued 69894448
Common stock issued for acquisitions 58058813
Common stock repurchased 220327473
Preferred stock issued to ESOP 484000 484
Preferred stock released to ESOP
Preferred stock converted to common shares 418000 418 12326559
Common stock dividends

Tax benefit upon exercise of stock options

Stock option compensation expense
Net change in deferred compensation and related plans __________
Net change 66000 66 180047653

BALANCE DECEMBER 312007 449804 450 32971028 788
Cumulative effect of adoption of EITF 06-4 and EITF 06-10

FAS 158 change of measurement date

BALANCE JANUARY 12008 449804 450 3297102208
Comprehensive income

Net income

Other comprehensive income net of tax
Translation adjustments

Net unrealized losses on securities available for sale

Net unrealized gains on derivatives and hedging activities

Unamortized losses under defined benefit plans
net of amortization

Total comprehensive income

Common stock issued 538877525 781

Common stock issued for acquisitions 429084786 704
Common stock repurchased 52154513
Preferred stock issued 25000 22674
Preferred stock discount accretion 67
Preferred stock issued for acquisitions 9566921 8071
Preferred stock issued to ESOP 520500 521

Preferred stock released to ESOP

Preferred stock converted to common shares 450404 451 15720883
Stock warrants issued

Common stock dividends

Preferred stock dividends and accretion

Tax benefit upon exercise of stock options

Stock option compensation expense
Net change in deferred compensation and related plans

Other
__________

Net change 9662017 30882 931528681 L485

BALANCE DECEMBER 312008 10111821 $31332 4228630889 $LZTh

88 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements



Additional Retained Cumulative Treasury Unearned Total stock-

paid-in earnings other compre- stock ESOP holders

capital hensive income shares equity

7040 $30580 665 $13390 $40660

101 101

7040 30681 665 3390 40761

8420 8420

31 31
70 70

8459

67 245 2076 1764

1965 1965
29 443

25 380 355

41 314

3641 3641
229 229

134 134

50 27 23

308 211 97

_______ _______ 402 ______ 4Q2
699 4534 363 187 _j 5053

7739 35215 302 3203 4jj 4514
71 71

7739 35144 302 3203 4jj 45743

8057 8057

23 23

164 164
322 322

242 242

8480

132 276 2284 1876

190 1935 2125

7418 7418
34 518
29 447 418

13 405

3955 3955
210 210

129 129

58 ________ 38 20

473 3826 423 2832 _j7j 1885

8212 970 725 J5 J4 47628

20 20

8212 38942 725 Jg35 47600

2655 2655

58 58
6610 6610

436 436

1362 1362
4939

11555 456 2291 14171

13689 208 14601

1623 1623
22674

67

8071
30 551
27 478 451

61 512

2326 2326
4312 4312

286 286
123 123

174 174

46 19 27

41 ________ 41
27814 2.399 7594 1369 JTh 51484

$36026 $36543 $16869 $14666 $99084
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Wells Fargo Company and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

in millions Year ended December31

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 2655 8057 8420

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Provision for credit losses 15979 4939 2204

Change in fair value of MSR5 residential and MHFS carried at fair value 3789 2611 2453

Depreciation and amortization 1669 1532 3221
Other net gains losses 2065 1407 1701
Preferred shares released to ESOP 451 418 355

Stock option compensation expense 174 129 134

Excess tax benefits related to stock option payments 121 196 227
Originations of MHFS 213498 223266 237841
Proceeds from sales of and principal collected on mortgages originated for sale 220254 216270 238800
Net change in

Trading assets 3045 3388 5271
Loans originated for sale 135 222 109
Deferred income taxes 1642 31 593

Accrued interest receivable 2676 407 291
Accrued interest payable 1634 87 455

Other assets net 21443 365 3570
Other accrued expenses and liabilities net 10941 4491 2669

Net cash provided used by operating activities 4831 9078 7976

Cash flows from investing activities

Net change in

Federal funds sold securities purchased under resale agreements
and other short-term investments 51049 3331 717

Securities available for sale

Sales proceeds 60806 47990 53304

Prepayments and maturities 24317 8505 7321
Purchases 105341 751 29 62462

Loans

Increase in banking subsidiaries loan originations net of collections 54815 48615 37730
Proceeds from sales including participations of loans originated for investment

by banking subsidiaries 1988 3369 38343
Purchases including participations of loans by banking subsidiaries 5513 8244 5338
Principal collected on nonbank entities loans 21846 21476 23921
Loans originated by nonbank entities 19973 25284 26974

Net cash acquired from paid for acquisitions 11203 2811 626
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets 1746 1405 593

Changes in MSRs from purchases and sales 92 791 3539
Other net 5576 14099 2678

Net cash used by investing activities 18171 177315 16582

Cash flows from financing activities

Net change in

Deposits 7697 27058 14452
Short-term borrowings 14888 39827 11156

Long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance 35701 29360 20255

Repayment 29859 118250 12609
Common stock

Proceeds from issuance 14171 1876 1764

Repurchased 1623 17418 11965
Cash dividends paid 4312 13955 13641

Preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance 22674
Proceeds from issuance of stock warrants 2326
Excess tax benefits related to stock option payments 121 196 227

Other net __L72 _J18
Net cash provided used by financing activities 32008 6L9 _ftL28
Net change in cash and due from banks 9006 271 1369

Cash and due from banks at beginning of year 14757 15028 15397

Cash and due from banks at end of year 23763 14757 15028

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for

Interest 8121 14290 11833
Income taxes 2554 3719 3084

Noncash investing and financing activities

Transfers from trading assets to securities available for sale 1268
Transfers from securities available for sale to loans 283
Transfers from MHFS to securities available for sale 544 7949
Transfers from MHFS to loans 1195 2133
Transfers from MHFS to foreclosed assets 136

Transfers from MHFS to MSRs 3498 3720 4118
Transfers from loans to MHFS 32383
Net transfers from loans to loans held for sale 1640
Transfers from loans to foreclosed assets 3031 2666 1918
Issuance of common and preferred stock for purchase accounting 22672 2125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Wells Fargo Company is diversified financial services

company We provide banking insurance investments mort

gage banking investment banking retail banking brokerage

and consumer finance through banking stores the internet

and other distribution channels to consumers businesses and

institutions in all 50 states of the U.S and in other countries

In this Annual Report when we refer to the Company we
our or us we mean Wells Fargo Company and

Subsidiaries consolidated Wells Fargo Company the

Parent is financial holding company and bank holding

company We also hold majority interest in retail broker

age subsidiary and real estate investment trust which has

publicly traded preferred stock outstanding

Our accounting and reporting policies conform with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and prac

tices in the financial services industry To prepare the finan

cial statements in conformity with GAAP management must

make estimates based on assumptions about future economic

and market conditions for example unemployment market

liquidity real estate prices etc that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and income and expenses during the reporting

period and the related disclosures Although our estimates

contemplate current conditions and how we expect them to

change in the future it is reasonably possible that in 2009

actual conditions could be worse than anticipated in those

estimates which could materially affect our results of opera

tions and financial condition Management has made signifi

cant estimates in several areas including the evaluation of

other-than-temporary impairment on investment securities

Note allowance for credit losses and loans accounted for

under American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

AICPA Statement of Position 03-3 Accounting for Certoin

Loons or Debt Securities Acquired in Tronsfer SOP 03-3

Note valuing residential mortgage servicing rights MSRs
Notes and and financial instruments Note 17 pension

accounting Note 20 and income taxes Note 21 Actual

results could differ from those estimates Among other effects

such changes could result in future impairments of investment

securities establishment of allowance for loan losses as well

as increased pension expense

On October 2008 we signed definitive merger agree

ment with Wachovia Corporation Wachovia and the merger

was consummated on December 31 2008 Wachovias assets

and liabilities are included in the consolidated balance sheet

at their respective acquisition date fair values Because the

acquisition was completed at the end of 2008 Wachovias

results of operations are not included in the income state

ment The accounting policies of Wachovia have been con

formed to those of Wells Fargo as described herein

In the Financial Statements and related Notes all common

share and per share disclosures reflect two-for-one stock split

in the form of 100% stock dividend distributed August 11 2006

On January 2008 we adopted the following new

accounting pronouncements

FSP FIN 39-1 Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Staff Position on Interpretation No 39

Amendment of FASB Interpretotion No 39

EITF 06-4 Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue

No 06-4 Accounting for Deferred Compensotion ond

Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollor

Life Insuronce Arrongements

EITF o6-io EITF Issue No o6-io Accounting for

Colloterol Assignment Split-Dollor Life Insuronce

Arrongements and

SAB 109 Staff Accounting Bulletin No log Written Loon

Commitments Recorded ot Foir Volue Through Eornings

On July 2008 we adopted the following new accounting

pronouncement

FSP FAS 157-3 FASB Staff Position No FAS 157-3

Determining the Foir Vnlue of Finonciol Asset When the

Morket for Thot Asset Is Not Active

We adopted the following new accounting pronounce

ments which were effective for year-end 2008 reporting

FSP FAS 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 FASB Staff Position

No 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 Disclosures by Public Entities

Enterprises obout Tronsfers of Finonciol Assets ond

Interests in Vorioble Interest Entities

FSP FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 FASB Staff Position No 133-1

and FIN 45-4 Disclosures obout Credit Derivotives ond

Certoin Guorontees An Amendment of FASB Stotement

No 133 ond FASB Interpretotion No 45 ond Clorilicotion

of the Effective Dote of FASB StotementNo 161 and

FSP EITF 99-20-1 FASB Staff Position No EITF 99-20-1

Amendments to the Impoirment Guidonce of EITF Issue

No 99-20

On April 30 2007 the FASB issued FSP FIN 39-1 which

amends Interpretation No 39 to permit reporting entity to

offset the right to reclaim cash collateral receivable or the

obligation to return cash collateral payable against deriv

ative instruments executed with the same counterparty under

the same master netting arrangement The provisions of this

FSP are effective for the year beginning on January 2008

with early adoption permitted We adopted FSP FIN 39-1 on

January 2008 and it did not have material effect on our

consolidated financial statements

On September 20 2006 the FASB ratified the consensus

reached by the EITF at its September 2006 meeting with

respect to EITF 06-4 On March 28 2007 the FASB ratified the

consensus reached by the EITF at its March 15 2007 meeting

with respect to EITF 06-10 These pronouncements require

that for endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements

and collateral split-dollar life insurance arrangements where

the employee is provided benefits in postretirement periods

the employer should recognize the cost of providing that

insurance over the employees service period by accruing

liability for the benefit obligation Additionally for collateral

assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangements an

employer is required to recognize and measure an asset based
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upon the nature and substance nf the agreement EITF 06-4

and EITF 06-10 are effective for the year beginning on

January 2008 with early adoption permitted We adopted

EITF 06-4 and EITF 06-10 on January 2008 and reduced

beginning retained earnings for 2008 by $20 million after

tax primarily related to split-dollar life insurance arrange

ments from the acquisition of Greater Bay Bancnrp

On November 2007 the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC issued SAB log which provides the staffs

views on the accounting for written loan commitments

recorded at fair value under GAAP To make the staffs views

consistent with current authoritative accounting guidance

SAB 109 revises and rescinds portions of SAB 105 Application

of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments Specifically

SAB 109 states the expected net future cash flows associated

with the servicing of loan should be included in the measure

ment of all written loan commitments that are accounted far

at fair value through earnings The provisions of SAB 109

which we adapted an January 2008 are applicable to written

loan commitments recorded at fair value that are entered into

beginning on or after January 2008 The implementation of

SAB 109 did nut have material impact on our first quarter

2008 results or the valuation of our loan commitments

On October 10 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3

which clarifies the application of FAS 157 Fair Value

Measurements in an inactive market and illustrates haw an

entity wauld determine fair value when the market far

financial asset is nut active The FSP states that an entity

should not automatically conclude that particular transac

tion price is determinative of fair value In dislocated mar

ket judgment is required to evaluate whether individual

transactians are forced liquidations ar distressed sales When

relevant observable market information is nat available

valuation approach that incorporates managements judg

ments about the assumptions that market participants would

use in pricing the asset in current sale transaction is accept

able The FSP also indicates that quotes from brokers or pric

ing services may be relevant inputs when measuring fair

value but are not necessarily determinative in the absence of

an active market far the asset In weighing broker quote as

an input to fair value measurement an entity should place

less reliance an quotes that do not reflect the result of market

transactians Further the nature of the quote far example

whether the quote is an indicative price or binding offer

should be considered when weighing the available evidence

The FSP was effective immediately and applied to prior peri

ods far which financial statements have not been issued

including interim or annual periods ending an or befare

September 30 2008 We adapted the FSP prospectively

beginning July 2008 The adoption of the FSP did nat have

material impact on our consolidated financial results or fair

value determinations

On December 11 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 140-4

and FIN 46R-B This FSP is intended to improve disclosures

about transfers of financial assets and continuing involve

ment with bath qualifying special purpose entities QSPEs
and variable interest entities VIEs The FSP requires quali

tative and quantitative disclosures surraunding the nature of

companys continuing involvement with QSPEs and VIEs

the carrying amount and classification of related assets and

liabilities including the nature of any restrictions an those

assets and liabilities contractual or nan-contractual support

provided to either QSPEs ar VIEs and companys maximum

exposure ta lass related to these activities This FSP amends

FAS 140 Accounting far Transfers and Servicing of Financial

Assets and Extinguishments ofLiabilities replacement of

FASB Statement Na 125 and FIN 46 Consolidation of

Variable Interest Entities revised December 2003 an inter

pretation afARB No 51 The FSP is effective far reporting

periads annual or interim ending after December 15 2008

Because the FSP amends only the disclosure requirements

the adaption of the FSP did nut affect our consolidated finan

cial results Far additional information see Note

On September 12 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 133-1

and FIN 45-4 This FSP is intended to improve disclosures

about credit derivatives by requiring mare information about

the potential adverse effects of changes in credit risk an the

financial position financial performance and cash flaws of

the sellers af credit derivatives It amends FAS 133

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

to require disclosures by sellers of credit derivatives includ

ing credit derivatives embedded in hybrid instruments The

FSP also amends FIN 45 Guarantors Accounting and

Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees Including Indirect

Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others an interpretation of

FASB Statements Na and 107 and rescission of FASB

Interpretation Na 34 to require an additional disclosure

about the current status of the payment/performance risk of

guarantee The provisions of the FSP that amend FAS 133

and FIN 45 are effective for reporting periods annual or

interim ending after November 15 2008 Because the FSP

amends only the disclosure requirements for credit deriva

tives and certain guarantees the adoption of the FSP did not

affect our consolidated financial results

On January 12 2009 the FASB issued FSP EITF 99-20-1

which amends EITF 9920 Recognition of Interest Income and

Impairment an Purchased Beneficial Interests and Beneficial

Interests That Continue to Be Held by Transferor in

Securitized Financial Assets EITF 99-20 to achieve mare

consistent determinations of whether other-than-temporary

impairments of available-far-sale or held-ta-maturity debt

securities have occurred The provisions of the FSP are to be

applied prospectively and are considered effective far report

ing periods annual or interim ending after December 15

2008 Beginning with our fourth quarter 2008 results based

on this FSP guidance we recorded no ether-than-temporary

impairment for certain EITF 99-20 securities that otherwise

may have been considered impaired

The following is description of our significant account

ing policies

Bisiiies torihiiiatiois

business combination occurs when an entity acquires net

assets that constitute business or acquires equity interests

92



in one or more other entities that are businesses and obtains

control over those entities Business combinations may be

effected through the transfer of consideration such as cash

other financial or nonfinancial assets debt or common or

preferred shares The assets and liabilities of an acquired

entity or business are recorded at their respective fair values

as of the closing date of the merger Fair values are prelimi

nary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the

closing date of
merger as information relative to closing

date fair values becomes available The results of operations

of an acquired entity are included in our consolidated results

from the closing date of the merger and prior periods are not

restated All business combinations are accounted for using

the purchase method

The purchase price of an acquired entity or business to

the extent the proceeds include our common stock is based

on the weighted average closing prices of our common stock

for period two trading days before the announcement and

two trading days after the announcement of the merger

which includes the announcement date

To the extent that an acquired entitys employees hold

stock options such options are typically converted into our

options at the applicable exchange ratio for the common

stock and the exercise price is adjusted accordingly The fair

values of such options are determined using the Black

Scholes option pricing model with market assumptions For

vested options including those that fully vested upon change

in control the fair value is included as component of the

purchase price For options that continue to vest post-merger

the fair value is amortized in accordance with our policies for

stock-based compensation as described herein

Certain of the accounting for business combinations as

described herein will change upon the adoption of FAS 141

revised 2007 Business Combinotion% which is effective for

business combinations consummated on or after January 2009

on solidat ion

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts

of the Parent and our majority-owned subsidiaries and vari

able interest entities VIEs defined below in which we are

the primary beneficiary Significant intercompany accounts

and transactions are eliminated in consolidation If we own at

least 20% of an entity we generally account for the invest

ment using the equity method If we own less than 20% of an

entity we generally carry the investment at cost except mar
ketable equity securities which we carry at fair value with

changes in fair value included in other comprehensive

income Investments accounted for under the equity or cost

method are included in other assets

We are variable interest holder in certain special-pur

pose entities in which equity investors do not have the char

acteristics of controlling financial interest or where the

entity does not have enough equity at risk to finance its activ

ities without additional subordinated financial support from

other parties referred to as VIEs Our variable interest aris

es from contractual ownership or other monetary interests in

the entity which change with fluctuations in the entitys net

asset value We consolidate VIE if we are the primary bene

ficiary defined as the entity that will absorb majority of the

entitys expected losses receive majority of the entitys

expected residual returns or both

Hnj 4n..tc

Trading assets are primarily securities including corporate

debt U.S government agency obligations and other securi

ties that we acquire for short-term appreciation or other trad

ing purposes and the fair value of derivatives held for cus

tomer accommodation purposes or proprietary trading

Trading assets are carried at fair value with realized and

unrealized gains and losses recorded in noninterest income

Noninterest income from trading assets was $275 million in

2008 and $544 million in 2007 and 2006

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE Debt securities that we might

not hold until maturity and marketable equity securities are

classified as securities available for sale and reported at fair

value Unrealized gains and losses after applicable taxes are

reported in cumulative other comprehensive income Fair

value measurement is based upon quoted prices if available If

quoted prices are not available fair values are measured using

independent pricing models or other model-based valuation

techniques such as the present value of future cash flows

adjusted for the securitys credit rating prepayment assump

tions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions

We conduct other-than-temporary impairment analysis on

quarterly basis or more often if potential loss-triggering

event occurs We recognize other-than-temporary impair

ment when it is probable that we will be unable to collect all

amounts due according to the contractual terms of the security

and the fair value of the investment security is less than its

amortized cost The other-than-temporary impairment loss is

recorded in noninterest income The initial indicator of other-

than-temporary impairment for both debt and equity securi

ties is decline in market value below the amount recorded

for an investment and the severity and duration of the

decline In determining whether an impairment is other than

temporary we consider the length of time and the extent to

which market value has been less than cost any recent

events specific to the issuer and economic conditions of its

industry and our ability and intent to hold the investment for

period of time including maturity sufficient to allow for

any anticipated recovery in the fair value of the security

We hold investments in perpetual preferred securities

PPS that are structured in equity form but have many of the

characteristics of debt instruments including periodic cash

flows in the form of dividends call features ratings that are

similar to debt securities and pricing like long-term callable

bonds The table on page 104 includes the gross unrealized

losses and fair value of our investments in PPS by the length

of time they have been in continuous loss position Of our

total gross unrealized losses at December 31 2008 $327 million

or approximately 3% related to PPS
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Because of the hybrid nature of these securities we evalu

ate PPS for other-than-temporary impairment using the

model we use for debt securities as described above Among

the factors we consider in our evaluation of PPS are whether

there is any evidence of deterioration in the credit of the

issuer as indicated by decline in cash flows or rating

agency downgrade and the estimated recovery period

Additionally in determining if there was evidence of credit

deterioration we evaluate the severity of decline in mar

ket value below cost the period of time for which the

decline in fair value has existed and the financial condi

tion and near-term prospects of the issuer including any spe

cific events which may influence the operations of the issuer

We consider PPS to be impaired on an other-than-temporary

basis if it is probable that the issuer will be unable to make its

contractual payments or if we no longer believe the security

will recover within the estimated recovery period

In 20n8 we recorded $1n57 million of other-than-tempo

rary impairment on PPS issued by Government Sponsored

Enterprises and corporations None of our investments in

PPS that have not been impaired had been downgraded below

investment grade and management believes that there are no

factors to suggest that we will not fully realize our investment

in these instruments over reasonable recovery period

For marketable equity securities we also consider the

issuers financial condition capital strength and near-term

prospects

For debt securities and for PPS which are treated as

debt securities for the purpose of other-than-temporary

impairment we also consider

the cause of the price decline such as the general level of

interest rates and industry and issuer-specific factors

the issuers financial condition near-term prospects and

current ability to make future payments in timely manner

the issuers ability to service debt

any change in agencies ratings at evaluation date from

acquisition date and any likely imminent action and

for asset-backed securities the credit performance of the

underlying collateral including delinquency rates cumu

lative losses to date and the remaining credit enhance

ment compared to expected credit losses

The securities portfolio is an integral part of our

asset/liability management process We manage these

investments to provide liquidity manage interest rate risk

and maximize portfolio yield within capital risk limits

approved by management and the Board of Directors and

monitored by the Corporate Asset/Liability Management

Committee Corporate ALCO We recognize realized gains

and losses on the sale of these securities in noninterest

income using the specific identification method

Unamortized premiums and discounts are recognized in

interest income over the contractual life of the security using

the interest method As principal repayments are received on

securities i.e primarily mortgage-backed securities pro

rata portion of the unamortized premium or discount is rec

ognized in interest income

NONMARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES Nonmarketable equity

securities include venture capital equity securities that are not

publicly traded and securities acquired for various purposes

such as to meet regulatory requirements for example Federal

Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock These

securities are accounted for under the cost or equity method

or are carried at fair value and are included in other assets

We review those assets accounted for under the cost or equity

method at least quarterly for possible other-than-temporary

impairment Our review typically includes an analysis of the

facts and circumstances of each investment the expectations

for the investments cash flows and capital needs the viability

of its business model and our exit strategy We reduce the

asset value when we consider declines in value to be other

than temporary We recognize the estimated loss as loss

from equity investments in noninterest income

Nonmarketable equity securities that fall within the scope

of the AICPA Investment Company Audit Guide are carried at

fair value principal investments Principal investments

including certain public equity and non-public securities and

certain investments in private equity funds are recorded at

fair value with realized and unrealized gains and losses

included in gains and losses on equity investments in the

income statement and are included in other assets in the bal

ance sheet Public equity investments are valued using quoted

market prices and discounts are only applied when there are

trading restrictions that are an attribute of the investment

Private direct investments are valued using metrics such

as security prices of comparable public companies acquisi

tion prices for similar companies and original investment

purchase price multiples while also incorporating portfolio

companys financial performance and specific factors For

certain fund investments where the best estimates of fair

value were primarily determined based upon fund sponsor

data we use the net asset value NAy provided by the fund

sponsor as an appropriate measure of fair value In some

cases such NAVs require adjustments based on certain unob

servable inputs In situations where portion of an invest

ment in non-public security or fund is sold we recognize

realized gain or loss on the portion sold and an unrealized

gain or loss on the portion retained

Securities Purchased arid Sold Agreements

Securities purchased under resale agreements and securities

sold under repurchase agreements are generally accounted

for as collateralized financing transactions and are recorded

at the acquisition or sale price plus accrued interest It is our

policy to take possession of securities purchased under resale

agreements which are primarily U.S Government and

Government agency securities We monitor the market value

of securities purchased and sold and obtain collateral from or

return it to counterparties when appropriate

Mortgages Held for Sale

Mortgages held for sale MHFS include commercial and res

idential mortgages originated for sale and securitization in

the secondary market which is our principal market or for
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sale as whole loans Effective January 2007 in connection

with the adoption of FAS 159 The Foir Volue Option for

Finonciol Assets ond Financiol Liobilities including on omend

ment of FASB Stotement No 115 FAS 159 we elected to mea

sure new prime residential MHFS at fair value see Note 17

Nonprime residential and commercial MHFS continue to

he held at the lower of cost or market value For these loans

gains and losses on loan sales sales proceeds minus carrying

value are recorded in noninterest income Direct loan origi

nation costs and fees are deferred at origination of the loans

and are recognized in mortgage banking noninterest income

upon sale of the loan

Our lines of business are authorized to originate held-for-

investment loans that meet or exceed established loan prod

uct profitability criteria including minimum positive net

interest margin spreads in excess of funding costs When

determination is made at the time of commitment to originate

loans as held for investment it is our intent to hold these

loans to maturity or for the foreseeable future subject to

periodic review under our corporate asset/liability manage
ment process In determining the foreseeable future for

these loans management considers the current economic

environment and market conditions our business strategy

and current business plans the nature and type of the loan

receivable including its expected life and our current

financial condition and liquidity demands Consistent with our

core banking business of managing the spread between the

yield on our assets and the cost of our funds loans are period

ically reevaluated to determine if our minimum net interest

margin spreads continue to meet our profitability objectives

If subsequent changes in interest rates significantly impact

the ongoing profitability of certain loan products we may sub

sequently change our intent to hold these loans and we would

take actions to sell such loans in response to the Corporate

ALCO directives to reposition our balance sheet because of

the changes in interest rates Such Corporate ALCO directives

identify both the type of loans for example 3/1 5/1 io/i and

relationship adjustable-rate mortgages ARMs as well as spe

cific fixed-rate loans to be sold and the weighted-average

coupon rate of such loans no longer meeting our ongoing

investment criteria Upon the issuance of such directives we

immediately transfer these loans to the MHFS portfolio at the

lower of cost or market value

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market

value LOCOM or fair value under FAS 159 For loans

carried at LOCOM gains and losses on loan sales sales

proceeds minus carrying value are recorded in noninterest

income and direct loan origination costs and fees are

deferred at origination of the loan and are recognized in

noninterest income upon sale of the loan

Loans

Loans are reported at their outstanding principal balances net

of any unearned income charge-offs unamortized deferred

fees and costs on originated loans and premiums or discounts

on purchased loans except for certain purchased loans that

fall under the scope of SOP 03-3 which are recorded at fair

value on their purchase date See Loans accounted for under

SOP 03-3 on page 96 Unearned income deferred fees and

costs and discounts and premiums are amortized to income

over the contractual life of the loan using the interest method

We offer portfolio product known as relationship

adjustable-rate mortgages ARMs that provides interest rate

reductions to reward eligible banking customers who have an

existing relationship or establish new relationship with

Wells Fargo Accordingly this product offering is generally

underwritten to certain Company guidelines rather than

secondary market standards and is typically originated for

investment At December 31 2008 and 2007 we had $15.6 bil

lion and $15.4 billion respectively of relationship ARMs in

loans held for investment Originations net of collections and

proceeds from the sale of these loans are reflected as invest

ing cash flows consistent with their original classification

Loans also include direct financing leases that are recorded

at the aggregate of minimum lease payments receivable plus

the estimated residual value of the leased property less

unearned income Leveraged leases which are form of

direct financing leases are recorded net of related nonre

course debt Leasing income is recognized as constant per

centage of outstanding lease financing balances over the

lease terms

Loan commitment fees are generally deferred and amor

tized into noninterest income on straight-line basis over the

commitment period

We pledge loans to secure borrowings from the Federal

Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank as part of our

liquidity management strategy At December 31 2008 loans

pledged where the secured party has the right to sell or

repledge totaled $201 billion and loans pledged where the

secured party does not have the right to sell or repledge

totaled $137 billion

NONACCRUAL LOANS We generally place loans on nonaccrual

status when

the full and timely collection of interest or principal

becomes uncertain

they are 90 days 120 days with respect to real estate 1-4

family first and junior lien mortgages and auto loans past

due for interest or principal unless both well-secured and

in the process of collection or

part of the principal balance has been charged off

Loans subject to SOP 03-3 are written down to an amount

estimated to be collectible Accordingly such loans are no

longer classified as nonaccrual even though they may be con

tractually past due because we expect to fully collect the new

carrying values of such loans that is the new cost basis aris

ing out of purchase accounting

Generally consumer loans not secured by real estate or

autos are placed on nonaccrual status only when part of the

principal has been charged off These loans are charged off or

charged down to the net realizable value of the collateral

when deemed uncollectible due to bankruptcy or other fac
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tors or when they reach defined number of days past due

based on loan product industry practice country terms and

other factors

When we place loan on nonaccrual status we reverse the

accrued unpaid interest receivable against interest income

and account for the loan on the cash or cost recovery method

until it qualifies for return to accrual status Generally we

return loan to accrual status when all delinquent interest

and principal become current under the terms of the loan

agreement or the loan is both well-secured and in the

process of collection and collectibility is no longer doubtful

Loan Charge-Off Policies

For commercial loans we generally fully or partially charge

down to the fair value of collateral securing the asset when

management judges the asset to be uncollectible

repayment is deemed to be protracted beyond reasonable

time frames

the asset has been classified as loss by either our inter

nal loan review process or external examiners

the customer has filed bankruptcy and the loss becomes

evident owing to lack of assets or

the loan is iSo days past due unless both well secured and

in the process of collection

For consumer loans our charge-off policies are as follows

1-4 FAMILY FIRST AND JUNIOR LIEN MORTGAGES We generally

charge down to the net realizable value when the loan is 180

days past due

AUTO LOANS We generally charge down to the net realizable

value when the loan is 120 days past due

UNSECURED LOANS CLOSED END We generally charge-off

when the loan is 120 days past due

UNSECURED LOANS OPEN-END We generally charge-off when

the loan is i8o days past due

CREDIT CARD LOANS We generally fully charge-off when the

loan is i8o days past due

OTHER SECURED LOANS We generally fully or partially charge

down to the net realizable value when the loan is 120 days

past due

IMPAIRED LOANS We consider loan to be impaired when

based on current information and events we determine that

we will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the

loan contract including scheduled interest payments We

assess and account for as impaired certain nonaccrual com

mercial and commercial real estate loans that are over mil

lion and certain consumer commercial and commercial real

estate loans whose terms have been modified in troubled

debt restructuring

When we identify loan as impaired we measure the

impairment based on the present value of expected future

cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate

except when the sole remaining source of repayment for the

loan is the operation or liquidation of the collateral In these

cases we use an observable market price or the current fair

value of the collateral less selling costs when foreclosure is

probable instead of discounted cash flows

If we determine that the value of the impaired loan is less

than the recorded investment in the loan net of previous

charge-offs deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized pre

mium or discount we recognize impairment through an

allowance estimate or charge-off to the allowance

In situations where for economic or legal reasons related

to borrowers financial difficulties we grant concession

to the borrower that we would not otherwise consider the

related loan is classified as troubled debt restructuring

The restructuring of loan may include the transfer from

the borrower to the company of real estate receivables from

third parties other assets or an equity interest in the borrower

in full or partial satisfaction of the loan modification of

the loan terms or combination of the above

In cases where we grant the borrower new terms that pro

vide for reduction of either interest or principal we mea

sure any loss on the restructuring in accordance with the

guidance concerning impaired loans set forth in FAS 114

Accounting by Creditors for the Impoirment of Loon on

amendment of FASB Stotements No.5 and 15

ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES The allowance for credit loss

es which consists of the allowance for loan losses and the

reserve for unfunded credit commitments is managements

estimate of credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the

balance sheet date

LOANS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER SOP 03-3 Loans acquired by

completion of transfer or in business combination includ

ing those acquired from Wachovia where there is evidence of

credit deterioration since origination and it is probable at the

date of acquisition that we will not collect all contractually

required principal and interest payments are accounted for

under SOP 03-3 SOP 03-3 requires that acquired credit-

impaired loans be recorded at fair value and prohibits carry

over of the related allowance for loan losses Some loans that

otherwise meet the definition as credit impaired are specifi

cally excluded from the scope of SOP 03-3 such as revolving

loans where the borrower still has revolving privileges

Evidence of credit quality deterioration as of the purchase

date may include statistics such as past due and nonaccrual

status recent borrower credit scores and recent loan-to-value

percentages Generally acquired loans that meet our defini

tion for nonaccrual status fall within the scope of SOP 03-3

Loans within the scope of SOP 03-3 are initially recorded

at fair value The application of the SOP and the process esti

mating fair value involves estimating the principal and inter

est cash flows expected to be collected on the credit impaired

loans and discounting those cash flows at market rate of

interest

Under SOP 03-3 the excess of cash flows expected at

acquisition over the estimated fair value is referred to as the

accretable yield and is recognized into interest income over

the remaining life of the loan in situations where there is

96



reasonable expectation about the timing and amount of cash

flows to be collected The difference between contractually

required payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected

to be collected at acquisition considering the impact of pre

payments is referred to as the nonaccretable difference

Subsequent decreases to the expected cash flows will generally

result in charge to the provision for credit losses resulting

in an increase to the allowance for loan losses Subsequent

increases in cash flows result in reversal of nonaccretable

discount or allowance for loan losses to the extent any had

been recorded with positive impact on interest income

Disposals of loans which may include sales of loans receipt

of payments in full by the borrower foreclosure or troubled

debt restructurings result in removal of the loan from the

Sop 03-3 portfolio at its carrying amount

Loans subject to SOP 03-3 are written down to an amount

estimated to be collectible Accordingly such loans are no

longer classified as nonaccrual even though they may be con

tractually past due We expect to fully collect the new carry

ing values of such loans that is the new cost basis arising

out of purchase accounting If loan or pool of loans dete

riorates post acquisition provision for loan losses is record

ed to increase the allowance for loan losses Loans subject to

SOP 03-3 are also excluded from the disclosure of loans 90

days or more past due and still accruing interest Even

though substantially all of them are 90 days or more contrac

tually past due they are considered to be accruing because

the interest income on these loans relates to the establish

ment of an accretable yield in accordance with SOP 03-3

Securitizations and Beneficial Interests

In certain asset securitization transactions that meet the

applicable criteria to be accounted for as sale assets are sold

to an entity referred to as qualifying special purpose entity

QSPE which then issues beneficial interests in the form of

senior and subordinated interests collateralized by the assets

In some cases we may retain up to 90% of the beneficial inter

ests Additionally from time to time we may also resecuritize

certain assets in new securitization transaction

The assets and liabilities sold to QSPE are excluded from

our consolidated balance sheet subject to quarterly evalua

tion to ensure the entity continues to meet the requirements to

be QSPE If our portion of the beneficial interests equals or

exceeds 90% QSPE would no longer qualify for off-balance

sheet treatment and we may be required to consolidate the

SPE subject to determining whether the entity is VIE and to

determining who is the primary beneficiary In these cases any

beneficial interests that we previously held are derecognized

from the balance sheet and we record the underlying assets

and liabilities of the SPE at fair value to the extent interests

were previously held by outside parties

The carrying amount of the assets transferred to QSPE

excluding servicing rights is allocated between the assets

sold and the retained interests based on their relative fair val

ues at the date of transfer We record gain or loss in other

fee income for the difference between the carrying amount

and the fair value of the assets sold Fair values are based on

quoted market prices quoted market prices for similar assets

or if market prices are not available then the fair value is esti

mated using discounted cash flow analyses with assumptions

for credit losses prepayments and discount rates that are cor

roborated by and independently verified against market

observable data where possible Retained interests from secu

ritizations with off-balance sheet entities including QSPEs and

VIEs where we are the primary beneficiary are classified as

either available-for-sale securities trading account assets or

loans and are accounted for as described herein

Mortgage Servicing Rights

Under FAS 156 Accounting for Servicing ofFinonciol Assets

on omendment of EASE Statement No 14Q servicing rights

resulting from the sale or securitization of loans we originate

asset transfers are initially measured at fair value at the date

of transfer We recognize the rights to service mortgage loans

for others or mortgage servicing rights MSRs as assets

whether we purchase the MSRs or the MSRs result from an

asset transfer We determine the fair value of servicing rights

at the date of transfer using the present value of estimated

future net servicing income using assumptions that market

participants use in their estimates of values We use quoted

market prices when available to determine the value of other

interests held Gain or loss on sale of loans depends on

proceeds received and the previous carrying amount of the

financial assets transferred and any interests we continue to

hold such as interest-only strips based on relative fair value

at the date of transfer

To determine the fair value of MSRs we use valuation

model that calculates the present value of estimated future net

servicing income We use assumptions in the valuation model

that market participants use in estimating future net servicing

income including estimates of prepayment speeds including

housing price volatility discount rate default rates cost to

service including delinquency and foreclosure costs escrow

account earnings contractual servicing fee income ancillary

income and late fees This model is validated by an indepen

dent internal model validation group operating in accordance

with model validation policy approved by the Corporate

Asset/Liability Management Committee Corporate ALCO

MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE We
have elected to initially measure and carry our MSRs related

to residential mortgage loans residential MSRs using the

fair value method Under the fair value method these resi

dential MSRs are carried in the balance sheet at fair value

and the changes in fair value primarily due to changes in

valuation inputs and assumptions and to the collection/

realization of expected cash flows are reported in nonin

terest income in the period in which the change occurs

AMORTIZED MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS Amortized MSRs

which include commercial MSRs are carried at the lower of

cost or market value These MSRs are amortized in proportion

to and over the period of estimated net servicing income The

amortization of MSRs is analyzed monthly and is adjusted to

reflect changes in prepayment speeds as well as other factors
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Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated

depreciation and amortization Capital leases are included in

premises and equipment at the capitalized amount less accu

mulated amortization

We primarily use the straight-line method of depreciation

and amortization Estimated useful lives range up to 40 years

for buildings up to 10 years for furniture and equipment and

the shorter of the estimated useful life or lease term for lease

hold improvements We amortize capitalized leased assets on

straight-line basis over the lives of the respective leases

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets

Goodwill is recorded in business combinations under the pur

chase method of accounting when the purchase price is high

er than the fair value of net assets including identifiable

intangible assets

We assess goodwill for impairment annually and more

frequently in certain circumstances We assess goodwill for

impairment on reporting unit level by applying fair-value-

based test using discounted estimated future net cash flows

Impairment exists when the carrying amount of the goodwill

exceeds its implied fair value We recognize impairment loss

es as charge to noninterest expense unless related to dis

continued operations and an adjustment to the carrying

value of the goodwill asset Subsequent reversals of goodwill

impairment are prohibited

We amortize core deposit and other customer relationship

intangibles on an accelerated basis based on useful lives not

exceeding 10 yoars We review such intangibles for impair

ment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable

Impairment is indicated if the sum of undiscounted estimated

future net cash flows is less than the carrying value of the

asset Impairment is permanently recognized by writing

down the asset to the extent that the carrying value exceeds

the estimated fair value

Operating Lease Assets

Operating lease rental income for leased assets is recognized

in other income on straight-line basis over the lease term

Related depreciation expense is recorded on straight-line

basis over the life of the lease taking into account the esti

mated residual value of the leased asset On periodic basis

leased assets are reviewed for impairment Impairment loss is

recognized if the carrying amount of leased assets exceeds

fair value and is not recoverable The carrying amount of

leased assets is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the

undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the lease

payments and the estimated residual value upon the eventual

disposition of the equipment Leased assets are written down

to the fair value of the collateral less cost to sell when 120

days past due

Pension Accounting

We account for our defined benefit pension plans using an

actuarial model required by FAS 87 EmployersAccounting for

Pensions as amended by FAS 158 EmployersAccounting far

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans on

amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R
This model allocates pension costs aver the service period of

employees in the plan The underlying principle is that

employees render service ratably over this period and there

fore the income statement effects of pensions should follow

similar pattern

FAS 158 was issued on September 29 2006 and became

effective for us an December 31 2006 FAS 158 requires us to

recognize the funded status of our pension and postretire

ment benefit plans on our balance sheet Additionally FAS

158 requires us to use year-end measurement date begin

ning in 2008 We conformed our pension asset and our pen

sion and postretirement liabilities to FAS i8 and recorded

corresponding reduction of $402 million after tax to the

December 31 2006 balance of cumulative other comprehen

sive income in stockholders equity FAS 158 does nut change

the amount of net periodic benefit expense recognized in our

income statement

One of the principal components of the net periodic pen

sion expense calculation is the expected long-term rate of

return on plan assets The use of an expected long-term rate

of return on plan assets may cause us to recognize pension

income returns that are greater or less than the actual returns

of plan assets in any given year

The expected long-term rate of return is designed to

approximate the actual long-term rate of return over time and

is not expected to change significantly Therefore the pattern

of income/expense recognition should closely match the stable

pattern of services provided by our employees over the life of

our pension obligation To ensure that the expected rate of

return is reasonable we consider such factors as long-term

historical return experience for major asset class categories

for example large cap and small cap domestic equities

international equities and domestic fixed income and

forward-looking return expectations for these major asset

classes Differences between expected and actual returns in

each year
if any are included in our net actuarial gain or loss

amount which is recognized in other comprehensive income

We generally amortize any net actuarial gain or loss in

excess of 5% corridor as defined in FAS 87 in net periodic

pension expense calculations over the next five years

We use discount rate to determine the present value of

our future benefit obligations The discount rate reflects the

rates available at the measurement date on long-term high-

quality fixed-income debt instruments and is reset annually

on the measurement date In 2008 we changed our measure

ment date from November 30 to December 31 as required

under FAS 158

Income Taxes

We file consolidated and separate company federal income

tax returns foreign tax returns and various combined and

separate company state tax returns

We account for income taxes in accordance with FAS 109

Accounting for Income Taxes as interpreted by FASB
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Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income

Toxes on interpretotion of FASB Statement No iog FIN 48
resulting in two components of income tax expense current

and deferred Current income tax expense approximates

taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period and

includes income tax expense related to our uncertain tax

positions We determine deferred income taxes using the bal

ance sheet method Under this method the net deferred tax

asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences

between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities and

recognizes enacted changes in tax rates and laws in the period

in which they occur Deferred income tax expense results

from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between

periods Deferred tax assets are recognized subject to man

agements judgment that realization is more likely than not

tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition

threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to

recognize The tax position is measured at the largest amount

of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon

settlement Foreign taxes paid are generally applied as credits

to reduce federal income taxes payable Interest and penalties

are recognized as component of income tax expense

Stock-Based Compensation

We have stock-based employee compensation plans as more

fully discussed in Note 19 Under FAS 123R Shore -Based

Poyment compensation cost recognized includes compen
sation cost for share-based payments granted prior to but not

yet vested as of January 2006 based on the grant date fair

value estimated in accordance with FAS 123 and compen
sation cost for all share-based awards granted on or after

January 2006 In calculating the common stock equivalents

for purposes of diluted earnings per share we selected the

transition method provided by FASB Staff Position FAS

123R-3 Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax

Effects of Shore-Based Payment Awards

Earnings Per Common Share

We compute earnings per common share by dividing net

income after deducting dividends on preferred stock by the

average number of common shares outstanding during the

year We compute diluted earnings per common share by

dividing net income after deducting dividends and related

accretion on preferred stock by the average number of com

mon shares outstanding during the year plus the effect of

common stock equivalents for example stock options

restricted share rights convertible debentures and warrants

that are dilutive

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

We recognize all derivatives in the balance sheet at fair

value On the date we enter into derivative contract we des

ignate the derivative as hedge of the fair value of rec

ognized asset or liability including hedges of foreign curren

cy exposure fair value hedge hedge of forecasted

transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received

or paid related to recognized asset or liability cash flow

hedge or held for trading customer accommodation or

asset/liability risk management purposes including economic

hedges not qualifying for hedge accounting under FAS 33

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

free-standing derivative For fair value hedge we record

changes in the fair value of the derivative and to the extent

that it is effective changes in the fair value of the hedged

asset or liability attributable to the hedged risk in current

period earnings in the same financial statement category as

the hedged item For cash flow hedge we record changes in

the fair value of the derivative to the extent that it is effective

in other comprehensive income with any ineffectiveness

recorded in current period earnings We subsequently reclas

sify these changes in fair value to net income in the same

periods that the hedged transaction affects net income in

the same financial statement category as the hedged item For

free-standing derivatives we report changes in the fair values

in current period noninterest income

For fair value and cash flow hedges qualifying for hedge

accounting under FAS 133 we formally document at incep

tion the relationship between hedging instruments and

hedged items our risk management objective strategy and

our evaluation of effectiveness for our hedge transactions

This includes linking all derivatives designated as fair value

or cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities in the

balance sheet or to specific forecasted transactions

Periodically as required we also formally assess whether the

derivative we designated in each hedging relationship is

expected to be and has been highly effective in offsetting

changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item using

the regression analysis method or in limited cases the dollar

offset method

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when

derivative is no longer highly effective in offsetting

changes in the fair value or cash flows of hedged item

derivative expires or is sold terminated or exercised

derivative is de-designated as hedge because it is unlikely

that forecasted transaction will occur or we determine

that designation of derivative as hedge is no longer

appropriate

When we discontinue hedge accounting because deriva

tive no longer qualifies as an effective fair value hedge we

continue to carry the derivative in the balance sheet at its fair

value with changes in fair value included in earnings and no

longer adjust the previously hedged asset or liability for

changes in fair value Previous adjustments to the hedged

item are accounted for in the same manner as other compo
nents of the carrying amount of the asset or liability

When we discontinue cash flow hedge accounting because

the hedging instrument is sold terminated or no longer des

ignated de-designated the amount reported in other com

prehensive income up to the date of sale termination or de

designation continues to be reported in other comprehensive

income until the forecasted transaction affects earnings

When we discontinue cash flow hedge accounting because

it is probable that forecasted transaction will not occur we

continue to carry the derivative in the balance sheet at its fair
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value with changes in fair value included in earnings and

immediately recognize gains and losses that were accumulated

in other comprehensive income in earnings

In all other situations in which we discontinue hedge

accounting the derivative will be carried at its fair value in

the balance sheet with changes in its fair value recognized in

current period earnings

We occasionally purchase or originate financial instru

ments that contain an embedded derivative At inception of

the financial instrument we assess if the economic char

acteristics of the embedded derivative aro not clearly and

closely related to the economic characteristics of the finan

cial instrument host contract if the financial instrument

that embodies both the embedded derivative and the host

contract is not measured at fair value with changes in fair

value reported in earnings and if separate instrument

with tho same terms as the embedded instrument would meet

the definition of derivative If the embedded derivative

meets all of those conditions we separate it from the host

contract by recording the bifurcated derivative at fair value

and the remaining host contract at the difference between the

basis of the hybrid instrument and the fair value of the bifur

cated derivative The bifurcated derivative is carried as

free-standing derivative at fair value with changes recorded

in current period earnings

Note Business Combinations

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the earnings process is com

plete generally on the trade date and collectability is

assured Specifically brokerage commission fees are recog

nized in income on trade date basis We accrue asset man

agement fees measured by assets at particular date as

earned We recognize advisory and underwriting foes when

the related transaction is complete We record commission

expenses when the related revenue is recognized

For derivative contracts we recognize gains and losses at

inception only if the fair value of the contract is evidenced by

quoted market price in an active market an observable

price of other market transactions or other observable data

supporting valuation technique For those gains and losses

that are not evidenced by market data we use the transaction

price as the fair value of the contract and do not recognize

any gain or loss at inception Any gains or losses not meeting

the criteria for initial recognition are deferred and recognized

when realized

On December 31 2008 we acquired all outstanding shares of

Wachovia Corporation Wachovia common stock in stock-

for-stock transaction Wachovia based in Charlotte North

Carolina was one of the nations largest diversified financial

services companies providing broad range of retail bank

ing and brokerage asset and wealth management and corpo

rate and investment banking products and services to cus

tomers through 3300 financial centers in 21 states from

Connecticut to Florida and west to Texas and California and

nationwide retail brokerage mortgage lending and auto

finance businesses In tho merger Wells Fargo exchanged

0.1991 shares of its common stock for each outstanding share

of Wachovia common stock issuing total of 422.7 million

sharos of Wells Fargo common stock with December 31

2008 value of $12.5 billion to Wachovia shareholders Shares

of each outstanding series of Wachovia proferred stock were

converted into shares or fractional shares of correspond

ing series of Wells Fargo preferred stock having substantially

the same rights and preferences Because the acquisition was

completed at the end of 2008 Wachovias results of opera

tions for 2008 are not included in our income statement

The Wachovia acquisition was accounted for under the

purchase method of accounting in accordance with FAS 141

The statement of net assets acquired as of December 31 2008

purchase price and the computation of goodwill related to the

merger of Wells Fargo and Wachovia are presented in the

following table

The assets and liabilities of Wachovia were recorded at

their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable

intangible assets were recorded at fair value Because the

transaction closed on the last day of the annual reporting period

certain fair value purchase accounting adjustments were based

on data as of an interim period with estimates through year end

Accordingly we will be re-validating and where necessary

refining our purchase accounting adjustments We expect that

the refinements will focus largely on loans with evidence of

credit deterioration The impact of any changes will be recorded

as an adjustment to goodwill Additional exit reserves related

to costs associated with involuntary employee termination

contract termination penalties and closing duplicate facilities

will be recorded within the next year as part of the further

integration of Wachovias employees locations and operations

with Wells Fargo At December 31 2008 $199 million of exit

reserves in connection with managements finalized integration

plans have been allocated to the purchase price and included

in the following table

The pro forma consolidated condensed statements of

income for Wells Fargo and Wachovia for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 are presented on the following

page The unaudited pro forma information presented does

not necessarily reflect the results of operations that would

have resulted had the merger been completed at the begin

ning of the applicable periods presented nor does it indicate

the results of operations in future periods
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The pro forma purchase accounting adjustments related recorded as noninterest expense over their respective

to loans and leases bank-owned life insurance deposits and estimated lives using accelerated methods The pro forma

long-term debt are being accreted or amortized into income consolidated condensed statements of income do not reflect

using methods that approximate level yield over their any adjustments to Wachovias historical provision for credit

respective estimated lives Purchase accounting adjustments losses and goodwill impairment charges

related to identifiable intangibles are being amortized and

Statement of Net Assets Aquired at fair value

in millions December 312008

ASSETS Purchase Price and Goodwill

Cash and cash equivalents $109534 Purchase price

Trading account assets 44102 Value of common shares 14621

Securities 67356 Value of preferred shares 8409

Loans 450967 Other value of share based awards

Allowance for loan losses 7487 and direct acquisition costs 62

Loans net 443480 Total purchase price 23092

Goodwill 8802 Allocation of the purchase price

Other intangible assets Wachovia tangible stockholders equity

Core deposit intangible 11625 less prior purchase accounting adjustments

Brokerage relationship intangible 1260 and other basis adjustments eliminated in

Other relationship intangibles 1855 purchase accounting 19394

Other assets 18507 Adjustments to reflect assets acquired and

Total assets 706521 liabilities assumed at fair value

Loans and leases net 16397
LIABILITIES Premises and equipment net 456

Deposits 426126 Intangible assets 14740
Short-term borrowings 69383 Other assets 3444
Other liabilities 27962 Deposits 4434
Long-term debt 159958 Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities 683429 exit termination and other liabilities 1599

Net assets acquired 23092 Long-term debt 190

Deferred taxes 6676

Fair value of net assets acquired 14290

Goodwill resulting from the merger 8802

Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statements of Income Unaudited

in millions except per share data Year ended December 312008 Year ended December 312007

Wells Wachovia Pro forma Pro forma Wells Wachovia Pro forma Pro forma

Fargo adjustments combined Fargo adjustments combined

Interest income $34898 36867 2123 69642 $35177 $42231 2123 $75285

Interestexpense 9755 18329 2577 25507 j4f 24101 2577 35727

Net interest income 25143 18538 454 44135 20974 18130 454 39558

Provision for credit losses 15979 22431 38410 4939 2261
Net interest income

loss after provision

for credit losses 9164 3893 454 5725 16035 15869 454 32358

Noninterest income 16754 3875 20629 18416 13297 31713

Noninterest expense 22661 49017 2464 74142 22.824 20393 2464 45681

Income loss before

taxes benefit 3257 49035 2010 47788 11627 8773 2010 18390

Income taxes benefit 602 4711 746 J4 57O 2461 746 5285

Net income loss 2655 $44324 1264 $42933 8057 6312 1264 $13105

Net income loss applicable

to common stock 2369 $44873 1264 $j478 6312 1264 $13105

Earnings loss per

common share 0.70 21.50 11.54 2.41 3.31 3.52

Diluted earnings loss

per common share 0.70 21.50 11.54 2.38 3.26 3.48

Average common

shares outstanding 3378.1 2087.4 1671.8 3793.7 3348.5 19072 1527.5 3728.2

Diluted average common

shares outstanding 3391.3 2097.4 1679.8 3808.9 3382.8 1934.2 1549.2 3767.8

111 For 2008 includes $2.7 billion and $1.2 billion recorded by Wells Fargo and Wachovia respectively to conform credit reserve practices of both companies

121 For 2008 includes goodwill impairment of $24.8 billion recorded by Wachovia on historical basis
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We regularly explore opportunities to acquire financial In addition to the Wachovia acquisition business combinations

services companies and businesses Generally we do not make completed in 2008 2007 and 2006 are presented below

public announcement about an acquisition opportunity For information on additional consideration related to

until definitive agreement has been signed acquisitions which is considered to be guarantee see Note 15

in millions Date Assets

2008

Flatiron Credit Company Inc Denver Colorado April 30 332

Transcap Associates Inc Chicago Illinois June 27 22

United Bancorporation of Wyoming Inc Jackson Wyoming July 2110

Farmers State Bank of Fort Morgan Colorado Fort Morgan Colorado December 186

Century Bancshares Inc Dallas Texas December31 1604

Wells Fargo Merchant Services December31 1251

Other Various 52

5557

2007

Placer Sierra Bancshares Sacramento California June 2644

Certain assets of The CIT Group/Equipment Financing lnc.Tempe Arizona June 29 2888

Greater Bay Bancorp East Palo Alto California October 8204

Certain Illinois branches of National City Bank Cleveland Ohio December 61

Other Various 61

$1 3858

2006

Secured Capital Corp/Secured Capital LLC Los Angeles California January 18 132

Martinius Corporation Rogers Minnesota March 91

Commerce Funding Corporation Vienna Virginia April 17 82

Fremont National Bank of Canon City/Centennial Bank of Pueblo

Canon City and Pueblo Colorado June 201

Certain assets of the Reilly Mortgage Companies McLean Virginia August 303

Barrington Associates Los Angeles California October 65

EFC Partners LP Evergreen Funding DallasTexas December15 93

Other Various __2.Q

987

11 Consists of five affiliated banks of United Bancorporation of Wyoming Inc located in Wyoming and ldahoand certain assets and liabilities of United Bancorporation of Wyoming Inc

Represents step acquisition resulting from the increase in Wells Fargos ownership from 47.5% interest to 60% interest in the Wells Fargo Merchant Services LLC joint venture

31 Consists of twelve acquisitions of insurance brokerage businesses

Consists of six acquisitions of insurance brokerage and third party health care payment processing businesses

Consists of seven acquisitions of insurance brokerage businesses
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Note Cash Loan and Dividend Restrictions

Federal Reserve Board regulations require that each of our

subsidiary banks maintain reserve balances on deposit with

the Federal Reserve Banks The average required reserve

balance was $2.6 billion in 2008 and $2.0 billion in 2007

Federal law restricts the amouot and the terms of both

credit and non-credit transactions between bank and its

nonbank affiliates They may not exceed 10% of the banks

capital and surplus which for this purpose represents Tier

and Tier capital as calculated under the risk-based capital

guidelines plus the balance of the allowance for credit

losses excluded from Tier capital with any single nonbank

affiliate and 20% of the banks capital and surplus with all its

nonbank affiliates Transactions that are extensions of credit

may require collateral to be held to provide added security

to the bank For further discussion of risk-based capital

see Note 26

Dividends paid by our subsidiary banks are subject to

various federal and state regulatory limitations Dividends

that may be paid by national bank without the express

approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency

0CC are limited to that banks retained net profits for the

preceding two calendar years plus retained net profits up to

the date of any dividend declaration in the current calendar

year Retained net profits as defined by the 0CC consist

of net income less dividends declared during the period We

also have state-chartered subsidiary banks that are subject to

state regulations that limit dividends Under those provisions

our national and state-chartered subsidiary banks could have

declared additional dividends of $471 million at December 31

2008 without obtaining prior regulatory approval Our

nonbank subsidiaries are also limited by certain federal

and state statutory provisions and regulations covering the

amount of dividends that may be paid in any given year

Based on retained earnings at December 31 2008 our non-

bank subsidiaries could have declared additional dividends

of $3.2 billion at December 31 2008 without obtaining

prior approval

On October 28 2008 the Parent issued to the United

States Department of the Treasury 25000 shares of its

Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series

without par value Prior to October 28 2011 unless the Parent

has redeemed the Series Preferred Stock or the Treasury

Department has transferred the Series Preferred Stock to

third party the consent of the Treasury Department will be

required for the Parent to increase its common stock dividend

Note Federal Funds Sold Securities Purchased under Resale Agreements

and Other Short-Term Investments

The table below provides the detail of federal funds sold

securities purchased under resale agreements and other

short-term investments

in millions December 31

2008 2007

Federal funds sold and securities

purchased under resale agreements 8439 $1700

Interest-earning deposits 39890 460

Other short-term investments 1104 594

Total $49433 $74

For resale agreements which represent collateralized

financing transactions we hold collateral in the form of

securities that we have the right to sell or repledge of $1.6 billion

at December 31 2008 and $1.1 billion at December 31 2007

of which we sold or repledged $343 million and $705 million

respectively
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Note Securities Available for Sale

The following table provides the cost and fair value for on an after-tax basis as component of cumulative other

the major categories of securities available for sale carried comprehensive income There were no securities classified

at fair value The net unrealized gains losses are reported as held to maturity as of the periods presented

in millions December 31

2008 2007

Cost Gross Gross Fair Cost Gross Gross Fair

unrealized unrealized value unrealized unrealized value

gains losses gains losses

Securities of US Treasury and federal agencies 3187 62 3249 962 20 982

Securities of U.S states and political subdivisions 14062 116 1520 2658 6128 135 11 6152

Mortgage-backed securities

Federal agencies 64726 1711 66434 34092 898 34987

Private collateralized mortgage obligations 41841 62 8.595 33308 20026 82 J2 19982

Total mortgage-backed securities 106567 1773 8598 99742 54118 980 129 54969

Other 31379 116 ..j1...Zji 29784 45 Ji 8.065

Total debt securities 155195 2067 11829 145433 69393 1180 405 70168

Marketable equity securities

Perpetual preferred securities 5040 13 327 4726 2082 236 1852

Other marketable equity securities 1256 181 27 1410 796 166 13j 931

Total marketable equity securities 6296 ........J.4 6.136 8Z8 ......iZ J7 22
Total $161491 $12183 $151569 $72271 $7 $72951

majority of the private collateralized mortgage obligations are AAA-rated bonds collateralized by 1-4 family residential first mortgages

At December 312008 we held no securities of any single issuer lexcluding the U.S.Treasury and federal agencies with book value that exceeded 10% of stockholders equity

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses

and fair value of securities in the securities available-for-sale

portfolio at December 31 2008 and 2007 by length of time

that individual securities in each category had been in

continuous loss position

in millions

December 312007

Less than 12 months 12 months or more

Gross Fair Gross Fair

unrealized value unrealized value

losses losses

___________ Total

Gross Fair

unrealized value

losses

Securities of U.S.Treasury and federal agencies

Securities of U.S states and political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Federal agencies

Private collateralized mortgage obligations

Total mortgage-backed securities

Other

Total debt securities

Marketable equity securities

Perpetual preferred securities

Other marketable equity securities

Total marketable equity securities

Total

98 1957

39

_1124 7722

125 7761

__L14Q 2425

363 12143

236 1404

___.Q 284__ 1688

629 $13831

13 70

150

___l2 __4
41 204

49i
42 765

____ il7
____ ___3

43 $_Pi

111 2027

189

_1j2 _7Th
129 7965

165 2916

405 12908

236 1413

_..llll II
_....J2Z 1724

672 $14632

December 312008

Securities of U.S.Treasury and federal agencies

Securities of U.S states and political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Federal agencies

Private collateralized mortgage obligations

Total mortgage-backed securities

Other

Total debt securities

Marketable equity securities

Perpetual preferred securities

Other marketable equity securities

Total marketable equity securities

Total

745 3483

83

6197 14112

6200 14195

7897 27587

75 265

__2 72__ 337

$7995 $27924

775 1702

2398 2540

ll7
3932 4929

252 360

_.4 _2
256 __

$4188

1520 5185

83

8595
8598 16735

111i1
11829 32516

327 625

354 706

$12183 $33222
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The unrealized losses associated with debt securities that

had been in continuous loss position for 12 months or more

at December 31 2008 were primarily due to extraordinarily

wide asset spreads for residential mortgage commercial

mortgage and commercial loan asset-backed securities

resulting from an illiquid market which caused these assets

to be valued at significant discounts to their acquisition cost

At December 31 2008 we believed that it is probable that

we will be able to collect all contractually due principal and

interest on these securities We evaluate these securities for

impairment in accordance with our policies on quarterly

basis or more frequently if loss-triggering event occurs

This evaluation includes evaluating whether there have been

any changes in security ratings issued by ratings agencies

performance of the underlying collateral for asset-backed

securities including delinquency rates cumulative losses

to date and the remaining credit enhancement as

compared to expected credit losses of the security

The unrealized losses associated with private collateralized

mortgage obligations related to securities backed by commercial

mortgages and residential mortgages Approximately 75%

of the securities were AAA-rated by at least one major rating

agency We estimate loss projections for each security by

assessing individual loans collateralizing the security and

determining expected default rates and loss seventies In

addition based upon our assessment of expected credit losses

of the security given the performance of the underlying

collateral compared to our credit enhancement we concluded

that these securities were not other-than-temporarily

impaired at December 31 2008

The unrealized losses associated with other securities

related to securities backed by commercial loans and individual

issuer companies For securities with commercial loans as the

underlying collateral we have evaluated the expected credit

losses in the security and concluded that we have sufficient

credit enhancement when compared with our estimate of

credit losses for the individual security For individual issuers

we evaluate the financial performance of the issuer on

quarterly basis to determine if it is probable that the issuer

can make all contractual principal and interest payments

The unrealized losses associated with securities of U.S

states and political subdivisions are primarily driven by

changes in interest rates and not due to the credit quality

of the securities These investments are almost exclusively

investment grade and were generally underwritten in

accordance with our own investment standards prior to

the determination to purchase without relying on bond

insurers guarantee in making the investment decision

These securities will continue to be monitored as part of our

on-going impairment analysis but are expected to perform

even if the rating agencies reduce the credit rating of the bond

insurers As result we concluded that these securities were

not other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31 2008

Because we have the ability and intent to hold these debt

securities until recovery of fair value which may be maturity

we do not consider these investments to be other-than-

temporarily impaired at December 31 2008

Our marketable equity securities included approximately

$4.7 billion of investments in perpetual preferred securities

at December 31 2008 These securities provide very attractive

tax-equivalent yields and were current as to periodic

distributions in accordance with their respective terms as

of December 31 2008 We have opportunistically increased

our holdings in these securities over the past 18 months in

response to increased yields available in the marketplace

driven by significant widening in credit spreads caused

by the mortgage and credit crises The market value of our

holdings in these securities declined during this period as

result of the continued widening of credit spreads We

evaluated these hybrid financial instruments for impairment

using an evaluation methodology similar to that used for debt

securities Perpetual preferred securities were not other-than-

temporarily impaired at December 31 2008 if there was no

evidence of credit deterioration or investment rating down

grades of any issuers to below investment grade and it was

probable we would continue to receive full contractual pay

ments We will continue to evaluate the prospects for these

securities for recovery in their market value in accordance

with our policy for determining other-than-temporary

impairment We have recorded impairment write-downs

on perpetual preferred securities where there was evidence

of credit deterioration

The fair values of our investment securities could decline

in the future if the underlying performance of the collateral

for the private collateralized mortgage obligations or other

securities deteriorate and our credit enhancement levels do

not provide sufficient protection to our contractual principal

and interest As result there is risk that significant other-

than-temporary impairments may occur in the future given

the current economic environment

Securities pledged where the secured party has the right to

sell or repledge totaled $10.1 billion at December 31 2008 and

$5.8 billion at December 31 2007 Securities pledged where

the secured party does not have the right to sell or repledge

totaled $71.6 billion at December 31 2008 and $44.9 billion at

December 31 2007 primarily to secure trust and public deposits

and for other purposes as required or permitted by law

The following table shows the net realized gains on

the sales of securities from the securities available-for-sale

portfolio including marketable equity securities Gross

realized losses included other-than-temporary impairment

of $1790 million $50 million and $22 million for 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively Other-than-temporary impairment

for 2008 included $1057 million related to perpetual preferred

securities that were either downgraded to less than investment

grade or evidenced other significant credit deterioration events

in millions Year ended December31

2008 2007 2006

Gross realized gains 1918 472 621

Gross realized losses 11883 j7j J9
Net realized gains 35 $345 $j
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The following table shows the remaining contractual

principal maturities and contractual yields of debt securities

available for sale The remaining contractual principal

maturities for mortgage-backed securities were allocated

Total Weighted-

amount average

yield

assuming no prepayments Remaining expected maturities

will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may

have the right to prepay obligations before the underlying

mortgages mature

Securities of U.S.Treasury

and federal agencies

Securities of U.S states and

political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Federal agencies

Private collateralized

mortgage obligations

Total mortgage-backed securities

Other

Total debt securities at fair value

12658 7.54

66434 5.73

33308 7.04

99742 6.17

29784 5.27

$145433 00%

The weighted-average yield is computed using the contractual life amortization method

Note Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses

Certain loans acquired in the Wachovia acquisition are sub

ject to SOP 03-3 see Note These include loans where it is

probable that we will not collect all contractual principal and

interest Loans within the scope of SOP 03-3 are initially

recorded at fair value and no allowance is carried over or

in millions
_________

initially recorded summary of the major categories of loans

outstanding showing those subject to SOP 03-3 is presented

in the following table

Outstanding loan balances are presented net of unearned

income net deferred loan fees and unamortized discount and

premium totaling $16891 million and $4083 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Loans subject to

SOP 03-3 are presented net of the related accretable yield

and nonaccretable difference

in millions December 31 2008

Remnirsinri rontmrtl iil nrinrinnl mti rit

After one year After five years

Within one year through five years through ten years After ten yej5
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

3249 1.54% $1719 0.02% 1127 3.15% 388 3.40% 15 4.79%

210 5.54

42 4.23

784 7.36 1163 7.39 10501 7.61

122 4.98 353 6.02 65917 5.73

2.22 169 8.54 33134 7.03

42 4.23 127 4.87 522 6.83 99051 6.17

475 5.34 j$.74 6.59 5.97 13068 3.85

$244 1.60% $13912 634% $449 6.14% $1 22635 04%

sop 03-3 All

loans other

loans

December 31

Total

$202469

103108

34676

15829

$197889

95346

30173

15829

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial

Other real estate mortgage
Real estate Construction

Lease financing

Total commercial and

commercial real estate

Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage
Real estate 1-4 family junior

lien mortgage
Credit card

Other revolving credit and installment

Total consumer

Foreign

Total loans

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

4580 90468 70404 61552 54517

7762 36747 301 12 28545 29804

4503 18854 5935 3406 9025

6772 5614 5400 5169

16845 339237 356082 152841 122065 108903 98515

39214 208680 247894 71415 53228 77768 87686

728 109436 110164 75565 68926 59143 52190

23555 23555 18762 14697 12009 10260

151 93102 93253 56171 53534 47462 34725

40093 434773 474866 221913 190385 196382 184861

1859 32023 33882 L441 6.666 5552 ...4.2i0

$58797 $806033 $864830 $382195 $319116 $310837 $287586
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Loan concentrations may exist when there are amounts

loaned to borrowers engaged in similar activities or similar

types of loans extended to diverse group of borrowers that

would cause them to be similarly impacted by economic or

other conditions At December 31 2008 and 2007 we did not

have concentrations representing 10% or more of our total

loan portfolio in commercial loans and lease financing by

industry or commercial real estate loans other real estate

mortgage and real estate construction by state or property

type Our real estate 1-4 family mortgage loans to borrowers

in the state of California represented approximately 14%

of total loans at December 31 2008 compared with 13% at

December 31 2007 Of this amount 3% of total loans were

SOP 03-3 loans These loans are generally diversified among

the larger metropolitan areas in California with no single area

consisting of more than 2% of total loans Changes in real

estate values and underlying economic or market conditions

for these areas are monitored continuously within our credit

risk management process Beginning in 2007 the residential

real estate markets experienced significant declines in prop

erty values and several markets in California specifically the

Central Valley and several Southern California metropolitan

statistical areas experienced more severe value adjustments

Some of our real estate 1-4 family mortgage loans

including first mortgage and home equity products include

an interest-only feature as part of the loan terms At

December 31 2008 these loans were approximately 11% of

total loans compared with 20% at December 31 2007 Most

of these loans are considered to be prime or near prime

For certain extensions of credit we may require collateral

based on our assessment of customers credit risk We hold

various types of collateral including accounts receivable

inventory land buildings equipment autos financial

instruments income-producing commercial properties and

residential real estate Collateral requirements for each

customer may vary according to the specific credit underwriting

terms and structure of loans funded immediately or under

commitment to fund at later date

commitment to extend credit is legally binding

agreement to lend funds to customer usually at stated

interest rate and for specified purpose These commitments

have fixed expiration dates and generally require fee

When we make such commitment we have credit risk

The liquidity requirements or credit risk will be lower than

the contractual amount of commitments to extend credit

because significant portion of these commitments are

expected to expire without being used Certain commitments

are subject to loan agreements with covenants regarding the

financial performance of the customer or borrowing base

formulas that must be met before we are required to fund the

commitment We use the same credit policies in extending

credit for unfunded commitments and letters of credit that

we use in making loans See Note 15 for information on

standby letters of credit

In addition we manage the potential risk in credit

commitments by limiting the total amount of arrangements

both by individual customer and in total by monitoring the

size and maturity structure of these portfolios and by applying

the same credit standards for all of our credit activities

The total of our unfunded loan commitments net of all

funds lent and all standby and commercial letters of credit

issued under the terms of these commitments is summarized

by loan category in the following table

in millions December31

2008 2007

$195507 89480

6536 2911

19063 9986

221106 102377

36964 11861

78417 47763

75776 62680

22.231 16220

213388 138324

4817 980

$439311 $241881

We have an established process to determine the

adequacy of the allowance for credit losses that assesses the

risks and losses inherent in our portfolio While we attribute

portions of the allowance to specific loan categories as part

of our analytical process the entire allowance is used to

absorb credit losses inherent in the total loan portfolio

At December 31 2008 the portion of the allowance for

credit losses estimated at pooled level for consumer loans

and some segments of commercial small business loans was

$16.4 billion For purposes of determining the allowance for

credit losses we pool certain loans in our portfolio by product

type primarily for the auto credit card and real estate mortgage

portfolios To achieve greater accuracy we further segment

selected portfolios As appropriate the business groups may

attempt to achieve greater accuracy through segmentation by

sub-product origination channel vintage loss type geography

and other predictive characteristics For example credit cards

are segmented by origination channel and the Home Equity

portfolios are further segmented between liquidating and

nonliquidating In the case of residential mortgages

we segment the liquidating Pick-a-Pay portfolio and further

segment this portfolio based on origination channel

To measure losses inherent in consumer loans and some

commercial small business loans we use loss models and

other quantitative mathematical techniques to forecast losses

Each business group forecasts losses for loans as of the balance

sheet date over the estimated loss emergence period During

fourth quarter 2008 we conformed our loss emergence period

for these portfolios to cover 12 months of estimated losses

which is within Federal Financial Institutions Examination

Council FFIEC guidelines and resulted in $2.7 billion

increase to the allowance for credit losses

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial

Other real estate mortgage

Real estate construction

Total commercial and

commercial real estate

Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage
Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage

Credit card

Other revolving credit and installment

Total consumer

Foreign

Total unfunded loan commitments
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The allowance for credit losses consists of the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded credit commitments

Changes in the allowance for credit losses were

in millions Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Balance beginning of year 5518 3964 $4057 3950 3891

Provision for credit losses 15979 4939 2204 2383 1717

Loan charge-offs

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial 1653 629 414 406 424
Other real estate mortgage 29 25
Real estate construction 178 14
Lease financing 65 33 30 35 62

Total commercial and commercial real estate 1925 682 451 454 516
Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 540 109 103 111 53
Real estate 1-4family junior lien mortgage 2204 648 154 136 107
Credit card 1563 832 505 553 463
Other revolving credit and installment 2300 1913 1685 1480 919

Total consumer 6607 3502 2447 2280 1542
Foreign 245 265 281 _J29 143

Total loan charge-offs ..JZZz 4449 31 79 3032 JQ.i

Loan recoveries

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial 114 119 111 133 150

Other real estate mortgage 19 16 17

Real estate construction 13

Leasefinancing 13 17 21 21 26

Total commercial and commercial real estate 135 146 154 183 199

Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 37 22 26 21

Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage 89 53 36 31 24

Creditcard 147 120 96 86 62

Other revolving credit and installment _41 504 537 365 220

Total consumer 754 699 695 503 312

Foreign 49 65 76

Total loan recoveries 938 910 925 749 535

Net loan charge-offs _fZ 3539 2254 2283 Ji.6

Allowances related to business combinations/other 154 43

Balanceend of year $21711 5518 3964 $4057 3950

Components
Allowance for loan losses $21013 5307 3764 3871 3762

Reserve for unfunded credit commitments 698 211 200 186 188

Allowance for credit losses $21711 5518 3964 4057 3950

Net loan charge-offs as percentage of average total loans 1.97% 1.03% 0.73% 0.77% 0.62%

Allowance for loan losses as percentage of total loans 2.43% 1.39% 1.18% 1.25% 1.31%

Allowance for credit losses as percentage of total loans 2.51 1.44 1.24 1.31 1.37

11 Provision included $3.9 billion to conform credit reserve practices of Wells Fargo and Wachovia

Because the Wachovia acquisition occurred on the last day of 2008 charge-offs and recoveries include only those of Wells Fargo and exclude Wachovias 2008 charge-offs

and recoveries

The allowance for loan losses and the allowance for credit losses do not include any amounts related to loans acquired from Wachovia that are accounted for under

SOP 03-3 IWachovias allowance related to these loans was $12.0 billion Loans acquired from Wachovia are included in total loans net of related purchase accounting

net write-downs Isee Note
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Forecasted losses are compared with actual losses and The recorded investment in impaired loans included

this information is used by management in order to develop

an allowance that management believes adequate to cover

losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the reporting date

The portion of the allowance for commercial loans

commercial real estate loans and lease financing was

$4.5 billion at December 31 2008 We initially estimate this

portion of the allowance by applying historical loss factors

statistically derived from tracking losses associated with

actual portfolio movements over specified period of time

for each specific loan grade Based on this process we assign

loss factors to each pooi of graded loans and loan equivalent

amount for unfunded loan commitments and letters of credit

These estimates are then adjusted or supplemented where

necessary from additional analysis of long-term average loss

experience external loss data or other risks identified from

current conditions and trends in selected portfolios including

managements judgment for imprecision and uncertainty

We also assess and account for certain nonaccrual

commercial and commercial real estate loans that are over

$5 million and certain consumer commercial and commercial

real estate loans whose terms have been modified in troubled

debt restructuring as impaired We include the impairment

on these nonperforming loans in the allowance unless it has

already been recognized as loss At December 31 2008

we included $816 million in the allowance related to these

impaired loans

Reflected in the portions of the allowance previously

described is an amount for imprecision or uncertainty that

incorporates the range of probable outcomes inherent in

estimates used for the allowance which may change from

period to period This amount is the result of our judgment

of risks inherent in the portfolios economic uncertainties

historical loss experience and other subjective factors

including industry trends calculated to better reflect our

view of risk in each loan portfolio

In addition the allowance for credit losses included

reserve for unfunded credit commitments of $698 million

at December 31 2008

The total allowance reflects managements estimate

of credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance

sheet date We consider the allowance for credit losses

of $21.7 billion adequate to cover credit losses inherent in

the loan portfolio including unfunded credit commitments

at December 31 2008

Nonaccrual loans were $6800 million and $2679 million

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively There were no

loans accounted for under SOP 03-3 recorded as nonaccrual

Loans past due 90 days or more as to interest or principal

and still accruing interest were $12645 million at December 31

2008 and $6393 million at December 31 2007 The 2008 and

2007 balances included $8185 million and $4834 million

respectively in advances pursuant to our servicing agreements

to the Government National Mortgage Association GNMA
mortgage pools and similar loans whose repayments are

insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed

by the Department of Veterans Affairs

in nonaccrual loans and the methodology used to measure

impairment was

The average recorded investment in these impaired loans

during 2008 2007 and 2006 was $1952 million $313 million

and $173 million respectively

When the ultimate collectibility of the total principal

of an impaired loan is in doubt all payments are applied to

principal under the cost recovery method When the ultimate

collectibility of the total principal of an impaired loan is not

in doubt contractual interest is credited to interest income

when received under the cash basis method Total interest

income recognized for impaired loans in 2008 2007 and

2006 under the cash basis method was not significant

in millions December31

2008 2007

Impairment measurement based on

Collateral value method 88 $285

Discounted cash flow method J44

Total 12 $4Q $459

Includes $3468 million and $369 million of impaired loans with related

allowance of $816 million and $50 million at Oecember 312008 and 2007

respectively

21 Wachovia loans accounted for under SOP 03-3 are not included in this table

SOP 03-3

At December 31 2008 acquired loans within the scope of

sop 03-3 had an unpaid principal balance less prior charge

offs of $93.9 billion and carrying value of $58.8 billion

The following table provides details on the SDP 03-3 loans

acquired from Wachovia

in millions December 31 2008

Contractually required payments including interest $106192

Nonaccretable difference 41.9551

Cash flows expected to be collected 64237

Accretable yield 5440

Fair value of loans acquired 58797

Includes $37.2 billion in principal cash flows purchase accounting adjustmentsl

not espected to be collected $2.3 billion of pry-acquisition charge-offs and

$2.5 billion of future interest not espected to be collected

21 Represents undiscounted espected principal and interest cash flows
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Note Premises Equipment Lease Commitments and Other Assets

in millions December31

2008 2007

Land 2029 707

Buildings 8232 4088

Furniture and equipment 5589 4526

Leasehold improvements 1309 1258

Premises and equipment leased

under
capital

leases 110 67

Total premises and equipment 17269 10646

Less Accumulated depreciation

and amortization 5524

Net book value premises and equipment $11269 5122

in millions Operating Capital

leases leases

Year ended December 31

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Executory costs

Amounts representing interest

Present value of net minimum

lease payments $1Q

Operating lease rental expense predominantly for premises

net of rental income was $709 million $673 million and

$631 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The components of other assets were

in millions December31

2008 2007

Nonmarketable equity investments

Cost method

Private equity investments

Federal bank stock

Other

Total cost method

Equity method

Principal investments

Total nonmarketable

equity investments

Operating lease assets

Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Core deposit intangibles

Customer relationship and other intangibles

Foreclosed assets

GNMA loans

Other

Due from customers on acceptances

Other

Total other assets

2706 2024

6106 1925

2292

11104 5856

4400 1074

16782 6930

2251 2218

22493 10913

5746 2977

11999 435

3516 319

667 535

1526 649

615 62

44206 12107

$109801 $37145

11 Principal investments are recorded at fair value with realized and unrealized

gains and losses included in net gains Ilossesi from equity investments in the

income statement

Consistent with regulatory reporting requirements foreclosed assets include

foreclosed real estate securing GNMA loans Both principal and interest for

GNMA loans secured by the foreclosed real estate are collectible because the

GNMA loans are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed

by the Department of Veterans Affairs

Income related to nonmarketable equity investments was

in millions Year ended December31

2008 2007 2006

Net gains from private equity

investments $265 $598 $393

Net gains losses from all other

nonmarketable equity investments Jj 20

Net gains from nonmarketable

equity investments $2 $602 $413

Depreciation and amortization expense for premises and

equipment was $861 million $828 million and $737 million

in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Net gains on dispositions of premises and equipment

included in noninterest expense were $22 million $3 million

and $13 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

We have obligations under number of noncancelable

operating leases for premises and equipment The terms of

these leases are primarily up to 15 years with the longest up

to 97 years and many provide for periodic adjustment of

rentals based on changes in various economic indicators

Some leases also include renewal option The following table

provides the future minimum payments under capital leases

and noncancelable operating leases net of sublease rentals

with terms greater than one year as of December 31 2008

1408

2128

1042

926

797

$10296

43

42

15

115

-no
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Note Securitizations and Variable Interest Entities

Involvement with SPEs

We enter into various types of on and off-balance sheet

transactions with special purpose entities SPEs in the

normal course of business SPEs are corporations trusts

or partnerships that are established for limited purpose

We use SPEs to create sources of financing liquidity and

regulatory capital capacity for the Company as well as

sources of financing and liquidity and investment products

for our clients Our use of SPEs generally consists of various

securitization activities with SPEs whereby financial assets

are transferred to an SPE and repackaged as securities or

similar interests that are sold to investors In connection

with our securitization activities we have vsrious forms

of ongoing involvement with SPEs which may include

underwriting securities issued by SPEs and subsequently

making markets in those securities

providing liquidity facilities to support short-term

obligations of SPEs issued to third party investors

providing credit enhancement on securities issued by

SPEs or msrket value guarantees of assets held by SPEs

through the use of letters of credit financial guarantees

credit default swaps and total return swaps

entering into other derivative contracts with SPEs

holding senior or subordinated interests in SPEs

acting as servicer or investment manager for SPEs and

providing administrative or trustee services to SPEs

The SPEs we use are primarily either qualifying SPEs

QSPEs or variable interest entities VIEs QSPE represents

specific type of SPE QSPE is passive entity that has

significant limitations on the types of assets and derivative

instruments it may own and the extent of activities and decision

making in which it may engage For example QSPEs

activities are generally limited to purchasing assets passing

along the cash flows of those assets to its investors servicing

its assets and in certain transactions issuing liabilities Among

other restrictions on QSPEs activities QSPE may not

actively manage its assets through discretionary sales or

modifications QSPE is exempt from consolidation

VIE is an entity that has either total equity investment

that is insufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities

without additional subordinated financial support or whose

equity investors lack the characteristics of controlling financial

interest VIE is consolidated by its primary beneficiary

which is the entity that through its variable interests absorbs

the majority of VIEs variability variable interest is

contractual ownership or other interest that changes with

changes in the fair value of the VIEs net assets

The classifications of assets and liabilities in our balance

sheet associated with our transactions with QSPEs and VIEs

are as follows

txcludes certain debt securities related to leans sereiced for the Federal National Mortgage Association FNMA Federal Home Lean Mortgage Corporation FHLMC and

Goverement National Mortgage Association GNMA
txcludes related allowance for loan losses

The following disclosures regarding our significant

continuing involvement with QSPEs and unconsolidated VIEs

exclude entities where our only involvement is in the form

of investments in trading securities investments in

securities or loans underwritten by third parties certain

derivatives such as interest rate swaps or cross currency

swaps that have customary terms and administrative

or trustee services We have also excluded investments

accounted for in accordance with the AICPA Investment

Company Audit Guide investments accounted for under

the cost method and investments accounted for under the

equity method

QSPEs VIEs that we
do not

consolidate

in millions

Cash

Trading account assets

Securities

Mortgages held for sale

Loans 121

MSRs

Other assets

Total assets

Short-term borrowings

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Long-term debt

Minority interests

Total liabilities and minority interests

neremhnr1 nns

VIEs that we Transfers that

consolidate we account

for as secured

borrowings

1261

18078

56

14106

345

33846

5241

15168

16882

5.022

42313

117

71

922

217

307

330

1773

121

$2531

Total

404

6714

40262

56

21225

14106

7838

90605

1747

2860

8898

121

13626

287

141

6094

4126

55

10703

1440

26

7125

8591

528 1976

528 1976
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Transactions with QSPEs

We use QSPEs to securitize consumer and commercial real

estate loans and other types of financial assets including

student loans auto loans and municipal bonds We typically

retain the servicing rights from these sales and may continue

to hold other beneficial interests in QSPEs We may also

provide liquidity to investors in the beneficial interests and

Residential mortgage loan securitizations

Commercial mortgage securitizations

Auto loan securitizations

Student loan securitizations

Other

Total

$1144775

35 5267

4133

2765

11877

$1518817

credit enhancements in the form of standby letters of credit

Through these securitizations we may be exposed to liability

under limited amounts of recourse as well as standard

representations and warranties we make to purchasers and

issuers The amount recorded for this liability is included in

other commitments and guarantees in the following table

summary of our involvements with QSPEs is as follows

Residential mortgage loan securitizations

Commercial mortgage securitizations

Auto loan securitizations

Student loan securitizations

Other

Total

718 $31438

3302 6376

115

133

37 1576

$39638

Represents the remaining principal balance of assets held by QSPE5 using the most current information available

21 Excludes certain debt securities held related to loans serviced for FNMA FHLMC and GNMA

131 Represents the carrying amount of our continuing involvement plus remaining undrawn liquidity and lending commitments notional amount of net written derivative

contracts and notional amount of other commitments and guarantees

We recognized net gains of $10 million from sales of

financial assets in securitizations in 2007 none in 2008

Additionally we had the following cash flows with our

securitization trusts

in millions Year ended December31

2008 2007

Mortgage Other Mortgage Other

loans financial loans financial

assets assets

Sales proceeds from securitizations $21 2770 $38971

Servicing fees 3128 300

Other interests held 1509 131 496

Purchases of delinquent assets 36

Net servicing advances 61 22

It Represents cash flow data for all loans securitized in 2008 and 2007 For 2007 cash flow data excluded loans securitized through FNMA and FHLMC and those loans we

continued to service but for which we had no other continuing involvement

in millions

Total Debt and Servicing Derivatives Other

QSPE equity assets commit

assets interests2 ments and

guarantees

flecemher 31 7008

Total

Carrying value asset liability

$17469 $12951 30 511 $29939

1452 1098 524 14 3060

72 43 115

76 57 133

74

$19143 $14106 $94 $J $33318

Maximum exoosure to losss

$17469 $12951

1452 1098

72

76 57

74

$19143 $14106

300

524

43

2.3 32
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For securitizations completed in 2008 and 2007 we

used the following assumptions to determine the fair value

of mortgage servicing rights and other interests held at the

date of securitization

Mortgage

servicing rights

2008 2007

Other

interests held

2008 2007

Other interests held

subordinate bonds

2008 2007

Fair value of interests held

Expected weighted-average life in years

Prepayment speed assumption annual CPR
Decrease in fair value from

10% increase

25% increase

Discount rate assumption

MSRs and other interests held

Decrease in fair value from

100 basis point increase

200 basis point increase

Other interests held subordinate bonds

Decrease in fair value from

50 basis point increase

100 basis point increase

Credit loss assumption

Decrease in fair value from

10% higher losses

25% higher losses

610 13

1168 24

Adverse changes in key economic assumptions used to

measure the fair value of retained interests in securitizations

that we acquired in the Wachovia acquisition were analyzed

The price sensitivity to these adverse changes was not signif

icant and accordingly are not included in the table above

The sensitivities in the table above are hypothetical

and caution should be exercised when relying on this data

Changes in fair value based on 10% variation in assumptions

generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship

of the change in the assumption to the change in fair value

may not be linear Also in the table above the effect of

variation in particular assumption on the fair value of

the other interests held is calculated independently without

changing any other assumptions In reality changes in one

factor may result in changes in others for example changes

in prepayment speed estimates could result in changes

in the discount rates which might magnify or counteract

the sensitivities

We also retained some AAA-rated fixed-rate and

adjustable rate mortgage-backed securities MBS The fair

value of the securities was $5147 million and $7423 million

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and was deter

mined using an independent third party pricing service

Prepayment speed annual CPR 12.7% 13.5% 36.0% 14.1% 13.3% 24.3%

Life in years 7.1 6.8 2.3 7.2 5.7 4.4

Discount rate 9.4% 9.8% 7.2% 10.2% 6.7% 6.9%

Expected life of loan losses 1.1% 0.8%

$in millions

111 Constant prepayment rate

121 Represents weighted averages for all other interests held resulting from securitizations completed in 2008 and 2007

Key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the commercial mortgage servicing rights and other interests

current fair value to immediate adverse changes in those held related to residential mortgage loan securitizations

assumptions at December 31 2008 for residential and are presented in the following table

Mortgage Other Other

servicing interests interests

rights held held

subordinate

bonds

$15246 $312 $244

4.3 5.6 5.0

16.0% 13.3% 15.9%

585 13

1337 31

8.1% 18.6% 12.8%

$5
11

3.1%

22

45
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The table below presents information about the principal

balances of owned and securitized loans

in millions December31 Year ended December31

Total loans1 Delinguent loans23 Net charge-offs recoveries3

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial 204113 91186 1471 464 $1539 510

Other real estate mortgage 310480 75642 1058 179 26

Real estate construction 34676 18854 1221 317 175 12

Leasefinancing 15.829 6.772 __...2

Total commercial and commercial real estate 565098 192454 3842 1005 1792 545

Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 1165456 146997 7531 1745 902 87

Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage 115308 75974 1554 495 2115 597

Creditcard 23555 18762 687 402 1416 712

Other revolving credit and installment 104886 56521 1427 744 _i J4Q9
Total consumer 1409205 298254 11199 3386 6252 2805

Foreign 33.882 7647 91 104 196 206

Total loans owned and securitized 2.008.185 498355 $15132 $44
Less

Securitized loans 1117039 88397

Mortgages held for sale 20088 26815

Loans held for sale 6228 948

Total loans held 864830 $382195

For 2008 represents loans in the balance sheet or that have been securitized and includes residential mortgages sold to FNMA and FHLMC and securitizations where

servicing is our only form of continuing involvement For 2007 excluded loans securitized through FNMA and FHLMC and those we continued to service but for which

we have no other continuing involvement

21 Delinquent loans are 90 days or more past due and still accruing interest as well as nonaccrual loans

Delinquent loans and net charge-offs exclude loans sold to FNMA and FHLMC We continue to service the loans and would only experience loss if required to repurchase

delinquent loan due to breach in original representations and warranties associated with our underwriting standards
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Transactions with VIEs

Our transactions with VIEs include securitization investment

and financing activities involving collateralized debt

obligations CDOs backed by asset-backed and commercial

real estate securities collateralized loan obligations CLOs
backed by corporate loans or bonds and other types of

structured financing We have various forms of involvement

with SPEs including holding senior or subordinated interests

entering into liquidity arrangements credit default swaps

and other derivative contracts

summary of our involvements with off-balance sheet

unconsolidated VIEs is as follows

CDOs

Wachovia administered ABCP conduit

Asset-based lending structures

Tax credit structures

CLOs

Investment funds

Credit-linked note structures

Money market funds

Other

Total

CDOs

Wachovia administered ABCP conduit

Asset-based lending structures

Tax credit structures

CLOs

Investment funds

Credit-linked note structures

Money market funds

Other

Total

48802

10767

11614

22882

2333g

105808

129g3

31843

1832

$26g88o

COLLATERALIZED DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND COLLATERALIZED

LOAN OBLIGATIONS CDO or CLO is securitization where

an SPE purchases pool of assets consisting of asset-backed

securities or loans and issues multiple tranches of equity

or notes to investors In some transactions portion of the

assets are obtained synthetically through the use of derivatives

such as credit default swaps or total return swaps Generally

CDOs and CLOs are structured on behalf of third party

asset manager that typically selects and manages the assets

for the term of the CDO or CLO Typically the asset manager

has some discretion to manage the sale of assets of or

derivatives used by the CDOs and CLOs

Prior to the securitization we may provide all or substantially

all of the warehouse financing to the asset manager The

asset manager uses this financing to purchase the assets into

bankruptcy remote SPE during the warehouse period At

the completion of the warehouse period the assets are sold to

the 01120 or CLO and the warehouse financing is repaid with

the proceeds received from the securitizations investors

The warehousing period is generally less than 12 months in

duration In the event the securitization does not take place

the assets in the warehouse are liquidated We consolidate

the warehouse SPEa when we are the primary beneficiary

We are the primary beneficiary when we provide substantially

all of the financing and therefore absorb the majority of the

variability Sometimes we have loss sharing arrangements

whereby third party asset manager agrees to absorb the

credit and market risk during the warehousing period or upon

liquidation of the collateral in the event securitization does

not take place In those circumstances we do not consolidate

the warehouse SPE because the third party asset manager

absorbs the majority of the variability through the loss

sharing arrangement

In addition to our role as arranger and warehouse financing

provider we may have other forms of involvement with these

transactions Such involvements may include underwriter

liquidity provider derivative counterparty secondary market

maker or investor For certain transactions we may also

in millions

Total Debt and Derivatives Other

VIE equity commit

assets11 interests ments and

guarantees

December 312QQS

Total

Carrying value asset liability

$14080 1053 $15133

g232 136 gog6

4366 516 3850

3217 ioo 3326

3543 3543

50 1472 1522

50 10 60

3g83 361 3806

$38521 2472 jJj $40336

Maximum exposure to Ioss

$14080 484g $1514 $20443

15824 15824

g346 136 g482

4366 560 4g26

3217 io 555 3881

3550 140 36g0

50 2253 2303

50 51 101

3ggl 130 46gg

$38650 $23352 $6534g

Represents the remaining principal balance nf assets held by unconsolidated Vlts using the most current information available For VIEs that obtain esposure to assets

synthetically through derivative instruments the remaining notional amount of the derivative is included in the asset balance

Contains investments in auction rate securities issued by VIEs that we do not sponsor and accordingly are unable to obtain the total assets of the entity

Represents the carrying amount of the continuing involvement plus remaining undrawn liguidity and lending commitments notional amount of net written derivative

contracts and notional amount of other commitments and guarantees
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act as the collateral manager or servicer We receive fees

in connection with our role as collateral manager or servicer

We also earn fees for arranging these transactions and

distributing the securities

We assess whether we are the primary beneficiary of CDOs

and CLOs at inception of the transactions based on our

expectation of tho variability associated with our continuing

involvement Subsequently we monitor our ongoing involvement

in these transactions to determine if more frequent assessment

of variability is necessary Variability in these transactions

may be created by credit risk market risk interest rate risk

or liquidity risk associated with the CDOs or CLOs assets

Our assessment of the variability is performed qualitatively

because our continuing involvement is typically senior in

priority to the third party investors in transactions In most

cases we are not the primary beneficiary of these transactions

because we do not retain the subordinate interests in these

transactions and accordingly do not absorb the majority

of the variability

MULTI-SELLER COMMERCIAL PAPER CONDUIT We administer

multi-seller asset-backed commercial paper ABCP conduit

that arranges financing for certain client transactions We

acquired the relationship with this conduit in the Wachovia

merger This conduit is bankruptcy remote entity that

makes loans to or purchases certificated interests from SPEs

established by our clients sellers and which are secured by

pools of financial assets The conduit funds itself through the

issuance of highly rated commercial paper to third party

investors The primary sourco of repayment of the commercial

paper is the cash flows from the conduits assets or the

re-issuance of commercial paper upon maturity The conduits

assets are structured with deal-spocific credit enhancements

generally in the form of overcollateralization provided by

the seller but also may include subordinated interests cash

reserve accounts third party credit support facilities and

excess spread capture The table below summarizes the

weighted average credit rating equivalents of the conduits

assets These ratings are as of December 31 2008 and are

based on internal rating criteria The weighted average life

of the conduits assets was 3.0 years at December 31 2008

The composition of the conduits assets was as follows

The timely repayment of the commercial paper is further

supported by asset-specific liquidity facilities in the form

of asset purchase agreements that we provide Each facility

is equal to 102% of the conduits funding commitments to

client The aggregate amount of liquidity must be equal to or

greater than all the commercial paper issued by the conduit

At the discretion of the administrator we may be required to

purchase assets from the conduit at par value plus interest

including situations where the conduit is unable to issue

commercial paper Par value may be different from fair value

We receive fees in connection with our role as administrator

and liquidity provider We may also receive fees related to

the structuring of the conduits transactions

The weighted-average life of the commercial paper was

12.4 days in 2008 and the average yield on the commercial

paper was 2.57% The ability of the conduit to issue commercial

paper which is function of general market conditions and

the credit rating of the liquidity provider was challenging

during 2008 as result of the credit market disruption

Although investors continued to purchase the conduits

commercial paper they did so at higher spreads and shorter

maturities When the conduits commercial paper maturities

exceeded investor demand Wachovia purchased some of the

conduits commercial paper During 2008 the maximum

amount of commercial paper purchased on any given day was

$3.g billion or 33.6% of the then outstanding commercial

paper These purchases were made at market rates At

December 31 2008 we did not hold any of the commercial

paper issued by the conduit All commercial paper purchased

was repaid at maturity through the issuance of new commer

cial paper notes to third parties

The conduit has issued subordinated note to third

party investor The subordinated note is designed to absorb

the expected variability associated with the credit risk in the

conduits assets as well as assets that may be funded by us

as result of purchase under the provisions of the liquidity

The credit rating of the conduits assets was as follows

December51 7008

Funded Total

asset committed

composition exposure

AAA 9.4% 10.4%

AA 11J

52.2 51.5

BBB 30.1 264

Total 100% 100%

December 11 7008

Funded Total

asset committed

composition exposure

34.1% 26.7%Auto loans

Commercial and

middle market loans

Equipment loans

Trade receivables

Credit cards

Leases

Other

Total

27.6 32.6 purchase agreements Actual credit losses incurred on the

14.4 .4 conduits assets or assets purchased under the liquidity facilities

7.0
are absorbed first by the subordinated note prior to any

6.1 7.0 allocation to us as the liquidity provider At December 31

3æ 2008 the balance of the subordinated note was $13 million

JQ% JQ% and it matures in 2016
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At least quarterly or more often if circumstances dictate

we assess whether we are the primary beneficiary of the

conduit based on our expectation of the variability associated

with our liquidity facility and administrative fee arrangement

Such circumstances may include changes to deal-specific

liquidity arrangements changes to the terms of the conduits

assets or the purchase of the conduits commercial paper We

assess variability using quantitative expected loss model

The key inputs to the model include internally generated risk

ratings that are mapped to third party rating agency loss-

given-default assumptions We do not consolidate the

conduit because our expected loss model indicates that

the holder of the subordinated note absorbs the majority of

the variability of the conduits assets Although we are not

required to consolidate the conduit consolidation of the

conduit would not have material effect on our leverage

ratio or Tier capital

ASSET-BASED LENDING STRUCTURES We engage in various

forms of structured lending arrangements with VIEs that

are collateralized by various asset classes including energy

contracts auto and other transportation leases intellectual

property equipment and general corporate credit We

typically provide senior financing and may act as an interest

rate swap or commodity derivative counterparty when

necessary In most cases we are not the primary beneficiary

of these structures because we do not retain majority of

the variability in these transactions

For example we had investments in asset backed securi

ties that were collateralized by auto leases and cash reserves

These fixed-rate securities have been structured as single

tranche fully amortizing unrated bonds that are equivalent

to investment-grade securities due to their significant

overcollateralization The securities are issued by SPEs that

have been formed and sponsored by third party auto financ

ing institutions primarily because they require source of

liquidity to fund ongoing vehicle sales operations The struc

tures are designed to keep the overwhelming majority of the

primary risks associated with structures credit risk and

residual value risk of the autos with the sponsors of the

SPEs

TAX CREDIT STRUCTURES We make passive investments in

affordable housing and sustainable energy projects that are

designed to generate return primarily through the realization

of federal tax credits In some instances our investments

in these structures may require that we fund future capital

commitments at the discretion of the project sponsors While

the size of our investment in single entity may at times

exceed 50% of the outstanding equity interests we do not

consolidate these structures due to performance guarantees

provided by the project sponsors giving them majority of

the variability

INVESTMENT FUNDS We have investments of $2.1 billion

and lending arrangements of $3 million with certain funds

managed by one of our majority owned subsidiaries In addition

we also provide default protection agreement to third party

lender to one of these funds Our involvements in these funds

are either senior or of equal priority to third party investors

We do not consolidate the investment funds because we do

not absorb the majority of the expected future variability

associated with the funds assets including variability

associated with credit interest rate and liquidity risks

We are also passive investor in various investment

funds that invest directly in private equity and mezzanine

securities as well as funds sponsored by select private equity

and venture capital groups We also invest in hedge funds

on behalf of clients In these transactions we use various

derivative contracts that are designed to provide our clients

with the returns of the underlying hedge fund investments

We do not consolidate these funds because we do not hold

majority of the subordinate interests in these funds

MONEY MARKET FUNDS We entered into capital support

agreement in first quarter 2008 for up to $130 million related

to an investment in structured investment vehicle Sly

held by our AAA-rated non-government money market funds

In third quarter 2008 we fulfilled our obligation under this

agreement by purchasing the SIV investment from the funds

At December 31 2008 the SIV investment was recorded as

debt security in our securities available-for-sale portfolio In

addition at December 31 2008 we had outstanding support

agreements of $101 million to certain other funds to support

the value of certain investments held by those funds We

recorded guarantee liability of $10 million in fourth quarter

2008 in connection with these support agreements We do

not consolidate these funds because we are generally not

responsible for investment losses incurred by our funds

and we do not have contractual or implicit obligation to

indemnify such losses or provide additional support to the

funds While we elected to enter into the capital support

agreements for the funds we are not obligated and may

elect not to provide additional support to these funds or

other funds in the future

CREDIT-LINKED NOTE STRUCTURES We structure transactions

for clients designed to provide investors with specified

returns based on the returns of an underlying security loan

or index To generate regulatory capital for the Company

we also structure similar transactions that are indexed to

the returns of pool of underlying securities or loans that

we own These transactions result in the issuance of credit

linked notes These transactions typically involve bankruptcy

remote SPE that synthetically obtains exposure to the

underlying through derivative instrument such as written

credit default swap or total return swap The SPE issues notes
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to investors based on the referenced underlying Proceeds

received from the issuance of these notes are usually invested

in investment grade financial assets We are typically the

derivative counterparty to these transactions and administrator

responsible for investing the note proceeds We do not

consolidate these SPEs because we typically do not hold

any of the notes that they issue

OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH VIEs In August 2008 Wachovia

reached an agreement to purchase at par auction rate securities

ARS that were sold to third party investors by two of its

subsidiaries See Note 15 for more information on the details

of this agreement ARS are debt instruments with long-term

maturities but which reprice more frequently Certain of

these securities were issued by VIEs At December 31 2008

we held in our securities available-for-sale portfolio sa billion

of ARS issued by VIEs that we redeemed pursuant to this

agreement At December 31 2008 we had liability in our

balance sheet of $91 million for additional losses on anticipated

future redemptions of ARS issued by VIEs Were we to

redeem all remaining ARS issued by VIEs that are subject

to the agreement our estimated maximum exposure to loss

would be $620 million however certain of these securities

may be repaid in full by the issuer prior to redemption We
do not consolidate the VIEs that issued the ARS because we

do not expect to absorb the majority of the expected future

variability associated with the VIEs assets

TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES In addition to the involvements

disclosed in the above table we have $16.6 billion of debt

financing through the issuance of trust preferred securities

at December 31 2008 In these transactions VIEs that

we wholly own issue preferred equity or debt securities

to third party investors All of the proceeds of the issuance

are invested in debt securities that we issue to the VIEs

In certain instances we may provide liquidity to third party

investors that purchase long-term securities that reprice

frequently issued by VIEs The VIEs operations and cash

flows relate only to the issuance administration and repayment

of the securities held by third parties We do not consolidate

these VIEs because the VIEs sole assets are receivables

from us This is the case even though we own all of the VIEs

voting equity shares have fully guaranteed the VIEs obligations

and may have the right to redeem the third party securities

under certain circumstances We report the debt securities

that we issue to the VIEs as long-term debt in our consolidated

balance sheet

summary of our transactions with VIEs accounted for

as secured borrowings and involvements with consolidated

VIEs is as follows

Amounts exclude loan loss reserves and total assets may differ from consolidated assets due to the different measurement methods used depending on the

assets classifications

We have raised financing through the securitization of

certain financial assets in transactions with VIEs accounted

for as secured borrowings We also consolidate VIEs where

we are the prtmary beneficiary In certain transactions we

provide contractual support in the form of limited recourse

and liquidity to facilitate the remarketing of short-term

securities issued to third party investors Other than this limited

contractual support the assets of the VIEs are the sole source

of repayment of the securities held by third parties

in millions
Carrying value at December31 20081

Total Consolidated Third Minority

assets assets party interest

liabilities

Secured borrowings

Municipal tender option bond securitizations 6358 6280 4765
Auto loan securitizations 2134 2134 1869
Commercial real estate loans 1294 1294 1258
Residential mortgage securitizations .il.i24 995 699

Total secured borrowings 10gb 10703

Consolidated VIEs

Structured asset finance 341 1666 1481 13

lnvestmentfunds 1119 1070 155 97

Other il.9fl7 1007 774 11

Total consolidated VIEs ...54.7 3743 2410 121

Total secured borrowings and consolidated VIEs $1 6527 $14446 $1 1001 $121
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Note Mortgage Banking Activities

Mortgage banking activities included in the Community

Banking and Wholesale Banking operating segments

The changes in amortized MSRs were

Fair value beginning of year

Purchases

Acquired from Wachovia

Servicing from securitizations

or asset transfers

Sales

Net additions

Changes in fair value

Due to changes in valuation

model inputs or assumptions 3341 571

Other changes in fair value 2559 3026 2444
Total changes in fair value 5900 3597 2453

Fair value end of year $14714 $16763 $17591
in billions

Principally reflects changes in discount rates and prepayment speed

assumptions mostly due to changes in interest rates

Represents changes due to collection/realization of expected cash flows

over time

573 $457 $146

1555 573 457

The components of our managed servicing portfolio were

December31

2008 2007

$1860 $1430

268 98

2128 1528

26 23

Total managed servicing portfolio $i4 $ii
Ratio of MSRs to related

loans serviced for others 0.87% 1.20%

The components of mortgage banking noninterest income were

Consists of 1-4 family first mortgage and commercial mortgage loans

Consists of mortgages held for sale and 1-4 family first mortgage loans

in millions
Year ended December31

2007

Servicing income net

Servicing fees

Changes in fair value of residential MSRs

Due to changes in valuation model inputs or assumptions

Other changes in fair value

Total changes in fair value of residential MSR5

Amortization

Net derivative gains losses from economic hedges

Total servicing income net

Net gains on mortgage loan origination/sales activities

All other

Total mortgage banking noninterest income

Market-related valuation changes to MSRs net of economic hedge results 24

3855 4025 3525

3341 571

2559 3026 2444
5900 3597 2453

75 71 34
3099 1154 145

979 1511 893

1183 1289 1116

363 333 302

Includes contractually specified servicing fees late charges and other ancillary revenues Also includes impairment write-downs on other interests held of S26 million

for 2006.There were no impairment write-downs for 2007 or 2008

Principally reflects changes in discount rates and prepayment speed assumptions mostly due to changes in interest rates

Represents changes due to collection/realization of expected cash flows over time

Represents results from free-standing derivatives economic hedges used to hedge the risk of changes in fair value of MSR5 See Note 16 Free-Standing Derivatives

for additional discussion and detail

consist of residential and commercial mortgage originations

and servicing

The changes in residential MSRs measured using the fair

value method were

in millions Year ended December 31

in millions Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Balance beginning of year

Purchases

Acquired from Wachovia

Servicing from securitizations

or asset transfers

Amortization

$16763 $17591 $12547
Balance end of year

191 803 3859 Fair value of amortized MSR5

Beginning of year

End of year

2008 2007 2006

466 $377 $122

10 120 278

1021

24 40 11

JZ J34

$iA4 $466 $77

3450 3680 4107

269 1714 469

3851 2769 7497 Based on December 312008 assumptions the weighted-average amortization

period for MSRs added during the
year was approximately 7.6 years

There was no valuation allowance for the periods presented

Loans serviced for others

Owned loans serviced

Total owned servicing

Sub-servicing

2008 2006

$2525 $3133

242 583

2311

154
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Note 10 Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount of intangible assets and accumulated amortization was

in millions December 31

2008 2007

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

carrying amortization carrying amortization

amount amount

Amortized intangible assets

MSR51 1672 226 617 151

Core deposit intangibles 14188 2189 2539 2104
Customer relationship and other intangibles 3.988 486 731 426

Total intangible assets $19848 3887

MSRs fair value $14714 $16763
Trademark 14 14

See Note for additional information on MSRs

The following table provides the current year and estimated future amortization expense for amortized intangible assets

in millions Core Customer Amortized Total

deposit relationship commercial

intangibles and other MSRs

intangibles

Year ended December 31 2008 L12
Estimate for year ended December 31

2009 $2005 $650 $275 $2930
2010 1747 503 228 2478
2011 1463 409 206 2078
2012 1291 369 171 1831

2013 1148 334 137 1619

We based our projections of amortization expense additional core deposit or other intangibles acquired through

shown above on existing asset balances at December 31 business combinations

2008 Future amortization expense will vary based on
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Note 11 Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill as allocated to our operating segments for goodwill impairment analysis were

in millions Community Wholesale Wells Fargo Consolidated

Banking Banking Financial Company

December 31 2006 7357 3552 $366 $11275

Goodwill from business combinations 1224 550 49 1823

Foreign currency translation adjustments

December3l2007 8581 4102 423 13106

Reduction in goodwill related to

divested businesses

Goodwill and revisions to goodwill

from business combinations 7171 2361 9532

Foreign currency translation adjustments Jj 10

December3l2008 $15752 $4 $22627

111 To reflect the realignment of our corporate trust business from Community Banking into Wholesale Banking in first quarter 2008 balances for prior periods have

been revised

For goodwill impairment testing enterprise-level goodwill For our goodwill impairment analysis we allocate all

acquired in business combinations is allocated to reporting units of the goodwill to the individual operating segments For

based on the relative fair value of assets acquired and recorded management reporting we do not allocate all of the goodwill

in the respective reporting units Through this allocation we to the individual operating segments some is allocated at

assigned enterprise-level goodwill to the reporting units that the enterprise level See Note 24 for further information

are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination on management reporting The balances of goodwill for

We used discounted estimated future net cash flows to management reporting were

evaluate goodwill reported at all reporting units

in millions Community Wholesale Wells Fargo Enterprise Consolidated

Banking Banking Financial Company

December31 2007 4734 $2152 $423 5797 13106

December3l2008 11905 4512 413 5797 22627

Ill To reflect the realignment of our corporate trust business from Community Banking into Wholesale Banking in first quarter 2008 balances for prior periods have

been revised
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Note 12 Deposits

The total of time certificates of deposit and other time

deposits issued by domestic offices was $210540 million and

$46351 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Substantially all of these deposits were interest bearing

The contractual maturities of these deposits follow

in millions December31 2008

2009 $160380

2010 19468

2011 7571

2012 4492

2013 15436

Thereafter 3193

Total $210540

Note 13 Short-Term Borrowings

Of these deposits the amount of time deposits with

denomination of $100000 or more was $90123 million and

$16890 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The contractual maturities of these deposits follow

in millions December31 2008

Three months or less $24925

After three months through six months 7599

After six months through twelve months 24631

After twelve months 22968

Total $90123

Time certificates of deposit and other time deposits issued

by foreign offices with denomination of $iooooo or more

represent major portion of all of our foreign deposit liabilities

of $40941 million and $54549 million at December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively

Demand deposit overdrafts of $1067 million and

$845 million were included as loan balances at December 31

2008 and 2007 respectively

The table below shows selected information for short-term borrowings which generally mature in less than 30 days

in millions 2008

Amount Rate

2007

Amount Rate

2006

Amount Rate

As of December 31

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase

Total

Year ended December 31

Average daily balance

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase

Total

Maximum month-end balance

Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase

45871 0.93% $30427 4.45% 1122 4.06%

62.203 1.12 22828 2.94 11707 488

$108074 1.04 $53255 3.80 $12829 4.81

43792 2.43% 8765 4.96% 7701 4.61%

22034 1.88 17089 4.74 13770 4.62

65826 2.25 $25854 4.81 $21471 4.62

76009 N/A $30427 N/A $14580 N/A

62203 N/A 23527 N/A 16910 N/A

N/A Not applicable

Highest month-end balance in each of the last three
years was in August 2008 December 2007 and February 2006

Highest month-end balance in each of the last three
years was in December 2008 September 2007 and May 2006
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Note 14 Long-Term Debt

Following is summary of our long-term debt based on and premiums and purchase accounting adjustments for

original maturity reflecting unamortized debt discounts debt assumed in the Wachovia acquisition where applicable

in millions

Wells Fargo Company Parent only

Maturity Stated

dates interest

rates

December 31

2008 2007

Junior Subordinated

FixedRate Notes 14894041

FixEloat Preferred Purchase Securities 8121

Floating-Rate Notes 14

FixFloat Notes 14

Fixed-Rate Notes Hybrid trust securities 1841541617

FixFloat Notes Income trust securities 8118

Total junior subordinated debt Parent

Total long-term debt Parent

Subordinated

Fixed-Rate Notes

Floating-Rate Notes

Other notes and debentures

Total subordinated debt WFB N.A

Total long-term debt WFB N.A

2026-2068 5.625-8.625%

2013-2044 7.50-9.25% to

2013 varies

2027-2036 Varies

2036 6.28% to 2011varies

2037-2047 6.375-7.85%

2011-2042 5.20% to 201 1varies

2010-2036 4.75-7.55%

2016 Varies

2009-2013 4.70-5.40%

2013

2009-2018

2009-2011

2009-2011

2009-2040

2014

6.00%

1.00-5.26%

Varies

Varies

Varies

11.65 9%

2098

3963

5527

20529

32131

Subordinated

Fixed-Rate Notes

Floating-Rate Notes

Mortgage rates and other debt

Total subordinated debt WB NA

Total long-term debt WB N.A

2010-2038 4.75-9.625%

2014-2017 Varies

Varies Varies

54600

Senior

Fixed-Rate Notes 112

Floating-Rate Notes 213

Extendable Notes

FixFloat Notes

Market-Linked Notes

Convertible Debentures 617

Total senior debt Parent

Subordinated

Fixed-Rate Notes

Floating-Rate Notes

Total subordinated debt Parent

2009-2035

2009-2048

2009-2013

2010

2009-2018

2033

3.00-6.75%

Varies

Varies

5.51% through

mid-2008 varies

Varies

Varies

2009-2035 4.375-6.65%

2015-2016 Varies

$25105

31679

5369

2200

871

3000

68224

4550

4550

4342

49019

51220

933

101180

12204

1074

13278

10111

4308
245

10

2449

2445

19568

Wells Fargo Bank N.A and its subsidiaries WFB NA

Senior

Fixed-Rate Notes

Floating-Rate Notes

Fixed-Rate Advances Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB

Market-Linked Notes

Obligations of subsidiaries under capital leases Note

Total senior debt WEB N.A

________ 4342

134026 77116

2009-2013

2009-2012

2012

2009-2015

2009-2025

3.12-5.094%

Varies

5.20%

0.053-7.05%

Varies

63

1026

202

437

97

1825

6941

500

7450

34

504

203

658

20

1419

6151

500

11

6662

Wachovia Bank N.A WB N.A

Senior

Fixed-Rate Notes

Fixed-Rate Advances FHLB

Floating-Rate Notes

Floating-Rate Advances FHLB

Primarily notes issued under global bank note programs 3719

Obligations of subsidiaries under capital leases Note

Total senior debt WB NA

9275 8081

12856

1388

8225

22469

continued on following page 123



continued from
previous page

in millions December 31

Maturity Stated 2008 2007

dates interest

rates

Wells Fargo Financial Inc and its subsidiaries WFFI

Senior

Fixed-Rate Notes 2009-2034 3.60-6.85% 6456 8103

Floating-Rate Notes 2009-2010 Varies 1075 1405

Total senior debt WFFI 7531 9508

Subordinated

Other notes and debentures 2009-2017 3.50-5.125%

Total subordinated WFFI

Total long-term debt WFFI 7537 9508

Other consolidated subsidiaries

Senior

Fixed-Rate Notes 2009-2049 0.00-7.50% 2489 951

Fixed-Rate Notes- Auto secured financing 2009-2015 1.36-9.05% 1804

Fixed-Rate Advances FHLB 2009-203 2.85-8.45% 2545

Floating-Rate Notes 2009-2011 Varies 2641

Floating-Rate Advances FHLB 2009-2013 Varies 46282 1250

Other notes and debenturesFloating-Rate 2009-2049 Varies 3347 1752

Total senior debt Other consolidated subsidiaries 59108 3953

Subordinated

Fixed-Rate Notes 6.25% 202

Floating-Rate Notes 2013 Varies 421

Floating-Rate Notes Preferred units Varies Varies 349

Other notes and debentures Floating-Rate 2011-2016 Varies 84 83

Total subordinated debt Other consolidated subsidiaries 854 285

Junior Subordinated

Fixed-Rate Notes 2011-2031 5.50-10.875% 116 112

Floating-Rate Notes sos 2026-2036 Varies 763 257

FixFloat Notes 2036 7.06% through

mid-2011 varies 80 81

Total junior subordinated debt Other consolidated subsidiaries 959 450

Mortgage notes and other debt of subsidiaries Varies Varies 799

Total long-term debt Other consolidated subsidiaries 61.720 4688

Total long-term debt $267158 $99393

We entered into interest rate swap agreements for most of these notes whereby we receive fixed-rate interest payments approximately equal to interest on the notes

and make interest payments based on an average one-month three-month or six-month London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR

121 On December 102008 Wells Fargo issued $3 billion of 3% fixed senior unsecured notes and $3 billion of floating senior unsecured notes both maturing on December

2011 These notes are guaranteed under the EDICs Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program and are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States

131 We entered into interest rate swap agreements for portion of these notes whereby we receive variable-rate interest payments and make interest payments based on

fixed rate

141 The extendable notes are floating-rate securities with an initial maturity of 13 or 24 months which can be extended on rolling monthly or quarterly basis respectively

to final maturity of five years at the investors option

51 Consists of long-term notes where the performance of the note is linked to an embedded equity commodity or currency index or basket of indices accounted for

separately from the note as free-standing derivative For information on embedded derivatives see Note 16 Free-standing derivatives

61 On April 152003 we issued $3 billion of convertible senior debentures as private placement In November 2004 we amended the indenture under which the debentures

were issued to eliminate provision in the indenture that prohibited us from paying cash upon conversion of the debentures if an event of default as defined in the

indenture exists at the time of conversion We then made an irrevocable election under the indenture on December 152004 that upon conversion of the debentures

we must satisfy the accreted value of the obligation the amount of accrued benefit of the holder exclusive of the conversion spread in cash and may satisfy the

conversion spread the excess conversion value over the accreted value in either cash or stock

On May 12008 the $3 billion of convertible senior debentures were remarketed at rate of 3.55175% per annum Upon the remarketing event the debentures were no

longer convertible securities

81 Effective December 312003 as result of the adoption of FIN 46 revised December 2003 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities FIN 46R we deconsolidated certain

wholly-owned trusts formed for the sole purpose of issuing trust preferred securities the Trusts.The junior subordinated debentures held by the Trusts are included in

the Companys long-term debt

On December 52006 Wells Fargo Capital issued 5955/ Capital Securities and used the proceeds to purchase from the Parent 5.95% Capital Efficient Notes the Notes

due 2086 scheduled maturity 2036 When it issued the Notes the Parent entered into Replacement Capital Covenant the Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit

of the holders of the Parents 5.625% Junior Subordinated Debentures due 2034 that it will not repay redeem or repurchase and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase

any part of the Notes or the Capital Securities on or before December 12066 unless the repayment redemption or repurchase is made from the net cash proceeds of the

issuance of certain qualified securities and pursuant to the other terms and conditions set forth in the Covenant For more information refer to the Covenant which was

filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 52006
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On May 25 2007 Wells Fargo Capital Xl issued 6.25% Enhanced Trust Preferred Securities Enhanced TauPS the 2007 Capital Securities and used the proceeds to

purchase from the Parent 6.25% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures due 2067 the 2007 Notes When it issued the 2007 Notes the Parent entered into

Replacement Capital Covenant the 2007 Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit ofthe holders of the Parents 5.625% Junior Subordinated Debentures due 2034

that it will not repay redeem or repurchase and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase any part
of the 2007 Notes or the 2007 Capital Securities on or before June

2057 unless the repayment redemption or repurchase is made from the net cash proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities and pursuant to the other

terms and conditions set forth in the 2007 Covenant For more information refer to the 2007 Covenant which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report

on Form 8-K filed May 25 2007

On March 2008 Wells Fargo Capital XII issued 7.875% Enhanced Trust Preferred Securities Enhanced TxuPS the First 2008 Capital Securities and used the proceeds

to purchase from the Parent 7.875% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures due 2068 the First 2008 Notes.Wheri it issued the First 2008 Notesthe Parent

entered into Replacement Capital Covenant the First 2008 Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit of the holders of the Parents 5.375% Junior Subordinated

Debentures due 2035 that it will not repay redeem or repurchase and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase any part of the First 2008 Notes or the First 2008 Capital

Securities on or before March 152048 unless the repayment redemption or repurchase is made from the net cash proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities

and pursuant to the other terms and conditions set forth in the First 2008 Covenant For more information refer to the First 2008 Covenant which was filed as Exhibit

99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 122008

On May 192008 Wells Fargo Capital XIII issued 7.70% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Normal Preferred Purchase Securities PPS the Second 2008 Capital Securities.The proceeds

were used to purchase Remarketable 7.50% Junior Subordinated Notes maturing in 2044 the Second 2008 Notes from the Parent In connection with the issuance of

the Second 2008 Capital Securities the Trust and the Parent entered into forward stock purchase contract that obligates the Trust to purchase the Parents

Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series the Series Preferred Stock and obligates the Parent to make payments to the Trust of 0.20% per annum through

the stock purchase date expected to be March 262013 the Series Stock Purchase Date Prior to the Series Stock Purchase Date the Trust is required to remarket

and sell the Second 2008 Notes to third party investors to generate cash proceeds to satisfy its obligation to purchase the Series Preferred Stock When it issued the

Second 2008 Notes the Parent entered into Replacement Capital Covenant the Second 2008 Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit of the holders of the Parents

5.375% Junior Subordinated Debentures due 2035 the Covered Debt that after the date it notifies the holders of the Covered Debt of the Second 2008 Covenant it will

not repay redeem or repurchase and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase any part of the Second 2008 Notes prior to the Series Stock Purchase Date or uI any

part
of the Second 2008 Capital Securities or the Series Preferred Stock prior to the date that is 10 years after the Series Stock Purchase Date unless the repayment

redemption or repurchase is made from the net cash proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities and pursuant to the other terms and conditions set forth in

the Second 2008 Covenant For more information refer to the Second 2008 Covenant which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

May 19 2008

13 On September 102008WelIs Fargo CapitalXV issued 9.75% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Normal PPStheThird 2008 Capital Securities.The proceeds were used to purchase

Remarketable 9.25% Junior Subordinated Notes maturing in 2044 the Third 2008 Notes from the Parent In connection with the issuance of the Third 2008 Capital

Securities the Trust and the Parent entered into forward stock purchase contract that obligates the Trust to purchase the Parents Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred

Stock Series the Series Preferred Stock and obligates the Parent to make payments to the Trust of 0.50%
per annum through the stock purchase date expected to

be September 262013 the Series Stock Purchase Date Prior to the Series Stock Purchase Date the Trust is required to remarket and sell the Third 2008 Notes to third

party investors to generate cash proceeds to satisfy its obligation to purchase the Series Preferred Stock.When it issued the Third 2008 Notes the Parent entered into

Replacement Capital Covenant the Third 2008 Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit of the holders of the Covered Debt that after the date it notifies the holders

of the Covered Debt of the Third 2008 Covenant it will not repay redeem or repurchase and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase any part of the Third 2008 Notes

prior to the Series Stock Purchase Date or ii any part of the Third 2008 Capital Securities or the Series Preferred Stock prior to the date that is 10 years after the Series

Stock Purchase Date unless the repayment redemption or repurchase is made from the net cash proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities and pursuant to

the other terms and conditions set forth in the Third 2008 Covenant For more information refer to the Third 2008 Covenant which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 102008

On July 12008 Wells Fargo Company acquired the assets and liabilities of United Bancorporation of Wyoming Inc which included Trust Preferred Securities

On February 152007 Wachovia Capital Trust IV issued 6.375% Trust Preferred Securities the Second Wachovia Trust Securities and used the proceeds to purchase

from Wachovia 6.375% Extendible Long Term Subordinated Notes the Second Wachovia Notes When it issued the Second Wachovia Notes Wachovia entered into

Replacement Capital Covenant the Second Wachovia Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit of the holders of the Wachovia Covered Debt that it will not repay

redeem or repurchase and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase any part of the Second Wachovia Notes or the Second Wachovia Trust Securities on or after the

scheduled maturity date of the Second Wachovia Notes and prior to the date that is 20 years prior to the final repayment date of the Second Wachovia Notes unless the

repayment redemption or repurchase is made from the net cash proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities and pursuant to the other terms and conditions

set forth in the Second Wachovia Covenant In connection with the Wachovia acquisition the Parent assumed all of Wachovias obligations under the Second Wachovia

Covenant For more information refer to the Second Wachovia Covenant which was filed as Exhibit 991 to Wachovias Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 152007

On May 2007Wachovia Capital Trust IX issued 6.375%Trust Preferred Securities the Third Wachovia Trust Securities and used the proceeds to purchase from

Wachovia 6.375% Extendible Long Term Subordinated Notes the Third Wachovia Notes When it issued the Third Wachovia Notes Wachovia entered into Replacement

Capital Covenant the Third Wachovia Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit of the holders of the Wachovia Covered Debt that it will not repay redeem or repurchase

and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase any part of the Third Wachovia Notes or the Third Wachovia Trust Securities on or after the earlier of the date that is

30 years prior to the final repayment date of the Third Wachovia Notes and the scheduled
maturity date of the Third Wachovia Notes and ii prior to the later of the date

that is 20
years prior to the final repayment date of the Third Wachovia Notes and June 152057 unless the repayment redemption or repurchase is made from the net

cash proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities and pursuant to the other terms and conditions set forth in the Third Wachovia Covenant In connection

with the Wachovia acquisition the Parent assumed all of Wachovias obligations under the Third Wachovia Covenant For more information refer to the Third Wachovia

Covenant which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Wachovias Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 82007

On November 212007 Wachovia Capital Trust issued 7.85% Trust Preferred Securities the Fourth Wachovia Trust Securities and used the proceeds to purchase

from Wachovia 7.8S% Extendible Long Term Subordinated Notes the Fourth Wachovia Notes When it issued the Fourth Wachovia Notes Wachovia entered into

Replacement Capital Covenant the Fourth Wachovia Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit of the holders of the Wachovia Covered Debt that it will not repay

redeem or repurchase and that none of its subsidiaries will purchase any part of the Fourth Wachovia Notes or the Fourth Wachovia Trust Securities on or after the

earlier of the date that is 30
years prior to the final repayment date of the Fourth Wachovia Notes and the scheduled maturity date of the Fourth Wachovia Notes and

ii prior to the later of the date that is 20 years prior to the final repayment date of the Fourth Wachovia Notes and December 152057 unless the repayment redemption

or repurchase is made from the net cash proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities and pursuant to the other terms and conditions set forth in the Fourth

Wachovia Covenant In connection with the Wachovia acquisition the Parent assumed all of Wachovias obligations under the Fourth Wachovia Covenant For more

information refer to the Fourth Wachovia Covenant which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Wachovias Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 212007
On February 12006 Wachovia Capital Trust Ill issued 5.80% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Wachovia Income Trust Securities the First Wachovia Trust Securities and used

the proceeds to purchase from Wachovia Remarketable Junior Subordinated Notes due 2042 the First Wachovia Notes In connection with the issuance of the First

Wachovia Trust Securities the Trust and Wachovia entered into forward stock purchase contract that obligates the Trust to purchase Wachovias Noncumulative

Perpetual Class Preferred Stock Series the Series Preferred Stock and obligates Wachovia to make payments to the Trust of 0.60%
per annum through the stock

purchase date expected to be March 152011 the Series Stock Purchase Date Prior to the Series Stock Purchase Date the Trust is required to remarket and sell the

First Wachovia Notes to third party investors to generate cash proceeds to satisfy its obligation to purchase the Series Preferred Stock When it issued the First Wachovia

Notes Wachovia entered into Declaration of Covenant the First Wachovia Covenant in which it agreed for the benefit of the holders of the Wachovias Floating Rate

Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures due January 152027 the Wachovia Covered Debt that it will repurchase the First Wachovia Trust Securities or

redeem or repurchase shares of the Series Preferred Stock only if and to the extent that the total redemption or repurchase price is equal to or less than the net cash

proceeds of the issuance of certain qualified securities as described in the First Wachovia Covenant In connection with the Wachovia acquisition the Parent assumed all

ofWachovias
obligations under the First Wachovia Covenant For more information refer to the First Wachovia Covenant which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Wachovias

Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 12006

At December 312008 bank notes of $19.9 billion had floating rates of interest ranging from 0.14% to 5.53% and $644 million of the notes had fixed rates of interest

ranging from 1.00% to S.00%
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Wells Farge is participating in the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporations FDIC Temporary Liquidity

Guarantee Program TLGP The TLGP has two components

the Debt Guarantee Program which provides temporary

guarantee of newly issued senior unsecured debt issued by

eligible entities and the Transaction Account Guarantee

Program which provides temporary unlimited guarantee

of funds in noninterest bearing transaction accounts at FDIC

insured institutions Under the Debt Guarantee Program we

have $91.7 billion of remaining capacity to issue guaranteed

debt as of December 31 2008 Eligible entities will be

assessed fees payable to the FDIC for coverage under the

program This assessment will be in addition to risk-based

deposit insurance assessments currently imposed under

FDIC rules and regulations

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt

obligations based on final maturity dates as of December 31

2008 follow

in millions Parent Company

2009 16799 53893

2010 20829 42433

2011 22487 38630

2012 11159 23622

2013 4846 15228

Thereafter 57906 93352

Total $134026 $267158

The interest rates on floating-rate notes are determined

periodically by formulas based on certain money market

rates subject on certain notes to minimum or maximum

interest rates

As part of our long-term and short-term borrowing

arrangements we are subject to various financial and

operational covenants Some of the agreements under

which debt has been issued have provisions that may limit

the merger or sale of certain subsidiary banks and the

issuance of capital stock or convertible securities by certain

subsidiary banks At December 31 2008 we were in compliance

with all the covenants

Note 15 Guarantees and Legal Actions

Guarantees agreements written put options recourse obligations

Guarantees are contracts that contingently require us to make residual value guarantees and contingent consideration The

payments to guaranteed party based on an event or following table shows carrying amount maximum risk of loss

change in an underlying asset liability rate or index on our guarantees and for December 31 2008 the amount

Guarantees are generally in the form of securities lending with higher risk of payment

indemnifications standby letters of credit liquidity

in millions December31

2008 2007

Carrying Maximum Higher Carrying Maximum

amount risk of payment amount risk of

loss risk loss

Standby letters of credit 130 47191 $17293 $12530

Securities and other lending indemnifications 30120 1907

Liquidity agreements 30 17602

Written put options 1376 10182 5314 48 2569

Loans sold with recourse 53 6126 2038

Residual value guarantees 1121

Contingent consideration 11 187 67 246

Other guarantees 38 59

Total guarantees $iPQ $112567 $26552 $i23 $15406

The amounts shown in the table above as having higher

payment risk represent the amount of exposure for which

there is high likelihood that we will be required to make

payment or perform under the guarantee Such payment may

not result in loss and accordingly the higher payment risk

column is not an indication of loss probability The risk of

payment or performance is considered high if the underlying

assets under the guarantee have an external rating that is

below investment grade or an internal credit default grade

that is equivalent to below investment grade external rating

In rare circumstances for which neither external nor internal

ratings are available we determine the current status of

payment risk based on whether historical experience

indicates higher likelihood of performance We assumed

substantially all of the guarantees in the table above in the

Wachovia acquisition
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We issue standby letters of credit which include

performance and financial guarantees for customers in

connection with contracts between our customers and third

parties Standby letters of credit are agreements where we

are obligated to make payment to third party on behalf

of customer in the event the customer fails to meet their

contractual obligations We consider the credit risk in

standby letters of credit and commercial and similar letters

of credit in determining the allowance for credit losses

As securities lending agent we loan client securities on

fully collateralized basis to third party broker/dealers We

indemnify our clients against broker default and in certain

cases against collateral losses We support these guarantees

with collateral generally in the form of cash or highly liquid

securities that is marked to market daily At December 31

2008 there was $31.0 billion in collateral supporting the

$30.1 billion loaned

We enter into other types of indemnification agreements

in the ordinary course of business under which we agree

to indemnify third parties against any damages losses

and expenses incurred in connection with legal and other

proceedings arising from relationships or transactions with us

These relationships or transactions include those arising from

service as director or officer of the Company underwriting

agreements relating to our securities acquisition agreements

and various other business transactions or arrangements

Because the extent of our obligations under these agreements

depends entirely upon the occurrence of future events

our potential future liability under these agreements is

not determinable

We provide liquidity facilities on all commercial paper

issued by the conduit we administer We also provide liquidity

to certain off-balance sheet entities that hold securitized

fixed rate municipal bonds and consumer or commercial

assets that are partially funded with the issuance of money

market and other short-term notes See Note for additional

information on these arrangements

Written put options are contracts that give the counterparty

the right to sell to us an underlying instrument held by the

counterparty at specified price and include options floors

caps and credit default swaps These written put option

contracts generally permit net settlement While these

derivative transactions expose us to risk in the event the

option is exercised we manage this risk by entering into

offsetting trades or by taking short positions in the underlying

instrument We offset substantially all put options written

to customers with purchased options Additionally for certain

of these contracts we require the counterparty to pledge the

underlying instrument as collateral for the transaction Our

ultimate obligation under written put options is based on

future market conditions and is only quantifiable at settlement

See Note for additional information regarding transactions

with VIEs and Note i6 for additional information regarding

written derivative contracts

In certain loan sales or securitizations we provide

recourse to the buyer whereby we are required to repurchase

leans at par value plus accrued interest en the occurrence of

certain credit-related events within certain period of time

The maximumrisk of loss represents the outstanding principal

balance of the loans sold or securitized that are subject to

recourse provisions but the likelihood of the repurchase

of the entire balance is remote and amounts paid can be

recovered in whole or in part from the sale of collateral

In 2008 and in 2007 we did not repurchase significant

amount of loans associated with these agreements

We provide residual value guarantees as part of certain

leasing transactions of corporate assets principally railcars

The lessors in these leases are generally large financial

institutions or their leasing subsidiaries These guarantees

protect the lesser from loss on sale of the related asset at the

end of the lease term To the extent that sale of the leased

assets results in proceeds less than stated percent generally

80% to 89% of the assets cost less depreciation we would be

required to reimburse the lessor under our guarantee

In connection with certain brokerage asset management

insurance agency and other acquisitions we have made

the terms of the acquisition agreements provide for deferred

payments or additional consideration based on certain

performance targets

We have entered into various contingent performance

guarantees through credit risk participation arrangements

Under these agreements if customer defaults on its

obligation to perform under certain credit agreements with

third parties we will be required to make payments to the

third parties

Wells Fargo is Class common shareholder of Visa Inc

Visa Based on agreements previously executed among

Wells Fargo Visa and its predecessors and certain member

banks of the Visa USA network we may be required to

indemnify Visa with respect to certain covered litigation

In conjunction with its initial public offering in March 2008

Visa deposited $3 billion of the proceeds of the offering into

litigation escrow account to be used to satisfy settlement

obligations with respect to prior litigation and to make

payments with respect to the future resolution of the covered

litigation The extent of our future obligations if any under

these arrangements depends on the ultimate resolution of

the covered litigation In October 2008 Visa entered into

an agreement in principle to settle with Discover Financial

Services Discover We had previously established reserve

to reflect the fair value of our possible indemnification

obligation to Visa for the Discover litigation
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Legal Actions

Wells Fargo and certain of our subsidiaries are involved in

number of judicial regulatory and arbitration proceedings

concerning matters arising from the conduct of our business

activities These proceedings include actions brought against

Wells Fargo and/or our subsidiaries with respect to corporate

related matters and transactions in which Wells Fargo and/or

our subsidiaries were involved In addition Wells Fargo and

our subsidiaries may be requested to provide information or

otherwise cooperate with governmental authorities in the

conduct of investigations of other persons or industry groups

Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate

outcome Wells Fargo and/or our subsidiaries have generally

denied or believe we have meritorious defense and will

deny liability in all significant litigation pending against us

including the matters described below and we intend to

defend vigorously each case other than matters we describe

as having settled Reserves are established for legal claims

when payments associated with the claims become probable

and the costs can be reasonably estimated The actual costs

of resolving legal claims may be substantially higher or lower

than the amounts reserved for those claims

ADELPHIA LITIGATION Wachovia Bank N.A and Wachovia

Capital Markets LLC are defendants in an adversary

proceeding previously pending in the United States

Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York relat

ed to the bankruptcy of Adelphia Communications

Corporation Adeiphia The Official Committee of

Unsecured Creditors in Adelphias bankruptcy case filed

the claims the current plaintiff is the Adelphia Recovery

Trust which was substituted as the plaintiff pursuant to

Adelphias confirmed plan of reorganization In February

2006 an order was entered moving the case to the United

States District Court for the Southern District of New York

The complaint asserts claims against the defendants under

state law bankruptcy law and the Bank Holding Company

Act and seeks equitable relief and an unspecified amount of

compensatory and punitive damages On June 11 2007 the

Bankruptcy Court granted in part and denied in part the

motions to dismiss filed by the two Wachovia entities and

other defendants On January 17 2008 the District Court

affirmed the decision of the Bankruptcy Court on the motion

to dismiss with the exception that it dismissed one additional

claim On July 17 2008 the District Court issued ruling

dismissing all of the bankruptcy related claims The remaining

claims essentially allege the banks should be liable to Adelphia

on theories of aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duty

and violation of the Bank Holding Company Act The case

is now in discovery

AUCTION RATE SECURITIES On August 15 2008 Wachovia

Securities LLC and Wachovia Capital Markets LLC

collectively the Wachovia Securities Affiliates announced

they had reached settlements in principle with the Secretary

of State for the State of Missouri as the lead state in the

North American Securities Administrators Association task

force investigating the marketing and sale of auction rate

securities and with the New York State Attorney Generals

Office of their respective investigations of sales practice

and other issues related to the sales of auction rate securities

ARS Wachovia Securities also announced settlement

in principle with the Securities and Exchange Commission

SEC of its similar investigation Without admitting or deny

ing liability the agreements in principle require that the

Wachovia Securities Affiliates purchase certain ARS sold to

customers in accounts at the Wachovia Securities Affiliates

reimburse investors who sold ARS purchased at the

Wachovia Securities Affiliates for less than par provide liq

uidity loans to customers at no net interest until the ARS are

repurchased offer to participate in special arbitration proce

dures with customers who claim consequential damages from

the lack of liquidity in ARS and refund refinancing fees to

certain municipal issuers who issued ARS and later refi

nanced those securities through the Wachovia Securities

Affiliates Without admitting or denying liability the

Wachovia Securities Affiliates will also pay total fine

of $50 million to the state regulatory agencies and agreed

to entry of consent orders by the two state regulators and

Wachovia Securities LLC agreed to entry of an injunction

by the SEC All three settlements in principle have been

finalized The Wachovia Securities Affiliates began the buy

back of ARS in November 2008 The second and final phase

of the buy back will take place in June 2009

Wells Fargo Investments LLC WFI Wells Fargo

Brokerage Services LLC and Wells Fargo Institutional

Securities LLC are engaged in discussions with regulators

concerning the sale of ARS On November 20 2008 the State

of Washington Department of Financial Institutions filed

proceeding entitled In the Matter of determining whether

there has been violation of the Securities Act of Washington

by Wells Fargo Investments LLC Wells Fargo Brokerage

Services LLC and Wells Fargo Institutional Securities LLC

The action seeks cease and desist order against violations

of the anti-fraud and suitability provisions of the Washington

Securities Act

In addition several purported civil class actions relating

to the sale of ARS are currently pending against various

Wells Fargo affiliated defendants
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DATA TREASURY LITIGATION Wells Fargo Company
Wells Fargo Bank N.A Wachovia Bank N.A and Wachovia

Corporation are among over ss defendants named in two

actions asserting patent infringement claims filed by Data

Treasury Corporation in the U.S District Court for the

Eastern District of Texas Data Treasury seeks declaration

that its patents are valid and have been infringed and seeks

damages and permanent injunctive relief The cases are

currently in discovery

ELAVON LITIGATION On January 16 2009 Elavon Inc

provider of merchant processing services filed complaint

in the U.S District Court for the Northern District of Georgia

against Wachovia Corporation Wachovia Bank N.A

Wells Fargo Company and Wells Fargo Bank N.A

The complaint seeks equitable relief including specific

performance and damages for Wachovia Banks allegedly

wrongful termination of its merchant referral contract

with Elavon The complaint also seeks damages including

punitive damages against the Wells Fargo entities for

tortious interference with contractual relations

ERISA LITIGATION Seven purported class actions have been

filed against Wachovia Corporation its board of directors

and certain senior officers in the U.S District Court for the

Southern District of New York on behalf of employees of

Wachovia Corporation and its affiliates who held shares

of Wachovia Corporation common stock in their Wachovia

Savings Plan accounts The plaintiffs allege breach of

fiduciary duty under ERISA among other things claiming

that the defendants should not have permitted Wachovia

Corporation common stock to remain an investment option

in the Savings Plan because alleged misleading disclosures

relating to the Golden West mortgage portfolio exposure

to CDOs and other problem loans and other alleged

misstatements made its stock risky and imprudent

investment for employee retirement accounts

GOLDEN WEST AND RELATED LITIGATION purported securities

class action Lipetz Wochovio Corporotion et ol was filed

on July 2008 in the U.S District Court for the Southern

District of New York by purported Wachovia Corporation

shareholders alleging violations of Sections 10 and 20 of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 An amended complaint

was filed on December 15 2008 Among other allegations

plaintiffs allege Wachovia Corporations common stock price

was artificially inflated as result of allegedly misleading

disclosures relating to the Golden West Financial Corp

Golden West mortgage portfolio Wachovia Corporations

exposure to other mortgage related products such as

CDOs control issues and auction rate securities The defen

dants have until February 27 2009 to respond to the com

plaint

purported class action Miller et ol Wochovio

Corporotion et ol was filed on January 31 2008 against

Wachovia Corporation its board of directors and certain

senior officers in the New York Supreme Court for the

County of Nassau relating to Wachovia Corporations May

2007 issuance of trust preferred securities The plaintiffs

allege violations of Sections 11 12 and 15 of the Securities

Act of 1933 as result of allegedly misleading disclosures

relating to the Golden West mortgage portfolio Wachovia

Corporation removed the case to the U.S District Court for

the Eastern District of New York On January 16 2009 the

case was voluntarily dismissed by the plaintiff and on the

same day was refiled in the Superior Court of the State of

California Alameda County similar case Swiskoy

Wochovio Corporotion et ol was filed on December 19 2008

in the same court The Swiskoy case is essentially identical

to the Miller case except it includes allegations relating to

additional Wachovia preferred offerings On January 21

2009 third case Oronge County EmployeesRetirement

System et ol Wochovio Corporotion et ol was also filed

in the same California Superior Court on behalf of Orange

County Employees Retirement System and others The

complaint contains similar allegations to the Miller and

Swiskoy cases except it includes some additional individuals

and non-affiliated entities as defendants and adds claims

relating to additional issuances of preferred stock and debt

securities Wells Fargo will file appropriate venue and other

motions in response to these actions

Several government agencies are investigating matters

similar to the issues raised in this litigation Wells Fargo

and its affiliates are cooperating fully

INTERCHANGE LITIGATION Wells Fargo Bank N.A

Wells Fargo Company Wachovia Bank N.A and Wachovia

Corporation are named as defendants separately or in

combination in putative class actions filed on behalf of

plaintiff class of merchants and individual actions brought

by individual merchants with regard to the interchange fees

associated with Visa and MasterCard payment card

transactions These actions have been consolidated in the

United States District Court for the Eastern District of New

York Visa MasterCard and several banks and bank holding

companies are named as defendants in various of these

actions The amended and consolidated complaint asserts

claims against defendants based on alleged violations of

federal and state antitrust laws and seeks damages as well

as injunctive relief Plaintiff merchants allege that Visa

MasterCard and their member banks unlawfully colluded to

set interchange rates Plaintiffs also allege that enforcement

of certain Visa and MasterCard rules and alleged tying and

bundling of services offered to merchants are anticompetitive

Wells Fargo and Wachovia along with other members of

Visa are parties to Loss and Judgment Sharing Agreements

which provide that they along with other member banks

of Visa will share based on formula in any losses from

certain litigation specified in the Agreements including

the Interchange Litigation
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LE-NATURES INC Wachovia Bank N.A is the administrative

agent on $285 million credit facility extended to Le-Natures

Inc in September 2006 of which approximately $270 million

was syndicated to other lenders by Wachovia Capital

Markets LLC Le-Natures was the subject of Chapter

bankruptcy petition which was converted to Chapter 11

bankruptcy petition in November 2006 in the U.S

Bankruptcy Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania

The filing was precipitated by an apparent fraud relating

to Le-Natures financial condition On March 14 2007 the

two Wachovia entities filed an action against several hedge

funds in the Superior Court for the State of North Carolina

Mecklenburg County alleging that the hedge fund defendants

had acquired significant quantity of the outstanding

debt with full knowledge of Le-Natures fraud and with the

intention of pursuing alleged fraud and other tort claims

against the two Wachovia entities purportedly related to their

role in Le-Natures credit facility preliminary injunction

was entered by the Court that among other things prohibited

defendants from asserting any such claims in any other

forum On September i8 2007 these defendants filed an

action in the U.S District Court for the Southern District of

New York against Wachovia Capital Markets third party

and two members of Le-Natures management asserting

claims arising under federal RICO laws On March 13 2008

the North Carolina judge granted Defendants motion to stay

the North Carolina action and modified the injunction to

allow the Defendants to attempt to assert claims in the New

York action The Wachovia entities have appealed Wachovia

Capital Markets filed motion to dismiss the New York

action which was granted on August 26 2008 Plaintiffs have

appealed that ruling Plaintiffs subsequently filed case

asserting similar allegations in the New York State Supreme

Court for the County of Manhattan On April 28 2008 holders

of Le-Natures Senior Subordinated Notes an offering which

was underwritten by Wachovia Capital Markets in June 2003

sued alleging various fraud claims this case is pending in the

U.S District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania

On October 30 2008 the liquidation trust in Le-Natures

bankruptcy filed suit against number of individuals and

entities including Wachovia Capital Markets LLC and

Wachovia Bank N.A in the U.S District Court for the

Western District of Pennsylvania asserting variety

of claims on behalf of the estate

MERGER RELATED LITIGATION On October 2008 Citigroup

Inc Citigroup purported to commence an action in the

Supreme Court of the State of New York for the County of

Manhattan captioned Citigroup Inc Wochovio Corp et ol

naming as defendants Wachovia Corporation Wachovia
Wells Fargo Company Wells Fargo and the directors

of both companies The complaint alleged that Wachovia

Corporation breached an exclusivity agreement with

Citigroup which by its terms was to expire on October

2008 by entering into negotiations and an eventual

acquisition agreement with Wells Fargo and that Wells Fargo

and the individual defendants had tortiously interfered

with the same contract In the complaint Citigroup seeks

$20 billion in compensatory damages and $40 billion in

punitive damages After significant procedural activity

over the week of October 4-9 2008 including voluntary

dismissal and re-filing of the action in amended form the

case was removed on October 2008 to the U.S District

Court for the Southern District of New York On October 10

2008 Citigroup filed motion to remand the case to the

New York state court and filed new proposed amended

complaint The proposed amended complaint includes claims

for breach of contract tortious interference with contract

unjust enrichment promissory estoppel and quantum meruit

In the proposed amended complaint which the court has not

yet approved Citigroup seeks $20 billion in compensatory

damages $20 billion in restitutionary and unjust enrichment

damages and $40 billion in punitive damages On October

24 2008 Wachovia Corporation and Wells Fargo filed joint

response to the motion to remand

On October 2008 Wachovia Corporation filed

complaint in the U.S District Court for the Southern District

of New York captioned Wochovio Corp Citigroup Inc

The complaint seeks declaratory relief stating that the

Wells Fargo merger agreement is valid proper and not

prohibited by the exclusivity agreement On October 2008

Wachovia filed motion for preliminary injunction seeking

to prevent Citigroup from interfering with or impeding its

merger with Wells Fargo On October 2008 Citigroup

issued press release stating that Citigroup would no longer

seek to enjoin the merger but would continue to seek

compensatory and punitive damages against Wachovia

Corporation and Wells Fargo On October 14 2008

Wells Fargo filed related complaint in the U.S District

Court for the Southern District of New York captioned

Wells Forgo Citigroup bc The complaint seeks declaratory

and injunctive relief stating that the Wells Fargo merger

agreement is valid proper and not prohibited by the

exclusivity agreement Citigroup has moved to dismiss

the complaint The cases have been assigned to the same

judge for further proceedings

MUNICIPAL DERIVATIVES BID PRACTICES INVESTIGATION

The Department of Justice DOJ and the SEC beginning

in November 2006 have been requesting information from

number of financial institutions including Wachovia Bank

N.A.s municipal derivatives group generally with regard

to competitive bid practices in the municipal derivative

markets In connection with these inquiries Wachovia Bank

has received subpoenas from both the DOJ and SEC as

well as requests from the 0CC and several states seeking

documents and information The DOJ and the SEC have

advised Wachovia Bank that they believe certain of its

employees engaged in improper conduct in conjunction

with certain competitively bid transactions and in November

2007 the DOJ notified two Wachovia Bank employees both

of whom have since been terminated that they are regarded

130



as targets ef the DOJs investigatien Wachevia Bank has

been cooperating and continues to fully cooperate with the

government investigations

Wachovia Bank along with number of other banks

and financial services companies has also been named as

defendant in number of substantially identical purported

class actions filed in various state and federal courts by

various municipalities alleging they have been damaged

by the activity which is the subject of the governmental

investigations number of the federal matters have been

consolidated for pre trial proceedings

PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER On February 17 2006 the U.S

Attorneys Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

filed civil fraud complaint against former Wachovia Bank

NA customer Payment Processing Center PPC PPC was

third party payment processor for telemarketing and

catalogue companies On April 12 2007 civil class action

Foloney et ol Wachovio Bonk NA was filed against

Wachovia Bank in the U.S District Court for the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania by putative class of consumers who

made purchases through telemarketer customers of PPC The

suit alleges that between April 2005 and February 21 2006

Wachovia Bank conspired with PPC to facilitate PPCs pur

ported violation of RICO On February 15 2008 second

putative class action Horrison Wochovio Bonk NA was

filed in the U.S District Court for the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania by putative class of consumers who made

purchases through telemarketing customers of three other

third party payment processors which banked with Wachovia

Bank This suit alleges that Wachovia Bank conspired with

these payment processors to facilitate purported violations

of RICO On April 24 2008 Wachovia and the Office of

the Comptroller of the Currency 0CC entered into

an Agreement to resolve the OCCs investigation into

Wachovias relationship with PPC and three other companies

The Agreement provides among other things that

Wachovia will provide restitution to consumers ii will

create segregated account in the amount of $125 million

to cover the estimated maximum cost of the restitution

iii will fund organizations that provide education for

consumers over two year period in the amount of $8.9 million

iv will make various changes to its policies and procedures

related to customers that use remotely created checks and

will appoint special Compliance Committee to oversee

compliance with the Agreement Wachovia Bank and the

0CC also entered into Consent Order for Payment of

Civil Money Penalty whereby Wachovia without admitting

or denying the allegations contained therein agreed to

payment of $10 million civil money penalty The 0CC

Agreement was amended on December 2008 to provide

for direct restitution payments and those payments were

mailed to consumers on December 11 2008 Wachovia Bank

is cooperating with government officials to administer the

0CC settlement and in their further inquiries

On August 14 2008 Wachovia Bank reached agreements

to settle the Foloney and Horrison class action lawsuits The

settlements received approval from the U.S District Court for

the Eastern District of Pennsylvania on January 23 2009

OTHER REGULATORY MATTERS AND GOVERNMENT

INVESTIGATIONS In the course of its banking and financial

services businesses Wells Fargo and its affiliates are subject

to information requests and investigations by governmental

and self-regulatory authorities These authorities have

instituted various ongoing investigations of various practices

in the banking securities and mutual fund industries including

those relating to anti-money laundering sales practices

record retention and other laws and regulations involving

our customers and their accounts

In general the investigations cover advisory companies

to mutual funds broker-dealers hedge funds and others and

may involve the activities of customers or third parties with

respect to accounts maintained by Wells Fargo affiliates or

transactions in which Wells Fargo affiliates may be involved

Wells Fargo affiliates have received subpoenas and other

requests for documents and testimony relating to the

investigations is endeavoring to comply with those requests

is cooperating with the investigations and where appropriate

is engaging in discussions to resolve the investigations or

take other remedial actions These investigations include an

investigation being conducted by the U.S Attorneys Office

for the Southern District of Florida into among other matters

Wachovia Bank N.A.s correspondent banking relationship

with certain non-domestic exchange houses and Bank

Secrecy Act and anti-money laundering compliance

Wachovia Bank is cooperating fully with the U.S Attorneys

Offices investigation

OUTLOOK Based on information currently available advice

of counsel available insurance coverage and established

reserves Wells Fargo believes that the eventual outcome

of the actions against Wells Fargo and/or its subsidiaries

including the matters described above will not individually

or in the aggregate have material adverse effect on

Wells Fargos consolidated financial position or results

of operations However in the event of unexpected future

developments it is possible that the ultimate resolution of

those matters if unfavorable may be material to Wells Fargos

results of operations for any particular period
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Note 16 Derivatives

We use derivatives to manage exposure to market risk

interest rate risk credit risk and foreign currency risk to

generate profita from proprietary trading and to assist

customers with their risk management objectives Derivative

transactions are measured in terms of the notional amount

but this amount is not recorded on the balance sheet and is

not when viewed in isolation meaningful measure of the

risk profile of the instruments The notional amount is

generally not exchanged but is used only as the basis on

which interest and other payments are determined Our

approach to managing interest rate risk includes the use

of derivatives This helps minimize significant unplanned

fluctuations in earnings fair values of assets and liabilities

and cash flows caused by interest rate volatility This

approach involves modifying the repricing characteristics

of certain assets and liabilities so that changes in interest

rates do not have significant adverse effect on the net

interest margin and cash flows As result of interest rate

fluctuations hedged assets and liabilities will gain or lose

market value In fair value hedging strategy the effect of

this unrealized gain or loss will generally be offset by the

gain or loss on the derivatives linked to the hedged assets

and liabilities In cash flow hedging strategy we manage

the variability of cash payments due to interest rate

fluctuations by the effective use of derivatives linked to

hedged assets and liabilities

We use derivatives as part of our interest rate and foreign

currency risk management including interest rate swaps

caps and floors futures and forward contracts and options

We also offer varioua derivatives including interest rate

commodity equity credit and foreign exchange contracts

to our customers but usually offset our exposure from such

contracts by purchasing other financial contracts The

customer accommodations and any offsetting financial

contracts are treated as free-standing derivatives Free-standing

derivatives also include derivatives we enter into for risk

management that do not otherwise qualify for hedge

accounting including economic hedge derivatives To

lesser extent we take positions based on market expectations

or to benefit from price differentials between financial

instruments and markets Additionally free-standing

derivatives include embedded derivatives that are required

to be separately accounted for from their host contracts

Our derivative activities are monitored by Corporate

ALCO Our Treasury function which includes asset/liability

management ia responsible for various hedging strategies

developed through analysis of data from financial models

and other internal and industry sources We incorporate the

resulting hedging strategies into our overall interest rate

risk management and trading strategies

Fair Value Hedges

We use interest rate swapa to convert certain of our fixed-rate

long-term debt and certificates of deposit to floating rates to

hedge our exposure to interest rate risk We also enter into

cross-currency swaps cross-currency interest rate swaps and

forward contracts to hedge our exposure to foreign currency

risk and interest rate risk associated with the issuance of

non-U.S dollar denominated long-term debt and repurchase

agreements Prior to January 2007 the ineffective portion

of these fair value hedges was recorded as part of interest

expense in the income statement Subsequent to January

2007 the ineffective portion of these fair value hedges is

recorded as part of noninterest income We made this change

after converting these hedge relationships to the long-haul

method of assessing hedge effectiveness which results in

recognition of more ineffectiveness compared to the short

cut method Consistent with our asset/liability management

strategy of converting fixed-rate debt to floating-rates we

believe interest expense should reflect only the current

contractual interest cash flows on the liabilities and the

related swaps In addition we use derivatives such as

Treasury futures and LIBOR swaps to hedge changes in fair

value due to changes in interest rates of our commercial real

estate mortgage loans held for sale The ineffective portion

of these fair value hedges is recorded as part of mortgage

banking noninterest income Finally we use interest rate

swaps to hedge against changes in fair value of certain debt

securities that are classified as securities available for sale

due to changes in interest rates foreign currency rates or

both The ineffective portion of these fair value hedges ia

recorded in Net gains losses on debt securities available

for sale in the income statement For fair value hedges of

long-term debt certificates of deposit repurchase agreements

commercial real estate loans and debt securities all parts

of each derivatives gain or loss due to the hedged risk

are included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness

For certain fair value hedging relationships we use

statistical analysis to assess hedge effectiveness both at

inception of the hedging relationship and on an ongoing

basis Such analysis may include regression analysis or analy

sis of the price sensitivity of the hedging instrument

relative to that of the hedged item The regression analysis

involves regressing the periodic change in fair value of the

hedging instrument against the periodic changes in fair value

of the asset or liability being hedged due to changes in the

hedged risks The assessment includes an evaluation of

the quantitative measures of the regression results used to

validate the conclusion of high effectiveness Additionally

for other fair value hedging relationships we use the

cumulative dollar-offset approach to validate the effective

neas of the hedge on retrospective basis

132



Prior to June 2006 we used the short-cut method of

assessing hedge effectiveness for certain fair value hedging

relationships of U.S dollar denominated fixed-rate long-term

debt and certificates of deposits The short-cut method allows

an entity to assume perfect hedge effectiveness if certain

qualitative criteria are met and accordingly does not require

quantitative measures such as regression analysis We used

the short-cut method only when appropriate based on the

qualitative assessment of the criteria in paragraph 68 of

FAS 133 performed at inception of the hedging relationship

and on an ongoing basis Effective January 2006 for any

new hedging relationships of these types we used the

long-haul method to assess hedge effectiveness By June

2006 we stopped using the short-cut method by de-designating

all remaining short-cut relationships and re-designating them

to use the long-haul method to evaluate hedge effectiveness

From time to time we enter into equity collars to lock

in share prices between specified levels for certain equity

securities As permitted we include the intrinsic value only

excluding time value when assessing hedge effectiveness

We assess hedge effectiveness based on dollar-offset ratio

at inception of the hedging relationship and on an ongoing

basis by comparing cumulative changes in the intrinsic

value of the equity collar with changes in the fair value of

the hedged equity securities The net derivative gain or baa

related to the equity collars is recorded in other nuninterest

income in the income statement

Cash Flow Hedges

We hedge floating-rate debt against future interest rate

increases by using interest rate swaps to convert floating-rate

debt to fixed rates and by using interest rate caps floors and

futures to limit variability of rates We also use interest rate

swaps and floors to hedge the variability in interest payments

received on certain floating-rate commercial loans due

to changes in the benchmark interest rate Upon adoption

of FAS 159 on January 2007 derivatives used to hedge

the forecasted sales of prime residential MHFS originated

subsequent to January 2007 were accounted for as

economic hedges We previously accounted for these

derivatives as cash flow hedges under FAS 133 Gains and

losses on derivatives that are reclassified from cumulative

other comprehensive income to current period earnings ore

included in the line item in which the hedged items effect in

earnings is recorded All parts of gain or loss on these derivatives

are included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness For all

cash flow hedges we assess hedge effectiveness using regression

analysis both at inception of the hedging relationship and on

an ongoing basis The regression analysis involves regressing

the periodic changes in cash flows of the hedging instrument

against the periodic changes in cash flows of the forecasted

transaction being hedged due to changes in the hedged

risks The assessment includes an evaluation of the

quantitative measures of the regression results used to

validate the conclusion of high effectiveness

We expect that $60 million of deferred net loss on

derivatives in other comprehensive income at December 31

2008 will be reclassified as earnings during the next twelve

months compared with $63 million and $53 million of net

deferred gains at December 31 2007 end 2006 respectively

We are hedging our exposure to the variability of future

cash flows for all forecasted transactions for maximum of

seventeen years for both hedges of floating-rate debt and

floating-rate commercial loans

The following table provides derivative gains and losses

related to fair value and cash flow hedges resulting from

the change in value of the derivatives excluded from the

assessment of hedge effectiveness and the change in value

of the ineffective portion of the derivatives

in millions December 31

2008 2007 2006

Net gains losses from fair

value hedges from

Change in value of

derivatives excluded

from the assessment

of hedge effectiveness

Ineffective portion of

change in value

of derivatives

Net gains losses from ineffective

portion of change in the

value of cash flow hedges 26 45

Includes hedges of long-term debt and certificates of deposit commercial real

estate and franchise loans and debt and equiry securities

Includes hedges of floating-rate long-term debt and floating-rate commercial

loans and for 2006 hedges of forecasted sales of prime residential MHFS

Upon adoption of FAt derivatives used to hedge our prime residential

MHFS were no longer accounsed for as cash flow hedges under FAt 133

$8 $5

177 ig 11
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Free-Standing Derivatives

We use free-standing derivatives economic hedges in

addition to debt securities available for sale to hedge the

risk of changes in the fair value of residential MSRs new

prime residential MHFS derivative loan commitments

and other interests held with the resulting gain or loss

reflected in income

The derivatives used to hedge residential MSRs include

swaps swaptions forwards Eurodollar and Treasury futures

and options contracts Net derivative gains of $3099 million

for 2008 and net derivative gains of $1154 million for 2007

from economic hedges related to our mortgage servicing

activities are included in mortgage banking noninterest

income The aggregate fair value of these derivatives used

as economic hedges was net asset of $3610 million at

December 31 2008 and $1652 million at December 31 2007

Changes in fair value of debt securities available for sale

unrealized gains and losses are not included in servicing

income but are reported in cumulative other comprehensive

income net of tax or upon sale are reported in net gains

losses on debt securities available for sale

Interest rate lock commitments for residential mortgage

loans that we intend to sell are considered free-standing

derivatives Our interest rate exposure on these derivative

loan commitments as well as most new prime residential

MHFS carried at fair value under FAS 159 is hedged with

free-standing derivatives economic hedges such as for

wards and options Eurodollar futures and options and

Treasury futures forwards and options contracts The

commitments free-standing derivatives and residential

MHFS are carried at fair value with changes in fair value

included in mortgage banking noninterest income For interest

rate lock commitments issued prior to January 2008 we

recorded zero fair value for the derivative loan commitment

at inception consistent with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin

No los Applicotion of Accounting Principles to Loon

Commitments Effective January 2008 we were required

by SAB 109 to include at inception and during the life of the

loan commitment the expected net future cash flows related

to the associated servicing of the loan as part of the fair

value measurement of derivative loan commitments The

implementation of SAB 109 did not have material impact

on our results or the valuation of our loan commitments

Changes subsequent to inception are based on changes in

fair value of the underlying loan resulting from the exercise

of the commitment and changes in the probability that the

loan will not fund within the terms of the commitment

referred to as fall-out factor The value of the underlying

loan is affected primarily by changes in interest rates and

the passage of time However changes in investor demand

such as concerns about credit risk can also cause changes

in the spread relationships between underlying loan value

and the derivative financial instruments that cannot be

hedged The aggregate fair value of derivative loan

commitments in the balance sheet at December 31 2008

and 2007 was net asset of $125 million and $6 million

respectively and is included in the caption Interest rate

contracts under Customer Accommodation Trading and

Other Free-Standing Derivatives in the table on page 136

We also enter into various derivatives primarily to provide

derivative products to customers To lesser extent we take

positions based on market expectations or to benefit from

price differentials between financial instruments and markets

These derivatives are not linked to specific assets and liabilities

in the balance sheet or to forecasted transactions in an

accounting hedge relationship and therefore do not qualify for

hedge accounting We also enter into free-standing derivatives

for risk management that do not otherwise qualify for hedge

accounting They are carried at fair value with changes in

fair value recorded as part of other noninterest income

Additionally free-standing derivatives include embedded

derivatives that are required to be accounted for separate

from their host contract We periodically issue long-term

notes and certificates of deposit where the performance of the

hybrid instrument notes is linked to an equity commodity

or currency index or basket of such indices These notes

contain explicit terms that affect some or all of the cash flows

or the value of the note in manner similar to derivative

instrument and therefore are considered to contain an

embedded derivative instrument The indices on which

the performance of the hybrid instrument is calculated are

not clearly and closely related to the host debt instrument

In accordance with FAS 133 the embedded derivative is

separated from the host contract and accounted for as

free-standing derivative

Credit Derivatives

We use credit derivatives to manage exposure to credit risk

related to proprietary trading and to assist customers with

their risk management objectives This may include protection

sold to offset purchased protection in structured product

transactions as well as liquidity agreements written to

special purpose vehicles The maximum exposure of sold

credit derivatives is managed through posted collateral

purchased credit derivatives and similar products in order

to achieve our desired credit risk profile This credit risk

management provides an ability to recover significant

portion of any amounts that would be paid under the sold

credit derivatives We would be required to perform under

the noted credit derivatives in the event of default by the

referenced obligors Events of default include events such

as bankruptcy capital restructuring or lack of principal

and/or interest payment In certain cases other triggers may

exist such as the credit downgrade of the referenced obligors

or the inability of the special purpose vehicle for which we

have provided liquidity to obtain funding
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The following table provides details of credit derivatives at December 31 2008

The higher payment risk category is based on the portion

of the maximum loss exposure for which there is greater

risk that we will be required to make payment or perform

under the credit derivative The current status of the risk of

payment or performance being required is considered high

if the underlying assets under the credit derivative have an

external rating that is below investment grade or an internal

credit default grade that would be equivalent to below

investment grade external rating It is important to note that

the higher payment risk represents the amount of exposure

for which payment is of high likelihood Such payment may

not result in loss As such the higher payment risk column

is not an indication of loss probability

Counterparty Credit Risk

By using derivatives we are exposed to credit risk if

counterparties to the derivative contracts do not perform as

expected If counterparty fails to perform our counterparty

credit risk is equal to the amount reported as derivative

asset in our balance sheet The amounts reported as

derivative asset are derivative contracts in gain position

and to the extent subject to master netting arrangements

net of derivatives in loss position with the same counterparty

and cash collateral received We minimize counterparty

credit risk through credit approvals limits monitoring

procedures executing master netting arrangements and

obtaining collateral where appropriate To the extent the

master netting arrangements and other criteria meet the

requirements of FASB Interpretation No 39 Offsetting of

Amounts Related to Certain Contracts as amended by FSP

FIN 39-1 derivatives balances and related cash collateral

amounts are shown net in the balance sheet Counterparty

credit risk related to derivatives is considered and if material

provided for separately

In connection with the bankruptcy filing by Lehman

Brothers in September 2008 we recognized $106 million

charge in noninterest income related to unsecured counterparty

exposure on our derivative contracts with Lehman Brothers

The bankruptcy filing triggered an early termination of the

derivative contracts that after consideration of the master

netting arrangement and posted cash collateral resulted in

net amount due to us of $106 million We assessed the

collectability of this receivable and determined it was not

realizable We took appropriate actions to replace as necessary

the terminated derivative contracts in order to maintain our

various risk management strategies that previously involved

the Lehman Brothers derivative contracts

un millions December 31.2008

Fair value Maximum Higher Range of

liability exposure payment maturities

risk

Credit default swaps on corporate bonds 9643 83446 $39987 2009-2018

Credit default swaps on structured products 4940 7451 5824 2009-2056

Credit protection on credit default swap index 261 35943 6364 2009-2017

Credit protection on commercial mortgage-backed securities index 2231 7291 2938 2009-2052

Credit protection on asset-backed securities index 1331 1526 1116 2037-2046

Loan deliverable credit default swaps 106 611 592 2009-2014

Other 18 845 150 2009-2020

Total credit derivatives $20880 $137.1 13 $56971
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The total notional or contractual amounts and fair values for derivatives were

in millions ___________________ ________ December 31

_________________ 2008
______________ 2007

Notional or Fair value Notional or Fair value

contractual Asset
Liability contractual Asset Liability

amount derivatives derivatives amount derivatives derivatives

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT HEDGES
Qualifying hedge contracts

accounted for under FAS 133

Interest rate contracts

Swaps 115597 11249 2963 47408 1411 267

Futures 67375 324 50

Floors and caps purchased 9000 262 250

Floors and caps written 250

Equity contracts

Options purchased

Options written

Foreign exchange contracts

Swaps 19022 1117 1191 12048 1399 23

Forwards and spots 19364 21

Free-standing derivatives economic hedges
Interest rate contracts

Swaps 218922 7902 7674 43835 933 421

Futures 118718 56023
Options purchased 13613 1021 16250 156

Options written 12950 744 3500 20

Forwards 386525 3712 1290 353095 1094 287

Foreign exchange contracts

Swaps 603 55 603 202

Forwards and spots 3605 95 325
Credit contracts

Swaps 644 528
Other derivatives

Forward commitments 4458 108 71

CUSTOMER ACCOMMODATION TRADING AND
OTHER FREE-STANDING DERIVATIVES

Interest rate contracts

Swaps 3127009 133551 132186 195144 3584 3196
Futures 48011 140 33443
Floors and caps purchased 104355 2000 21629 143

Floors and caps written 111674 1609 24466 124

Options purchased 89813 6480 2573 88

Optionswritten 138912 159 6796 19074 35 95

Forwards 132882 549 773 131959 43 34

Commodity contracts

Swaps 58579 4170 4226 5053 367 415

Futures 11004 821 480 1417
Floors and caps purchased 6566 899 1869 290

Floors and caps written 7142 1249 1738 151

Options purchased 1885 227 761 74

Options written 1184 113 552 49

Equity contracts

Swaps 1563 76 81 291 63 44

Futures 282 23 138

Options purchased 18658 3003 4966 508

Optionswritten 16488 2496 4416 433

Forwards 145 77 74

Foreign exchange contracts

Swaps 56100 1038 1011 5797 199 219

Futures 155

Floors and caps purchased 13

Options purchased 7888 532 3229 107

Options written 7181 491 3168 100

Forwards and spots 202255 5989 5912 40371 420 335

Credit contracts

Swaps 254107 18226 18996 2752 75 24

Other credit derivatives 18615 3727 2791
Other derivatives

Total return swaps 5264 523 385
Other 1058 139

Subtotal 208053 194573 J1J99 _6253

NETTING 168690 J3.1Q2 _a.zo9

Total 39363 $12138 $7490 $2544

Includes free-standing derivatives economic hedgesi used to hedge the risk of changes in the fair value of residential MSRs MHFS interest rate lock commitments

and other interests held

12 Represents netting of derivative asset and liability balances and related cash collateral with the same counterparty subject to master netting arrangements under FIN 39

The amount of cash collateral netted against derivative assets and liabilities was $17.7 billion and $22.2 billionrespectivelyat December 31 2008
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Note 17 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

We use fair value measurements te recerd fair value

adjustments te certain assets and liabilities and te determine

fair value disclosures Trading assets securities available

for sale derivatives prime residential mortgages held for

sale MHFS certain commercial loans held for sale LHFS
residential MSRs principal investments and securities sold

but not yet purchased short sale liabilities are recorded at

fair value on recurring basis Additionally from time to

time we may be required to record at fair value other assets

on nonrecurring basis such as nonprime residential and

commercial MHFS certain LHFS loans held for investment

and certain other assets These nonrecurring fair value

adjustments typically involve application of lower-of-cost-or-

market accounting or write-downs of individual assets

Under FAS 159 we elected to measure MHFS at fair value

prospectively for new prime residential MHFS originations

for which an active secondary market and readily available

market prices existed to reliably support fair value pricing

models used for these loans On December 31 2008 we elected

to measure at fair value prime residential MHFS acquired

from Wachovia We also elected to remeasure at fair value

certain of our other interests held related to residential loan

sales and securitizations We believe the election for MHFS

and other interests held which are now hedged with free

standing derivatives economic hedges along with our

MSRs reduces certain timing differences and better matches

changes in the value of these assets with changes in the value

of derivatives used as economic hedges for these assets

There was no transition adjustment required upon adoption

of FAS 159 for MHFS because we continued to account for

MHFS originated prior to 2007 at the lower of cost or market

value At December 31 2006 the book value of other interests

held was equal to fair value and therefore transition

adjustment was not required

Upon the acquisition of Wachovia we elected to measure

at fair value certain portfolios of LHFS that we intend to hold

for trading purposes and that may be economically hedged

with derivative instruments In addition we elected to mea

sure at fair value certain letters of credit that are hedged with

derivative instruments to better reflect the economics of the

transactions These letters of credit are included in trading

account assets or liabilities

Under FAS 159 we were also required to adopt FAS 157

Foir Volue Meosurements FAS 157 FAS 157 defines fair

value establishes consistent framework for measuring fair

value and expands disclosure requirements for fair value

measurements Additionally FAS 157 amended FAS 107

Disclosure obout Foir Volue ofFinonciol Instruments

FAS 107 and as such we follow FAS 157 in determination

of FAS 107 fair value disclosure amounts The disclosures

required under FAS 159 FAS 157 and FAS 107 are included

in this Note

Fair Value Hierarchy

Under FAS 157 we group our assets and liabilities at fair

value in three levels based on the markets in which the

assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the

assumptions used to determine fair value These levels are

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices for

identical instruments traded in active markets

Level Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar

instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical

or similar instruments in markets that are not active and

model-based valuation techniques for which all significant

assumptions are observable in the market

Level Valuation is generated from model-based

techniques that use significant assumptions not observable

in the market These unobservable assumptions reflect

estimates of assumptions that market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability Valuation techniques

include use of option pricing models discounted cash

flow models and similar techniques

Determination of Fair Value

Under FAS 157 we base our fair values on the price that

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date It is our policy to maximize the use of

observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable

inputs when developing fair value measurements in

accordance with the fair value hierarchy in FAS 157

Fair value measurements for assets and liabilities

where there exists limited or no observable market data

and therefore are based primarily upon our own estimates

are often calculated based on current pricing policy the

economic and competitive environment the characteristics

of the asset or liability and other such factors Therefore

the results cannot be determined with precision and may

not be realized in an actual sale or immediate settlement

of the asset or liability Additionally there may be inherent

weaknesses in any calculation technique and changes in

the underlying assumptions used including discount rates

and estimates of future cash flows that could significantly

affect the results of current or future values

We incorporate lack of liquidity into our fair value

measurement based on the type of asset measured and the

valuation methodology used For example for residential

mortgage loans held for sale and certain securities where

the significant inputs have become unobservable due to the

illiquid markets we use discounted cash flow technique to

measure fair value This technique incorporates forecasting

of expected cash flows discounted at an appropriate market

discount rate to reflect the lack of liquidity in the market that

market participant would consider For other securities

we use unadjusted broker quotes or vendor prices to measure
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fair value which inherently reflect any lack of liquidity in the

market as the fair value measurement represents an exit

price from market participant viewpoint

Following is description of valuation methodologies

used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value and for

estimating fair value for financial instruments not recorded

at fair value FAS 107 disclosures

Assets

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS Short-term financial assets

include cash and due from banks federal funds sold and

securities purchased under resale agreements and due from

customers on acceptances These assets are carried at historical

cost The carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair

value because of the relatively short time between the

origination of the instrument and its expected realization

TRADING ASSETS AND SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE Trading

assets and securities available for sale are recorded at fair

value on recurring basis Fair value measurement is based

upon quoted prices if available Such instruments are classified

within Level of the fair value hierarchy Examples include

exchange-traded equity securities and some highly liquid

government securities such as U.S Treasuries

When instruments are traded in secondary markets and

quoted market prices do not exist for such securities we

generally rely on internal valuation techniques or on prices

obtained from independent pricing services or brokers

collectively vendors Trading assets and liabilities are

typically valued using trader prices that are subject to

independent price verification procedures The majority of

fair values derived using internal valuation techniques are

verified against multiple pricing sources including prices

obtained from independent vendors Vendors compile prices

from various sources and often apply matrix pricing for similar

securities when no price is observable We review pricing

methodologies provided by the vendors in order to determine

if observable market information is being used versus

unobservable inputs When evaluating the appropriateness

of an internal trader price compared to vendor prices

considerations include the range and quality of vendor

prices Vendor prices are used to ensure the reasonableness

of trader price however valuing financial instruments

involves judgments acquired from knowledge of particular

market and is not perfunctory If trader asserts that vendor

price is not reflective of market value justification for using

the trader price including recent sales activity where possible

must be provided to and approved by the appropriate levels

of management Similarly while securities available for sale

traded in secondary markets are typically valued using vendor

price these prices are reviewed and if deemed inappropriate

by trader who has the most knowledge of particular market

can be adjusted Securities measured with these internal

valuation techniques are generally classified as Level of

the hierarchy and often involve using quoted market prices

for similar securities pricing models or discounted cash flow

analyses using inputs observable in the market where available

Examples include private CMOs municipal bonds U.S

government and agency mortgage-backed securities and

corporate debt securities

Where significant inputs are unobservable in the market

due to limited activity or less liquid market securities valued

using models with such inputs are classified as Level of the

fair value hierarchy Securities classified as Level include pri

vate placement asset-backed securities collateralized by auto

leases and cash reserves private CMOs collateralized debt

obligations CDOs and collateralized loan obligations

CLOs and certain residual and retained interests in

residential mortgage loan securitizations CDOs are valued

using the prices of similar instruments the pricing of

completed or pending third party transactions or the pricing

of the underlying collateral within the CDO Where prices

are not readily available managements best estimate is used

MORTGAGES HELD FOR SALE MHFS Under FAS 159 we elected

to carry our new prime residential MHFS portfolio at fair

value The remaining MHFS are carried at the lower of cost

or market value Fair value is based on independent quoted

market prices where available or the prices for other

mortgage whole loans with similar characteristics As

necessary these prices are adjusted for typical securitization

activities including servicing value portfolio composition

market conditions and liquidity Most of our MHFS are

classified as Level For the portion where market pricing

data is not available we use discounted cash flow model

to estimate fair value and accordingly classify as Level

LOANS HELD FOR SALE LHFS Loans held for sale are carried at

the lower of cost or market value or at fair value for certain

portfolios that we intend to hold for trading purposes The

fair value of LHFS is based on what secondary markets are

currently offering for portfolios with similar characteristics

As such we classify those loans subjected to nonrecurring

fair value adjustments as Level

LOANS For the carrying value of loans including loans

accounted for under SOP 03-3 see Note Loans We do

not record loans at fair value on recurring basis As such

valuation techniques discussed herein for loans are primarily

for estimating fair value for FAS 107 disclosure purposes

However from time to time we record nonrecurring fair

value adjustments to loans to reflect partial write-downs

that are based on the observable market price or current

appraised value of the collateral or the full charge-off

of the loan carrying value

The fair value estimates for FAS 107 purposes differentiate

loans based on their financial characteristics such as product

classification loan category pricing features and remaining

maturity Prepayment and credit loss estimates are evaluated

by product and loan rate

The fair value of commercial and commercial real estate

loans is calculated by discounting contractual cash flows

adjusted for credit loss estimates using discount rates that

reflect our current pricing for loans with similar characteristics

and remaining maturity
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For real estate 1-4 family first and junior lien mortgages

fair value is calculated by discounting contractual cash flows

adjusted for prepayment and credit loss estimates using

discount rates based on current industry pricing where

readily available or our own estimate of an appropriate

risk-adjusted discount rate for loans of similar size type

remaining maturity and repricing characteristics

For credit card loans the portfolios yield is equal to our

current pricing and therefore the fair value is equal to book

value adjusted for estimates of credit losses inherent in the

portfolio at the balance sheet date

For all other consumer loans the fair value is generally

calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows adjusted

for prepayment and credit loss estimates based on the

current rates we offer for loans with similar characteristics

Loan commitments standby letters of credit and

commercial and similar letters of credit are not included in

the FAS 107 table on page 143 These instruments generate

ongoing fees at our current pricing levels which are recognized

over the term of the commitment period In situations where

the credit quality of the counterparty to commitment has

declined we record reserve reasonable estimate of the

fair value of these instruments is the carrying value of

deferred fees plus the related reserve This amounted to $719

million and $33 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively Certain letters of credit that are hedged with

derivative instruments are carried at fair value in trading

assets or liabilities For those letters of credit fair value is

calculated based on readily quotable credit default spreads

using market risk credit default swap model

DERIVATIVES Quoted market prices are available and used

for our exchange-traded derivatives such as certain interest

rate futures and option contracts which we classify as Level

However substantially all of our derivatives are traded in over-

the-counter OTC markets where quoted market prices are not

readily available OTC derivatives are valued using internal

valuation techniques Valuation techniques and inputs to internally-

developed models depend on the type of derivative and nature

of the underlying rate price or index upon which the derivatives

value is based Key inputs can include yield curves credit curves

foreign-exchange rates prepayment rates volatility measurements

and correlation of such inputs Where model inputs can be

observed in liquid market and the model does not require

significant judgment such derivatives are typically classified

as Level of the fair value hierarchy Examples of derivatives

classified as Level include generic interest rate swaps foreign

currency swaps commodity swaps and option contracts When

instruments are traded in less liquid markets and significant

inputs are unobservable such derivatives are classified within

Level Examples of derivatives classified as Level include

complex and highly structured derivatives credit default swaps

interest rate lock commitments written for our residential mort

gage loans that we intend to sell and long dated equity options

where volatility is not observable Additionally significant judg

ments are required when classifying financial instruments with

in the fair value hierarchy particularly between Level and

as is the case for certain derivatives

MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS AND CERTAIN OTHER INTERESTS

HELD IN SECURITIZATIONS Mortgage servicing rights MSRs
and certain other interests held in securitizations e.g

interest-only strips do not trade in an active market with

readily observable prices Accordingly we determine the fair

value of MSRs using valuation model that calculates the

present value of estimated future net servicing income The

model incorporates assumptions that market participants

use in estimating future net servicing income including

estimates of prepayment speeds including housing price

volatility discount rate cost to service including delinquency

and foreclosure costs escrow account earnings contractual

servicing fee income ancillary income and late fees

Commercial MSRs are carried at lower of cost or market value

and therefore can be subject to fair value measurements on

nonrecurring basis For other interests held in securitizations

such as interest-only strips we use valuation model that

calculates the present value of estimated future cash flows

The model incorporates our own estimates of assumptions

market participants use in determining the fair value including

estimates of prepayment speeds discount rates defaults and

contractual fee income Interest-only strips are recorded as

trading assets Fair value measurements of our MSRs and

interest-only strips use significant unobservable inputs and

accordingly we classify as Level We may also retain

securities from our loan securitization activities The valuation

technique for these securities is discussed in Securities

available for sale

FORECLOSED ASSETS Foreclosed assets include foreclosed

properties securing residential auta and GNMA loans

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value less casts to sell

upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets Subsequently

foreclosed assets are carried at the lower of carrying value or

fair value less casts to sell Fair value is generally based upon

independent market prices or appraised values of the collateral

and accordingly we classify foreclosed assets as Level

NONMARKETABLE EQUITY INVESTMENTS Nanmarketable equity

investments are recorded under the cost or equity method of

accounting Nonmarketable equity securities that fall within

the scope of the AICPA Investment Company Audit Guide

are carried at fair value principal investments There are

generally restrictions on the sale and/or liquidation of these

investments including federal bank stock Federal bank stock

carrying value approximates fair value We use facts and

circumstances available to estimate the fair value of our

nonmarketable equity investments We typically consider our

access to and need for capital including recent or projected

financing activity qualitative assessments of the viability

of the investee evaluation of the financial statements of the

investee and prospects for its future Principal investments

including certain public equity and non-public securities

and certain investments in private equity funds are recorded

at fair value with realized and unrealized gains and losses

included in gains and losses an equity investments in the

income statement and are included in other assets an

the balance sheet Public equity investments are valued
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using quoted market prices and discounts are only applied

when there are trading restrictions that are an attribute of the

investment Investments in non-public securities are recorded

at our estimate of fair value using metrics such as security

prices of comparable public companies acquisition prices for

similar companies and original investment purchase price

multiples while also incorporating portfolio companys

financial performance and specific factors For investments

in private equity funds we use the net asset value NAy
provided by the fund sponsor as an appropriate measure of

fair value In some cases such NAVs require adjustments

based on certain unobservable inputs

Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES Deposit liabilities are carried at

historical cost FAS 107 states that the fair value of deposits

with no stated maturity such as noninterest-bearing demand

deposits interest-bearing checking and market rate and

other savings is equal to the amount payable on demand at

the measurement date The fair value of other time deposits

is calculated based on the discounted value of contractual

cash flows The discount rate is estimated using the rates

currently offered for like wholesale deposits with similar

remaining maturities

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Short-term financial

liabilities are carried at historical cost and include federal

funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase

agreements commercial paper and other short-term

borrowings The carrying amount is reasonable estimate

of fair value because of the relatively short time between the

origination of the instrument and its expected realization

OTHER LIABILITIES Other liabilities recorded at fair value

on recurring basis excluding derivative liabilities see

Derivotives section for derivative liabilities includes short

sale liabilities and repurchase obligations due to standard

representations and warranties under our residential mortgage

loan contracts Short sale liabilities are classified as either

Level or Level generally dependent upon whether the

underlying securities have readily obtained quoted prices in

active exchange markets The value of the repurchase obligations

is determined using cash flow valuation technique consistent

with what market participants would use in estimating the

fair value Key assumptions in the valuation process are

estimates for repurchase demands and losses subsequent

to repurchase Such assumptions are unobservable and

accordingly we classify repurchase obligations as Level

LONG-TERM DEBT Long-term debt is carried at amortized cost

However we are required to estimate the fair value of long-

term debt under FAS 107 Generally the discounted cash flow

method is used to estimate the fair value of our long-term

debt Contractual cash flows are discounted using rates

currently offered for new notes with similar remaining

maturities and as such these discount rates include our

current spread levels The fair value estimates generated

are corroborated against observable market prices For

foreign-currency denominated debt we estimate fair value

based upon observable market prices for the instruments

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on Recurring

Basis

The table below presents the balances of assets and liabilities

measured at fair value on recurring basis

Ii Derivatives are reported net of cash collateral received and paid and to the estent thai the criteria of FIN 39 are met positions with the same counterparty are netted

as part of legally enforceable waster netting agreewent

12 Derivative assets other than trading and principal investments are included in this category

13 Derivative liabilities other than trading are included in this category

14 Includes investments in certain asset-backed securities including those collateralized by auto leases and cash reserves private CMOs COOs Cbs and auction-rate

preferred securities

io millions Level Level Level Netting Total

December 312007

Trading assets excluding derivatives 928 2753 418 4099
Derivatives trading assets 113 5665 21 50 3628
Securities available for sale 38178 293g2 5381 72951

Mortgages held for sale 24852 146 24998

Mortgage servicing rights residential 16763 16763
Other assets 1145 1766 41 11559

Total $4Q54 64428 22749 370g $123832

Other liabilities $Ji7fi 14315 1315 3709 2591

December 31 2008

Trading assets excluding derivatives 911 16045 3495 20451

Derivatives trading assets 331 174355 7897 148150 34433
Securities available for tale 5163 123714 22692 151569

Mortgages held for sale 14036 4718 18754
Loans held for sale 3g8 398

Mortgage servicing rights residential 14714 14714
Other assets 3Z92 ZILThI 20540 7227

Total $10380 350299 $55557 $168690 $247546

Other liabilities 4815 $187098 9308 182435 $18786
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We continue to invest in asset-backed securities these assets to be of high credit quality The securities are

collateralized by auto leases and cash reserves that provide relatively short duration therefore not as sensitive to market

attractive yields and are structured equivalent to investment- interest rate movements

grade securities Based on our experience with underwriting For certain assets and liabilities we obtain fair value

auto leases and the significant overcollateralization of our measurements from independent brokers or independent

interests which results in retention by the counterparty of third party pricing services The detail by level is shown

significant amount of the primary risks of the investments in the table below

credit risk and residual value risk of the autos we consider

in millions December31 2008

Independent brokers Third party pricing services

Level Level Level Level Level Level

Trading assets excluding derivatives 190 $3272 12 917 1944 $110

Derivatives trading assets 3419 106 106 605 4635

Securities available for sale 181 8916 1681 3944 109170

Loans held for sale 353

Other liabilities 1105 175 128 2208 5171

The changes in Level assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized as follows

in millions Trading Securities Mortgages Mortgage Net Other Other

assets available held for servicing derivative assets liabilities

excluding for sale sale
rights assets and excluding excluding

derivatives residential liabilities derivatives derivatives

Balance December 312006 360 3447 $17591 68 282

Total net gains losses for

2007 included in

Net income 151 33 3597 108 97
Other comprehensive income 12

Purchases sales issuances and

settlements net 207 1979 30 2769 178 99

Net transfers into Level 11 ________

BalanceDecember3l2007 418 5381 146 16763 280
Total net gains losses for

2008 included in

Net income 115 347 280 5900 275 228
Other comprehensive income 1489

Purchases sales issuances and

settlementsnet 3197 17216 561 3878 303 1231 130
Net transfers into Level 1941 4291
Other 10 __J7

BalanceDecember3l2008 $22692 $47j8 $14714 $37 $j
Net unrealized gains losses

included in net income for 2007

relating to assets and liabilities

held at December 312007 J3 31 $_j 5945
Net unrealized gains losses

included in net income for 2008

relating to assets and liabilities

held at December 312008 $3 150 3333527 $935 $__

11 The amounts presented as transfers into and out of Level represent the fair value as of the beginning of the period presented

21 Represents only net gains lossesi that are due to changes in economic conditions and managements estimates of fair value and excludes changes due to the

collection/realization of cash flows over time

31 Included in other nonintetest income in the income statement

41 Represents transfers from Level of residential MHFS and debt securities including CDO5 for which significant inputs to the valuation became unobservable

largely due to reduced levels of market liquidity Related gains and losses for the period are included in the above table

51 Included in mortgage banking in the income statement

Represents total unrealized losses of $571 million net of gains of $23 million related to sales

71 Represents total unrealized losses of $3341 million net of losses of $8 million related to sales
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Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on

Nonrecurring Basis

We may be required from time to time to measure certain

assets at fair value on nonrecurring basis in accordance

with GAAP These adjustments to fair value usually result

from application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or

write-downs of individual assets The valuation methodologies

in millions

used to measure these fair value adjustments are described

previously in this Note For assets measured at fair value on

nonrecurring basis in 2008 and 2007 that were still held in

the balance sheet at the respective year ends the following

table provides the level of valuation assumptions used to

determine each adjustment and the carrying value of the

related individual assets or portfolios at year end

Represents carrying value and related write-downs of loans for which adjustments are based on the appraised value of the collateral.The carrying value of loans fully

charged-off which includes unsecured lines and loans is zero

21 Represents the fair value and related losses of foreclosed real estate and other collateral owned that were measured at fair value subsequent to their initial classification

as foreclosed assets

Carrying value at year end Total losses

Level Level Level Total for year ended

December 312007

Mortgages held for sale 1817 1817 76
Loans held for sale 691 691 35
Loans 804 12 816 3080
Private equity investments 22 22 52
Foreclosed assets 454 454 90

Operating lease assets 49 49

13336

December 31 2008

Mortgages held for sale 521 $534 $1055 28
Loans held for sale 338 338 051

Loans 1487 107 1594 6400

Privateequityinvestments 134 18 152 81
Foreclosed assets 274 55 329 165

Operating lease assets 186 186

$6807

Fair Value Option

The following table reflects the differences between the fair

value carrying amount of MHFS and LHFS measured at fair

value under FAS 159 and the aggregate unpaid principal

amount we are contractually entitled to receive at maturity

2008

in millions

Mortgages held for sale reported at fair value

Total loans

Nonaccrual loans

Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing

Loans held for sale reported at fair value

Total loans

Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing

December31

2007

Fair value Aggregate Fair value Fair value Aggregate Fair value

carrying unpaid carrying carrying unpaid carrying

amount principal amount amount principal amount

less less

aggregate aggregate

unpaid unpaid

principal principal

$18754 $18862 $1108h $24998 $24691 $307

152 344 192 59 85 26
58 63 29 31

398 760 362
17 16

11 The difference between fair value carrying amount and aggregate unpaid principal includes changes in fair value recorded at and subsequent to funding gains and

losses on the related loan commitment prior to funding and premiums on acquired loans
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The assets accounted for under FAS 159 are initially to initial measurement and subsequent changes in fair value

measured at fair value Gains and losses from initial included in earnings for these assets measured at fair value

measurement and subsequent changes in fair value are are shown by income statement line item below

recognized in earnings The changes in fair values related

in millions Year ended December 31

2008 2007

Mortgages Other Mortgages Dther

held for interests held for interests

sale held sale held

Changes in fair value included in net income

Mortgage banking noninterest income

Net gains on mortgage loan origination/sales activities $2111 $986

Other noninterest income 109 153

Includes changes in fair value of servicing associated with MHFS

Interest income on MHFS measured at fair value is FAS 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of

calculated based on the note rate of the loan and is recorded Fimomcinl Instruments

in interest income in the income statement The table below is summary of fair value estimates as

For MHFS measured at fair value under FAS 159 the of December 31 2008 and 2007 for financial instruments

estimated amount of losses included in earnings attributable to as defined by FAS 107 excluding short-term financial assets

instrument-specific credit risk for the year ended December 31 and liabilities for which carrying amounts approximate fair

2008 and 2007 was $648 million and $515 million respectively value and excluding financial instruments recorded at fair

For performing loans instrument-specific credit risk gains value on recurring basis The carrying amounts in the

or losses were derived principally by determining the change following table are recorded in the balance sheet under the

in fair value of the loans due to changes in the observable or indicated captions

implied credit spread Credit spread is the market yield on In accordance with FAS 107 we have not included assets

the loans less the relevant risk-free benchmark interest rate and liabilities that are not financial instruments in our

Since the second half of 2007 spreads have been significantly disclosure such as the value of the long-term relationships

impacted by the lack of liquidity in the secondary market for with our deposit credit card and trust customers amortized

mortgage loans For nonperforming loans we attribute all MSRs premises and equipment goodwill and other intangibles

changes in fair value to instrument-specific credit risk deferred taxes and other liabilities Additionally the amounts

in the table have not been updated since year end therefore

the valuations may have changed significantly since that

point in time For these reasons the total of the fair value

calculations presented does not represent and should not be

construed to represent the underlying value of the Company

in millions December31

2008 2007

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

amount fair value amount fair value

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Mortgages held for sale 1334 1333 1817 1817

Loans held for sale 5830 5876 948 955

Loans net 843817 829603 376888 377219

Nonmarketable equity investments cost method 11104 11220 5855 6076

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits $781402 $781964 $344460 $344484

Long-term debt 267055 266023 99373 98449

11 Balance esciudes mortgages held for sale for which the fair value option under FAS was elected and therefore includes nonprime residential and commercial

mortgages held for sale

121 The carrying amount and fair value esciude obligations under capital leases of $103 million and $20 million at December 312008 and 2007 respectively
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Note 18 Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue 20 million shares of preferred have no general voting rights We have not issued any

stock and million shares of preference stock both without par preference shares under this authorization

value Preferred shares outstanding rank senior to common The following table provides detail of preferred stock

shares both as to dividends and liquidation preference but at December 31 2008

in millions except shares December 312008

Shares Par Carrying Discount

issued and value amount

outstanding

Series Ill

Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series

$1000000 liquidation preference per share 25000 shares authorized 25000 $25000 $22741 $2259

DEP Shares

Dividend Equalization Preferred Shares

$10 liquidation preference per share 97000 shares authorized 96546

Series 1112

8.00% Non-Cumulative Perpetual Class Preferred Stock Series

$1000 liquidation preference per share 2300000 shares authorized 21 50375 2150 1995 155

Series 112

7.98% Fixed-to-Floating Non-Cumulative Perpetual Class Preferred Stock Series

$1000 liquidation preference per share 3500000 shares authorized 3352000 3352 2876 476

Series 1112

7.50% Non-Cumulative Perpetual Convertible Class Preferred Stock Series

$1000 liquidation preference per share 4025000 shares authorized 3968000 3968 3200 768

TDTAL 9591921 $34470 $30812

Series DJ and preferred shares qualify as Tier capital

121 In conjunction with the acquisition of Wachovia at Oecember 312008 shares of Series and perpetual preferred stock were converted into shares of corresponding

series of Wells Fargo preferred stork having substantially the sawe rights and preferences.The carrying awount is
par

value adjusted to fair value in purchase accounting

In addition to the preferred stock issued and outstanding PREFERRED STOCK ISSUED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF THE

described in the table above we have the following preferred TREASURY On October 28 2008 we issued to the United

stock authorized with no shares issued and outstanding States Department of the Treasury 25000 shares of our Fixed

Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series without
Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock

par value having liquidation preference per share equal to

Series $100000 liquidation preference per share
$1000000 The Series Preferred Stock pays cumulative

25001 shares authorized
dividends at rate of 5% per year for the first five years and

Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock thereafter at rate of 9% per year After three years we may
Series $100000 liquidation preference per share at our option subject to any necessary bank regulatory

17501 shares authorized
approval redeem the Series Preferred Stock at par value

Series 7.25% Class Preferred Stock Series plus accrued and unpaid dividends The Serses Preferred

$15000 liquidation preference per share Stock is generally non-voting Prior to October 28 2011

50000 shares authorized unless we have redeemed the Series Preferred Stock or the

Series Floating Class Preferred Stock Series
Treasury has transferred all of the Series Preferred Stock to

third parties the consent of the Treasury will be required for

$20000 liquidation preference per share
us to declare or pay any dividends or make any distribution

50000 shares authorized
on our common stock other than regular quarterly cash

Series 5.80% Fixed to Floating Class Preferred Stock dividends not exceeding $0.34 or dividends payable only in

Series $100000 liquidation preference per share shares of its common stock or repurchase our common stock

25010 shares authorized
or other equity or capital securities other than in connection

with benefit plans consistent with past practice and certain
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other circumstances specified in the Securities Purchase

Agreement with the Treasury Treasury as part of the

preferred stock issuance received warrants to purchase

approximately 110.3 million shares of Wells Fargo common

stock at an initial exercise price of $34.01 based on the trailing

20 day Wells Fargo average stock price as of October 10

2008 The proceeds from Treasury were allocated based

on the relative fair value of the warrants as compared with

the fair value of the preferred stock The fair value of the

warrants was determined using valuation model which

incorporates assumptions including our common stock

price dividend yield stock price volatility and the risk-free

interest rate The fair value of the preferred stock is deter

mined based on assumptions regarding the discount rate

market rate on the preferred stock which was estimated to

be approximately 13% at the date of issuance The discount

on the preferred stock will be accreted to par value using

constant effective yield of 7.2% over five-year term which

is the expected life of the preferred stock

ESOP CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK All shares

of our ESOP Employee Stock Ownership Plan Cumulative

Convertible Preferred Stock ESOP Preferred Stock were

issued to trustee acting on behalf of the Wells Fargo

Company 401k Plan the 401k Plan Dividends on the

ESOP Preferred Stock are cumulative from the date of initial

issuance and are payable quarterly at annual rates ranging

from 8.50% to 12.50% depending upon the year of issuance

Each share of ESOP Preferred Stock released from the

unallocated reserve of the 401k Plan is converted into

shares of our common stock based on the stated value of the

ESOP Preferred Stock and the then current market price of our

common stock The ESOP Preferred Stock is also convertible

at the option of the holder at any time unless previously

redeemed We have the option to redeem the ESOP Preferred

Stock at any time in whole or in part at redemption price

per share equal to the higher of $1000 per share plus

accrued and unpaid dividends or the fair market value

as defined in the Certificates of Designation for the ESOP

Preferred Stock

Shares issued

and outstanding

December 31

2008 2007

Carrying amount

in millions

December31

2008 2007

Adjustable

dividend rate

Minimum Maximum

ESOP Preferred Stock

2008 156914 157 10.50% 1150%
2007 110159 135124 110 135 10.75 11.75

2006 83249 95866 83 96 0.75 11.75

2005 62484 73434 63 73 9.75 10.75

2004 45950 55610 46 56 8.50 9.50

2003 29218 37043 29 37 8.50 9.50

2002 18889 25779 19 26 0.50 11.50

2001 10393 16593 10 17 10.50 11.50

2000 2644 9094 11.50 2.50

1999 1261 10.30 11.30

Total E5OP Preferred Stock 519900 449804 i2Q

Unearned ESOP shares $j

Liquidation preference $1000 At December 312008 and 2007additional paid-in capital included $35 million and $32 million respectively related to preferred stock

In accordance with the A/CPA Statement of Position 93-6 Emp/oyersAccounring for Emp/oyee Srock Ownership P/ens we recorded corresponding charge to unearned

ESDP shares in connection with the issuance of the ESOP Preferred Stock.The unearned tSOP shares are reduced as shares of the ESOP Preferred Stock are committed to

be released For information on dividends paid see Note
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Unto 19 Common Stock and Stock Plans

The following table presents our reserved issued and

authorized shares of common stock at December 31 2008

Number of shares

Dividend reinvestment and

common stock purchase plans 6194500

Director plans 969075

Stock plans 761273606

Total shares reserved 768437181

Shares issued 4363921429

Shares not reserved 867641390

Total shares authorized 6000000000

Includes employee option restricted shares and restricted share rights 40tk

profit sharing and compensation deferral plans

Participants in our dividend reinvestment and common stock

direct purchase plans may purchase shares of our common

stock at fair market value by reinvesting dividends and/or

making optional cash payments under the plans terms

We offer the stock-based employee compensation plans

described below Effective January 2006 we adopted

FAS 123R Srtot-e-Bosed Poyment using the modified

prospective transition method FAS 123R requires that we

measure the cost of employee services received in exchange

for an award of equity instruments such as stock options or

restricted share rights RSRs based on the fair value of the

award on the grant date The cost is normally recognized in

our income statement over the vesting period of the award

awards with graded vesting are expensed on straight-line

method Awards to retirement-eligible employees are subject

to immediate expensing upon grant Total stock option

compensation expense was $174 million in 2008 $129 million

in 2007 and $134 million in 2006 with related recognized

tax benefit of $65 million $49 million and $50 million for the

same years respectively Stock option expense is based on

the fair value of the awards at the date of grant Prior to

January 2006 we did not record any compensation expense

for stock options

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLANS Our Long-Term

Incentive Compensation Plan provides for awards of incentive

and nonqualified stock options stock appreciation rights

restricted shares RSRs performance awards and stock

awards without restrictions Options must have an exercise

price at or above fair market value as defined in the plan

of the stock at the date of grant except for substitute or

replacement options granted in connection with mergers

or other acquisitions and term of no more than 10 years

Except for options granted in 2004 and 2005 which generally

vested in full upon grant options generally become

exercisable over three years beginning on the first anniversary

of the date of grant Except as otherwise permitted under

the plan if employment is ended for reasons other than

retirement permanent disability or death the option exercise

period is reduced or the options are canceled

Options granted prior to 2004 may include the right to

acquire reload stock option If an option contains the

reload feature and if participant pays all or part of the

exercise price of the option with shares of stock purchased in

the market or held by the participant for at least six months

and in either case not used in similar transaction in the

last six months upon exercise of the option the participant

is granted new option to purchase at the fair market value

of the stock as of the date of the reload the number of shares

of stock equal to the sum of the number of shares used in

payment of the exercise price and number of shares with

respect to related statutory minimum withholding taxes

Reload grants are fully vested upon grant and are expensed

immediately under FAS 123R beginning in 2006

Holders of RSRs are entitled to the related shares of

common stock at no cost generally over three to five years

after the RSRs were granted Holders of RSRs granted prior

to July 2007 may be entitled to receive cash payments equal

to the cash dividends that would have been paid had the

RSRs been issued and outstanding shares of common stock

Except in limited circumstances RSRs are canceled when

employment ends

The compensation expense for RSRs equals the quoted

market price of the related stock at the date of grant and is

accrued over the vesting period Total compensation expense

for RSRs was not significant in 2008 or 2007

For various acquisitions and mergers we converted

employee and director stock options of acquired or merged

companies into stock options to purchase our common stock

based on the terms of the original stock option plan and

the agreed-upon exchange ratio In addition we converted

restricted stock awards into awards that entitle holders

to our stock after the vesting conditions are met Holders

receive cash dividends on outstanding awards if provided

in the original award

The total number of shares of common stock available for

grant under the plans at December 31 2008 was 235 million

PARTNERSHARES PLAN In 1996 we adopted the PortnerShores

Stock Option Plan broad-based employee stock option

plan It covers full- and part-time employees who generally

were not included in the long-term incentive compensation

plan described above No options have been granted under

the plan since 2002 and as result of action taken by the

Board of Directors on January 22 2008 no future awards

will be granted under the plan The exercise date of options

granted under the PortnerShores Plan is the earlier of five

years after the date of grant or when the quoted market

price of the stock reaches predetermined price These
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options generally expire 10 years after the date of grant

Because the exercise price of each PartnerShares Plan grant

has been equal to or higher than the quoted market price of

our common stock at the date of grant we did not recognize

any compensation expense in 2005 and prior years In 2006

under FAS 123R we began to recognize expense related to

these grants based on the remaining vesting period All of

our PartnerS ha res Plan grants were fully vested as of

December 31 2008

Director Plan

We grant common stock and options to purchase common

stock to non-employee directors elected or re-elected at the

annual meeting of stockholders and prorated awards to

directors who join the Board at any other time The stock

Incentive Compensation Plans

Options outstanding as of December 312007

Granted

Canceled or forfeited

Exercised

Acquisitions

Options outstanding as of December 312008

As of December 31 2008

Options exercisable and expected to be exercisable

Options exercisable

PartnerS hares Plan

Options outstanding as of December 312007

Canceled or forfeited

Exercised

Options outstanding as of December 312008

As of December 31 2008

Options exercisable and expected to be exercisable

Options exercisable

Director Plans

Options outstanding as of December 312007

Granted

Canceled

Exercised

Options outstanding as of December 312008

As of December 31 2008

Options exercisable and expected to be exercisable

Options exercisable

award vests immediately Options granted in 2008 or earlier

can be exercised after six months through the tenth anniversary

of the grant date Stock awards and option grants were made

to non-employee directors under the Directors Stock

Compensation and Deferral Plan As result of action taken

by the Board of Directors on September 30 2008 future stock

awards and option grants will be made under our Long-Term

Incentive Compensation Plan

The table below summarizes stock option activity and

related information for 2008 Options assumed in mergers

are included in the activity and related information for

Incentive Compensation Plans if originally issued under

an employee plan and in the activity and related information

for Director Plans if originally issued under director plan

Weighted-

average

remaining

contractual

term in yrs

111 Adjusted for estimated forfeitures

As of December 31 2008 there was $140 million of

unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options

That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-

average period of 1.9 years

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2008

and 2007 was $348 million and $588 million respectively

Cash received from the exercise of options for 2008 and

2007 was $747 million and $1026 million respectively The

actual tax benefit recognized in stockholders equity for the tax

deductions from the exercise of options totaled $123 million

and $210 million respectively for 2008 and 2007

We do not have specific policy on repurchasing shares

to satisfy share option exercises Rather we have general

policy on repurchasing shares to meet common stock

issuance requirements for our benefit plans including share

option exercises conversion of its convertible securities

acquisitions and other corporate purposes Various factors

determine the amount and timing of our share repurchases

Number Weighted-

average

exercise

price

Aggregate

intrinsic

value

in millions

238629924

48890048

4123158

25986596

26197039

283607257

281180115

200077486

24365561

543896

16159198

17662467

17662467

17662467

827285

146860

34080

32956

907109

907109

907109

28.87

31.40

32.61

23.66

198.07

45.36

45.47

50.76

23.50

21.12

21.34

24.33

24.33

24.33

27.72

29.88

34.51

19.32

28.12

28.12

28.12

5.7 $414

5.7 414

4.5 413

2.6 $91

2.6 91

2.6 91

5.6

5.6

5.6
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including our capital requirements the number of shares we

expect to issue for acquisitions and employee benefit plans

market conditions including the trading price of our stock

and legal considerations These factors can change at any

time and there can be no assurance as to the number of

shares we will repurchase or when we will repurchase them

Effective with the adoption of FAS 123R the fair value

of each option award granted on or after January 2006 is

estimated using Black-Scholes valuation model The expected

term of options granted is generally based on the historical

exercise behavior of full-term options Our expected volatilities

are based on combination of the historical volatility of our

common stock and implied volatilities for traded options on

our common stock The risk-free rate is based on the U.S

Treasury zero-coupon yield curve in effect at the time of

grant Both expected volatility and the risk-free rates are

based on period commensurate with our expected term

The expected dividend is based on the current dividend

consideration of our historical pattern of dividend increases

and the market price of our stock

Effective with the adoption of FAS 123R we changed our

method of estimating our volatility assumption Prior to 2006

we used volatility based on historical stock price changes

Effective January 2006 we used volatility based on

combination of historical stock price changes and implied

volatilities of traded options as both volatilities are relevant

in estimating our expected volatility

The following table presents the weighted-average per

share fair value of options granted and the assumptions used

based on Black-Scholes option valuation model

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSRs

granted during 2007 was $34.76

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Under the Wells Fargo Company 401k Plan the 401k

Plan defined contribution ESOP the 401k Plan may

borrow money to purchase our common or preferred stock

Since 1994 we have loaned money to the 401k Plan to

purchase shares of our ESOP Preferred Stock As we release

and convert ESOP Preferred Stock into common shares we

record compensation expense equal to the current market

price of the common shares Dividends on the common

shares allocated as result of the release and conversion of

the ESOP Preferred Stock reduce retained earnings and the

shares are considered outstanding for computing earnings

per share Dividends on the unallocated ESOP Preferred

Stock do not reduce retained earnings and the shares are not

considered to be common stock equivalents for computing

earnings per share Loan principal and interest payments

are made from our contributions to the 401k Plan along

with dividends paid on the ESOP Preferred Stock With

each principal and interest payment portion of the ESOP

Preferred Stock is released and after conversion of the

ESOP Preferred Stock into common shares allocated to

the 401k Plan participants

The balance of ESOP shares the dividends on allocated

shares of common stock and unreleased preferred shares

paid to the 401k Plan and the fair value of unearned ESOP

shares were

Per share fair value of options granted
Incentive Compensation Plans

Director Plans

Expected volatility

Expected dividends

Expected term in years

Risk-free interest rate

Shares outstanding

December31

2008 2007 2006

Dividends paid

Year ended December3L

2008 2007 2006

At December 31 2008 there was $5 million of total

unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested RSRs

The cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of 2.4 years The total fair value of RSRs that vested

during 2008 and 2007 was $1 million for both years

summary of the status of our RSRs and restricted share

awards at December 31 2008 and changes during 2008 is in

the following table

Number Weighted-average

grant-date fair value

Nonvested at January 12008 112396 $32.01

Granted 201910 29.68

Vested 40045 25.94

Acquisitions 751905 29.48

Nonvested at December31 2008 1026166 29.79

Deferred Compensation Plan for Independent Sales Agents

WF Deferred Compensation Holdings Inc is wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Parent formed solely to sponsor deferred

compensation plan for independent sales agents who provide

investment financial and other qualifying services for or with

respect to participating affiliates The Nonqualified Deferred

Compensation Plan for Independent Contractors which

became effective January 2002 allows participants to defer

all or part of their eligible compensation payable to them by

participating affiliate The Parent has fully and unconditionally

guaranteed the deferred compensation obligations of WF
Deferred Compensation Holdings Inc under the plan

Year ended December31

2008 2007 2006

in millions except shares

Allocated shares common
Unreleased shares preferred

Fair value of unearned ESOP shares

$4.06 $4.03 $4.03

4.33 4.05 4.67

22.4% 13.3% 15.9%

4.1 3.4 3.4

4.4 4.2 4.3

2.7% 4.6% 4.5%

74916583 76265880 74536040

519900 449804 383804

$520 $450 $384

Allocated shares common $100 88 79

Unreleased shares preferred 66 57 47
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Note 20 Employee Benefits and Other Expenses

Jinloyce Bonel its

We sponsor noncontributory qualified defined benefit

retirement plans including the Wells Fargo Company

Cash Balance Plan Cash Balance Plan which covers

eligible employees of the legacy Wells Fargo and the

Wachovia Corporation Pension Plan Pension Plan cash

balance plan that covers eligible employees of the legacy

Wachovia Corporation

Under the Cash Balance Plan eligible employees Cash

Balance Plan accounts are allocated compensation credit

based on percentage of their qualifying compensation The

compensation credit percentage is based on age and years of

credited service In addition investment credits are allocated

to participants quarterly based on their accumulated balances

Prior to January 20DB employees became vested in their

Cash Balance Plan accounts after completing five years of

vesting service or reaching age 65 if earlier Effective

January 2008 employees become vested in their Cash

Balance Plan accounts after completing three years of

vesting service or reaching age 65 if earlier

Under the Pension Plan eligible employees who were

hired prior to January 2008 are allocated an annual

compensation credit based on percentage of their qualifying

compensation The compensation credit is based on their

level of compensation In addition investment credits are

allocated to participants annually based on their accumulated

balances Effective January 2008 employees become

vested in their Pension Plan accounts after completing

three years of vesting service

We made $250 million contribution to our Cash Balance

Plan in 2008 although contribution was not required We

expect that we will not be required to make contribution to

the Cash Balance Plan or the Pension Plan in 2009 however

this is dependent on the finalization of participant data Our

decision of whether to make contribution in 2009 will be

based on various factors including the maximum deductible

contribution under the Internal Revenue Code and the actual

investment performance of plan assets during 2009 Given

these uncertainties we cannot estimate at this time the

amount if any that we will contribute in 2009 to the Cash

Balance Plan or Pension Plan The total amount contributed

for our other pension plans in 2008 was $33 million For the

unfunded nonqualified pension plans and postretirement

benefit plans we will contribute the minimum required amount

in 2009 which equals the benefits paid under the plans In

2008 we paid $65 million in benefits for the postretirement

plans which included $39 million in retiree contributions

We sponsor
defined contribution retirement plans

including the Wells Fargo Company 401k Plan 401k

Plan and the Wachovia Savings Plan Savings Plan We

also have frozen defined contribution plan resulting from

company acquired by Wachovia No contributions are

permitted to that plan Under the 401k Plan after one month

of service eligible employees may contribute up to 25% of

their pre-tax qualifying compensation although there may

be lower limit for certain highly compensated employees

in order to maintain the qualified status of the 401k Plan

Eligible employees who complete one year of service are

eligible for matching company contributions which are

generally 100% match up to 6% of an employees qualifying

compensation The matching contributions generally vest

over four years

Under the Savings Plan after one month of service eligible

employees may contribute up to 30% of their qualifying

compensation on pre-tax or after-tax basis although there

may be lower limit for certain highly compensated employees

in order to maintain the qualified status of this Savings Plan

Eligible employees who complete one year of service are

eligible for matching company contributions which are

generally 100% match up to 6% of an employees qualifying

compensation The matching contributions vest immediately

Expenses for defined contribution retirement plans were

$411 million $426 million and $373 million in 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively

We provide health care and life insurance benefits for

certain retired employees and reserve the right to terminate

or amend any
of the benefits at any time

The information set forth in the following tables is

based on current actuarial reports using the measurement

date of December 31 for our pension and postretirement

benefit plans

Under FAS 158 EmployersAccounting for Dehned Benefit

Pension ond Other Postretirement Plons on omendment

of FASE Stotements No 8y 88 io6 ond 132R we were

required to change the measurement date for our pension

and postretirement plan assets and benefit obligations from

November 30 to December 31 beginning in 2008 To reflect

this change we recorded an $8 million after tax adjustment

to the 2008 beginning balance of retained earnings
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The changes in the projected benefit obligation of pension 2007 the funded status at December 31 2008 and 2007 and

benefits and the accumulated benefit obligation of other the amounts recognized in the balance sheet at December 31

benefits and the fair value of plan assets during 2008 and 2008 and 2007 were

in millions
_____________________________________ ___________________ December 31

2008 ________________________ 2007

Pension benefits Pension benefits

Non- Other Non- Other

Qualified qualified benefits Qualified qualified benefits

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 4565 366 663 $4443 301 739

Service cost 291 15 13 281 15 15

Interest cost 276 22 40 246 18 41

Plan participants contributions 39 39

Amendments 124

Plan mergers 64

Actuarial loss gain 197 15 94 1105 16 105
Benefits paid 317 24 65 1310 124 170

Foreign exchange impact 10

Acquisitions 4359 317 727
Measurement date adjustment

Benefit obligation at end of year $977 S443

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 5617 458 $5351 412

Actual return on plan assets 1750 128 560 56

Employer contribution 260 24 22 24 21

Plan participants contributions 39 39

Benefits paid 317 24 65 1310 24 70
Foreign exchange impact

Acquisitions 4132 46
Measurement data adjustment tZ9 k4

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 7863 j..368 $.ji
Funded status at end of year $11 14 $4 $J7 $9
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet at end of year

Assets $1061
Liabilities 1114 _44 j97 i20.l

$1114 $j $J97 $J

Represents acquisition of Greater Say Baricorp on October t2007

Excludes foreign benefit plans of Wachovia with total benefit obligation of $32 million fair value of plan assets of $30 million and an underfunded Status of $2 million

Represents change in benefit obligation and plan assets during December 2007 to reflect an additional month of activity due to the change in measurement date from

November30 to December31 as required by Ff55 158

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income pre tax for the year ended December 31 2008 and 2007 consist of

in millions December 31
2008 2007

Pension benefits Pension benefits

Non- Other Non- Other

Qualified qualified benefits Qualified qualified benefits

Net actuarial loss $2349 50 91 $248 79 13

Net
prior service credit 37 38 142 142

Net transition obligation

Translation adjustments ..J2.l ..J1 .iii

$244 $Z

The net actuarial loss and net prior service credit for the The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the

defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from projected benefit obligation were

accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic
_______________________ _________________________________

benefit cost in 2009 are $430 million and $5 million respectively
Year ended December31

The net actuarial loss and net prior service credit for the
2008 2007

other postretirement plans that will be amortized from
Pension Other Pension Other

accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefits benefits benefits benefits

benefit cost in 2009 are $3 million and $4 million respectively
Discount rate 6.75% 6.75% 6.25% 6.25%
Rate of compensation

increase 4.0 4.0

11 Includes both qualified and nonqualified pension benefits
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The weighted-average allocation of plan aasets wasThe accumulated benefit obligation for the defined

benefit pension plans was $9423 million and $4734 million

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

We seek to achieve the expected long-term rate of return

with prudent level of risk given the benefit obligations

of the pension plans and their funded status We target the

asset allocation for our Cash Balance Plan and Pension Plan

at target mix range of 35-65% equities 2050% fixed income

and approximately 15% in real estate venture capital private

equity and other investments The target ranges referenced

above account for the employment of an asset allocation

methodology designed to overweight stocks or bonds when

compelling opportunity exists The Employee Benefit

Review Committee EBRC which includes several members

of senior management formally reviews the investment risk

and performance of our Cash Balance Plan on quarterly

basis and will incorporate the Pension Plan into this process

starting in 2009 Annual Plan liability analysis and periodic

asset/liability evaluations are also conducted

Percentage of plan assets at December31

2008 2007

Pension Other Pension Other

plan benefit plan benefit

assets plan assets1 assets plan assets

Pension benefits

Non-

Qualified qualified

Pension benefits

Non-

Qualified qualified

Pension benefits

Non-

Qualified qualified

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of

net actuarial loss

Amortization of

prior
service cost

Special termination benefits

Curtailment gain

Settlement

Net periodic benefit cost

Other changes in

plan assets and

benefit obligations

recognized in other

comprehensive income

Net actuarial loss gain
Amortization of net

actuarial loss

Prior service cost

Amortization of prior

service cost

Translation adjustments

Total recognized in other

comprehensive income

Total recognized in

net periodic benefit

cost and other

comprehensive income

291 $15 $13
276 22 40

478 41

213 16 126

33 13
24

i24 fl25

$247 $16 $15

224 16 39

4211 31

56

14

191

Net actuarial loss is generally amortized over five years

Equity securities 54% 54% 67% 63%

Debt securities 34 41 26 34

Real estate

Other

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

111 tacludes approximately $46 million in assets associated with Wachovia Retiree

Medical Benefit plans which are invested in combination of municipal bonds

money market investments and Trust Owned Life insurance policy for the

purpose of paying claims

The table below provides information for pension plans

with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets

The components of net periodic benefit cost were

in millions

in millions December31

2008 2007

Projected benefit obligation $9661 $463

Accumulated benefit obligation 9423 422

Fair value of plan assets 7863 88

2008

Other

benefits

nn7

Year ended December 31

Other

benefits

2006

281

246

452

$15 15

18 41

36

Other

benefits

32 13

13

108 43 21

13

90 45

2102 16 79

13

21q9 J24 Th

$1135
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The weighted-average assumptiens used te determine the net periedic benefit cest were

Year ended December 31

Disceunt rate

Expected return en plan assets

Rate at campensatien increase

2008

Pension Other

benefits

6.25%

8.75

5.75%

8.75

4.0

2006

Pensian Other

benefits1 benefits

5.75%

8.75

Includes both qualified and nanqualified pension benefits

The lang-term rate af return assumptians abave were

derived based en cambinatian af factars including

lang-term histarical return experience far majar asset

class categaries far example large cap and small cap

damestic equities internatianal equities and damestic fixed

incame and farward-laaking return expectatians far

these majar asset classes

Ta accaunt far pastretirement health care plans we use

health care cast trend rates ta recagnize the effect af expected

changes in future health care casts due ta medical inflatian

utilizatian changes new technalagy regulatary requirements

and Medicare cast shifting We assumed average annual

increases af appraximately gt befare age 65 and 8.5% after

age 65 far health care casts far 2009 The rates af average

annual increases are assumed ta trend dawn 0.5% each year

until the trend rates reach an ultimate trend af 5% in 2017

befare age 65 and 2016 after age 65 Increasing the

assumed health care trend by ane percentage paint in each

year wauld increase the benefit abligatian as af December 31

2008 by $60 millian and the tatal af the interest cast and

service cast campanents af the net periadic benefit cast far

2aoS by $5 millian Decreasing the assumed health care trend

by ane percentage paint in each year wauld decrease the

benefit abligatian as af December 31 2008 by $55 millian and

the tatal of the interest cast and service cast campanents af

the net periadic benefit cast far 2008 by $4 millian

The investment strategy far assets held in the Retiree

Medical Plan Valuntary Emplayees Beneficiary Assaciatian

VEBA trust and ether pensian plans is maintained separate

fram the strategy far the assets in the Cash Balance Plan and

Pensian Plan The general target asset mix is 4565% equities

and 3555% fixed incame In additian the strategy far the

VEBA trust assets cansiders the effect af incame taxes by

utilizing cambinatian af variable annuity and law turnaver

investment strategies Members af the EBRC farmally review

the investment risk and perfarmance af these assets an

quarterly basis

Future benefits reflecting expected future service

that we expect ta pay under the pensian and ether benefit

plans fallaw

in millians Pensian benefits

Nan- Other

Qualified qualified benefits

Year ended December 31

2009 802 82 $117

2010 825 80 121

2011 823 80 125

2012 849 69 127

2013 971 65 129

2014-2018 4659 330 653

Other benefits payments are expected ta be reduced by

prescriptian drug subsidies fram the federal gavernment

pravided by the Medicare Prescriptian Drug Impravement

and Madernizatian Act af 2003 as fallaws

in millians Other benefits

subsidy receipts

Year ended December 31

2009 $19

2010 20

2011 22

2012 23

2013 24

2014-2018 84

Other Expenses

Expenses exceeding 1% af tatal interest incame and naninterest

inceme in any af the years presented that are nat atherwise

shawn separately in the financial statements ar Nates ta

Financial Statements were

in millians Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Outside prafessianal services $847 $899 $942

Insurance 725 416 257

Travel and entertainment 447 474 542

Cantract services 407 448 579

2007

Pensian Other

benefits1 benefits

6.25%

8.75

4.0

5.75%

8.75

5.75%

8.75

4.0
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Note 21 Income Taxes

in millions Year ended December31

2008 2007 2006

Current

Federal 2043 $3181 $2993

State and local 171 284 438

Foreign 30

2244 357Q
Deferred

Federal 1506 32 491

State and local 136 69

1642 560

Total 602 $7Q $j

The tax benefit related to the exercise of employee stock

options recorded in stockholders equity was $123 million

$210 million and $229 million for 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

We had net deferred tax asset of $13864 million for

2008 and net deferred tax liability of $4657 million for 2007

Our net deferred tax asset liability and the tax effects of

temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions

of these deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented in

the table on the right

We have determined that valuation reserve is required

for 2008 in the amount of $973 million primarily attributable to

deferred tax assets in various state and foreign jurisdictions

where we believe it is more likely than not that these deferred

tax assets will not be realized In these jurisdictions carry

back limitations lack of sources of taxable income and tax

planning strategy limitations contributed to our conclusion

that the deferred tax assets would not be realizable We have

concluded that it is more likely than not that the remaining

deferred tax assets will be realized based on our history of

earnings sources of taxable income in carry back periods

and our ability to implement tax planning strategies

At December 31 2008 we had net operating loss and credit

carry forwards with related deferred tax assets of $424 million

and $96 million respectively If these carry
forwards are not

utilized they will expire in varying amounts through 2028

in millions December 31

2008 2007

Deferred taxes related to net unrealized losses on securities

available for sale net unrealized gains on derivatives foreign

currency translation and employee benefit plan adjustments

are recorded in cumulative other comprehensive income

At December 31 2008 Wachovia had undistributed foreign

earnings of $2.2 billion related to foreign subsidiaries We

intend to reinvest these earnings indefinitely outside the U.S

and accordingly have not provided $669 million of income

tax liability on these earnings

The table below reconciles the statutory federal income

tax expense and rate to the effective income tax expense

and rate

in millions

2008

Amount Rate

2007

Amount Rate

Year ended December 31

2006

Amount Rate

The components of income tax expense were

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses

Deferred compensation
and employee benefits

Accrued expenses
deductible when paid

SOP 03-3 loans

Mark to market net

Net unrealized losses on

securities available for sale

Net operating loss and tax

credit carry forwards

Other

Total deferred tax assets

$1977

576

451

7859

2016

1536

13806
194

3887

520

1421

31239

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance 973

Deferred tax liabilities

Mortgage servicing rights

Leasing

Basis difference in investments

Mark to market net

Intangible assets

Net unrealized gains on

securities available for sale

Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

56061 5103
2617 1737

3251

427
56251 360

242

22291 11150

164021 19019

Net deferred tax asset liability $13864 $4657

Statutory federal income tax expense and rate $1140 35.0% $4070 35.0% $4428 35.0%

Change in tax rate resulting from

State and local taxes on income net of

federal income tax benefit 94 2.9 359 3.1 331 2.6

Tax-exempt interest 130 4.0 81 0.7 76 0.6

Excludable dividends 1861 5.7 23 0.2 12 0.1

Other deductible dividends 71 2.2 70 0.6 63 0.5

Tax credits 266 8.2 256 2.2 21 .7

Life insurance 671 2.0 58 0.5 63 0.5

Other .27 J311 B2 ..JIPQ 109

Effective income tax expense and rate $.1007 18.5% $957Q 30.7% $4230 394%
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Income tax expense for 2008 and the effective tax rate

included FIN 48 tax benefits of $126 million as well as the

impact of lower pre-tax earnings and higher levels of

tax-exempt income and tax credits

The change in unrecognized tax benefits in 2008 and

2007 follows

in millions 2008 2007

Balance at beginning of year $2695 $2875

Additions

For tax positions related to the current year 420 203

For tax positions related to prior years 452 105

For tax positions from business combinations 4308
Red uctions

For tax positions related to prior years 2661 82
Lapse of statute of limitations 80 244
Settlements with tax authorities ...J152

Balanceatendofyear $Lii $2S25

11 Unrecognized tas benetts from the Wachovia acquisition

Of the $7521 million of unrecognized tax benefits at

December 31 2008 approximately $2718 million would

if recognized affect the effective tax rate The remaining

$4803 million of unrecognized tax benefits relates to

income tax positions on temporary differences

We recognize interest and penalties as component of

income tax expense At the end of 2008 and 2007 we accrued

approximately $1560 million and $230 million for the payment

of interest respectively The increase in accrued interest is

primarily related to interest accrued by Wachovia prior to

the acquisition Interest expense of $62 million after tax

and interest income of $34 million after tax was recognized

for 2008 and 2007 respectively as component of income

tax expense

We are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as

sncome tax in numerous state and foreign jurisdictions

With few exceptions Wells Fargo and its subsidiaries are

not subject to federal income tax examinations for taxable

years prior to 2005 and state local and foreign income tax

examinations for taxable years prior to 2004 Wachovia

Corporation and its subsidiaries with few exceptions are no

longer subject to federal income tax examinations for taxable

years prior to 2003 and state local and foreign income tax

examinations for taxable years prior to 2000

We are routinely examined by tax authorities in various

jurisdictions The Internal Revenue Service IRS is currently

examining Wachovia Corporation and its Subsidiaries for

tax years 2003 through 2005 and certain non-consolidated

Wachovia subsidiaries for tax years 2001 through 2006 In

addition Wachovia is appealing various issues related to

their 2000 through 2002 tax years Wachovia is also currently

subject to examination by various state local and foreign tax

ing authorities While it is possible that one or more of these

examinations may be resolved within the next twelve months

we do not anticipate that there will be significant impact to

the unrecognized tax benefits as result of these examina

tions In October of 2008 Wachovia submitted nonbinding

acceptance to participate in the IRS resolution offer related

to sale-in lease-out SILO transactions We are awaiting fur

ther information from the IRS to evaluate the full impact of

the resolution offer on our financial statements Acceptance

of the resolution offer could significantly impact our unrecog

nized tax benefits

The IRS is examining the 2005 and 2006 consolidated

federal income tax returns of Wells Fargo Company and

its Subsidiaries We anticipate the audit phase of this exami

nation will be completed in 2009 We are also litigating or

appealing various issues related to our prior IRS examina

tions for the periods 1997-2004 We have paid the IRS the

contested income tax associated with these issues and refund

claims have been filed for the respective years We are also

under examination in numerous other taxing jurisdictions

While it is possible that one or more of these examinations

may be resolved within the next 12 months we do not antici

pate that these examinations will significantly impact our

uncertain tax positions We are estimating that our unrecog

nized tax benefits could decrease by between $350 million

and $3.5 billion during the next 12 months primarily related

to the potential resolution of the Wachovia SILO transac

tions statute expirations and settlements
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Note 22 Earnings Per Common Share

The table below shows earnings per common share and outstanding but not included in the calculation of diluted

diluted earnings per common share and reconciles the earnings per common share because the exercise price was

numerator and denominator of both earnings per common higher than the market price and therefore were antidilutive

share calculations At December 31 2007 and 2006 options to purchase

At December 31 2008 options and warrants to purchase 13.8 million and 6.7 million shares respectively

172.4 million and 110.3 million shares respectively were were antidilutive

in millions except per share amounts Year ended December31

2008 2007 2006

Net income 2655 8057 8420

Less Preferred stock dividends and accretion 286

Net income applicable to common stock numerator 2369 8057 8420

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Average common shares outstanding denominator 3378.1 3348.5 3368.3

Per share 0.70 2.41 2.50

DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Average common shares outstanding 3378.1 3348.5 3368.3

Add Stock options 3.1 34.2 41.7

Restricted share rights
0.1 0.1 0.1

Diluted average common shares outstanding denominator 3391.3 3382.8 3410.1

Per share 0.70 2.38 2.47

Note 23 Other Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income and the related tax effects were

in millions
Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Before Tax Net of Before Tax Net of Before Tax Net of

tax effect tax tax effect tax tax effect tax

Translation adjustments 93 35 58 $J $13 $.

Securities available for sale

Net unrealized gains Iosses

arising during the year 10546 3958 6588 86 36 50 264 93 171

Reclassification of gains

included in net income 35 13 22 J34 Jj31 Jj4 ..fi74 J2Q2

Net unrealized losses arising

during the year 10581 3971 6.610 J39 95 jj4 1142 ...Ji

Derivatives and

hedging activities

Net unrealized gains

arising during the year 955 363 592 645 246 399 46 16 30

Reclassification of net losses

gains on cash flow hedges

included in net income 252 96 156 J24 14Z ....C7Z .44 .......24

Net unrealized gains arising

during the year 703 267 436 2i 1199 32.2 111Q 4Q ....ZQ

Defined benefit pension plans

Net actuarial gain loss 2165 799 1366 347 132 215

Amortization of net actuarial gain

loss and prior service cost

included in net income 44 17 27

Net gains losses arising

during the year 2159 797 Jj3 391 149 242

Other comprehensive income $112130 $4536 $7594 $42 $........9 L9
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Cumulative other comprehenaive income balances were

Adoption of FAS 158

Note 24 Operating Segments

We have three lines of business for management reporting

Community Banking Wholesale Banking and Wells Fargo

Financial The results for these lines of business are based on

our management accounting process which assigns balance

sheet and income statement items to each responsible operating

segment This process is dynamic and unlike financial

accounting there is no comprehensive authoritative guidance

for management accounting equivalent to generally accepted

accounting principles The management accounting process

measures the performance of the operating segments based on

our management structure and is not necessarily comparable

with similar information for other financial services companies

We define our operating segments by product type and

customer segments If the management structure and/or

the allocation process changes allocations transfers and

assignments may change Because the Wachovia acquisition

was completed on December 31 2008 Wachovias results are

not included in the segment results or average balances for

2008 To reflect the realignment of our corporate trust business

from Community Banking into Wholesale Banking in 2008

results for prior periods have been revised

The Community Banking Group offers complete line of

diversified financial products and services to consumers and

small businesses with annual sales generally up to $20 million

in which the owner generally is the financial decision maker

Community Banking also offers investment management

and other services to retail customers and high net worth

individuals securities brokerage through affiliates and

venture capital financing These products and services

include the Wells Forgo Advootoge FundssM family of

mutual funds as well as personal trust and
agency assets

Loan products include lines of credit equity lines and loans

equipment and transportation recreational vehicle and

marine loans education loans origination and purchase of

residential mortgage loans and servicing of mortgage loans

and credit cards Other credit products and financial

services available to small businesses and their owners

include receivables and inventory financing equipment

leases real estate financing Small Business Administration

financing venture capital financing cash management

payroll services retirement plans Health Savings Accounts

and merchant payment processing Consumer and business

deposit products include checking accounts savings

deposits market rate accounts Individual Retirement

Accounts IRAs time deposits and debit cards

Community Banking serves customers through wide

range of channels which include traditional baoking stores

in-store banking centers business centers and ATMs Also

Phone Books centers and the National Business Banking

Center provide 24-hour telephone service Online banking

services include single sign-on to online banking bill pay

and brokerage as well as online banking for small business

The Wholesale Banking Group serves businesses across

the United States with annual sales generally in excess of

$10 million Wholesale Banking provides complete line

of commercial corporate and real estate banking products

and services These include traditional commercial loans

and lines of credit letters of credit asset-based lending

equipment leasing mezzanine financing high-yield debt

international trade facilities foreign exchange services

treasury management investment management institutional

fixed-income sales interest rate commodity and equity risk

management online/electronic products such as the

Commerciol Electronic OfAce CEO portal insurance

corporate trust fiduciary and agency services and investment

banking services Wholesale Banking manages and administers

institutional investments employee benefit trusts and

mutual funds including the Wells Forgo Advootoge Funds

in millions Translation Net Net Defined Cumulative

adjustments unrealized unrealized benefit other

gains gains on pension compre

losses on derivatives plans hensive

securities and income

available hedging

for sale activities

BalanceDecember3l2005 543 in
Net change 131 l402Y 13631

Balance December 312006 29 562 jj3 J4 302

Net change 23 322 242
BalanceDecember3l2007 52 i98 43 160 725

Net change J5 6.610 436 1362 75g4
Balance December 31 2008 IJ $16212 $1522 $16869
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Wholesale Banking includes the majority ownership interest

in the Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank which provides trade

financing letters of credit and collection services and is

sometimes supported by the Export-Import Bank of the

United States public agency of the United States offering

export finance support for American-made products

Wholesale Banking also supports the commercial real estate

market with products and services such as construction loans

for commercial and residential development land acquisition

and development loans secured and unsecured lines of

credit interim financing arrangements for completed

structures rehabilitation loans affordable housing loans

and letters of credit permanent loans for securitization

commercial real estate loan servicing and real estate and

mortgage brokerage services

Wells Fargo Finaacial includes consumer finance and

auto finance operations Consumer finance operations make

direct consumer and real estate loans to individuals and

purchase sales finance contracts from retail merchants from

offices throughout the United States and in Canada and the

Pacific Rim Auto finance operations specialize in making

loans secured by autos in the United States Canada and

Puerto Rico Wells Fargo Financial also provides credit

cards and lease and other commercial financing

The Other column includes certain items recorded at

the enterprise level The provision for credit losses for 2008

represents the $1.2 billion provision for credit losses to

conform Wachovia estimated loss emergence periods to

Wells Fargo policies Average assets for 2008 and 2007

consist of unallocated goodwill

income/expense in millions

average balances in billions

2008

Average loans

Average assets

Average core deposits

2007

Average loans

Average assets

Average core deposits

Community wholesale wells Fargo

Banking Banking Financial

218.8

375.0

254.6

194.0

330.6

242.2

67.6

72.0

65.2

71.1

Other Consolidated

Company

398.5

604.4

325.2

344.8

5.8 520.8

303.1

2008

Net interest income $16188 $4474 4481 $25143

Provision for credit losses 9560 11 15 4063 1241 5979

Noninterestincome 11572 4069 1113 16754

Noninterest expense .j452 .554fi 2763 22661

Income loss before income

tax expense benefit 3848 1882 1232 1241 3257

Income tax expense benefit 916 .582 1448 ......J4B.$ 602

Net income loss 2932 $1A$ 764 806 2655

2007

Net interest income Ii 3Ogg 3648 4227 20974

Provision for credit losses 3187 69 1683 439

Noninterest income 11832 5300 1284 18416

Noninterest expense i.4595 3052 22824

Income before

income tax expense 7o4g 3802 776 11627

Income tax expense g43 JJ32 295 3570

Net income 5106 $470 481 8057

2006

Net interest income 12877 3164 3910 19951

Provision for credit losses
887 16 1301 2204

Noninterest income 9620 4605 1515 15740

Noninterest expense 3663 ...448 20837

Income before

income tax expense 7947 3385 1318 12650

Income tax expense 2.571 .jAP3 466 42312

Net income 5376 $2J2 852 8420

$112.1

151.6 5.8

70.6

85.6

3.3

60.9

111 Net interest income is the difference between interest earned on assets and the cnst of liabilities to fund those assets Interest earned includes actual interest earned

on segment assets and if the segment has excess liabilities interest credits for providing funding to other segments.The cost of liabilities includes interest expense on

segment liabilities and if the segment does not have enough liabilities to fund its assets funding charge based on the cost of excess liabilities from another segwent

In general Community Banking has excess liabilities and receives interest credits for the funding it provides to other segments
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Note 25 Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

Following are the condensed consolidating financial statements Wells Fargo Financial Canada Corporation WFFCC WFFIs
of the Parent and Wells Fargo Financial Inc and its wholly- wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary WFFCC has continued to

owned subsidiaries WFFI In 2002 the Parent issued full issue term debt securities and commercial paper in Canada

and unconditional guarantee of all outstanding term debt unconditionally guaranteed by the Parent The Wells Fargo

securities and commercial paper of WFFI WFFI ceased filing Financial business segment for management reporting see

periodic reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Note 24 consists of WFFI and other affiliated consumer

and is no longer separately rated company The Parent finance entities managed by WFFI that are included within

also guaranteed all outstanding term debt securities of other consolidating subsidiaries in the following tables

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

in millions Parent WFFI Other Etminations Consolidated

consolidating Company
subsidiaries

Year ended December 31 2008

Dividends from subsidiaries

Bank $1806 $08061
Nonbank 326 326

Interest income from loans 5275 22417 62 27632
Interest income from subsidiaries 2892 28g2
Other interest income 241 108 il051 134 7266

Total interest income 2Z 5393 29468 5220

Deposits 4g66 445 4521
Short-term borrowings 475 220 1757 974 1478

Long-term debt JAQJ 661 16691 3.756

Total interest expense 2922 7384 3088 9755

NET INTEREST INCOME 1835 3356 22084 2132 25143
Provision for credit losses ...97Q 3009 5g79
Net interest income after provision for credit losses J935 9075 21321 9jf4

NONINTEREST INCOME
Fee income nonaffihiates 437 10110 10547
Other J1Q1 168 8201 20611 6207

Total noninterest income figj 605 18311 J3Q61 j454

NONINTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries and benefits 3851 719 12606 12940
Other is jjjp 10648 JgQJ 9jj

Total noninterest expense JA33 23254 2061 22661

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BENEFIT AND EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED

INCOME OF SUBSIDIARIES 2104 847 4132 2132 3257
Income tax expense benefit 83 1289 974 602

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

NET INCOME LOSS $L555 $J5I 3.158 $12600 2655
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income

in millions

Dividends from subsidiaries

Bank

Nonbank

Other interest income

Total interest income

Deposits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt

Total interest expense

$14587

398

56 29040

3693
6137

8739 35177

641 8152

1267 1245

1847 4806

3755 14203

4984 20974

4939

4984 16035

NONINTEREST INCOME

Fee income nonaffiliates

Other

Total noninterest income

394

117 140

117 534

10233

9060

19293

10627

11528 7789

1528 18416

NONINTEREST EXPENSE

Year ended December 312006

Bank

Nonbank

Other interest income

Total interest income

Deposits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt

Total interest expense

NONINTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries and benefits

Other

$2176

876

3266

103

6.421

436

3.197

3.633

2788

2.788

2756

198

5.466

58.420

$2176

876

42 25611

3266
6628

6.365 32239

7174

1890 992

1543 4122

12433 2288

3932 19951

______ 2204

3932 17747

3052 12650

4230

15466

$1 8420

Year ended December 312007

Interest income from loans

Interest income from subsidiaries

Other Eliminations Consolidated

Company

Parent

$4587

398

3693

152

8830

444

4.274

4556

WFFI

5643

115

5.758

442

1.923

2.365

3393

969

2.424

consolidating

subsidiaries

23453

5875

29328

8793

1626

900

11319

18009

3970

14039

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for credit losses

Net interest income after provision for credit losses

Salaries and benefits

Other

Total noninterest expense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BENEFIT AND EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED

INCOME OF SUBSIDIARIES

Income tax expense benefit

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

NET INCOME

61

291

352

4321

257
3.479

Dividends from subsidiaries

13368

1527 9456

1527 22824

4985 11627

3570

3479

$18464 8.057

Interest income from loans

Interest income from subsidiaries

1229

2.348

610

246

5364

5283

102

5.385

381

2.139

3246

1.061

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for credit losses

Net interest income after provision for credit losses

NONINTEREST INCOME

Fee income nonaffiliates

Other

Total noninterest income

12078

9573

21651

11681

3581

8.100

20370

6428

26798

7174

1065

710

8949

17849

1143

16706

8946

6126

15072

10704

8753

19457

12321

4223

8.098

285

180 259

180 544

Total noninterest expense

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BENEFIT AND EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED

INCOME OF SUBSIDIARIES

Income tax expense benefit

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

NET INCOME

95

117

212

9231

56 6509

156 15740

11927

1936 8910

936 20837

1128

976

j4

625

205

5420
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

in millions

December 312008

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents due from

Subsidiary banks

Nonaffiliates

Securities available for sale

Mortgages and loans held for sale

Loans

Loans to subsidiaries

Bank

Nonbank

Allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Investments in subsidiaries

Bank

Nonbank

Other assets

Total assets

15658 246 15904
180 73016 73196

4950 2130 144494 151569

26316 26316

827242

21745 21745
68527 68527

2359 18654 21013
90281 43571 808588 98623 843817

105721 105721

24094 24094
34949 1756 213099 35063 214741

5275.653 $47883 Si .265.513 S279.410 $1309639

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Deposits

Short-term borrowings

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Long-term debt

Indebtedness to subsidiaries

Total liabilities

Stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

December 312007

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents due from

Subsidiary banks

Nonaffiliates

Securities available for sale

Mortgages and loans held for sale

Loans

Loans to subsidiaries

Bank

Nonbank

Allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Investments in subsidiaries

Bank

Nonbank

Other assets

Total assets

791728 10326 781402

23434 12911 150156 78427 108074

7426 1194 58938 13637 53921

134026 31704 137118 35690 267158

11683 11683
176569 45809 1137940 149763 1210555

99084 2074 127573 129647 99084

5275.653 $47883 $1265513 $1279.41 $1309639

14989 253 15242
230 17281

2481 2091 68384

27763

106 51222 344037 13170 382195

11400 11400

53272 53272

1041 4266 5307
64778 50181 339771 77842 376888

49461 49461

5463 5463
8010 1720 74955 4356 80329

$145182 $54475 528154 152369 575442

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Deposits

Short-term borrowings

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Long-term debt

Indebtedness to subsidiaries

Total liabilities

Stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

359702 15242 344460

4692 9117 69990 30544 53255

5432 1393 27307 3426 30706

77116 40753 19603 38079 99393

i3i4 10314

97554 51263 476602 97605 527814

47628 3212 51552 54764 47628

$145182 54.475 528154 $11 523691 575442

Parent WFFI Other Eliminations Consolidated

consolidating Company
subsidiaries

45930 8351 864830

17511

72951

27763
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

in millions Year ended December 31

2008 2007

Parent WFFI Other Consolidated Parent WFFI Other Consolidated

consolidating Company consolidating Company

subsidiaries/ subsidiaries

eliminations eliminations

Cash flows from

operating activities

Net cash provided used

by operating activities 730 2.023 7584 4831 3715 1446 3917 9078

Cash flows from

investing activities

Securities available for sale

Sales proceeds 2570 875 57361 60806 2554 559 44877 47990

Prepayments and maturities 283 24034 24317 299 8206 8505

Purchases 3514 1258 100569 105341 3487 1174 70468 75129
Loans

Increase in banking

subsidiaries loan originations

netofcollections 1684 53131 54815 2686 45929 48615

Proceeds from sales including

participations of loans

originated for investment

by banking subsidiaries 1988 1988 3369 3369

Purchases including

participations of loans

by banking subsidiaries 5513 5513 8244 8244
Principal collected on

nonbankentitiesloans 14447 7399 21846 18729 2747 21476

Loans originated by

nonbankentities 12362 7611 19973 20461 4823 25284

Net repayments from

advances to subsidiaries 12415 12415 10338 10338

Capital notes and term loans

madetosubsidiaries 2008 2008 10508 10508

Principal collected on notes

loans made to subsidiaries 8679 8679 7588 7588
Net decrease increase in

investment in subsidiaries 37108 37108 1132 1132

Netcashacquiredfromacquisitions 9194 2009 11203 2811 2811
Othernet 21823 91 69.225 47.311 106 847 2381 1428

Net cash provided used

by investing activities 56425 210 38.044 18171 15429 5581 56305 77315

Cash flows from

financing activities

Net change in

Deposits 7697 7697 27058 27058

Short-term borrowings 17636 5580 38104 14888 9138 2670 28019 39827

Long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance 21931 1113 12657 35701 24385 11335 6360 29360

Repayment 16560 8983 4316 29859 11726 9870 3346 18250

Common stock

Proceeds from issuance 14171 14171 1876 1876

Repurchased 1623 1623 7418 7418
Cash dividends paid 4312 4312 3955 3955

Preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance 22674 22674

Proceeds from issuance of

stock warrants 2326 2326
Excess tax benefits related to

stock option payments 121 121 196 196

Other net 13 739 728
Net cash provided used

by financing activities 56364 2.290 22066 32008 12494 4148 51324 67966

Net change in cash

and due from banks 669 57 8394 9006 780 13 1064 271

Cash and due from banks

at beginning of year 14.989 483 715 14757 14209 470 349 15028

Cash and due from banks

at end of year 15.658 426 7.679 23.763 $14989 483 715 14.757
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 312006

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Securities available for sale

Sales proceeds

Prepayments and maturities

Purchases

Loans

Increase in banking subsidiaries loan

originations net of collections

Proceeds from sales including participations of loans

originated for investment by banking subsidiaries

Purchases including participations of loans by

banking subsidiaries

Principal collected on nonbank entities loans

Loans originated by nonbank entities

Net repayments from advances to subsidiaries

Capital notes and term loans made to subsidiaries

Principal collected on notes/loans made to subsidiaries

Net decrease increase in investment in subsidiaries

Net cash paid for acquisitions

Other net

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net change in

Deposits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance

Repayment

Common stock

Proceeds from issuance

Repu rcha ted

Cash dividends paid

Excess tax benefits related to stock option payments

Other net

Net cash provided used by financing activities

Net change in cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks at beginning of year

Cash and due from banks at end of year

Other Consolidated

consolidating Company

subsidiaries

eliminations

2003 35727 37730

50 38293

51 36

3923

4592
500

7805

4926
145

626

________ 7422 ________

________ 9638 ________

Note 26 Regulatory and Agency Capital Requirements

The Company and each of its subsidiary banks are subject to

various regulatory capital adequacy requirements administered

by the Federal Reserve Board FRB and the 0CC respectively

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement

Act of 1991 FDICIA required that the federal regulatory

agencies adopt regulations defining five capital tiers for banks

well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized

Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate

certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary

actions by regulators that if undertaken could have direct

material effect on our financial statements

Quantitative measures established by the regulators to

ensure capital adequacy require that the Company and each

of the subsidiary banks maintain minimum ratios set forth in

the following table of capital to risk-weighted assets There

are three categories of capital under the guidelines Tier

capital includes common stockholders equity qualifying

preferred stock and trust preferred securities less goodwill

and certain other deductions including portion of servicing

assets and the unrealized net gains and losses after taxes on

securities available for sale Tier capital includes preferred

stock not qualifying as Tier capital subordinated debt

the allowance for credit losses and net unrealized gains

in millions Parent WFFI

3536 1.179

353 822

14 259

378 1032

52129

7048

61052

53304

7321

62462

500

7805
4926

145

3.535

202

19998

22382

1081

3.409

38343

5338
23921

26974

626

6341
16582

4452
11156

4452
10790

1863 20255

30 12609

931 1297

13448 8670

7362 5217

1764

1965
3641

227

12 70

3414 2.226

3415

10.794 474

$14209 470

268

17403

3780

4129

349

1764

1965
3641

227_U
11763

369

15397

$15028
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on marketable equity securities subject to limitations by the

guidelines Tier capital is limited to the amount of Tier

capital i.e at least half of the total capital must be in the

form of Tier capital Tier capital includes certain

qualifying unsecured subordinated debt

We do not consolidate our wholly-owned trusts the

Trusts formed solely to issue trust preferred securities The

amount of trust preferred securities and perpetual preferred

purchase securities issued by the Trusts that was includable

in Tier capital in accordance with FRB risk-based capital

guidelines was $19.3 billion at December 31 2008 The junior

subordinated debentures held by the Trusts were included

in the Companys long-term debt See Note 14 for additional

information on trust preferred securities

Under the guidelines capital is compared with the relative

risk related to the balance sheet To derive the risk included

in the balance sheet risk weighting is applied to each

balance sheet asset and off-balance sheet item primarily

based on the relative credit risk of the counterparty For

example claims guaranteed by the U.S government or one

of its agencies are risk-weighted at 0% and certain real estate

related loans risk-weighted at 50% Off-balance sheet items

such as loan commitments and derivatives are also applied

risk weight after calculating balance sheet equivalent

amounts credit conversion factor is assigned to loan

commitments based on the likelihood of the off-balance

sheet item becoming an asset For example certain loan

commitments are converted at 50% and then risk-weighted at

100% Derivatives are converted to balance sheet equivalents

based on notional values replacement costs and remaining

contractual terms See Notes and 16 for further discussion

of off-balance sheet items For certain recourse obligations

direct credit substitutes residual interests in asset securitization

and other securitized transactions that expose institutions

primarily to credit risk the capital amounts and classification

under the guidelines are subject to qualitative judgments

by the regulators about components risk weightings and

other factors

Actual

Amount Ratio

For capital

adequacy purposes

Amount Ratio

To be well capitalized

under the FDICIA prompt
corrective action provisions

Amount Ratio

11 The leverage ratio consists of Tier capital divided by quarterly average total assets excluding goodwill and certain other items.The minimum leverage ratio guideline

is 3% for banking organizations that do not anticipate significant growth and that have well-diversified riskescellent asset quality high liquiditygood earnings

effective management and monitoring of market risk and in general are considered top-rated strong banking organizations

Management believes that as of December 31 2008 the

Company and each of the covered subsidiary banks met all

capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject

The most recent notification from the 0CC categorized

each of the covered subsidiary banks as well capitalized

under the FDICIA prompt corrective action provisions

applicable to banks To be categorized as well capitalized

the institution must maintain total risk-based capital ratio

as set forth in the table above and not be subject to capital

directive order There are no conditions or events since that

notification that management believes have changed the risk-

based capital category of any of the covered subsidiary banks

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are approved seller/

servicers and are therefore required to maintain minimum

levels of shareholders equity as specified by various agencies

including the United States Department of Housing and

Urban Development Government National Mortgage

Association Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and

Federal National Mortgage Association At December 31

2008 each seller/servicer met these requirements

in billions

As of December 31 2008

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

Wells Fargo Company $1 30.3 1.83% $88.1 8.00%

Wells Fargo Bank N.A 4.1 0.7g 36.4 8.00 $45-5 0.00%

Wachovia Bank N.A 55.4 10.92 40.6 8.00 50.7 0.00

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Wells Fargo Company 86.4 7.84% $44.1 4.00%
Wells Fargo Bank NA 33.1 7.26 18.2 4.00 $27.3 6.00%

Wachovia Bank N.A 32.8 6.46 20.3 4.00 30.4 6.00

Tier capital to average assets

Leverage ratio

Wells Fargo Company 86.4 14.52% $23.8 4.00%1
Wells Fargo Bank NA 33.1 6.31 20.9 4.00 $26.2 5.00%

Wachovia Bank NA 32.8 5.38 24.4 4.00 30.5 5.00
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Wells Fargo Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Wells Fargo Company and Subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in

stockholders equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended

December 31 2008 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed its method of evaluating

other-than-temporary impairment on certain investment securities in 2008 and changed its method of accounting

for certain mortgages held for sale in 2007

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria

established in Internol Control Integroted Fromework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated February 23 200g expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

LCP

San Francisco California

February 23 2009
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Quarterly Financial Data
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income Quarterly Unaudited

in millions except per share amounts 2008 2007

QMartec ended Quarter ended

Dec.31 Sept.30 June30 Mar.31 Dec.31 Sept.30 June30 Mar.31

INTEREST INCOME

INTEREST EXPENSE

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for credit losses

Net interest income after

provision for credit losses

8728 8774 8547 8849

2004 2393 2269 3089

6724 6381 6278 5760

8444 2495 3012 2028

1720 3.886 3266 3732

9242 9223 8573 8139

3754 3943 3377 3129

5488 5280 5196 5010

2612 892 720 715

2876 4.388 4.476 4.295

NONINTEREST INCOME

Service charges on deposit accounts

Trust and investment fees

Card fees

Other fees

Mortgage banking

Operating leases

Insurance

Net gains losses on debt securities

available for sale

Net gains losses from equity investments

Other

Total noninterest income

803 839 800 748

661 738 762 763

589 601 588 558

535 552 511 499

195 892 1197 631

62 102 120 143

337 439 550 504

721 84 91 323

589 507 46 313

152 258 698 321

2.772 3.998 5181 4803

788 837 740 685

802 777 839 731

588 561 517 470

577 566 638 511

831 823 689 790

153 171 187 192

370 329 432 399

60 160 42 31

222 173 242 97

326 176 453 _5
4717 4573 4.695 4431

NONINTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries

Commission and incentive compensation

Employee benefits

Equipment

Net occupancy

Operating leases

Other

Total noninterest expense

2168 2078 2030 1984

671 555 806 644

338 486 593 587

402 302 305 348

418 402 400 399

81 90 102 116

1744 1604 1.624 1384

5822 5.517 5860 5.462

2055 1933 1907 1867

840 802 900 742

558 518 581 665

370 295 292 337

413 398 369 365

124 136 148 153

1540 1589 1530 1.397

5900 5.671 5727 5.526

INCOME LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

EXPENSE BENEFIT
Income tax expense benefit

4770 2367 2587 3073

2.036 730 834 1074

1693 3290 3444 3200

332 1.117 1165 956

NET INCOME LOSS

NET INCOME LOSS APPLICABLE

TO COMMON STOCK

2.734 1637 1753 1.999

3.020 1.637 jj53 1.999

1361 2173 2279 2244

1361 2173 2279 2244

EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE 0.84 0.49 0.53 0.61 0.41 0.65 0.68 0.66

DILUTED EARNINGS LOSS PER

COMMON SHARE 0.84 0.49 0.53 0.60 0.41 0.64 0.67 0.66

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE 0.34 0.34 0.31 0.31 0.31 0.31 0.28 0.28

Average common shares outstanding

Diluted average common shares outstanding

Market price per common share

High

Low

Quarter end

3582.4 3316.4 3309.8 3302.4

3593.6 3331.0 3321.4 3317.9

38.95 44.68 32.40 34.56

19.89 20.46 23.46 24.38

29.48 37.53 23.75 29.10

3327.6 3339.6 3351.2 3376.0

3352.2 3374.0 3389.3 3416.1

37.78 37.99 36.49 36.64

29.29 32.66 33.93 33.01

30.19 35.62 35.17 34.43

Based on daily prices reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Transaction
Reporting System
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Average Balances Yields and Rates Paid Taxable-Equivalent Basis Quarterly Unaudited

in millions

EARNING ASSETS

Federal funds sold securities purchased

under resale agreements and other

short-term investments

Trading assets

Debt securities available for sale

Securities of U.S.Treasury and federal agencies

Securities of U.S states and political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Federal agencies

Private collateralized mortgage obligations

Total mortgage-backed securities

Other debt securities

Total debt securities available for sale

Mortgages held for sale

Loans held for sale

Loans

Commercial and commercial real estate

Commercial

Other real estate mortgage
Real estate construction

Lease financing

Total commercial and commercial real estate

Consumer

Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage
Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage
Credit card

Other revolving credit and installment

Total consumer

Foreign

Total loans

Total earning assets

Other

FUNDING SOURCES

Deposits

Interest-bearing checking

Market rate and other savings

Savings certificates

Other time deposits

Deposits in foreign offices

Total interest-bearing deposits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Portion of noninterest-bearing funding sources

Total funding sources

Net interest margin and net interest income on

taxable-equivalent basis

NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS

Cash and due from banks

Goodwill

Other

Total noninterest-earning assets

NONINTEREST-BEARING FUNDING SOURCES

Deposits

Other liabilities

Preferred stockholders equity

Common stockholders equity

Noninterest-bearing funding sources used to

fund earning assets

Net noninterest-bearing funding sources

TOTAL ASSETS

2008

Average Yields Interest

balance rates income

expense

9938 0.73% 18

5004 4.50 56

51714 6.07 769

18245 6.40 402

69959 6.18 1171

14217 8.10 330

92465 6.50 1651

23390 6.19 362

1287 4.14 14

107325 5.66 1525

45555 5.49 628

19943 4.49 225

7397 5.58 103

180220 5.48 2481

78251 6.37 1247

75838 5.85 1114

20626 12.21 629

52638 8.35 ..ilitO7

227353 7.19 4097
6367 9.73 156

41 3940 6.48 6734
.j690 5.37 23

547.714 6.34

6396 0.65 11

178301 0.96 430

41189 2.66 275

8128 2.74 54

42771 0.69 75

276785 1.22 845

60210 1.35 204

104112 3.69 964

441107 1.82 2013

106607

547714 1.44 213

11155

13544

60810

85.509

91229

30935

16116

53836

106.607

Ouarter ended December 31

2007

Average Yields Interest

balance rates income

expense

2972 4.45% 34

4248 3.39 37

35434 6.15 534

14270 5.99 214

49704 6.11 748

8465 7.45 161

65090 6.38 1028

28327 6.44 456

965 7.72 19

86958 7.88 1726

35863 7.22 652

18510 7.35 343

6583 5.92 97

147914 7.57 2818

69262 7.12 1235

75272 7.92 1503

17689 12.79 565

56546 9.54 .i359

218769 8.48 4662

7689 11.55 224

374372 8.18 7704

1552 4.95 17

$477526 7.75 _92.9

5254 2.96 39

156260 2.63 1035

42560 4.33 465

10874 4.45 122

44991 4.19 475

259939 3.26 2136

34074 4.42 380

98012 5.06 .J245

392025 3.81 3761

85501

$477526 3.13 _3251

12127

13091

52903

78.121

86632

29019

47971

85501

78121

555.647

452% $..5534

Because the Wachovia acquisition was completed at the end of 2008 Wachovias assets and liabilities are not included in average balances and Wachovias results are not

reflected in interest income/expense

Our
average prime rate was 4.06% and 7.52% for the quarters ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively.The average three-month London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR

was 2.77% and 5.03% for the same quarters respectively

Interest rates and amounts include the effects of hedge and risk management activities associated with the respective asset and liability categories

Yields are based on amortized cost balances computed on settlement date basis

Includes certain preferred securities

Nonaccrual loans and related income are included in their respective loan categories

Includes taxable-equivalent adjustments primarily related to tax-exempt income on certain loans and securities.The federal statutory tax rate was 35% for both quarters presented
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Stock Performance

These graphs compare the cumulative total stockholder

return and total compound annual growth rate CAGR for

our common stock NYSE WFC for the five- and ten-year

periods ended December 31 2008 with the cumulative

total stockholder returns for the same periods for the Keefe

Bruyette and Woods 50 Total Return Index the KBW 50

Bank Index and the SP 500 Index

FIVE YEARS

The cumulative total stockholder returns including

reinvested dividends in the graphs assume the investment

of $100 in Wells Fargos common stock the KBW 50 Bank

Index and the SP 500 Index

$160

$140

$120

$100

80

60

40

Wells Fargo

WFC

1111

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 5-year

CAGR

$100 $109 $114 $133 $117 $119 4% WelisFargo

100 111 116 135 142 90 -2% SP500

100 110 111 133 102 56 -11% KBW5O

TEN YEARS

$220

$200

$180

$160

$140

$120

$100

80

60

Wells Fargo

WFC

SP 500

KBW5O

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 10-year

CAGR

$100 $103 $145 $116 $128 $165 $180 $188 $219 $193 $197 7% WelisFargo

100 121 110 97 76 97 108 113 131 138 87 -1% SP500

100 97 116 111 103 138 152 154 184 142 77 -3% KBW5O
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Wells Fargo Company

Stock Listing

Wells Fargo Company is listed and trades on the New York

Stock Exchange WFC

Common Stock

4228630889 common shares outstanding 12/31/08

Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment

You can buy Wells Fargo stock directly from Wells Fargo

even if youre not Wells Fargo stockholder through optional

cash payments or automatic monthly deductions from

bank account You can also have your dividends reinvested

automatically Its convenient economical way to increase

your Wells Fargo investment

Call 1-877-840-0492 for an enrollment kit including

plan prospectus

Form io-K

We will send Wells Fargos 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K

including the financial statements filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission free to any stockholder who asks

for
copy in writing Stockholders also can ask for copies of any

exhibit to the Form in-K We will charge fee to cover expenses

to prepare and send any exhibits Please send requests to

Corporate Secretary Wells Fargo Company Wells Fargo Center

MAC N93o5-173 Sixth and Marquette Minneapolis MN 55479

SEC Filings

Our annual reports on Form ia-K quarterly reports on

Form io-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments

to those reports are available free of charge on our website

www.wellsfargo.com as soon as practical after they are

electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC Those reports

and amendments are also available free of charge on the SECs

website at www.sec.gov

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

KPMG LLP

San Francisco California

1-415-963-5100

Contacts

Investor Relations

1-888-662-7865

investorrelationscwellsfargo.com

Shareholder Services and Transfer Agent

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

P.O Box 64854

Saint Paul Minnesota 55164-0854

1-877-840-0492

www.wellsfargo.com/com/shareowner_services

Corporate Information

Annual Stockholders Meeting

100 p.m Tuesday April 28 2009

420 Montgomery Street

San Francisco California

Certifications

Our chief executive officer certified to the New York Stock

Exchange NYSE that as of May i6 2008 he was not aware

of any violation by the Company of the NYSEs corporate

governance listing standards The certifications of our chief

executive officer and chief financial officer required under

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 were filed as

Exhibits 31a and 31h respectively to our 2008 Form ia-K

Forward-Looking Statements In this report we may make forward-looking statements about our companys financial condition results of operations

plans objectives and future performance and business We make forward-looking statements when we use words such as believe expect anticipate

estimate may can will or similar expressions Forward-looking statements describe risks and uncertainties They are based on current

expectations Several factors could cause actual results to differ significantly from expectations including current economic and market conditions

our capital requirements and ability to raise capital on favorable terms the terms of capital investments or other financial help from

the U.S government Restrictions on our ability to compensate senior executives and other key team members proposals to allow

bankruptcy courts to force creditors to accept less than they are owed on mortgage loans our ability to successfully integrate Wachovia

and realize expected cost savings and other benefits of the merger the adequacy of our allowance for credit losses recognition

of other-than-temporary impairment on securities held in our available-for-sale portfolio the effect of changes in interest rates on our net interest

margin and our mortgage originations mortgage servicing rights and mortgages held for sale disruptions in the capital markets and reduced

investor demand for mortgages loans our ability to earn more of our customers business the effect of the recession on the demand for our products

and services the effect of the fall in stock market prices on fee income from our brokerage and asset management businesses our election

to provide support to our mutual funds for structured credit products they may hold changes in the value of our venture capital investments changes

in our accounting policies or in accounting standards or in how accounting standards are to be applied mergers and acquisitions federal and state

regulations reputation damage from negative publicity fines penalties and other negative consequences from regulatory violations the loss of

checking and saving account deposits to other investments such as the stock market fiscal and monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board

Current and future legal proceedings Under Risk Factors on pages 76-83 of this report we discuss these and other factors that could cause actual

resuhs to differ from expectations We discuss additional factors elsewhere in the Financial Review and in the Financial Statements and related

Notes in this report and in the Regulation and Supervision section of our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission and available on the SECs website at www.sec.gov
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Our Vision

Satisfy all our customers financial needs and help

them succeed financially

Nuestra Vision

Deseamos satisfacer todas las necesidades

financieras de nuestros clientes ayudarlos tener

Øxito en el area financiera

Notre Vision

Satisfaire tous les besoins financiers de nos clients

et les aider atteindre le succŁs financier

_________
Wells Fargo company

420 Montgomery Street

tffi.ti San Francisco California 94104 Jy
Mixed Sources

.cythw.od.flb
1-866-878-5865 wellsfargo.com FSC Z4


